Guide to the Treasurer, Yale University, Records

RU 151



compiled by Diane E. Kaplan and Daniel Hartwig

November 1981

Yale University Library P.O. Box 208240 New Haven, CT 06520-8240 (203) 432-1735 (203) 432-7441 beinecke.library@yale.edu http://www.library.yale.edu/mssa/

Last exported at 2:00 a.m. on Saturday, April 26th, 2025

Table of Contents

Collection Overview	3
Requesting Instructions	3
Administrative Information	
Conditions Governing Access	3
Preferred Citation	4
Processing Information	4
Existence and Location of Copies	4
Existence and Location of Originals	4
Biographical / Historical	
Scope and Contents	4
General note	6
Arrangement	6
Collection Contents	7
Series I: General Accounting Books, 1701-1971	7
Series II: Bursar's Records, 1727-1941	
Series III: Correspondence, 1717-1940	. 24
Series IV: Benefactors, 1700-1963	117
Series V: Investments, circa 1722-1926	158
Series VI: Construction Records, 1752-1941	166
Folio Boxes	177
Folios	178
Accession 19ND-A-475: Prospectus, 1973	
Accession 19ND-A-492: Reports on Yale endowment, 1973	180
Accession 1933-A-006: Records concerning the Mrs. Hepsa Eli Silliman Memorial, circa 1886-1889	181
Accession 1935-A-007: Records concerning the Yale Army Laboratory School, 1918-1920	182
Accession 1944-A-002: Records of the Finance Committee, 1888-1896, 1924-1944	
Accession 1961-A-006: Records concerning Helen Hadley Hall, 1938-1946, 1949, 1956-1959	184
Accession 1986-A-077: Financial records, 1897-1966	185
Series III: Series III	208
Accession 1990-A-153: Correspondence regarding insurance, circa 1942-1943	210
Accession 1996-A-075: Financial records, circa 1900-1930	211
Selected Search Terms	212

Collection Overview

REPOSITORY:	Manuscripts and Archives Yale University Library P.O. Box 208240 New Haven, CT 06520-8240 (203) 432-1735 (203) 432-7441 beinecke.library@yale.edu http://www.library.yale.edu/mssa/
CALL NUMBER:	RU 151
CREATOR:	Yale University. Treasurer
TITLE:	Treasurer, Yale University, records
DATES:	1700-1973
PHYSICAL DESCRIPTION:	357.5 linear feet (560 boxes)
LANGUAGE:	English
SUMMARY:	The records consist of correspondence, minutes, memoranda, reports, audits, ledgers, cash journals, student accounts and bills, estate files, investment accounts, and construction records of the treasurer documenting every aspect of Yale's financial history up to 1971.
ONLINE FINDING AID:	To cite or bookmark this finding aid, please use the following link: <u>https://hdl.handle.net/10079/fa/mssa.ru.0151</u>

Requesting Instructions

To request items from this collection for use in the Manuscripts and Archives reading room, please use the request links in the HTML version of this finding aid, available at https://hdl.handle.net/10079/fa/mssa.ru.0151.

To order reproductions from this collection, please go to <u>http://www.library.yale.edu/mssa/</u> <u>ifr_copy_order.html</u>. The information you will need to submit an order includes: the collection call number, collection title, series or accession number, box number, and folder number or name.

Key to the container abbreviations used in the PDF finding aid:

- b. box
- f. folder

Administrative Information

Conditions Governing Access

The materials are open for research.

Some records in this finding aid have been redacted, as they include student names, donor names, and other restricted data. These records will not appear in the published finding aid.

Preferred Citation

Treasurer, Yale University, Records (RU 151). Manuscripts and Archives, Yale University Library.

Processing Information

Yale University records are arranged and described at the accession level by the creating office. The University Archives creates collection level descriptive records, but typically does no further arrangement and description at the accession level.

Existence and Location of Copies

Series I: General Accounting Books, 1883-1966 is available on microfilm (51,405 frames on 76 reels, 35mm.) from Manuscripts and Archives, Yale University Library, at cost. Order no. HM124.

Series II: Bursar's Records, 1902-1941 is available on microfilm (95,828 frames on 62 reels, 16mm. and 5 reels, 35mm.) from Manuscripts and Archives, Yale University Library, at cost. Order no. HM96.

Existence and Location of Originals

Originals destroyed after filming.

Biographical / Historical

Since its inception in 1701, Yale has had a treasurer to oversee the expenses and income of the college, to keep accurate books of financial affairs, to collect fees from students and others, to advise on investment policy, to solicit and collect gifts, and in many ways to secure the institution's financial well-being. The responsibilities of the office grew over the course of the years. In the early days a treasurer and a steward handled all financial duties. Later years saw the additions of assistant treasurers, financial agents, cashiers, bursars, comptrollers, clerks, legal counsel, investment counselors, and real estate agents.

Scope and Contents

The massive sub-record group of Finance and Administration known as the Treasurer's Records (RU 151) contains the largest continuous set of records in the Yale Archives. Records from 1701 - 1971 document every facet of Yale's financial history. Included in the sub-group are the general summaries of receipts and expenditures and the minute details of charges to a student for breakage in the chemistry lab or the cost of a bath-tub fixture in Jonathan Edwards College.

From the beginning of its history in 1701 Yale has had a treasurer to oversee the expenses and income of the college, to keep accurate books of the financial affairs, to collect fees from students and others, to advise on investment policy, to solicit and collect gifts, and in many other ways to secure the institution's financial well-being. (See appendix A for a complete list of names and dates of Yale's treasurers, 1701 - 1971.) The responsibilities of the office grew over the course of the more than two centuries covered by these records. In the early days a treasurer and steward could handle all duties. These records chart the additions of assistant treasurers, financial agents, cashiers, bursars, comptrollers, clerks, legal counsel, investment counselors, and real estate agents, all to enable the treasurer's office to handle the ever increasing work load.

The complexity of the treasurer's duties is reflected in the records kept by the office and in the arrangement established for these records. The arrangement does not establish specifically what office or department under the treasurer generated which records (as would be correct archival procedure). This

would have been impossible to establish since the records had no markings to indicate the office of origin. The records are now arranged in six series.

Series I, GENERAL ACCOUNTING BOOKS, contains the records created to account for all receipts and expenses of the college, both in summary form on an annual basis, as in the reports to the Yale Corporation, and on a day-to-day, item-by-item basis, as in the cash journals. Series II, BURSAR'S RECORDS, contains those records connected with the levying and collecting of student fees. Series III, CORRESPONDENCE, includes both incoming and outgoing letters dealing with all facets of the treasurer's office. Series IV, BENEFACTORS, encompasses the histories, registers, and other records, including wills, relating to gifts, donations, and bequests to the university. Series V, INVESTMENTS, includes the accounts of real estate, stocks and bonds, and other securities owned by the university and the reckoning of the income, i. e., rent, dividends, and interest, generated by these investments. Series VI, CONSTRUCTION RECORDS, is composed of contracts, specifications, estimates, bills, and other materials gathered in the oversight of the erection of Yale buildings. Each of the series is divided into numerous sub-series and further into sections. The contents and arrangement of each of these series is described in greater detail in the relevant series description.

Though the records span the period 1701 - 1971, the great bulk of material dates from 1833 - 1939. The sparse records in the early years can be explained in part by the passage of time and the erratic, often idiosyncratic nature of bookkeeping at that time. Later Yale treasurers instituted more and more standardized, careful practices for recording all necessary detail for an expanding institution. The unexpectedly small size of the twentieth-century records might stem from a greater willingness on the part of later treasurers to dispose of non-current records in order to create space in crowded offices.

Beginning in the 1930s the treasurer's office began depositing the records of this sub-group in the Yale University Library. Previous to that the records had been in the treasurer's office and were moved from building to building as the office moved. No doubt some records were lost in moves that took the personnel of the treasurer's office from the Trumbull Gallery (later called the Treasury Building) to Woodbridge Hall, Byers Hall, and 451 College Street.

The records sat for many years unorganized; though several archivists attempted to design a plan of arrangement, the great quantity of records (nearly 400 feet) frustrated these plans for processing. In 1979 when a plan of arrangement for the Yale Archives was instituted and record group numbers assigned, the treasurer's records were classified under the records of Finance and Administration (YRG 5-B). They were given the designation YRG 5-B (later reclassed as RU 151) to reflect the fact that in 1977 the treasurer's office had been reorganized under the newly designated vice president for finance and administration. (See appendix B for a table of organization for Finance and Administration.) The plan of arrangement made RU 151 a closed sub-group; since no new records would in future be added the records could be processed completely and finally. The records in RU 151 include only those treasurer's records on deposit in the library prior to 1979.

It should be noted that the vice president for finance and administration and the offices under him retained many financial records, similar to those in this sub-group, which date prior to 1979. As the archives receives these records they will be incorporated into archival record groups according to the new classification scheme, by office of origin. Therefore, audit work papers (1967-1980) received by the archives in October, 1980, are now filed under Auditing, YRG 5-C, though the same type of records are included in Series I of of YRG 5-B. Similarly an accession of real estate files (1940-1979) received in February, 1980, is now filed in YRG 5-A while real estate files, ca. 1722-1930, are included in Series V of YRG 5-B. (See appendix C for an outline of all the sub-record groups in YRG5.) No materials received from functioning offices will ever be added to RU 151.

The treasurer's office deposited many records with the archives that were technically not the records of the treasurer but had presumably been stored in the office for safekeeping or for lack of a better place to put them. A large number of letters to and from President Ezra Stiles came with these records but were removed from the records years ago. These are now part of the Ezra Stiles Papers in the Beinecke Rare Book Library. The Connecticut Education Society Records (# 1242), the Yale Gymnasium Corporation Records (# 1243), and the York Square Trustees Records (# 1250) now exist as separate distinct manuscript groups,

each with its own register. Other records have been transferred to appropriate records groups in the Yale Archives.

Manuscripts and Archives has personal papers for several Yale treasurers, and these papers may contain additional records of the treasurer's office. See appendix A for a list of personal papers of Yale treasurers in Manuscripts and Archives.

All appendices referred to in the the description of the papers are available only in the print version of the finding aid. Please consult the reference archivist for assistance.

General note

Forms part of Yale Record Group 5-A (YRG 5-A), Records of Yale officers and offices responsible for financial and administrative functions.

Arrangement

The records are arranged in six series: I. General Accounting Books, 1701-1971. II. Bursar's Records, 1727-1941. III. Correspondence, 1717-1940. IV. Benefactors, 1700-1963. V. Investments, 1722-1926. VI. Construction Records, 1752-1941. Folios. Subsequent accessions.

Collection Contents Series I: General Accounting Books, 1701-1971

24 linear feet

(58 boxes, 1 folio, 76 reels of microfilm)

GENERAL ACCOUNTING BOOKS contains the records of the treasurer, which show, both in summary and in detail, all receipts and expenses of the college. The series is divided into four sub-series, as follows:

Annual Reports and Audits (1776 - 1967)

1701 - 1832

1833 - 1971

Miscellaneous Books

The first sub-series contains those records which summarize the college's finances on a year-by-year basis. The records in the second and third sub-series were generated on a day-to-day basis and reflect different systems of accounting employed during the dates of the respective sub-series.

Annual Reports and Audits (1776-1967) begins with the abstracted annual reports and the fuller annual audit reports from which they were extracted. Both are annual accounts of receipts and expenditures organized alphabetically by account. Each report was scrutinized and then signed by the auditor, before being presented to the Prudential Committee and Yale Corporation. The sub-series includes manuscript copies of the annual audit reports from 1829 - 1902. (A form of earlier annual accounts is filed in sub-series 1701 - 1832)

The corporation voted at its September, 1829 meeting, to print for the first time, a report on the financial state of the college. A complete set of these printed copies of the *Treasurer's Report* from 1829/30 to the present is available in the Manuscripts and Archives reading room catalogued as Y31. B1. The only printed copies of these reports now kept with the treasurer's Records are those containing special annotations and those with additional reports from the auditor, such as reports relating to cash control, matters of internal control, revisions of the accounting system, or surveys of accounting and budgetary procedures. These printed copies and supplemental reports follow the manuscript copies. There are also detailed statements of the treasurer's report filed here.

The sub-series concludes with statements of college accounts submitted to the Connecticut General Assembly and working papers used in the preparation of these annual statements. The college reported to the General Assembly to show it how state funds appropriated for the benefit of the college were being used.

The sub-series 1701 - 1832 encompasses the records of the college's early and rather primitive and erratic bookkeeping system. The records span the tenure of several treasurers, but the total quantity for this period is scant. During the period the treasurer was not the only administrative official handling and recording receipts and expenditures, and this sub-series also includes accounts kept by the president, assistant treasurer and steward.

For most of this early period the major record of financial transactions is a ledger, often referred to as "Treasury Book A". Successive treasurers and other college officials made entries in this volume, which was then presented to the Corporation for approval. The most consistent account is that with the president and fellows of Yale College. These accounts serve as both a daily record and an annual reckoning. The volume also contains stewards" accounts and accounts with various individuals. An index in the beginning serves as a directory to these different accounts. The sub-series contains the original and two photocopies of this important volume.

Though the dates of "Treasury Book A" span the years 1701 - 1828 the volume does not include all accounts for this period. Following "Treasury Book A" are several other ledgers that either fill in accounts missing

from or overlapping accounts in "Treasury Book A". Accompanying these ledgers are many supporting vouchers for the recorded transactions.

In 1803 Stephen Twining became assistant treasurer, but it is unclear how Twining and Treasurer James Hillhouse defined their respective duties. Until 1810 Hillhouse was in Washington serving in Congress. It appears that Hillhouse's duties as treasurer were advisory and that much of the work devolved upon Twining. The accounts in Twining's hand are definitely more numerous. Three ledgers kept by Twining date from 1805 until his death in 1832. Some of the confusion of duties may be reflected in an annual statement of the account between Hillhouse and Twining in order to keep the books in balance.

The sub-series includes two cash journals, an account book that became a standard form for recording each credit and debit. One of these journals is in the hand of William G. Hooker, a clerk in the office who assumed the management of operations after the death of Twining. The sub-series also includes a volume of trial balances. This form of daily balancing of income and expense also became a standard bookkeeping procedure later. The two registers of orders drawn on the treasurer are similar to counterfoils of checkbooks. They list by account the check or order drawn on that account. These registers date to 1837, but this form does not seem to have been continued.

The sub-series concludes with several scattered accounts supplied by the steward for expenses incurred in providing food for the commons and in paying sweepers of college rooms and receipts of payments for these services. (The actual accounting of individual student bills and payments for board and sweeping are found in Series II.) Since Stephen Twining served as steward as well as assistant treasurer his steward's accounts are found interwoven in his ledgers and are not distinguishable separately.

Both James Hillhouse and Stephen Twining died in 1832. At the May, 1833, meeting of the Yale Corporation the Prudential Committee and the new treasurer, Wyllys Warner, were directed to "devise and report a proper scheme for the management of the Treasury Department." The growing complexity of treasury accounts, including separate books for the Medical Institution and the Theological Department, bookkeeping for the more aggressive fund raising projects and the complete change of personnel in the treasurer's office made 1833 an ideal time for instituting a new system of accounts. The new system would be modified and expanded but certain basic forms can be traced from 1833 to the present. The sub-series *1833 - 1971* includes the records of the new system.

It is unfortunate that Wyllys Warner's report on the new "proper scheme" was not recorded in the corporation minutes since a first hand explanation of the workings of the system would have produced a clearer understanding of these records. The newly instituted system followed the developing method of double- entry bookkeeping and involved the use of daybooks, cash journals, and summary journals and ledgers to record all transactions as well as trial balances and balance sheets to test the accuracy of the books and summarize the financial situation from day to day, month to month, and year to year. All of these types of books are represented in the sub-series *1833 - 1971*.

The most detailed record of transactions will be found in the daybooks and cash journals and their supporting vouchers. Daybooks were the books of original entry for every transaction; each transaction was recorded as it occurred. The cash journals are a similar chronological recording of all monies received and paid out but with debits arranged on a facing page from the credits and in later years in separate volumes for cash receipts and cash disbursements.

All the supporting vouchers, in the form of bills and receipts, have been placed after the cash journal in which they are recorded. The vouchers are arranged as they appear on the page of the cash journal and not by the date of the bill, since bills were often paid many months after they were issued. There is not a complete set of vouchers for any cash journal and after 1884 there are none at all. For any one year an estimated 70% of the bills have survived. There are far fewer receipts. Only for the fiscal year 1883/84 are the bills nearly complete.

Two types of balance books were found in this period, "trial balances" and "cash settlements". It is not clear exactly why the two types were needed. It may be that the "trial balances" balanced monies recorded in the cash journal and that the "cash settlements" were used to keep account of several different cash accounts. Entries such as "American Education Society" or "Trinity Church" lead one to surmise that some monies

passed through the hands of the Yale treasurer but were neither debits nor credits on the Yale books and that the Yale treasurer acted as a collecting agent only.

The general journals and ledgers that follow in the sub-series are the backbone of the double entry system. The general journal is a summary chronological recording device for all transactions; transactions are classified as debits and credits according to the accounts to which they will be posted in the ledger. Entries in the journal and postings in the ledger indicate page numbers which cross reference one to the other. The ledger contains a summary record of the transactions but it is arranged according to account and then chronologically within that account. Ledgers have an index to enable the user to find the needed account. The Treasurer's Records contain paper copies of both journals and ledgers only to 1912. The twentieth century volumes were quite large and bulky and were, therefore, microfilmed, after which the originals were destroyed. (See appendix D for a guide to the microfilm.) The balance sheets, some yearly, some monthly, which were prepared from the ledgers to show the condition of each account, follow.

The *Miscellaneous Books* sub-series concludes with a few miscellaneous books, including the treasurer's schedules and memoranda books. There is also a curious ledger and journal for what seems to be a short-lived Yale bank for individual depositors in the mid-1840s. The large volumes in *Miscellaneous Books* have been microfilmed and the originals destroyed. Included among the volumes on film are detailed university payrolls.

The materials are open for research.

Annual Reports and Audits

b. 1, f. 1-2	Abstracts (also includes accounts of Elizur Goodrich, assistant treasurer, 1797-1800; other accounts, ca. 1800 with supporting vouchers)	1796-1882
b. 1, f. 3	<u>Abstracts: loose copies</u>	1806, 1818–1829, n. d.
b. 1 , f. 4	Abstracts	1883-1902
	Annual audit reports See: <u>box 12, folders 54-56</u>	circa 1756-1828
b. 2, f. 5	Annual audit reports: loose copies	1829-1832
b. 2, f. 6-7	Annual audit reports.	1841-1889
b. 3, f. 8-10	Annual audit reports.	1890-1902
b. 4, f. 11-16	treasurer's Report: printed copies	1908-1909, 1914-1917, 1931-1935-1936
b. 5, f. 17-24	treasurer's Report: printed copies	1936/1937-1943/1944
b. 6, f. 25-30	treasurer's Report: printed copies	1944/1945-1949/1950
b. 7, f. 31-36	treasurer's Report: printed copies	1950/1951 - 1955/1956
b. 8, f. 37-40	treasurer's Report: printed copies	1956/1957 - 1959/1960
b. 9, f. 41-43	treasurer's Report: printed copies	1960/1961 - 1962/1963

Annual Reports and Audits (continued)

b. 10, f. 44-46	treasurer's Report: printed copies	1963/1964-1964/1965 1966-1967
b. 11, f. 47	State of the college accounts exhibited to the Connecticut Colony General Assembly	1766, 1767, 1769, 1773
	State of the College for the year ending September 9 See: Anson Phelps Stokes papers, mss. group no. 229, box 193, folder 423	1767
b. 11, f. 48	Reports of receipts and expenditures for the Connecticut General Assembly	1799-1828
b. 11, f. 49-51	Working papers for annual reports of receipts and expenditures with summary reports for the Connecticut General Assembly	1851-1870
b. 12, f. 52-53	Working papers for annual reports of receipts and expenditures with summary reports for the Connecticut General Assembly	1871-1881
1701	I-1832	
b. 12, f. 54	Ledger, "Yale College Treasury Book A": photocopy	1701-1828
b. 13, f. 55	Ledger, "Yale College Treasury Book A": photocopy	1701-1828
b. 13, f. 56	Ledger, "Yale College Treasury Book A": original	1701-1828
b. 14, f. 57-61	Bills, receipts, and accounts for period recorded in ledger, "Yale College Treasury Book A"	1701-1828
	See also: <u>folio 58a, folder 1</u>	
	Ledger style accounts of John Prout See: <u>folio 58a, folder 2</u>	1756, 1759-1765
b. 14, f. 62	Ledger style accounts compiled by Elizur Goodrich	1782-1783
	Ledger style accounts compiled by Elizur Goodrich See: <u>box 1, folder 1</u>	1797-1800
b. 14, f. 63	Ledger containing Stephen Twining's daybook for the college account, 1805-1817, and sundry accounts with students and faculty, 1799-1803 (includes supporting vouchers)	1799-1817
b. 14, f. 64	Ledger, "Yale College Treasury Accounts", with supporting vouchers	1817-1823
	Ledger, "Yale College Treasury Accounts" (also called "College Day Book") with supporting vouchers See: <u>box 58, folder 419</u>	1823-1832
	Stephen Twining in account with the President and Fellows of Yale College: annual summary compiled from the ledgers See: <u>box 58, folder 420</u>	1809-1832
b. 15, f. 65	James Hillhouse in account with Stephen Twining: annual statements	1801-1811, 1818-1828
b. 15 , f. 66	Cash journal	1826 September 15-1831 February 3

1701-1832 (continued)

b. 15 , f. 67	Cash journal, kept by William C. Hooker following the death of Stephen Twining, with supporting vouchers (includes termbill payments: blotter)	1832 December 18-1833 September
b. 15 , f. 68	Trial balances	1830 October 20-1832 December 18
b. 15, f. 69-70	Register of orders drawn on the treasurer of Yale College	1796-1837
b. 15 , f. 71	[Steward's accounts], marked "College Accounts"	1727-1737
	Steward's accounts See: <u>folio 58a, folders 3-4</u>	1740, 1749-1765
	Steward Jeremiah Atwater's accounts See: <u>box 12, folders 54-56</u>	1778-1796
b. 15 , f. 72	Steward Jeremiah Atwater's record of purchases of provisions to supply the Commons	1778-1780
1833	-1971	
b. 16, f. 73-74	Blotters	1833-1837
b. 16 , f. 75	Daybook	1833-1844 October
b. 17 , f. 76-77	Daybooks	1844 November-1864 September
b. 18, f. 78-79	Daybooks	1864 October-1901 June
b. 19 , f. 80	Cash journal	1832 October-1838 December
b. 19 , f. 81-83	Bills	1833 January-1834 September 2
b. 20, f. 84-88	Bills	1834 September 5-1836 December
b. 21, f. 89-94	Bills	1837 January-1838 December
b. 22, f. 95	Cash journal	1839 January-1846 September

b. 22, f. 96-108	Bills	1839 January-1840 January
b. 23, f. 109-139	Bills	1840 February-1842 September
b. 24, f. 140-161	Bills	1842 October-1844 July
b. 25, f. 162-182	Bills	1844 August-1846 April
b. 26, f. 183-188	Bills	1846 May- September
b. 26, f. 189	Cash journal	1846 October-1852 December
b. 26, f. 190-195	Bills	1846 October-1847 March
b. 27, f. 196-224	Bills	1847 April-1849 August
b. 28, f. 225-255	Bills	1849 September-1852 December
b. 29, f. 256	Cash journal	1853 January-1858 July 23
b. 29, f. 257-265	Bills	1853 January-1855 June
b. 30, f. 266-276	Bills	1856 January-1858 June
b. 30, f. 277	Cash journal (includes list of purchases of philosophical apparatus, 1860-61)	1858 June 1-1867 October
b. 31 , f. 278-288	Bills	1858 July-1860 December
b. 32, f. 289-300	Bills	1861 January-1867 October
b. 33, f. 301	Cash journal Boxes 32 & 33 contain Acc. 88-A-11 Acc. 8/31/87	1867 November-1875 July

b. 33, f. 302-306	Bills	1867 November-1875 July
b. 33 , f. 307	Cash journal	1875 August-1883 January
b. 34, f. 308-309	Bills	1875 August-1883 January
	Cash journal See: MICROFILM HM 124, reel 1	1883 February-1888 August
b. 34, f. 310-317	Bills	1883 April-1884 February
b. 35, f. 318-324	Bills	1884 March-July
	Cash journals See: MICROFILM HM 124, reels 2-5	1888 September-1902 July
	Cash receipts journals See: MICROFILM HM 124, reels 6-24	1902 August-1938 October
	Cash disbursements journals See: MICROFILM HM 124, reels 25-46	Circa 1912-1959
	Cash receipts and disbursements journals See: MICROFILM HM 124, reels 47-67	Circa 1938-1971
b. 35, f. 325-326	Trial balances ("Daily cash blotter")	1869 December 6-1873 August 23
b. 36, f. 327-332	Trial balances	1873 August 25-1888 January 25
b. 37, f. 333-341	Trial balances	1888 February 28-1896 March 31
b. 38, f. 342-345	Trial balances	1896 March 31-1899 March 9
b. 39 , f. 346-347	Trial balances	1899 March 9- December 30
	Trial balances See: <u>box 58, folder 421</u>	1900 January– June 20
b. 39, f. 348-350	Trial balances	1900 June 21-1902 June 2

b. 40, f. 351	Trial balances	1902 June 3- August 5
b. 40, f. 352-353	Cash settlements	1833 March-1836 September
b. 41, f. 354-357	Cash settlements ("Trial cash books")	1837–1857 July 3
b. 42, f. 358-361	Cash settlements	1857 July-1890 October 4
b. 43 , f. 36 2	Cash settlements	1890 October 11-1902 July 21
b. 44, f. 363-364	Journals	1833 January-1862 December
b. 45, f. 365-366	Journals	1863 January-1880 July
b. 46, f. 367-368	Journals	1880 August-1893 April
b. 47 , f. 369	Journals	1893 May-1897 September
b. 48, f. 370	Journals	1897 October-1901 October
	Journals See: <u>box 58, folder 422</u>	1901 November-1902 June
	Journals See: MICROFILM HM 124, reels 68-74	1902-1912
b. 49, f. 371-375	Abstracts, journal	1889/1890-1898/1899
b. 50, f. 376-379	Abstracts, journal	1899/1900-1909/1910
b. 51 , f. 380	Ledger	Circa 1833-1880
b. 52, f. 381-382	Ledgers	1880-1902 July
	Ledgers See: MICROFILM HM 124, reel 74	1902-1912
b. 53, f. 383	Ledger: special appropriations	1902-1910
b. 53, f. 384-394	Balance sheets	1833-1884
b. 54, f. 395-400	Balance sheets	1885-1895

b. 55, f. 401-406	Balance sheets	1896, 1898–1901 June
b. 56, f. 407-411	Balance sheets	1901 July-1904
b. 57, f. 412-415	Balance sheets	1905-1910 June
Μ	iscellaneous Books	
b. 57 , f. 416	Memoranda books and schedules	1840-1841, 1848-1864
b. 57 , f. 417	Deposit bank: ledger and journal	1844-1846
b. 57, f. 418	Bank account books	1833-1836, 1853-1862
	Monthly payrolls and statements (also includes transfer ledger, 1907/1908-1931/1932)	
	See: MICROFILM HM 124, reel 75	
	Academic Department: detail of expense See: MICROFILM HM 124, reel 76	1907-1942
	Yale University general ledger "A" See: MICROFILM HM 134, reel 76	1912-1931
	Dining hall voucher register See: MICROFILM HM 124, reel 76	1919-1920
b. 58, f. 419	Ledger, "Yale Treasury Accounts" (also called "College Day Book") with supporting vouchers	1823-1832
b. 58, f. 420	Stephen Twining in account with the President and Fellows of Yale College: annual summary compiled from the ledgers	1809-1832
b. 58, f. 421	Trial balances	1900 January– June 20
b. 58, f. 422	Journal	1901 November-1902 January

Series II: Bursar's Records, 1727-1941

The bursar collected all students payments including those for tuition, room, board, gymnasium, laboratory, health and graduation fees. BURSAR'S RECORDS contains the records of the collection of these fees from 1727-1941 even though the actual office of the bursar was not created until 1897.

In the first two centuries of the college's existence student fees were collected either by the treasurer, assistant treasurer, or steward. As the university grew so did the burden on the treasurer, and in an attempt to relieve him the university established the bursar's office. At first the bursar was asked to handle those duties of the treasurer "connected with the daily working and expenditures of the Academical Department" (from the President's Report, 1897). The fees collected by the professional schools were still recorded by the treasurer. Later, as reported in the 1911/1912 treasurer's report, the office of University Bursar was created to collect "all the term bills and other accounts of students in the Academical Department and Professional Schools."

The series is divided into the following sub-series:

Yale College Student Accounts Other Student Accounts Board Accounts Degree Fees Fuel Accounts Gymnasium Fees Room Accounts Scholarships

Yale College Student Accounts includes all records of fees collected from all Yale students before 1813 (when the Medical School opened) and after that date from only those students working towards a B.A. degree. The sub-series is perhaps the most complete record in all the treasurer's Records. The accounts are somewhat scattered in the eighteenth century but are nearly continuous from 1770 on.

The sub-series begins with a sample of the certificate of admission forms. When the treasurer received this form he could proceed to collect a bond, usually from the student's parent or guardian, to assure the college that payment would be made for student bills. A large file of these bonds, both the handwritten and printed forms, are arranged here alphabetically by the student's name.

At each billing period the treasurer would list each class separately and would record the charge levied against individual class members in a volume of "term bill charges". The format of these volumes varied over the years: it always included tuition costs but at times also specified charges for study rent, sweeping, glass, damages, catalogues, room, wood, sawing, pew rent, gymnasium fees, language courses, heat, dining hall, library, and chemistry. A sample of the actual bills as sent to individual students follows the volumes of term bill charges. When the treasurer received a payment he would record it chronologically in a volume called either a daybook or blotter and in later years a journal. He would also enter a record of payment in the ledgers containing the individual student accounts. Original journals and ledgers to 1911 are filed in this sub-series. After that date the university bursar began keeping all such records together with similar records for students in the professional schools. These records are now all on MICROFILM HM 96. (See appendix D for a guide to this microfilm.)

Other Student Accounts includes all records of fees collected from students other than those enrolled in Yale College. There are some records for each of the following schools: Divinity, Forestry, Graduate, Law, Medicine, and Music. These records are usually in the form of journals and ledgers, and at first each school kept its own books. Books containing a consolidated record for students of all these schools exist from 1896 on. These are referred to as the "general books". (The general books, after 1911, are all on MICROFILM HM 96. See appendix D.) Only in some of the later general books can one find any reference to payments for Sheffield Scientific School students. The later general ledgers also contain accounts for some of the faculty and Yale students organizations.

Board Accounts contains records of student eating expenses in the form of charge records, ledgers, and journals for the commons or dining hall and for the infirmary. Some of this information is probably included with the individual student records in the previous two sub-series.

Degree Fees includes notes and memoranda of students payments of charges for graduation.

Fuel Accounts contains bills, ledgers, orders and registers of orders, and memoranda concerning consumption of different fuels, i. e., wood, coal, and gas, by individual students and faculty members and by college buildings.

Gymnasium Fees contains only a record of cash receipts for the period 1860-1872.

Rooms Accounts includes records of the occupation of college dormitory rooms as well as of payments for room rents. Since rent varied from room to room the treasurer kept both a "location book" by room number to record the name of the occupants and a charge and payment record in the form of bill books, journals, and ledgers. This sub-series is small; most of the actual records of receipts for rent were recorded with the other student payments in the student accounts ledgers and journals.

Scholarships contains memoranda, lists, registers of scholarship recipients, and receipt books. These records served to remind the treasurer to reduce term bill charges to scholarship recipients and to annotate the books of the various scholarship funds to indicate the withdrawals for payments. The subseries is certainly not a complete record of all scholarship recipients, though the receipt books do form a complete record for the period they cover. These receipt books also contain the record of payments for the salaries of student monitors and of faculty from 1865 to 1896. (Student monitors received a salary for recording students who were tardy or absent from chapel or other required exercises.) These salary receipts may be the only source of information on the salary of individual faculty members since the ordinarily specific cash journals (in Series I) for the same time period are much less detailed. The sub-series also includes fund ledgers in which the treasurer recorded any transaction relating no the income and expenditures of each scholarship fund.

CORRESPONDENCE (Series III) contains much that relates to these bursar's records including an abundance of letters from parents and guardians concerning payment of students bills. The sub-series Filing Code contains several relevant files: #24 - Bursar's office; #184 - Tuition abatement; #189 - Aid for students; #217 - Tuition rebates; and #381 - student bills, loans, scholarships. There are also numerous files for specific scholarships and prizes.

The materials are open for research.

Y	ale College Student Accounts	
b. 59 , f. 1	Certificates of admission	1847
b. 59 , f. 2-13	Student bonds: A-Da	Circa 1789-1874
b. 60, f. 14-31	Student bonds: De-Ly	Circa 1789-1874
b. 61, f. 32-50	Student bonds: Mac-Smi	Circa 1789-1874
b. 62, f. 51-61	Student bonds: Smy-Y	Circa 1789-1874
b. 62, f. 62	Class register for classes 1863-1879	1859-1875
	Termbill charges See: <u>folio box 108a, folder 2</u> .	1727-1732, 1755-1760

Yale College Student Accounts (continued)

b. 62, f. 63	Termbill charges	1759-1770
b. 63, f. 64-67	Termbill charges	1770-1818 September
b. 64, f. 68	Termbill charges	1818 January-1822
	Termbill charges See: <u>folio box 108b, folder 1</u>	1823 January-1833 August
b. 64, f. 69	Termbill charges (also includes a daybook of termbill payments, 1834 Jan-1835 Aug)	1834 January-1835 January
b. 64, f. 70	Termbill charges	1835 April-1836 August
b. 65, f. 71-72	Termbill charges	1836 August-1840 January
b. 66, f. 73-74	Termbill charges	1840 January-1844 August
b. 67, f. 75-76	Termbill charges	1845 January-1851 April
b. 68, f. 77-78	Termbill charges	1851 April-1857 April
b. 69 , f. 79-81	Termbill charges	1857 July-1867 July
b. 70, f. 82-83	Termbill charges	1867 December-1874 December
b. 71, f. 84-85	Termbill charges	1875 April-1883 March
b. 72 , f. 86	Termbill charges	1883 June-1887 April
b. 73 , f. 87	Termbill charges	1887 June-1891 March
b. 74 , f. 88	Termbill charges	1891 June-1894 January
b. 75 , f. 89	Termbill charges	1894 March-1896 April
b. 76 , f. 90	Termbill charges	1896 June-1898 September

Yale College Student Accounts (continued)

b. 77, f. 91-92	Termbill charges	1898 September-1902 June
b. 78, f. 93-94	Termbills: a sample	Circa 1809-1918
b. 78 , f. 95-96	Termbill payments: registers	1801 December– 1808 December 1810 January
b. 78 , f. 97	Termbill payments: daybook	1810 January- June
	Termbill payments: daybook See: <u>folio box 108a, folder 3</u>	1811 January-1820 April
b. 78 , f. 98-99	Termbill payments: daybooks	1820 April-1834 January
	Termbill payments: daybook See: <u>box 64, folder 69</u>	1834 January-1835 April
	Termbill payments: daybook See: <u>box 79, folder 102</u>	1835 May-1837 March
	Termbill payments: blotter See: <u>box 15, folder 71</u>	1832-1833
b. 78 , f. 100	Termbill payments: blotter	1833 May-1834 January
b. 79 , f. 101	Journal	1834 January-1837 February
b. 79 , f. 102	Journal (also includes termbill payments: daybook, 1835 May-1837 Mar)	1837 April-1843 December
b. 79 , f. 103	Journal	1844 January-1854 December
b. 80, f. 104-105	Journals	1855 January-1879 July
b. 81, f. 106-107	Journals	1879 August-1897 May
b. 82, f. 108	Journal	1897 May-1902 September
b. 83, f. 109	Journal	1902 October-1907 March

Yale College Student Accounts (continued)

b. 84, f. 110	Journal	1907 March-1910 January
	Journals See: MICROFILM HM 96, reel 67	1911 October-1912 December 31
b. 85, f. 111-112	Schedules, notes of balances due on books	1804-1887, n. d.
b. 85, f. 113	Ledger	Circa 1800-1816
b. 86, f. 114	Ledger	1814-1833
b. 87, f. 115-116	Ledgers	1824-1843
b. 88, f. 117-118	Ledgers	1841-1864
b. 89 , f. 119	Ledgers	1862-1875
b. 90, f. 120	Ledgers	1874-1888
b. 91, f. 121	Ledger	1885-1896
b. 92, f. 122	Ledger	1893-1902
b. 93, f. 123	Ledger	1900-1902
	Ledgers See: MICROFILM HM 96, reels 63-66	1902-1911
	Ledgers See: MICROFILM HM 96, reels 2-62	1911/1912-1940/1941
C	Other Student Accounts	
b. 94, f. 124	Divinity School: journal for annual contingent bill payments	1841-1844
	Divinity School: bill book for tuition See: <u>box 106, folder 192</u>	1856-1886
b. 94, f. 125-126	Divinity School: journals	1881-1910
b. 94, f. 127-128	Divinity School: ledgers	1881-1910
	Divinity School: ledgers See: <u>box 98, folders 150-153</u>	1902-1941
	See also: MICROFILM HM 96, reels 1-62	
b. 95, f. 129	Forestry, School of: journal	1905-1910
b. 95 , f. 130	Forestry, School of: ledger	1905-1910
b. 95, f. 131	Forestry, School of: ledger of summer school accounts	1909

Other Student Accounts (continued)

	Forestry, School of: ledgers See: <u>box 98, folders 150-153</u> See also: MICROFILM HM 96, reels 1-62	1902-1941
b. 95, f. 132-133	Graduate School: journals	1878-1910
b. 95, f. 134-136	Graduate School: ledgers	1871-1910
	Graduate School: ledgers	1902-1941
	See: box 98, folders 150-153	
	See also: MICROFILM HM 96, reels 1-62	
b. 96, f. 137-138	Law School: journals	1876-1910
b. 96, f. 139-141	Law School: ledgers	1869-1910
	Law School: ledgers	1902-1941
	See: <u>box 98, folders 150-153</u>	
	See also: MICROFILM HM 96, reels 1-62	
b. 97, f. 142	Medicine, School of: termbill charges	1814-1821
b. 97, f. 143	Medicine, School of: journal	1880-1910
b. 97, f. 144-145	Medicine, School of: ledgers	1814-1819, 1880-1910
	Medicine, School of: Ledgers	1902-1941
	See: <u>box 98, folders 150-153</u>	
	See also: MICROFILM HM 96, reel 1-62	
b. 97, f. 146	Music, School of: journal	1895-1910
b. 97 , f. 147	Music, School of: ledger	1895-1910
	Music, School of: ledgers	1902-1941
	See: <u>box 98, folders 150-153</u>	
	See: MICROFILM HM96, reel 1-62	
	Philosophical Department	
	See: box 330, folders 2140-2141	
	Theological Department	
	See: <u>box 94, folders 124-126</u>	
b. 97, f. 148	General: journal	1896-1910
	General: journals See: MICROFILM HM 96, reel 67	1911-1912
L 07 £ 140		100/ 1010
b. 97, f. 149	General: ledger	1896-1910

Other Student Accounts (continued)

b. 98, f. 150-152	General: Ledgers	1902/1903-1904/1905
b. 98 , f. 153	General: loose supplementary material found in ledgers	1902/1903-1904/1905
	General: Ledgers See: MICROFILM HM 96, reels 1-62	1911-1941
Вс	pard Accounts	
b. 98, f. 154	Steward's miscellaneous papers concerning students" commons accounts	1812, 1815, 1818, 1820-1834
b. 98, f. 155	Register: dining hall	1827-1831
b. 98, f. 156	Charges record: dining hall	1825-1832
b. 99, f. 157-160	Charges record: dining hall	1897-1901
b. 99, f. 161-162	Charges record: infirmary	1895-1911
b. 99, f. 163-164	Ledgers: dining hall	1892-1901
	Ledger: dining hall See: <u>Folio box 108A, folder 1</u>	1902-1903
b. 100, f. 165	Ledger: dining hall	1903-1908
b. 100, f. 166	Journal: dining hall	1904-1910
b. 101, f. 167	Ledger: dining hall accounts, other than Yale College students (also includes New York rent accounts, 1906-1910)	1908-1909
De	egree Fees	
b. 102, f. 168-170	Notes and memoranda books	1833-1835, 1857-1899
b. 103, f. 171	Memoranda books	1899-1911
	Faculty Salaries See: <u>box 108, folders 202-204</u>	1865-1896
Fu	iel Accounts	
b. 103, f. 172	Wood: ledger	1818-1821
	Wood: register of orders See: <u>box 370, folder 4</u>	1820
b. 103, f. 173	Wood: register of orders	1820-1825
b. 103, f. 174-175	Wood: registers of orders and payment records	1837-1863
b. 104, f. 176-179	Coal: registers of orders and payment records	1837-1872
b. 104, f. 180	Gas: consumption record for college rooms	Circa 1877-1878

Fuel Accounts (continued)

b. 104, f. 181-183	Bills, orders, and memoranda	1818-1820, 1828-1832, 1839-1849
b. 105, f. 184	Bills, orders, and memoranda	1849-1872
Gym	nnasium Fees	
b. 105, f. 185	Receipts	Circa 1860-1872
Rooi	m Accounts	
b. 105, f. 186	Inspection reports	Circa 1815-1842
b. 105, f. 187	Memoranda concerning furniture for tutors" rooms	Circa 1823-1888
b. 105, f. 188-190	Location books (also includes memoranda concerning occupants, 1847-1868)	1832-1842, 1854-1861, 1874-1886
b. 106, f. 191	Rent ledger [Divinity College?]	Circa 1834-1843
	Rent Journal See: <u>box 423, folder 2</u>	1834-1843
b. 106 , f. 192	Bill book: Divinity College (also includes some bills for Theological tuition)	1856-1886
	Room rentals See also: <u>box 371, folder 6</u>	1877-1878
b. 106, f. 193-194	Bill books: theological and academical rooms	1886-1911
Scho	blarships	
b. 106, f. 195	Memoranda and receipts	1743, 1747, 1792
b. 106, f. 195A	Register of the Berkelian Scholarship; Register of the Noah Webster Premium	1733–1816; 1790– 1795
b. 106, f. 196	Memoranda, lists of students granted tuition appropriations from the Abatement Account, Relief Fund, Langdon Fund, Connecticut Education Society, Berkelian Donation, Latin Composition Premium Fund	1818-1848
b. 107 , f. 197-198	Memoranda, lists, and registers of recipients of appropriations from various academical and theological funds	1846-1906
b. 107, f. 199-201	Fund ledgers	1881-1912
b. 108, f. 202-204	Receipt books: salary and scholarship	1865/66-1895/96
b. 108, f. 205	Receipt book: scholarship	1895/96- 1901/02

Series III: Correspondence, 1717-1940

Folders with asterisks(*) contain ten or more items.

CORRESPONDENCE is the largest series in the treasurer's Records and spans the terms of thirteen Yale treasurers. Because of its massive size the series is arranged in nine sub-series as follows:

1717 - 1832 Letterbooks(1833 - 1906) Financial Agents' Correspondence(1817 - 1841) 1833 - 1840 1841 - 1888: General 1841 - 1888: Select 1888 - 1901 1902 - 1906 Filing Code(ca. 1907 - 1939)

Many of the chronological divisions between sub-series represent changes in filing systems instituted as new treasurers took office. Where possible the original plan of organization was retained.

1717 - 1832contains small amounts of correspondence from the administrations of John Prout, Roger Sherman, and John Trumbull, but the majority dates from the term of James Hillhouse. During Hillhouse'sincumbancy he also served in Congress, and while he was in Washington he depended on Stephen Twining, the assistant treasurer, to carry out the responsibilities of the office. Although the correspondence does include a few letters that Hillhouse wrote to Twining concerning the college'sfinancial business and events in Washington, most of the correspondence is actually Twining"s. Following Twining'sdeath in 1832 William G. Hooker served as acting treasurer. Several letters at the end of 1832 are addressed to him. The sub-series concludes with Twining'sletterbooks containing copies of his outgoing letters and notes on letters to be sent.

The correspondence is arranged chronologically. Much of the correspondence is of a most routine nature concerning term bill payments, mortgage loans and payments, real estate negotiations, gifts to the college, collection of subscription pledges, letters from the contributors to the Benevolent Society or the Society for the Education of Indigent Pious Young Men, and occasional letters of parental protest concerning college discipline. John C. Calhoun sent two letters concerning his son's term bills, and Stephen Ball wrote concerning land sales in New Haven. Benjamin Hinman, a college agent, wrote concerning college land in Holland, Vermont. Between 1805 and 1807 Benjamin Silliman sent reports from Europe concerning his purchases of mathematical and optical apparatus. There are letters concerning the bequest of Elizabeth Talcott, the estate of Betsy Pratt, and the donation of Sheldon Clark. There are also several documents concerning the suit brought against the university by Daniel Potter and others on behalf of the Congregational Society of Plymouth. The society had invested in the failed Eagle Bank, a project which had Yale'sbacking. See also the correspondence with Asa Bacon on this suit. On February 2, 1832, John Trumbull wrote concerning drawings for the proposed Trumbull Gallery.

Letterbooks contains all bound copies of outgoing letters from 1833-1906. (Letterbooks belonging to Stephen Twining (1806 - 1832) are in *1717 - 1832*). These volumes contain either handwritten or letterpress copies. They are arranged in chronological order. There are no gaps between volumes, but it seems that the files are not complete before 1890.

Financial Agents' Correspondence encompasses the letters received by the college's financial agents, who were active in the various fund raising campaigns, between 1817 and 1841. Most letters concern the Centum Mille Fund. Chief among the agents of this fund was Wyllys Warner who traveled extensively. A letter from President Jeremiah Day gives him advice where to travel: "I have never had any high expectations

of aid to the college south of Baltimore; or perhaps I ought to say New York." Warner also received correspondence from the other fund agents. Especially interesting is a report by Seth Bliss on his travels. Warner'scorrespondence as agent ends in 1832, though the Centum Mille Fund drive continued beyond this date. Since Warner was made treasurer in 1833, similar letters concerning fund raising activities addressed to him between 1833 and 1840 are filed in the sub-series *1833-1840*.

Of interest also in *Financial Agents' Correspondence* are letters to David Daggett about fund raising for the law professorship and letters to Chauncey Goodrich about the Gibbs professorship and theological fund. Henry L. Ellsworth wrote Goodrich respecting his plans for a sizeable donation. Of particular note is a letter to Benjamin Silliman from Thomas S. Grimke declining to contribute to the Centum Mille Fund because of his concern for the state of property and credit "among us." His letter reflects his concern about what the passage of South Carolina's nullification of tariffs might mean for the future.

1833-1840 begins with one folder of letters addressed to William G. Hooker, who served as acting treasurer after the death of Stephen Twining and later in the absence of treasurer Wyllys Warner. In fact there are several letters from Warner detailing his travels. Since Hooker was also in charge of the art gallery there are several letters to him concerning the Trumbull Gallery and donations to it. A letter from Jared Sparks concerns a portrait of Major Andre. The folder also contains occasional copies of Hooker's outgoing letters.

Following the folder of Hooker correspondence are all letters addressed to treasurer Warner. The letters are arranged in alphabetical order with the letters from a small number of select correspondents filed individually. Much of this correspondence is routine, being the usual letters concerning subscription pledges, mortgage negotiations, payment of college bills, and letters from renters, lawyers, and executors. The select correspondents tend to be those whose letters are more significant or more voluminous. Thus letters from long term renters may be filed under the name of the correspondent rather than in the general file.

There are many letters from field agents raising funds for the college. Amos S. Chesebrough, an agent who travelled across Connecticut, wrote, "I have seen the "Adventures of a Traveler," the "Confessions of a Schoolmaster," and "Caleb in Search of a Wife," but I think that a volume entitled," An Agent in Pursuit of Money," would be as replete with incidents as any of them. The agents, Erastus Colton, Darius Mead, Thomas Perkins, and Mason Whiting traveled through New England and New York and wrote of their experiences. A sentiment common to their letters was "things look dark here."

Among other interesting letters are those from William Lawrence concerning college land in Norfolk and from Mills Olcott concerning property in Vermont received through Dr. Nathan Smith's mortgage. There are many letters from John Trumbull, most merely acknowledging the quarterly payment of his annuity. William G. Hooker's letters to the absent Wyllys Warner describe the day to day functioning of the treasurer's office. At the end of the sub-series is one folder of correspondence of others which is addressed to neither Warner, Hooker, nor any college agent yet concerns the finances of the college.

The correspondence for the period 1841-1888 covers part of the term of Wyllys Warner and the complete terms of E. C. Herrick and Henry Colt Kingsley. The quantity of correspondence for this period reflects the rapid growth of the college. There is a noticeable increase in quantity after the Civil War, and one may attribute this partly to Yale's increased interest in investments and land holdings in the developing West. The reader will note that there is very little correspondence from 1886-1888. During this time President Dwight served as acting treasurer, assisted by L. E. Osborn, and it is possible that some treasurer's correspondence found its way into Dwight's presidential or personal papers.

1841-1888: General, consisting almost entirely of incoming letters and only occasional copies of outgoing letters, is divided by year and is arranged alphabetically within each yearly division. (For outgoing letters of this period see the sub-series *Letterbooks*.) This correspondence contains much that is routine and deals with the treasurer's standard responsibilities: students" term bills, loans and mortgages, rent collection, real estate purchase and upkeep, college expenses, building plans, and legal problems involved in gifts and estates" settlements. There are also many subscriptions for the various fund raising campaigns such as the Library Fund, the Woolsey Fund, the funds to purchase Judge Hitchcock'slibrary and to erect a statue to Benjamin Silliman. The correspondents tend to be alumni, parents of students, faculty members,

benefactors, salesmen, potential borrowers, debtors, tenants, real estate agents, brokers, insurance agents, merchants, and lawyers.

Because E. C. Herrick for a period served as both treasurer and librarian, some correspondence addressed to the librarian is also filed in this sub-series. No attempt has been made to separate those letters concerning gifts to the library, requests for catalogues and copies of obituary records, or information on book orders and subscriptions.

Correspondence of selected individuals from this period has been collected and segregated and now comprises *1841-1888* : *Select*. A sizeable number of letters from Russell Sturgis, the architect for several buildings on the Old Campus, are included in this sub-series. Other campus architects represented here include Richard Hunt and Peter Wight. (Correspondence from Frederick Withers, George Hawthorne, and J. A. Mould, ca. 1866-1868, all unsuccessful entrants in the chapel competition, will be found in *1841-1888*: *General*.)

Correspondence concerning several notable gifts should also be noted. Under the will of Henry L. Ellsworth Yale inherited extensive property in Indiana. There is much correspondence from Elizur Goodrich as trustee of this estate. In 1878 Timothy Dwight Porter conveyed to Yale, subject to an annuity, a block in Manhattan bounded by 36th and 37th Streets and Lexington and Third Avenues. The files are filled with correspondence concerning the transfer and the mortgage and rental of this property. See especially the correspondence with Thomas Thacher and Theodore W. Dwight. Correspondence with Joseph Sheffield concerns another important gift, that providing for the Sheffield Scientific School. Other correspondence relating to special gifts will be found under the names of James Jackson Jarves, Frederick Marquand, and John Trumbull.

During this period the treasurer shared some of his increasing responsibilities with faculty members in the various schools. Thus there is correspondence with Benjamin Silliman concerning financing scientific improvements, with Simeon E. Baldwin and Francis Wayland concerning the law school, with John F. Weir concerning the school of fine arts, with Robert Brown concerning the observatory, and with C. A. Lindsley concerning the medical school.

1888-1901 consists of the complete incoming letter files of William Whitman Farnam and partial files of Morris Franklin Tyler. Cashier William C. Rowland also received some of the more routine letters in this correspondence. This extensive run of letters, originally filed alphabetically in 37 chronological letterboxes is now arranged in one alphabetical order with individual files for selected correspondents interspersed throughout. The topics discussed in these letters are much the same as those in the *1841 - 1888*sub-series though the quantity of letters is nearly six times greater.

Predominant among the select correspondents are the names of investment counselors, real estate agents, and bankers, who assisted the treasurer in the increasingly complex task of managing the university'sincome producing funds. The largest amount of such correspondence concerns the firm of Peabody, Houghteling, & Co., but much investment correspondence will be found with the firms of: Baring Brothers; Cammann & Co. concerning management of New York City real estate; N. P. Dodge & Co.; W. T. Hatch & Sons; Lewis Investment Co.; E. S. Rouse; and Winslow, Lanier, and Co.

The treasurers of the period also oversaw a major building campaign. Consequently the names of several prominent architects and firms (Cady, Berg & See; Carrere & Hastings; Walter B. Chambers; E. E. Gandolfo; Charles C. Haight; Howells & Stokes; and L. W. Robinson) appear in these files along with correspondence from contractors and suppliers of hardware, furniture, and scientific apparatus.

As in the other sub-series there is correspondence concerning bequests and gifts to the university. Bissell, Carey and Cooke wrote concerning the settlement of the Lampson estate and the firm of Boardman and Boardman handled the Joseph A. Christman estate. Bristol, Stoddard and Bristol advised the university on legal matters including wills. There is a file for the Daniel B. Fayerweather estate, and correspondence with Thomas Thacher concerning the Miriam A. Osborn estate. There is one file about the estate of Thomas G. Sloane. Correspondence with Harper & Brothers and with Francis and Henry Loomis all relates to the Yale treasurer's role as executor of the Elias Loomis estate. The sub-series also includes letters from individuals concerning their contributions to the Alumni University Fund, and from about 1900 - 1901 the files are full of subscriptions to the Yale Bi-centennial Fund. Some of these letters are addressed to Andrew W. Phillips who served as secretary to the Bi-centennial Fund Committee.

The treasurer corresponded steadily with certain university officials, notably Timothy Dwight, mainly during the president's summer vacation away from the university. Letters were also received from university secretary Anson Phelps Stokes; Simeon Baldwin concerning the law school; George J. Brush, Russell Chittenden, and Henry S. Graves concerning the new forestry school; President Arthur T. Hadley; John F. Weir concerning the school of fine arts; and Robert Brown and W. L. Elkin relating to the university observatory.

During this period the University created the office of the bursar to relieve the treasurer of many ordinary matters. Correspondence in this sub-series reveals the treasurer still handling some questions concerning student accounts and payments to the faculty and staff. There are also the usual requests for information and applications for employment. During 1901 there were numerous inquiries concerning equipment and staff for the new commons. Correspondence of this routine nature will all be found in the general files in this sub-series.

1902 - 1906 contains correspondence files maintained for parts of the terms of treasurers Morris Franklin Tyler and Lee McClung. The arbitrary dates of the sub-series correspond with the original office filing scheme. The correspondence, which was originally filed in chronological letter boxes, is now arranged in one alphabetical order with individual files for select correspondents interspersed throughout.

Many of the topics covered and the correspondents included in this sub-series parallel those in the previous sub-series. Great quantities of investment correspondence are available to the researcher interested in Yale's financial assets in real estate, stocks and bonds. Construction projects begun at the turn of the century reached completion in this period; substantial correspondence with architects, contractors, and equipment suppliers documents these projects, particularly the new commons.

Aside from the usual correspondence concerning student accounts, internal university finances, and gifts and bequests to the university, there is interesting correspondence relating to the university's relations with the city of New Haven. Land development in the city limits, police and safety, and taxation of university property are all discussed in these letters.

From about 1907 through the late 1930s the letters received by the treasurer's office were filed by subject according to a numerical code. This arrangement has been retained for the 156 boxes of correspondence which now comprise *Filing Code*.

The filing code was a system that developed over the period of its use. In the beginning the treasurer established several categories of important correspondence and gave each category a number: #3 stood for investments; letters concerning mortgages were filed under #5; and all real estate matters would be found under #10. Sometimes letters prior to 1907 were added to the appropriate code to make a complete subject file. As the treasurer established new categories he gave them the next consecutive number.

As time went by and new personnel began filing materials according to their own understanding of how the system worked, they introduced many quirks and idiosyncrasies. Code numbers were assigned to very specific categories when general categories were already in existence. Therefore, though #5 contains correspondence on mortgages #47 is the code for mortgages: Nebraska. The creation of numerous small categories such as #319: Night Watchman, 1909 May-Jun, make the system extremely cumbersome; the entire code now runs to 597 numbers. Furthermore, the brief descriptive titles assigned to correspond with the numbers are often too imprecise or vague to make them useful. The use of descriptions like "Motion Pictures" or "Waterproofing" exemplifies this problem.

The arrangement is not only confusing; it also makes location and retrieval of specific materials very difficult. The researcher is confronted with a long, random list of files which has to be scanned in its entirety to locate all material on a particular subject. Fortunately some cross-referencing has been done in several of the other series to appropriate codes in this sub-series.

It is unfortunate that the filing system is so peculiar for there is a wealth of information to be found in these files. There is hardly a subject of concern to the university in which the treasurer was not in some

way involved and during the majority of this period George Parmly Day, a man active in many phases of university life, served as treasurer. Vast quantities of investment correspondence concerning universityowned real estate, stocks, bonds, other securities, and mortgages, abound in these files. Numerous codes contain material on university benefactors especially relating to estates and to the establishment of scholarships, special funds, and student prizes. In the general area of university administration and operations the researcher will find files for the bursar's office, various departments and schools, and broad files regarding taxes, accounting procedures, and legal affairs, as well as general files for the upkeep of buildings and grounds and files concerning the construction, maintenance, and alterations of individual buildings. Of particular interest are the files at the very end of the sub-series concerning the finances of the Doura-Europos expeditions.

The materials are open for research.

1717-1832

9, 1832 Letterbooks b. 113, f. 47-49 1833 February 26-1872 January 22 1833 February 26-1872 January 22 b. 114, f. 50-53 1863 February 23-1894 January 5	1/	7-1832	
b. 109, f. 3 Concerning mortgage of Dr. Nathan Smith 1814-1815 b. 109, f. 4-13 1817-1824 December 1817-1824 December b. 110, f. 14-24 1825 January-1828 December 1825 b. 110, f. 14-24 1829 January-1828 December 1825 b. 111, f. 25-35 1829 January-1831 December 1829 b. 112, f. 36-43 1832 January-Dec, undated 1832 January-1831 December b. 112, f. 36-43 1832 January-Dec, undated 1832 January-1831 December b. 112, f. 44 Documents concerning Daniel Potter & Others vs. the President and Fellows 1824-1831 b. 112, f. 45-46 Stephen Twining's letterbook 1805 February 9, 1832 February 26-1872 January 9, 1833 February 26-1872 January 9, 1833 February 23-1894 January 5, 1896 June 19 1894 January 5, 1896 June 19 b. 113, f. 47-49 1894 January 5-1896 June 19 1894 January 5-1896 June 19 b. 116, f. 56-57 1896 June 20-1899 February 27 1896 June 20-1899 February 27	b. 109, f. 1	1717-1807	1717-1807
b. 109, f. 4-13 1817-1824 December 1817-1824 December b. 110, f. 14-24 1825 January-1828 December 1825 January-1828 December b. 110, f. 14-24 1825 January-1828 December 1829 January-1828 December b. 111, f. 25-35 1829 January-1831 December 1829 January-1831 December b. 112, f. 36-43 1832 January-Dec, undated 1832 January-1831 December b. 112, f. 44 Documents concerning Daniel Potter & Others vs. the President and Fellows 1824-1831 b. 112, f. 45-46 Stephen Twining's letterbook 1806 February 11-1828 January 9, 1832 b. 113, f. 47-49 1833 February 26-1872 January 22 1833 February 22, 23-1894 January 5, 23-1894 January 5, 51896 June 19 b. 115, f. 54-55 1894 January 5-1896 June 19 1894 January 5-1896 June 19 b. 116, f. 56-57 1896 June 20-1899 February 27 1896 June 20-1899 February 27	b. 109, f. 2	1811-1816	1811-1816
Index December b. 110, f. 14-24 1825 January-1828 December 1825 January-1828 December b. 111, f. 25-35 1829 January-1831 December 1829 January-1831 December b. 111, f. 25-35 1829 January-1831 December 1829 January-1831 December b. 112, f. 36-43 1832 January-Dec, undated 1832 January-1831 December b. 112, f. 36-43 1832 January-Dec, undated 1832 January-1831 December b. 112, f. 44 Documents concerning Daniel Potter & Others vs. the President and Fellows 1824-1831 b. 112, f. 45-46 Stephen Twining's letterbook 1806 February 11-1828 January 9, 1832 b. 113, f. 47-49 1833 February 26-1872 January 22 1833 February 26-1872 January 22 b. 113, f. 47-49 1863 February 23-1894 January 5 1863 February 23-1894 January 5 b. 114, f. 50-53 1863 February 23-1894 January 5 1863 February 23-1894 January 5 b. 115, f. 54-55 1894 January 5-1896 June 19 1894 January 5 b. 116, f. 56-57 1896 June 20-1899 February 27 1896 June 20-1899	b. 109, f. 3	Concerning mortgage of Dr. Nathan Smith	1814-1815
January-1828 January-1828 b. 111, f. 25-35 1829 January-1831 December 1829 b. 112, f. 36-43 1832 January-Dec, undated 1832 January-Dec, undated b. 112, f. 44 Documents concerning Daniel Potter & Others vs. the President and Fellows 1824-1831 b. 112, f. 45-46 Stephen Twining's letterbook 1806 February 11-1828 January 9, 1832 b. 112, f. 45-46 Stephen Twining's letterbook 1806 February 11-1828 January 9, 1832 b. 113, f. 47-49 1833 February 26-1872 January 22 1833 February 22-1872 January 22 b. 113, f. 47-49 1863 February 23-1894 January 5 1863 February 23-1894 January 5 b. 115, f. 54-55 1894 January 5-1896 June 19 1894 January 5-1896 June 19 b. 116, f. 56-57 1896 June 20-1899 February 27 1896 June 20-1899 February 27	b. 109, f. 4-13	1817-1824 December	
January-1831 January-1831 b. 112, f. 36-43 1832 January-Dec, undated 1832 January-Dec, undated b. 112, f. 44 Documents concerning Daniel Potter & Others vs. the President and Fellows 1824-1831 b. 112, f. 45-46 Stephen Twining's letterbook 1806 February 11-1828 January 9, 1832 b. 112, f. 45-46 Stephen Twining's letterbook 1806 February 11-1828 January 9, 1832 b. 113, f. 47-49 1833 February 26-1872 January 22 1833 February 26-1872 January 22 b. 113, f. 47-49 1833 February 26-1872 January 5 1863 February 23-1894 January 5 b. 114, f. 50-53 1863 February 23-1894 January 5 1863 February 23-1894 January 5 b. 115, f. 54-55 1894 January 5-1896 June 19 1894 January 5-1896 June 19 b. 116, f. 56-57 1896 June 20-1899 February 27 1896 June 20-1899 February 27	b. 110, f. 14-24	1825 January-1828 December	January-1828
Dec, undated b. 112, f. 44 Documents concerning Daniel Potter & Others vs. the President and Fellows 1824-1831 b. 112, f. 45-46 Stephen Twining's letterbook 1806 February 11-1828 January 9, 1832 Letterbooks Letterbooks 1833 February 26-1872 January 22 b. 113, f. 47-49 1833 February 26-1872 January 22 1833 February 26-1872 January 22 b. 113, f. 47-49 1863 February 23-1894 January 5 1863 February 23-1894 January 5 b. 114, f. 50-53 1863 February 23-1894 January 5 1863 February 23-1894 January 5 b. 115, f. 54-55 1894 January 5-1896 June 19 1894 January 5-1896 June 19 b. 116, f. 56-57 1896 June 20-1899 February 27 1896 June 20-1899	b. 111, f. 25-35	1829 January-1831 December	January-1831
of Yale College 1806 February 11-1828 January 9, 1832 b. 112, f. 45-46 Stephen Twining's letterbook 1806 February 11-1828 January 9, 1832 Letterbooks 1833 February 26-1872 January 22 1833 February 26-1872 January 22 b. 113, f. 47-49 1833 February 26-1872 January 22 1833 February 26-1872 January 22 b. 113, f. 47-49 1863 February 23-1894 January 5 1863 February 23-1894 January 5 b. 114, f. 50-53 1863 February 23-1894 January 5 1863 February 23-1894 January 5 b. 115, f. 54-55 1894 January 5-1896 June 19 1894 January 5-1896 June 19 b. 116, f. 56-57 1896 June 20-1899 February 27 1896 June 20-1899	b. 112, f. 36-43	1832 January-Dec, undated	
11-1828 January 11-1828 January Letterbooks 113, f. 47-49 b. 113, f. 47-49 1833 February 26-1872 January 22 b. 113, f. 47-49 1833 February 26-1872 January 22 b. 114, f. 50-53 1863 February 23-1894 January 5 b. 115, f. 54-55 1894 January 5-1896 June 19 b. 116, f. 56-57 1896 June 20-1899 February 27	b. 112 , f. 44		1824-1831
b. 113, f. 47-49 1833 February 26-1872 January 22 1833 February 26-1872 January 26-1872 January 26-1872 January 26-1872 January 22 b. 114, f. 50-53 1863 February 23-1894 January 5 1863 February 23-1894 January 5 b. 114, f. 50-53 1863 February 23-1894 January 5 1863 February 23-1894 January 5 b. 115, f. 54-55 1894 January 5-1896 June 19 1894 January 5-1896 June 19 b. 116, f. 56-57 1896 June 20-1899 February 27 1896 June 20-1899 February 27	b. 112, f. 45-46	Stephen Twining's letterbook	11–1828 January
26-1872 January 22 b. 114, f. 50-53 1863 February 23-1894 January 5 1863 February b. 114, f. 50-53 1863 February 23-1894 January 5 1863 February b. 115, f. 54-55 1894 January 5-1896 June 19 1894 January b. 116, f. 56-57 1896 June 20-1899 February 27 1896 June	Le	tterbooks	
23-1894 January 5 b. 115, f. 54-55 1894 January 5-1896 June 19 b. 116, f. 56-57 1896 June 20-1899 February 27 1896 June 20-1899 February 27 1896 June 20-1899 February 27	b. 113, f. 47-49	1833 February 26-1872 January 22	26-1872 January
b. 116, f. 56-57 1896 June 20-1899 February 27 1896 June 20-1899 February 27	b. 114, f. 50-53	1863 February 23-1894 January 5	23-1894 January
20-1899	b. 115, f. 54-55	1894 January 5-1896 June 19	
	b. 116 , f. 56-57	1896 June 20-1899 February 27	20-1899

Letterbooks (continued)

b. 117, f. 58-59	1899 March 2–1900 February 21, 1900 February 23–November 23	1899 March 2– 1900 February 21, 1900 February 23– November 23
b. 118, f. 60-61	1900 November 24–1901 June 25, 1901 June 27–1902 January 10	1900 November 24–1901 June 25, 1901 June 27– 1902 January 10
b. 119, f. 62-63	1902 January 10-1903 May 25	1902 January 10-1903 May 25
b. 120, f. 64-65	1903 May 25-1905 April 6	1903 May 25-1905 April 6
b. 121, f. 66-67	1905 April 7-1906 March 28	1905 April 7-1906 March 28
b. 122, f. 68-69	1906 March 29-October 31	1906 March 29- October 31
Fin	ancial Agents' Correspondence	
b. 123 , f. 70	Bliss, Seth	1832
b. 123 , f. 71	Daggett, David	1817, 1832
b. 123, f. 72	Goodrich, Chauncey A.	1827-1833, 1837, 1840-1841
b. 123 , f. 73	Mead, Darius	1831
b. 123, f. 74	Silliman, Benjamin	1831-1833, 1835-1836
b. 123 , f. 75	Warner, Wyllys: A-D	1831-1832
b. 123 , f. 76	Warner, Wyllys: from Seth Bliss	1832
b. 123 , f. 77	Warner, Wyllys: from Jeremiah Day (*)	1830-1832
b. 123, f. 78	Warner, Wyllys: G-N	1831-1832
b. 123 , f. 79	Warner, Wyllys: P-W, unidentified	1831-1832
b. 123 , f. 80	Warner, Wyllys: from Benjamin Silliman (*)	1832
183	33-1840	
b. 123, f. 81	Hooker, William G.: correspondence as acting treasurer	1833-1836
b. 123, f. 82	A	
b. 123, f. 83	Ва	
b. 123 , f. 8 4	Ве-Ві	

1833-1840 (continued)

b. 123, f. 85	BI-Bo	
b. 124 , f. 86	Br-Bu	
b. 124 , f. 87	Baldwin, Micah	1834-1840
b. 124, f. 87	Barber, Horatio	1839-1840
b. 124, f. 87	Barber, William	1836-1837
b. 124, f. 87	Brown, Abraham	1833-1840
b. 124, f. 88	Са	
b. 124, f. 89	Ch	
b. 124, f. 90	Cl	
b. 124, f. 91	Со	
b. 124, f. 92	Cr-Cu	
b. 124, f. 93	Champion, Aristarchus	1833-1834 <i>,</i> 1839-1840
b. 124, f. 93	Chapin, Oliver	1836-1838
b. 124, f. 94	Chesebrough, Amos S. (*)	1839
b. 124, f. 95	Church, Leman	1835, 1839-1840
b. 124, f. 95	Colton, Erastus	1835-1836
b. 124, f. 96	Da-De	
b. 124, f. 97	Di-Dr	
b. 125, f. 98	Du-Dw	
b. 125, f. 99	Day, Jeremiah	1833-1834
b. 125, f. 99	Day, Thomas	1834, 1836-1837, 1840
b. 125, f. 100	Demio, Hiram (*)	1834, 1836-1838, 1840
b. 125, f. 101	Doolittle, Mark	1840
b. 125, f. 101	Duncan, Lucius C.	1833-1839
b. 125, f. 101	Dyer, Moses	1839-1840
b. 125, f. 102	E	
b. 125, f. 103	Ensign, E. F.	1834
b. 125 , f. 10 4	Fa-Fi	

1833-1840 (continued)

b. 125, f. 106	Fr-Fu	
b. 125, f. 107	G	
b. 125, f. 108	Ha-Har	
b. 125, f. 109	Has-Hi	
b. 125, f. 110	Hoa-Hoo	
b. 125, f. 111	Hop-How	
b. 125, f. 112	Hub-Hus	
b. 126 , f. 113	Hallock, Gerard	1837-1839
b. 126 , f. 113	Hooker, William G.	1833-1836, 1839
b. 126, f. 114	Hubbard, Richard	1833-1839
b. 126, f. 114	Hubbard, William J.	1835, 1839-1840
b. 126 , f. 114	Hurlbut, Joseph	1833, 1835, 1839-1840
b. 126, f. 115	Ι	
b. 126, f. 116	J	
b. 126 , f. 117	К	
b. 126, f. 118	Kellogg, Edward (*)	1836, 1839-1840
b. 126 , f. 119	L	
b. 126, f. 120	Lawrence, William	1836-1837
b. 126 , f. 121	Ма	
b. 126, f. 122	Me-Mu	
b. 126, f. 123	Mead, Darius	1833-1835, 1837, 1840
b. 126 , f. 124	Ν	
b. 126, f. 125	0	
b. 126, f. 126	Olcott, Mills (*)	1833-1840
b. 126 , f. 127	Ра	
b. 126, f. 128	Pe	
b. 126, f. 129	Ph-Pu	
b. 127, f. 130	Perkins, Thomas C.	1833-1834
b. 127, f. 131	Ra-Ri	

1833-1840 (continued)

b. 127, f. 132	Ro-Ru	
b. 127, f. 133	Rockwell, John A.	1834-1840
b. 127, f. 133	Rout, Judson A.	1834-1837
b. 127, f. 133	Roys, Reuben	1837-1838
b. 127, f. 134	Sa-Sh	
b. 127, f. 135	Si-Sm	
b. 127, f. 136	Sn-Sp	
b. 127, f. 137	St-Sw	
b. 127, f. 138	Silliman, Benjamin D. (*)	1834-1840
b. 127, f. 138	Sturdevant, J. M.	1834, 1839
b. 127, f. 139	Т	
b. 127, f. 140	Talman, Jonathan (*)	1837-1840
b. 127, f. 141	Trumbull, John (*)	1833-1837
b. 127, f. 142	U	
b. 127, f. 143	V	
b. 127 , f. 14 4	Wa	
b. 127, f. 145	We	
b. 128, f. 146	Wh	
b. 128, f. 147	Wi	
b. 128, f. 148	Wo-Wy	
b. 128, f. 149	Warner, Lyman, Jr.	1833
b. 128, f. 149	Whit-Whiting (*)	1833-1839
b. 128, f. 149	Wright, Elizur	1834, 1838-1839
b. 128, f. 150	Y	
b. 128, f. 151	Correspondence of others	
18	333-1840: General	
b. 129, f. 152	1841: A-C	
b. 129 , f. 153	1841: D-F	
b. 129 , f. 15 4	1841: G-H	
b. 129 , f. 155	1841: J-M	

b. 129, f. 156	1841: N-P
b. 129, f. 157	1841: R-S
b. 129, f. 158	1841: T-W
b. 129, f. 159	1842: A-C
b. 129, f. 160	1842: D-M
b. 129, f. 161	1842: N-S
b. 129, f. 162	1842: T-W
b. 129, f. 163	1843: A-B
b. 129, f. 164	1843: C-D
b. 129, f. 165	1843: E-G
b. 129, f. 166	1843: Н-К
b. 130, f. 167	1843: L-N
b. 130, f. 168	1843: P-R
b. 130, f. 169	1843: S-T
b. 130, f. 170	1843: U-W
b. 130 , f. 171	1843: unidentified correspondence
b. 130, f. 171 b. 130, f. 172	1843: unidentified correspondence 1844: A-B
b. 130, f. 172	1844: A-B
b. 130, f. 172 b. 130, f. 173	1844: A-B 1844: C
b. 130, f. 172 b. 130, f. 173 b. 130, f. 174	1844: A-B 1844: C 1844: D-F
b. 130, f. 172 b. 130, f. 173 b. 130, f. 174 b. 130, f. 175	1844: A-B 1844: C 1844: D-F 1844: G-H
b. 130, f. 172 b. 130, f. 173 b. 130, f. 174 b. 130, f. 175 b. 130, f. 176	1844: A-B 1844: C 1844: D-F 1844: G-H 1844: K-L
b. 130, f. 172 b. 130, f. 173 b. 130, f. 174 b. 130, f. 175 b. 130, f. 176 b. 130, f. 177	1844: A-B 1844: C 1844: D-F 1844: G-H 1844: K-L 1844: M-R
b. 130, f. 172 b. 130, f. 173 b. 130, f. 174 b. 130, f. 175 b. 130, f. 176 b. 130, f. 177 b. 130, f. 177	1844: A-B 1844: C 1844: D-F 1844: G-H 1844: K-L 1844: M-R 1844: S
b. 130, f. 172 b. 130, f. 173 b. 130, f. 174 b. 130, f. 175 b. 130, f. 175 b. 130, f. 176 b. 130, f. 177 b. 130, f. 178 b. 130, f. 179	1844: A-B 1844: C 1844: D-F 1844: G-H 1844: K-L 1844: M-R 1844: S 1844: T-V
b. 130, f. 172 b. 130, f. 173 b. 130, f. 174 b. 130, f. 175 b. 130, f. 175 b. 130, f. 176 b. 130, f. 177 b. 130, f. 178 b. 130, f. 179 b. 130, f. 180	1844: A-B 1844: C 1844: D-F 1844: G-H 1844: K-L 1844: K-L 1844: M-R 1844: S 1844: S
b. 130, f. 172 b. 130, f. 173 b. 130, f. 174 b. 130, f. 175 b. 130, f. 175 b. 130, f. 176 b. 130, f. 177 b. 130, f. 178 b. 130, f. 179 b. 130, f. 180 b. 131, f. 181	1844: A-B 1844: C 1844: D-F 1844: G-H 1844: K-L 1844: K-L 1844: M-R 1844: S 1844: T-V 1844: T-V
b. 130, f. 172 b. 130, f. 173 b. 130, f. 174 b. 130, f. 175 b. 130, f. 175 b. 130, f. 176 b. 130, f. 177 b. 130, f. 178 b. 130, f. 179 b. 130, f. 180 b. 131, f. 181 b. 131, f. 182	1844: A-B 1844: C 1844: D-F 1844: G-H 1844: K-L 1844: M-R 1844: S 1844: T-V 1844: V 1844: W

b. 131, f. 186	1845: M-P
b. 131 , f. 187	1845: R-T
b. 131, f. 188	1845: U-Y
b. 131, f. 189	1846: A-Ba
b. 131, f. 190	1846: Be-Bu
b. 131, f. 191	1846: C
b. 131, f. 192	1846: D-F
b. 131, f. 193	1846: G-H
b. 132, f. 194	1846: J-K
b. 132, f. 195	1846: L
b. 132, f. 196	1846: M-P
b. 132, f. 197	1846: R-S
b. 132, f. 198	1846: T-W
b. 132, f. 199	1847: A-C
b. 132, f. 200	1847: D-J
b. 132, f. 201	1847: K-P
b. 132, f. 202	1847: R-W
b. 132, f. 203	1848: A-C
b. 133, f. 204	1848: D-J
b. 133, f. 205	1848: K-O
b. 133, f. 206	1848: P-W
b. 133, f. 207	1849: A-C
b. 133, f. 208	1849: D-I
b. 133, f. 209	1849: J-Q
b. 133, f. 210	1849: R-Y
b. 133, f. 211	1850: B-C
b. 133, f. 212	1850: D-J
b. 133, f. 213	1850: K-Q
b. 133, f. 214	1850: R-W
b. 134, f. 215	1851: A-C

b. 134, f. 216	1851: D-H
b. 134, f. 217	1851: I-P
b. 134, f. 218	1851: R-W
b. 134, f. 219	1851: Unidentified
b. 134, f. 220	1852: A-B
b. 134, f. 221	1852: C-F
b. 134 , f. 222	1852: G-K
b. 134, f. 223	1852: L-N
b. 134 , f. 224	1852: O-R
b. 134 , f. 225	1852: S-W
b. 134 , f. 226	1853: A-B
b. 134 , f. 227	1853: C-G
b. 134, f. 228	1853: Н-К
b. 134 , f. 229	1853: L-N
b. 135 , f. 230	1853: O-R
b. 135, f. 231	1853: S-W
b. 135, f. 232	10E 4. A D
5. 100, 1. 202	1854: A-B
b. 135, f. 233	1854: С-Е
b. 135 , f. 233	1854: C-E
b. 135, f. 233 b. 135, f. 234	1854: С-Е 1854: F-Н
b. 135, f. 233 b. 135, f. 234 b. 135, f. 235	1854: С-Е 1854: F-H 1854: K-M
b. 135, f. 233 b. 135, f. 234 b. 135, f. 235 b. 135, f. 236	1854: C-E 1854: F-H 1854: K-M 1854: N-R
b. 135, f. 233 b. 135, f. 234 b. 135, f. 235 b. 135, f. 236 b. 135, f. 237	1854: C-E 1854: F-H 1854: K-M 1854: N-R 1854: S-W
b. 135, f. 233 b. 135, f. 234 b. 135, f. 235 b. 135, f. 236 b. 135, f. 237 b. 135, f. 238	1854: C-E 1854: F-H 1854: K-M 1854: N-R 1854: S-W 1855: A-C
b. 135, f. 233 b. 135, f. 234 b. 135, f. 235 b. 135, f. 236 b. 135, f. 237 b. 135, f. 238 b. 135, f. 239	1854: C-E 1854: F-H 1854: K-M 1854: N-R 1854: S-W 1855: A-C 1855: D-H
b. 135, f. 233 b. 135, f. 234 b. 135, f. 235 b. 135, f. 236 b. 135, f. 237 b. 135, f. 238 b. 135, f. 239 b. 135, f. 240	1854: C-E 1854: F-H 1854: K-M 1854: N-R 1854: S-W 1855: A-C 1855: D-H
b. 135, f. 233 b. 135, f. 234 b. 135, f. 235 b. 135, f. 236 b. 135, f. 237 b. 135, f. 237 b. 135, f. 238 b. 135, f. 239 b. 135, f. 240 b. 135, f. 241	1854: C-E 1854: F-H 1854: K-M 1854: N-R 1855: S-W 1855: A-C 1855: D-H 1855: J-M
b. 135, f. 233 b. 135, f. 234 b. 135, f. 235 b. 135, f. 236 b. 135, f. 237 b. 135, f. 237 b. 135, f. 238 b. 135, f. 239 b. 135, f. 240 b. 135, f. 241 b. 135, f. 241	1854: C-E 1854: F-H 1854: K-M 1854: N-R 1854: S-W 1855: A-C 1855: D-H 1855: J-M 1855: S-W

b. 136 , f. 246	1856: L-P
b. 136 , f. 247	1856: R-T
b. 136 , f. 248	1856: V-Y
b. 136 , f. 249	1856: Unidentified
b. 136, f. 250	1857: A-D
b. 136, f. 251	1857: E-H
b. 136 , f. 252	1857: J-N
b. 136 , f. 253	1857: O-R
b. 136 , f. 254	1857: S-W
b. 136, f. 255	1858: A-B
b. 136 , f. 256	1858: C-E
b. 137, f. 257	1858: F-H
b. 137, f. 258	1858: I-L
b. 137, f. 259	1858: M-P
b. 137, f. 260	1858: R-S
b. 137 , f. 261	1858: T-Y
b. 137 , f. 26 2	1858: Unidentified
b. 137 , f. 263	1859: A-B
b. 137 , f. 264	1859: C
b. 137 , f. 265	1859: D-G
b. 137 , f. 266	1859: H-J
b. 137 , f. 267	1859: K-L
b. 137 , f. 268	1859: M
b. 137 , f. 269	1859: N-R
b. 137 , f. 270	1859: S
b. 137 , f. 271	1859: T-V
b. 137 , f. 272	1859: W
b. 137 , f. 273	1859: Unidentified
b. 137 , f. 274	1860: A-B
b. 137 , f. 275	1860: C-F
b. 138, f. 276	1860: G-K
-------------------------------	-----------
b. 138, f. 277	1860: L-P
b. 138, f. 278	1860: R-T
b. 138, f. 279	1860: V-Y
b. 138, f. 280	1861: A-C
b. 138, f. 281	1861: D-H
b. 138, f. 282	1861: I-P
b. 138, f. 283	1861: R-T
b. 138, f. 284	1861: V-W
b. 138, f. 285	1862: A-C
b. 138, f. 286	1862: D-L
b. 138, f. 287	1862: M-P
b. 138, f. 288	1862: R-W
b. 138, f. 289	1863: A-D
b. 138, f. 290	1863: E-M
b. 138 , f. 291	1863: O-W
b. 139 , f. 292	1864: A-C
b. 139 , f. 293	1864: D-K
b. 139 , f. 294	1864: L-P
b. 139, f. 295	1864: R-W
b. 139, f. 296	1865: A-C
b. 139 , f. 297	1865: D-J
b. 139 , f. 298	1865: K-O
b. 139 , f. 299	1865: P-Z
b. 139 , f. 300	1866: A-H
b. 139 , f. 301	1866: I-O
b. 139, f. 302	1866: P-W
b. 139 , f. 303	1867: A-G
b. 140, f. 304	1867: H-P
b. 140, f. 305	1867: R-W

b. 140, f. 306	1868: A-G
b. 140, f. 307	1868: H-M
b. 140, f. 308	1868: N-W
b. 140, f. 309	1869: A-D
b. 140, f. 310	1869: E-I
b. 140, f. 311	1869: J-P
b. 140, f. 312	1869: R-W
b. 140, f. 313	1870: A-B
b. 140, f. 314	1870: С-К
b. 140, f. 315	1870: L-S
b. 141, f. 316	1870: T-W
b. 141, f. 317	1871: A-I
b. 141, f. 318	1871: J-R
b. 141, f. 319	1871: S-W
b. 141, f. 320	1872: A-D
b. 141, f. 321	1872: E-M
b. 141, f. 322	1872: N-S
b. 141, f. 323	1872: T-W
b. 141, f. 324	1873: A-G
b. 141, f. 325	1873: H-M
b. 141, f. 326	1873: N-Y
b. 141, f. 327	1874: А-В
b. 142, f. 328	1874: C-F
b. 142, f. 329	1874: G-K
b. 142, f. 330	1874: L-M
b. 142, f. 331	1874: N-Sp
b. 142, f. 332	1874: St-Y
b. 142, f. 333	1875: A-B
b. 142, f. 334	1875: C-E
b. 142, f. 335	1875: F-H

b. 142, f. 336	1875: I-M
b. 142, f. 337	1875: N-R
b. 142, f. 338	1875: S
b. 142, f. 339	1875: T-Y
b. 143, f. 340	1876: A-C
b. 143, f. 341	1876: D-H
b. 143, f. 342	1876: I-P
b. 143, f. 343	1876: R-W
b. 143, f. 344	1877: A-D
b. 143, f. 345	1877: E-L
b. 143, f. 346	1877: M-R
b. 143, f. 347	1877: S-Y
b. 143, f. 348	1878: A-B
b. 143, f. 349	1878: C-D
b. 144, f. 350	1878: E-L
b. 144, f. 351	1878: M-R
b. 144, f. 352	1878: S-W
b. 144, f. 353	1879: А-В
b. 144, f. 354	1879: C
b. 144, f. 355	1879: D-G
b. 144, f. 356	1879: Н-К
b. 144, f. 357	1879: L-N
b. 144, f. 358	1879: P-S
b. 144, f. 359	1879: T-V
b. 144, f. 360	1879: W-Y
b. 145, f. 361	1880: А-В
b. 145, f. 362	1880: C-G
b. 145 , f. 363	1880: H-J
b. 145 , f. 364	1880: K-M
b. 145, f. 365	1880: N-S

b. 145, f. 366	1880: T-Y
b. 145, f. 367	1881: A-B
b. 145, f. 368	1881: C
b. 145, f. 369	1881: D-G
b. 145, f. 370	1881: H-M
b. 145, f. 371	1881: N-S
b. 146, f. 372	1881: T-W
b. 146, f. 373	1882: A-C
b. 146, f. 374	1882: D-H
b. 146, f. 375	1882: I-P
b. 146, f. 376	1882: Q-S
b. 146, f. 377	1882: T-W
b. 146, f. 378	1883: A-C
b. 146, f. 379	1883: D-H
b. 146, f. 380	1883: J-R
b. 147, f. 381	1883: S-Y
b. 147, f. 382	1884: A-C
b. 147, f. 383	1884: D-K
b. 147, f. 384	1884: L-R
b. 147, f. 385	1884: S-Y
b. 147, f. 386	1885: A-D
b. 147, f. 387	1885: E-P
b. 147, f. 388	1885: Q-Y
b. 147, f. 389	1886: A-M
b. 148, f. 390	1886: N-W
b. 148, f. 391	1887: A-J
b. 148, f. 392	1887: K-W
b. 148, f. 393	1888: A-H
b. 148, f. 394	1888: I-Y
b. 148, f. 395	Unidentified

18	341-1888: Select	
b. 148, f. 396	Allen, B. B. (*)	1852-1855
b. 148, f. 397	American Fire Insurance Co. (*)	1878-1881
b. 148, f. 398	Anderson, Henry H. (*) See also: <u>box 156, folder 507</u>	1878-1884
	Bacon, Thomas H. See: <u>box 151, folder 435</u>	
b. 148, f. 399	Baird & Bradley (*)	1865-1881
b. 148, f. 400	Baldwin, Simeon E. (*)	1875-1885
b. 148, f. 401	Baring Brothers (*)	1870-1888
b. 149, f. 402	Battel, Robbins (*)	1875-1886
b. 149, f. 403	Breed, William J. (*)	1853-1859
b. 149, f. 404	Brown, Henry Armitt (*)	1873-1876
b. 149, f. 405	Brown, Robert H. (*)	1883-1888
b. 149, f. 406	Brush, Conklin (*)	1845-1857
b. 149, f. 407	Brush, George J. (*)	1859-1888
b. 149, f. 408-411	Cammann, H. H. (*)	1877-1888
b. 149, f. 412	Chapin, Moses (*)	1843-1863
b. 149, f. 413	Chesebrough, A. S.	1881-1884
b. 149, f. 414	Clark, James Gardner	1881-1887
b. 149, f. 415	Connecticut School Fund Commissioner (*)	1880-1887
b. 149, f. 416	Dana, James D.	1881-1883
b. 149, f. 417	Day, William F. (*)	1860-1862
b. 149, f. 418	Duncan, Sherman & Co. (*)	1871-1882
b. 150 , f. 419	Dwight, Theodore W. (*)	1877-1881
b. 150 , f. 420	Dwight, Timothy (*)	1879-1888
b. 150, f. 421	Ellsworth, W. L.	1845-1847
b. 150, f. 422	Evarts, William Maxwell	1882-1884
b. 150, f. 423-424	Gallatin National Bank (*)	1873-1888
b. 150, f. 425	Gilman, Daniel Coit	1857-1859
b. 150, f. 426	Godkin, Edwin L. (*)	1876-1885

1841-1888: Select (continued)

b. 151, f. 428 Goodman, Richard (*) 1852-1854 b. 151, f. 429 Goodrich, Elizur (*) 1859-1867 b. 151, f. 430 Hallock, Gerard (*) 1846-1865 b. 151, f. 431 Hatch (W. T.) & Son (*) 1865-1883	
b. 151, f. 430 Hallock, Gerard (*) 1846-1865 b. 151, f. 431 Hatch (W. T.) & Son (*) 1865-1883	
b. 151, f. 431 Hatch (W. T.) & Son (*) 1865-1883	
b. 151, f. 432 Holmes, Samuel (*) 1873-1886	
b. 151, f. 433 Hooker, William G. 1843-1844	
b. 151, f. 434 Hunt, Richard M. 1869-1872	
b. 151, f. 435 Jarves, James Jackson 1869-1871	
b. 151, f. 436 Kellogg, Edward (*) 1842-1858	
b. 151, f. 437 Kellogg, Edward R. (*) 1858-1870	,
b. 151, f. 438 Ketcham & Clark (*) 1871-1874	
b. 151, f. 439 Ketcham, Edgar (*) 1877-1881	
b. 151, f. 440 Kingsley, H. C. (*) 1844-1846	,
b. 152, f. 441 Kinsman, Frederick (*) 1852-1858	
b. 152, f. 442 Larned, Joseph Gay Eaton (*) 1853-1854	
b. 152, f. 443 Leffingwell, J. C. (*) 1841-1861	
b. 152, f. 444 Lindsley, C. A. (*) 1880-1884	Ļ
b. 152, f. 445 Loomis, Elias 1860	
b. 152, f. 446 Marquand, Frederick (*) 1873-1874	
b. 152, f. 447 Mason Brothers (*) 1881-1887	
b. 152, f. 448 Mattocks & Mason (*) 1877-1879	
b. 152, f. 449 Meech, George A. (*) 1871-1874	
b. 152, f. 450 Meeker, S. M. & D. E. (*) 1859-1865	
b. 152, f. 451 Middlesex Quarry Co. (*) 1842	
b. 152, f. 452 Miller, George Douglas 1880-1883	
b. 152, f. 453 Morse, Samuel F. B. 1869-1870	
b. 152, f. 453 Morse, Samuel F. B. 1869-1870 b. 152, f. 454 Newton, Henry C. (*) 1883-1885	

1841-1888: Select (continued)

b. 152 , f. 457	Olmstead, Lucius D. (*) See also: <u>box 148, folder 399</u>	1855-1863
b. 152 , f. 458	Peabody (Francis B.) & Co. (*)	1887
b. 152, f. 458	Peabody, Houghteling & Co.	1888
b. 152, f. 459	Phelps, Dodge & Co.	1869-1873
b. 152, f. 460	Phelps, William Walter (*)	1872-1886
b. 153 , f. 461	Porter, Noah	1857-1881
b. 153 , f. 462	Porter, Timothy Dwight	1878-1880
b. 153 , f. 463	Redfield, William C. (*)	1853-1856
b. 153 , f. 46 4	Robbins, (G. S.) & Son (*)	1852-1862
b. 153, f. 465	Root, David (*) See also: <u>box 155, folder 498</u>	1862-1871
b. 153 , f. 466	Salisbury, Edward E. (*)	1841-1884
b. 153 , f. 467	Sheffield, Joseph E. (*)	1854-1882
b. 153 , f. 468	Silliman, Benjamin (*)	1843-1861
b. 153 , f. 469	Silliman, Benjamin Jr. (*)	1846-1860
b. 153 , f. 470	Silliman, Benjamin D. (*)	1847-1883
b. 153 , f. 471	Smith, Elizur Goodrich (*)	1841-1866
b. 153 , f. 472-473	Sturgis, Russell (*)	1867-1878, 1886-1887
b. 154, f. 474-482	Thacher, Thomas (*)	1879-1881
b. 155, f. 483-485	Thacher, Thomas (*)	1881-1882
b. 155, f. 486	Thacher, Thomas (*)	1883-1886
b. 155 , f. 487	Thacher, Thomas A. (*)	1843-1885
b. 155, f. 488	Trumbull, John	1842-1843
b. 155, f. 489	United States Trust Co. (*)	1875-1885
b. 155 , f. 490	Van Sant, Thomas J.	1862-1863
b. 155, f. 491	Waldo, Leonard	1882-1884
b. 155, f. 492	Warner, Wyllys (*)	1859-1869
b. 155 , f. 493	Wayland, Francis (*)	1873-1888
b. 155 , f. 49 4	Weir, John F. (*)	1871-1885

1841-1888: Select (continued)

b. 155, f. 495	Welch & Shipman (*)	1859-1870
b. 155 , f. 496	Whitaker, Edward G. (*)	1878-1880
b. 155 , f. 497	White, Henry D.	1875-1885
b. 155 , f. 49 8	White, Horace	1873-1874
b. 156 , f. 499	Winslow, Lanier, & Co. (*)	1850-1863
b. 156 , f. 500	Wight, Peter B. (*)	1865-1866
b. 156 , f. 501	Wood, Ransom E. (*)	1865-1867
b. 156 , f. 502	Wood, Sarell (*)	1857-1865
b. 156, f. 503	Woodruff & Goodman (*)	1845-1849
b. 156 , f. 504	Woodruff, L. B. (*)	1842-1855
b. 156, f. 505	Woolsey, Theodore D. (*)	1857-1870
b. 156, f. 506	Woolsey, Theodore S. (*)	1881-1884
b. 156 , f. 507	Woolsey Fund Executive Committee (*) See also: <u>box 156, folder 508</u>	1873-1886
b. 156, f. 508	Young, Mason (*)	1873-1887
	See also: <u>box 148, folder 398 box 156, folder 507</u>	
188	See also: <u>box 148, folder 398 box 156, folder 507</u> 8-1901	
188 b. 156, f. 509-513		1889 January-1901 December
	8-1901	January-1901
b. 156, f. 509-513	8-1901 A	January-1901 December 1890 June-1896
b. 156, f. 509-513 b. 157, f. 514	8-1901 A Adee, George A. (*)	January-1901 December 1890 June–1896 Jan, 1901
b. 156, f. 509-513 b. 157, f. 514 b. 157, f. 515	8-1901 A Adee, George A. (*) American Book Company (*)	January-1901 December 1890 June-1896 Jan, 1901 1890-1901 1891 April-1894
b. 156, f. 509-513 b. 157, f. 514 b. 157, f. 515 b. 157, f. 516	 B-1901 A Adee, George A. (*) American Book Company (*) Ames, Paul K. (*) 	January-1901 December 1890 June-1896 Jan, 1901 1890-1901 1891 April-1894 June
b. 156, f. 509-513 b. 157, f. 514 b. 157, f. 515 b. 157, f. 516 b. 157, f. 517	A Adee, George A. (*) American Book Company (*) Ames, Paul K. (*) Auchincloss Brothers (Hugh D. & John W. (*)	January-1901 December 1890 June-1896 Jan, 1901 1890-1901 1891 April-1894 June 1889-1900 1888 November-1896

b. 159, f. 531-535	Baird & Bradley (*)	1889 September-1901 December
	Baird and Warner See: <u>box 148, folder 399</u>	
b. 159 , f. 536	Baldwin, Simeon E. (*)	1888-1901 December
b. 159, f. 537	Baring Brothers	1888 December-1894 December
b. 160, f. 538	Baring Brothers (*)	1895 January-1901 November
	Baring, Magoun & Co.	
	See: <u>box 148, folder 401</u>	
b. 160, f. 539-542	Barker, Nelson E. (*)	1889 May-1901 November
b. 160, f. 543	Battell, Robbins (*)	1890 March-1894 June
b. 160, f. 544	Bennett, T. G. (*)	1889 March-1901 April
b. 160, f. 545	Betts, Betts, Sheffield, & Betts (*)	1899 April-1901 November
b. 161, f. 546	Bissell, Carey & Cooke (*)	1901 May- December
b. 161, f. 547	Blodget, Merritt & Co. (*)	1896 November-1900 February
b. 161, f. 548	Boardman & Boardman (*)	1889 March-1891 May
	Bridgeport Brass Co. See: <u>box 173, folder 663</u>	
b. 161, f. 549-552	Bristol, Stoddard & Bristol	1889-1901 December
b. 161 , f. 553	Brown, Robert (*)	1889 February-1901 December
b. 161, f. 554	Brush, George J. (*)	1890 August-1901 August

b. 161, f. 555-556	Burnham, Trevett & Mattis (*)	1889 September-1896 November
b. 162, f. 557-564	C	1888 November-1899 March
b. 163, f. 565-569	C	1899 April-1901 December
b. 163 , f. 570-571	Cady, Berg & See (*)	1889 May-1894 July
b. 164, f. 572-576	Cady, Berg & See (*)	1894 September-1901 November
	Cady (J. C.) & Co.	
	See: box 163, folders 570-571 box 164, folders 572-576	
b. 164, f. 577-578	Cammann (H. H.) & Co. (*)	1889 March-1901 December
b. 164, f. 579	Carrère & Hastings (*)	1899 June-1900 August
b. 165, f. 580-581	Carrère & Hastings (*)	1900 September-1901 December
b. 165, f. 582	Chambers, Walter B. (*)	1901 March- December
	Chattanooga Savings Bank See: <u>box 160, folders 539-542</u>	
b. 165, f. 583	Chittenden, Russell H. (*)	1890 February-1901 December
b. 165 , f. 58 4	Chrystie and Janney (*)	1890 October-1898 February
b. 165, f. 585	Clark, Dodge & Co. (*)	1892 January-1899 November
b. 165, f. 586	Clark, Swan & Rogers (*)	1888 December-1895 December
b. 165, f. 587	Coffin, William A.	1891 May- October

b. 165, f. 588-589	Concordia Loan & Trust Co. (*)	1894 January-1899 November
b. 165, f. 590	Cone (R. D.) & Co. (*) See also: <u>box 185, folder 781</u>	1893 April-1896 January
b. 166, f. 591-592	Cone (R. D.) & Co. (*)	1896 February-1901 December
b. 166, f. 593	Cushman, Fisher & Phelps (*) See also: <u>box 184, folder 777</u>	1895 November-1897 December
b. 166, f. 594-600	D	1888 December-1899 December
b. 167, f. 601-602	D	1900 January-1901 December
b. 167, f. 603	Day, George Parmley	1900 July-1901 July
b. 167 , f. 60 4	Depew, Chauncey (*)	1889-1897
b. 167, f. 605-607	Dodge (N. P.) and Company (*)	1888-1901 December
b. 167, f. 608	Dunscomb & Jennison (*)	1900 May-1901 October
b. 167, f. 609-611	Dwight, Timothy (*) A copy of this material is available in digital form from Manuscripts and Archives. Contact Manuscripts and Archives at <u>beinecke.library@yale.edu</u> to request access to the digital copy.	1889 July-1901
b. 168, f. 612-615	E	1888 November-1901 December
b. 168 , f. 616	Eidlitz, Cyrus L. W.	1899
b. 168, f. 617-618	Elkin, W. L. (*)	1890 April-1901
b. 168, f. 619-622	F	1888 December-1900 March
b. 169 , f. 623-624	F	1900 April-1901 December
b. 169 , f. 625	Farnam, William Wells (*)	1888 November-1901 October

b. 169 , f. 626	Fayerweather (Daniel B.) Estate (*)	1891 October-1899 June
	First National Bank of Birmingham, Alabama See: <u>box 160, folders 539-542</u>	
b. 169, f. 627	First National Bank, Lafayatte, Indiana (*)	1889 January-1893 March
b. 169 , f. 628	Fisher, George P. (*)	1895 June-1901 July
b. 169 , f. 629	Fisher, Irving (*)	1891 July-1901 October
	Flagg, Ernest See: <u>box 165, folder 582</u>	
b. 169 , f. 630	Fowler National Bank of Lafayette, Indiana (*)	1889 April-1892 May
b. 169, f. 631-632	French & Hubbard (*)	1900 March-1901 December
b. 170, f. 633-637	G	1888 November-1901 December
b. 170 , f. 638	Gallatin National Bank (*)	1888 November-1891 November
b. 170 , f. 639	Gandolfo, E. E. (*)	1891 June-1893 December
b. 170, f. 640	Gooch, F.A. (*)	1890 August-1901 September
b. 170, f. 641	Graves, Henry S. (*)	1900 May-1901 December
b. 170, f. 642-643	Н	1888 December-1892 September
b. 171, f. 644-652	Н	1892 October-1901 December
b. 172 , f. 653	Hadley, Arthur T.	1889 March-1901 October

b. 172, f. 654-655	Haight, Charles C. (*)	1893 February-1901 September
b. 172, f. 656	Harper & Brothers (*)	1890 September-1900 April
b. 172, f. 657	Harper, William R. (*)	1889 January– 1894 Jul, 1901
b. 172 , f. 658	Harris (N. W.) & Co. (*)	1889 November-1901 June
b. 172 , f. 659	Haslam, Lewis S. (*)	1894 December-1901 December
b. 172 , f. 660-661	Hatch (W. T.) & Sons (*)	1888 November-1899 November
b. 172 , f. 662	Hawkins, Gardner C. (*)	1889 July-1891 March
b. 173 , f. 663	Holmes, Samuel (*)	1889 May-1893 February
b. 173 , f. 664-665	Holt, George C. (*)	1895 December-1901 May
b. 173 , f. 666	Howells and Stokes (*)	1900 March-1901 November
	Hubbard, Allen See: <u>box 169, folders 631-632</u>	
b. 173, f. 667	I	1888-1901
b. 173, f. 668-671	J	1888-1901
b. 173 , f. 672-673	К	1889-1894 December
b. 174, f. 674-676	K	1895 January-1901 December
b. 174 , f. 677-678	Kenerson, Vertner (*)	1892–1896 Feb, 1901
b. 174, f. 679	Kent (A. E.) & Son (*)	1897-1901
b. 174 , f. 680	Kidder (A. M.) & Co. (*)	1892 September-1900

b.174, f. 682Kingsbury, F. J. (*)1889 January-1899 Novemberb.174, f. 683Kirk & Jacobus (*)1894 March-1895 Juneb.174, f. 684Kitchel, C. L. (*)1891, 1898-1901b.174, f. 685Knight, Donnelly & Co. (*)1896 November- 1897 Apr, 1901b.174, f. 686-687LSecember-1894 Novemberb.175, f. 688-690L1895 Apr, 1901b.175, f. 688-690L1895 November- 1897 Apr, 1901b.175, f. 691Lee, Higginson & Co. (*)1893 November- 1899 Pebruaryb.175, f. 692Lee, Higginson & Co. (*)1899 January-1899 Octoberb.175, f. 693-696Lombar Investment Co. (*)1899 January-1899 Octoberb.175, f. 697-698Lombar Investment Co. (*)1899 January-1899 Octoberb.176, f. 700Loomis, Francis E. (*)1892 April-1893 Unlyb.176, f. 701Loomis, Henry B.(*)1889-1901 I889-1901b.176, f. 702-709M1888 November
March-1895 June March-1895 June b. 174, f. 684 Kitchel, C. L. (*) 1891, 1898-1901 b. 174, f. 685 Knight, Donnelly & Co. (*) 1896 November- 1897 Apr, 1901 b. 174, f. 686-687 L 1888 December-1894 November b. 175, f. 688-690 L 1895 b. 175, f. 691 Laighton, James A. (*) 1893 November-1899 February b. 175, f. 692 Lee, Higginson & Co. (*) 1896-1900 b. 175, f. 692 Lee, Higginson & Co. (*) 1896-1900 b. 175, f. 693 Lombar Investment Co. (*) 1899 b. 175, f. 697 Lombar Investment Co. (*) 1899 b. 176, f. 697 Lombar Investment Co. (*) 1892 April-1893 b. 176, f. 697 Loomis, Francis E. (*) 1890-1901 b. 176, f. 700 Loomis, Henry B. (*) 1889-1901 b. 176, f. 702-709 M 1893
b. 174, f. 685 Knight, Donnelly & Co. (*) 1896 November b. 174, f. 685 L 1897 Apr, 1901 b. 174, f. 686-687 L 1888 b. 175, f. 688-690 L 1895 b. 175, f. 688-690 L 1897 b. 175, f. 691 Laighton, James A. (*) 1893 b. 175, f. 691 Lee, Higginson & Co. (*) 1896-1900 b. 175, f. 692 Lee, Higginson & Co. (*) 1896-1900 b. 175, f. 692 Lewis Investment Co. (*) 1899 b. 175, f. 697-698 Lombar Investment Co. (*) 1889 May-1901 b. 176, f. 697 Longstaff & Hurd (*) 1892 April-1893 b. 176, f. 700 Loomis, Francis E. (*) 1890-1901 b. 176, f. 701 Loomis, Henry B. (*) 1889-1901 b. 176, f. 702-709 M 1888
1897 Apr, 1901 b. 174, f. 686-687 L b. 175, f. 688-690 L b. 175, f. 688-690 L b. 175, f. 691 Laighton, James A. (*) b. 175, f. 691 Lee, Higginson & Co. (*) b. 175, f. 692 Lee, Higginson & Co. (*) b. 175, f. 693-696 Lewis Investment Co. (*) b. 175, f. 697-698 Lombar Investment Co. (*) b. 176, f. 699 Longstaff & Hurd (*) b. 176, f. 700 Loomis, Francis E. (*) b. 176, f. 701 Loomis, Henry B. (*) b. 176, f. 702-709 M
December-1894 November b. 175, f. 688-690 L 1895 January-1901 b. 175, f. 691 Laighton, James A. (*) 1893 November-1899 Pebruary b. 175, f. 691 Lee, Higginson & Co. (*) 1896-1900 b. 175, f. 692 Lee, Higginson & Co. (*) 1896-1900 b. 175, f. 693-696 Lewis Investment Co. (*) 1899 January-1899 October b. 175, f. 697-698 Lombar Investment Co. (*) 1899 May-1901 b. 176, f. 699 Longstaff & Hurd (*) 1892 April-1893 Uuly b. 176, f. 700 Loomis, Francis E. (*) 1890-1901 b. 176, f. 701 Loomis, Henry B. (*) 1889-1901 b. 176, f. 702-709 M 1888 November-1900
January-1901 b. 175, f. 691 Laighton, James A. (*) 1893 November-1899 Pebruary b. 175, f. 692 Lee, Higginson & Co. (*) 1896-1900 b. 175, f. 693-696 Lewis Investment Co. (*) 1899 January-1899 October b. 175, f. 697-698 Lombar Investment Co. (*) 1889 May-1901 b. 176, f. 697 Longstaff & Hurd (*) 1892 April-1893 July b. 176, f. 700 Loomis, Francis E. (*) 1890-1901 b. 176, f. 701 Loomis, Henry B. (*) 1889-1901 b. 176, f. 702-709 M 1888
November-1899 February b. 175, f. 692 Lee, Higginson & Co. (*) 1896-1900 b. 175, f. 693-696 Lewis Investment Co. (*) 1899 January-1899 October b. 175, f. 697-698 Lombar Investment Co. (*) 1889 May-1901 b. 176, f. 699 Longstaff & Hurd (*) 1892 April-1893 July b. 176, f. 700 Loomis, Francis E. (*) 1890-1901 b. 176, f. 701 Loomis, Henry B. (*) 1889-1901 b. 176, f. 702-709 M 1888 November-1900
b. 175, f. 693-696 Lewis Investment Co. (*) 1899 b. 175, f. 697-698 Lombar Investment Co. (*) 1889 May-1901 b. 176, f. 699 Longstaff & Hurd (*) 1892 April-1893 b. 176, f. 700 Loomis, Francis E. (*) 1890-1901 b. 176, f. 701 Loomis, Henry B. (*) 1889-1901 b. 176, f. 702-709 M 1888
January-1899 October October b. 175, f. 697-698 Lombar Investment Co. (*) 1889 May-1901 b. 176, f. 699 Longstaff & Hurd (*) 1892 April-1893 b. 176, f. 700 Loomis, Francis E. (*) 1890-1901 b. 176, f. 701 Loomis, Henry B. (*) 1889-1901 b. 176, f. 702-709 M 1888
b. 176, f. 699 Longstaff & Hurd (*) 1892 April-1893 b. 176, f. 700 Loomis, Francis E. (*) 1890-1901 b. 176, f. 701 Loomis, Henry B. (*) 1889-1901 b. 176, f. 702-709 M 1888
July b. 176, f. 700 Loomis, Francis E. (*) 1890-1901 b. 176, f. 701 Loomis, Henry B. (*) 1889-1901 b. 176, f. 702-709 M 1888 November-1900
b. 176, f. 701 Loomis, Henry B. (*) 1889-1901 b. 176, f. 702-709 M 1888 November-1900
b. 176, f. 702-709 M 1888 November-1900
November-1900
b. 177, f. 710-712 M 1900 July-1901 December
b. 177, f. 713-714 McLane, William L. (*) 1889 May-1898 December
b. 177, f. 715-718 Mason Brothers (*) 1888
November-1900 June

b. 178, f. 721	Morton, Bliss & Co. (*)	1894 October-1895 December
b. 178, f. 722-728	Ν	1888 December-1901 December
	Newson, H. D. See: <u>box 172, folder 656</u>	
b. 179, f. 729	Newton, Hubert A. (*)	1890-1896
b. 179 , f. 730	New York Central & Hudson River Railroad Co. (*)	1890-1901
b. 179, f. 731	New York, City of, Finance Department (*)	1889-1893
b. 179 , f. 732	Norcross Brothers (*)	1890-1894, 1900-1901
b. 179, f. 733-735	0	1889 January-1901 December
b. 179 , f. 736	Osborn, L.E. (*)	1889-1900
	Osborn, Miriam A., Estate See: <u>box 188, folder 830</u>	
b. 179 , f. 737-740	Ρ	1889 March-1899 July
b. 180, f. 741-742	Ρ	1899 August - 1901 December
b. 180, f. 743-747	Peabody, Houghteling & Co. (*)	1888 October-1891 September
b. 181, f. 748-754	Peabody, Houghteling & Co. (*)	1891 October-1894 July
b. 182, f. 755-761	Peabody, Houghteling & Co. (*)	1894 August - 1896 December
b. 183, f. 762-769	Peabody, Houghteling & Co. (*)	1897 January - 1899 December
b. 184, f. 770-775	Peabody, Houghteling & Co. (*)	1900 January-1901 December
b. 184, f. 776	Penfield, Samuel L. (*)	1890-1900
b. 184 , f. 777	Phelps(C.P.)& Co. (*) See also: <u>box 166, folder 593</u>	1898 December-1901 January

b. 184, f. 778-779	Philips, Andrew W. (*)	1889-1900 August
b. 185, f. 780	Philips, Andrew W. (*)	1900 September-1901 December
b. 185, f. 781	Pratt & Cone (*) See also: <u>box 165, folder 590</u>	1890 July-1893 March
b. 185, f. 782	Price, Bruce (*)	1889-1891, 1901
b. 185, f. 783	Q	1890-1900
b. 185, f. 784-790	R	1889-1901 December
b. 185 , f. 791-794	Reed & Flagg (*)	1891 February - 1898 September
b. 186 , f. 795	Richards, E. L. (*)	1889 February - 1896 December
b. 186 , f. 796	Richardson (Barnum) Co. (*)	1889 May-1897 October
b. 186 , f. 797	Ripley, George (*)	1899 June - 1901 December
b. 186 , f. 798	Robinson, L. W. (*)	1893 May-1901 October
b. 186 , f. 799	Robinson & Robinson (*)	1899 May - 1901 August
b. 186, f. 800	Rogers & Cuthbert (*)	1891 August-1901 August
	Rogers, Cuthbert, & Ellis See: <u>box 186, folder 800</u>	
b. 186, f. 801	Rowland, Williams E. (*)	1891 August - 1900 March
b. 186, f. 802-803	Rowse, E. S. (*)	1891 January - 1901 July
	Rowse & Hopkins See: <u>box 186, folders 802-803</u>	
	Royal, Nelson See: <u>box 175, folders 693-696</u>	
b. 186, f. 804-810	S	1888 November - 1896 September

b. 187, f. 811-817	S	1896 October - 1901 December
b. 187, f. 818	St. John, William (*)	1889-1900
b. 187, f. 819	Sanders, F. K. (*)	1893-1901
b. 187, f. 820	Sargent & Company (*)	1889-1901
b. 187, f. 821	Schermerhorn, J. Maus (*)	1897 July- October
b. 187, f. 822	Schwab, J. C. (*)	1893-1901
b. 187, f. 823	Scranton (Charles W.) Company (*)	1891-1901
b. 187 , f. 824	Scripture, E. W. (*)	1892-1901
b. 187, f. 825	Scudder, M. L. (*)	1898-1901
b. 187, f. 826	Second Bank of Springfield, Massachusetts	1889
b. 187 , f. 827	Security Insurance Co. (*)	1891-1901
b. 188, f. 828	Seaver, Jay W. (*)	1895-1901
b. 188, f. 829	Shade and Fruit Tree Protective Association (*)	1896
b. 188, f. 830	Shearman & Sterling (*)	1889-1896
b. 188, f. 831	Simpson, Thacher and Brown (*)	1892-1895
b. 188, f. 832	Sloane, Thomas G. and Estate of Thomas G. Sloane (*)	1889 May-1893
b. 188, f. 833-834	Smith, Charles H. (*)	1891-1901
b. 188, f. 835	Smith, Edward	1893
b. 188, f. 836	Smith, Herbert E. (*)	1895-1897
b. 188, f. 837	Smith, Herbert Knox (*)	1891-1901
b. 188, f. 838	Smith, Walter H. (*)	1891
b. 188, f. 839	Southern New England Telephone Co. (*)	1889-1901
b. 188, f. 840	Spencer, Trask & Co. (*)	1897-1899
b. 188, f. 841	Sperry, N. D. (*)	1898-1901
b. 188, f. 842	Sperry & Treat (*)	1892-1901
b. 188, f. 843	Stanwood (E. C.) and Co. (*)	1896-1901
b. 188, f. 844	Steinert (M.) and Sons Co. (*)	1900-1901
b. 188, f. 845	Stevens, George Barker (*)	1888-1900
b. 188, f. 846-847	Stokes, Anson Phelps (*)	1898-1901

b. 188, f. 848	Sweet, William E.	1901
b. 188 , f. 849-852	Τ	1888 December-1892 December
b. 189, f. 853-864	т	1893 January-1901 December
b. 189 , f. 865	Tanner, S. E. (*)	1889 July-1901 August
b. 189, f. 866-867	Thacher, Thomas (*)	1890 June-1901 December
b. 189 , f. 868	Thompson, C. S. (*)	1891 December-1901 August
b. 189, f. 869	Thompson, F. M. (*)	1892 April-1895 October
b. 189, f. 870	Tilson, John Q. (*)	1895 April-1901 July
b. 189, f. 871	Townsend, James M. (*)	1889 June-1901 June
b. 189, f. 872	Townsend, W. K. (*)	1890 June-1901 October
b. 189, f. 873-875	U	1889 February-1901 April
b. 190 , f. 876-877	United States Mortgage & Trust Co. (*)	1896 March-1901 December
b. 190 , f. 878-880	United States Trust Company of New York (*)	1890 September-1901 November
b. 190 , f. 881-882	V	1890 June-1901 December
b. 190 , f. 883	Vail, Henry West (*)	1891 September-1901 November
b. 190 , f. 884	Verrill, A. E.	1894 January-1901 October
b. 190 , f. 885-897	W	1888 November-1895 October

b. 191 , f. 898-909	W	1895 November-1901 December
b. 191 , f. 910	Walworth Construction and Supply Co. (*)	1893 April-1901 August
b. 191, f. 911	Warner, Charles S. (*)	1888 December-1890 April
b. 191, f. 912-913	Warren (H. C.) and Company (*)	1888 December-1901 December
b. 191, f. 914-915	Wayland, Francis (*)	1889 January-1901 December
b. 191, f. 916	Webb, Charles H. (*)	1889 February-1900 November
b. 192, f. 917-918	Weir, John F. (*)	1890 June-1901 October
b. 192 , f. 919	White, A. J. (*)	1893 January-1896 October
b. 192 , f. 920	Wing (Charles T.) and Co. (*)	1891 November-1894 January
b. 192, f. 921-923	Winslow, Lanier and Company (*)	1894 February-1899 August
b. 192, f. 924	Winthrop, Buchanan (*)	1889 August-1900 January
b. 192, f. 925	Wood, Irving (*)	1893 October-1896 November
b. 192 , f. 926	Wright, Henry P. (*)	1890 July-1901 December
b. 192, f. 927-928	Y	1889 February-1901 December
b. 192 , f. 929	Yale Alumni Weekly (*)	1896 March-1901 December

b. 193, f. 935

1888-1901 (continued)

b. 192, f. 930	Yale and Towne Manufacturing Company (*)	1889 December-1901 December
b. 192, f. 931	Z	1889 February-1901 September
	1902-1906	
b. 193, f. 932	Aa-Ai	
b. 193, f. 933	AI	
b. 193, f. 934	Am	

b. 193 , f. 936	Ar-Au
b. 193, f. 937	Anderson, William G. (*)

An-Ap

1902 February-1906 August

b. 193, f. 938	Bab-Ban	
b. 193 , f. 939	Bar-Bav	
b. 193 , f. 940	Bea-Ben	
b. 193, f. 941	Ber-Bet	
b. 193, f. 942	Bi	
b. 193, f. 943	Bla-Bog	
b. 194 , f. 944	Boi-Brau	
b. 194, f. 945	Bre-Brit	
b. 194, f. 946	Bro-Brow	
b. 194, f. 947	Bru-But	
b. 194 , f. 948	Baird & Warner (*)	1902 January-1906 October
b. 194, f. 949	Baldwin, Simeon E. (*)	1902 January-1906 May
b. 194 , f. 950	Bannard, Otto (*)	1902 March-1906 June
b. 194, f. 951	Barnes, Henry A. (*)	1902 February-1906 October

b. 194, f. 952	Berg, Louis DeCoppet See also: <u>box 197, folder 975</u>	1906 January- September
b. 194 , f. 953	Betts, Betts, Sheffield and Betts (*)	1902 February-1905 September
b. 194 , f. 95 4	Bissell, Carey & Cooke (*)	1902
b. 195 , f. 955-956	Bissell, Carey & Cooke (*)	1903-1906
b. 195 , f. 957-958	Bristol, Stoddard, Beach & Fisher (*)	1902-1906
b. 195 , f. 959	Brown Brothers & Co. See also: <u>box 195, folder 962</u>	1903 September- October
b. 195, f. 960	Brown, Charles C.	1905 December-1906 June
b. 195, f. 961	Brown, Robert (*)	1902 March-1906 December
b. 195, f. 962	Brown, Thatcher (*) See also: <u>box 195, folder 959</u>	1903 February-1906 June
b. 196 , f. 963	Burton (George R.) & Sons (*)	1902 January-1906 October
b. 196 , f. 96 4	Butterworth, Frank S. (*)	1905 March-1906 October
b. 196 , f. 965	Cac-Cav	
b. 196 , f. 966	Ce-Chat	
b. 196 , f. 967	Che-Chu	
b. 196 , f. 968	Ci-Clax	
b. 196 , f. 969	Cle-Clu	
b. 196 , f. 970	Cob-Comp	
b. 196 , f. 971	Con-Coop	
b. 196 , f. 972	Cor-Cox	
b. 196 , f. 973	Cra-Crut	
b. 196 , f. 974	Cul-Cuy	
b. 197 , f. 975	Cady, Berg & See (*)	1902 April-1905 January

	1902 January-1906 October
b. 197, f. 977 Camp, Walter (*)	1902 May-1906 September
b. 197, f. 978 Carrère & Hastings (*)	1902 January-1906 June
b. 197, f. 979 Chapin, E. C. (*)	1903 April-1906 July
b. 197, f. 980 Chattanooga Savings Bank (*)	1902 February-1903 October
b. 197, f. 981 Chittenden, R. H. (*)	1902 January-1906 May
b. 197, f. 982 Cone, R.D. & Co. (*)	1902 January-1906 September
b. 198, f. 983 Crutcher & Welsh (*)	1902 March-1905 April
b. 198, f. 984 Curtis, Edward L. (*)	1902 May-1906 October
b. 198, f. 985 Flagg & Chambers (*)	1902 March- October
b. 198, f. 986 Da-Day	
b. 198, f. 987 Dea-Dex	
b. 198, f. 988 Dia-Dix	
b. 198, f. 989 Doa-Doy	
b. 198, f. 990 Dra-Dry	
b. 198, f. 991 Du-Dy	
b. 198, f. 992 Duncan, George M. (*)	1902 April-1905 July
b. 198, f. 993 Dwight, Timothy	1902 August-1905 July
b. 198, f. 994 Ea-Ei	
b. 198, f. 995 El-Em	

b. 198, f. 996	En-Ew	
b. 198 , f. 997	Edgerton, John W. (*)	1903 December-1906 July
b. 199 , f. 998	Fa-Fe	
b. 199 , f. 999	Fi	
b. 199, f. 1000	FI	
b. 199 , f. 1001	Fo	
b. 199, f. 1002	Fr-Fu	
b. 199 , f. 1003	Fidelity Trust Co. (*)	1902 April-1906 May
b. 199 , f. 100 4	Fisher, Irving (*)	1902 April-1906 June
	Fisher, Samuel See: <u>box 195, folders 957-958</u>	
b. 199, f. 1005	Floyd-Jones, Edward H. (*)	1902 January-1906 May
b. 199, f. 1006-1007	French & Hollis (*)	1902 July-1904
b. 199 , f. 1008	French & Hubbard (*)	1902 January- June
b. 199, f. 1009	Ga	
b. 199, f. 1010	Ge	
b. 199 , f. 1011	Gi-Gl	
b. 199, f. 1012	Go	
b. 200, f. 1013	Gr	
b. 200, f. 1014	Gu-Gy	
b. 200, f. 1015	Gooch, F. A. (*)	1902 January-1906 October
b. 200, f. 1016	Graves, H. S. (*)	1902 January-1906 September
b. 200, f. 1017	Gregory, Herbert E. (*)	1902 February-1906 July

b. 200, f. 1018	Griswold, W. E. S. (*)	1903 January-1906 October
b. 200, f. 1019	Hac-Hal	
b. 200, f. 1020	Ham-Han	
b. 200, f. 1021	Harb-Harr	
b. 200, f. 1022	Hart-Harv	
b. 200, f. 1023	Has-Hau	
b. 200, f. 1024	Haw-Haz	
b. 200, f. 1025	Hea-Hen	
b. 200, f. 1026	Hep-Hew	
b. 200, f. 1027	Hi-Hod	
b. 201, f. 1028	Hoe-Hot	
b. 201, f. 1029	Hou-Hoy	
b. 201, f. 1030	Hu-Hy	
b. 201 , f. 1031	Hadley, A. T. (*)	1903 June-1906 June
b. 201, f. 1032	Hastings & Gleason (*)	1902 September-1905 January
b. 201, f. 1033	Heaton, John Edward (*)	1902 April-1906 January
b. 201, f. 1034	Houghteling, James (*) See also: <u>box 206, folders 1086-1090 box 207, folders 1091-1096</u>	1902 January-1905 October
b. 201, f. 1035	Howells & Stokes (*)	1902 March-1903 April
	Hubbard, Allen	
	See: <u>box 199, folder 1008</u>	
b. 201, f. 1036	1	
b. 201, f. 1037	Ja	
b. 201, f. 1038	Je	
b. 201, f. 1039	Jo-Ju	
b. 201, f. 1040	Judd, Charles H. (*)	1903 May-1906

b. 201, f. 1041	Ка-Ке	
b. 201, f. 1042	Кі	
b. 201, f. 1043	KI-Ku	
b. 202, f. 1044	Kent, William (*)	1902 January-1906 October
b. 202, f. 1045	Lab-Lan	
b. 202, f. 1046	Lat-Law	
b. 202, f. 1047	Le	
b. 202, f. 1048	Li	
b. 202, f. 1049	Lo	
b. 202, f. 1050	Lu-Ly	
b. 202, f. 1051	Maca-Macl	
b. 202, f. 1052	Macm-Macy	
b. 202, f. 1053	Mag-Man	
b. 202, f. 1054	Mar-May	
b. 202, f. 1055	Mea-Men	
b. 202, f. 1056	Mer	
b. 203, f. 1057	Mes-Mix	
b. 203, f. 1058	Mob-Moo	
b. 203, f. 1059	Mor	
b. 203, f. 1060	Mos-My	
b. 203, f. 1061	Mahoney, Martin & Cooke (*)	1904 June-1906 October
b. 203, f. 1062-1064	Mason Brothers (*)	1901-1904
b. 204, f. 1065	Mason Brothers (*)	1905-1906
b. 204, f. 1066	Morgan (J.P.) & Co.	1904 February-1906 September
b. 204, f. 1067-1068	Munro, James (*)	1902-1906
b. 204, f. 1069	Na	

b. 204, f. 1070	Ne	
b. 204, f. 1071	Ni-Ny	
b. 204, f. 1072	New Haven, City of (*)	1902-1905
b. 204, f. 1073	New Haven, Co-W	
b. 204, f. 1074	New Haven Gas Light Co. (*)	1902 January-1906 February
b. 204, f. 1075	New York, C-T	
b. 205, f. 1076	New York, City of; State of	1902-1906
b. 205, f. 1077	New York Trust Co. (*)	1904 May-1906 October
b. 205, f. 1078	Norcross Bros. Co. (*)	1902 January-1903 July
b. 205, f. 1079	Ob-On	
b. 205, f. 1080	Or-Ox	
b. 205, f. 1081	Osborn, H. M. (*)	1902 January-1906 October
		Octobel
b. 205, f. 1082	Ра	
b. 205, f. 1082 b. 205, f. 1083	Pa Pe	
b. 205, f. 1083	Pe	
b. 205, f. 1083 b. 205, f. 1084	Pe Pf-Pl	1901 June-1904 June
b. 205, f. 1083 b. 205, f. 1084 b. 206, f. 1085 b. 206, f.	Pe Pf-Pl Po-Pu	1901 June-1904
b. 205, f. 1083 b. 205, f. 1084 b. 206, f. 1085 b. 206, f. 1086-1090 b. 207, f.	Pe Pf-Pl Po-Pu Peabody, Houghteling & Co. (*)	1901 June-1904 June 1904 July-1906
b. 205, f. 1083 b. 205, f. 1084 b. 206, f. 1085 b. 206, f. 1086-1090 b. 207, f. 1091-1096	Pe Pf-Pl Po-Pu Peabody, Houghteling & Co. (*) Peabody, Houghteling & Co. (*)	1901 June-1904 June 1904 July-1906 November 1902 May-1906
b. 205, f. 1083 b. 205, f. 1084 b. 206, f. 1085 b. 206, f. 1086-1090 b. 207, f. 1091-1096 b. 208, f. 1097 b. 208, f.	Pe Pf-Pl Po-Pu Peabody, Houghteling & Co. (*) Peabody, Houghteling & Co. (*) Phelps, William Lyon (*)	1901 June-1904 June 1904 July-1906 November 1902 May-1906 July
b. 205, f. 1083 b. 205, f. 1084 b. 206, f. 1085 b. 206, f. 1086-1090 b. 207, f. 1091-1096 b. 208, f. 1097 b. 208, f. 1098-1099	Pe Pf-Pl Po-Pu Peabody, Houghteling & Co. (*) Peabody, Houghteling & Co. (*) Phelps, William Lyon (*) Phillips, Andrew (*)	1901 June-1904 June 1904 July-1906 November 1902 May-1906 July
b. 205, f. 1083 b. 205, f. 1084 b. 206, f. 1085 b. 206, f. 1085 b. 206, f. 1086-1090 b. 207, f. 1091-1096 b. 208, f. 1097 b. 208, f. 1097 b. 208, f. 1100	PePf-PlPo-PuPeabody, Houghteling & Co. (*)Peabody, Houghteling & Co. (*)Phelps, William Lyon (*)Phillips, Andrew (*)	1901 June-1904 June 1904 July-1906 November 1902 May-1906 July

b. 208, f. 1104	Robinson, L. W. (*)	1902 January-1903 November
b. 208, f. 1105	Rogers, Cuthbert & Ellis (*)	1902 June-1905 October
b. 208, f. 1106	<u>Rogers, Henry Wade (*)</u>	1903 September-1906 September
b. 208, f. 1107	Rowse, E. C. (*)	1902 June-1904 December
b. 208, f. 1108	Saf-Sam	
b. 209, f. 1109	San-Sch	
b. 209, f. 1110	Sco-Scr	
b. 209, f. 1111	Sea-Sey	
b. 209, f. 1112	Sh-Sl	
b. 209, f. 1113	Sme-Sn	
b. 209, f. 1114	So	
b. 209, f. 1115	Sp	
b. 209, f. 1116	Sta	
b. 209, f. 1117	Stea-Stew	
b. 209, f. 1118	Sti-Sto	
b. 209, f. 1119	Str-Sy	
b. 209, f. 1120	Sanders, Frank K. (*)	1902 January-1905 August
b. 210 , f. 1121	Simpson, Thacher, Barnum & Bartlett (*)	1902 May-1906 August
b. 210, f. 1122	Smith, Herbert E. (*)	1902 March-1906 June
b. 210, f. 1123	Smoke, Samuel A. (*)	1903 December-1906 November
b. 210, f. 1124-1126	Stokes, Anson Phelps, Jr. (*)	1902-1906
b. 210, f. 1127	Та-Те	
b. 210, f. 1128	Tha-Thi	

b. 210, f. 1129	Thom-Thor	
b. 211, f. 1130	Ті	
b. 211, f. 1131	То	
b. 211, f. 1132	Tra-Tru	
b. 211, f. 1133	Tu-Ty A copy of this material is available in digital form from Manuscripts and Archives. Contact Manuscripts and Archives at <u>beinecke.library@yale.edu</u> to request access to the digital copy.	5
b. 211, f. 1134-1135	Title Guarantee & Trust Co. (*)	1905-1906
b. 211, f. 1136	U	
b. 211, f. 1137	Vai-Von	
b. 211, f. 1138	Wad-Wal	
b. 211, f. 1139	Wan-War	
b. 212, f. 1140	Was-Way	
b. 212 , f. 1141	Web-Wel	
b. 212, f. 1142	Wes-Wey	
b. 212, f. 1143	Whe-Whi	
b. 212, f. 1144	Wic-Wil	
b. 212, f. 1145	Win-Wor	
b. 212, f. 1146	Wr-Wy	
b. 212, f. 1147	Warren (H. C.) & Co. (*)	1902 January-1906 September
b. 212, f. 1148	Weir, John (*)	1902 March-1906 September
b. 212, f. 1149	Wright, Henry P. (*)	1902 January-1906 October
b. 213 , f. 1150	Υ	
b. 213, f. 1151	Yale University Forest School (*) See also: <u>box 200, folder 1016</u>	1904 January-1906 February
	Yale University Law Department See: <u>box 198, folder 997 box 208, folder 1106</u>	

b. 213, f. 1152	Z	
b. 213, f. 1153	Unidentified	
Fil	ing Code	
	3. Investments:	
b. 214, f. 1154-1161	A-BI	
b. 215, f. 1162-1169	Boe-Ce	
b. 216, f. 1170-1176	Cha-Ci	
b. 217, f. 1177-1185	CI-Cu	
b. 218, f. 1186-1190	Da-J	
b. 219, f. 1191-1199	K-Ma	
b. 220, f. 1200-1206	Me-New E	
b. 221, f. 1207-1213	New H-New Y	
b. 222, f. 1214-1219	New York Trust Co.	
b. 223, f. 1220-1227	New Y-Ph	
b. 224, f. 1228-1233	Ph-Ro	
b. 225, f. 1234-1239	Sa-Se	
b. 226, f. 1240-1245	Sol-Ss	
b. 227, f. 1246-1250	St-Tz	
b. 228, f. 1251-1256	U-We	
b. 229, f. 1257-1260	Wh-Z	
b. 230, f. 1261	4. Peabody Museum Securities: Peabody Building Fund and Peabody General Fund	1906 October-1915 November

Filing Code (continued)

5. Mortgages: New Haven and misc.

b. 230, f. 1262-1266	A-Cu	
b. 231, f. 1267-1272	Do-Ma	
b. 232, f. 1273-1275	Ma-Me	
b. 233, f. 1276-1280	Ni-Wu	
b. 233, f. 1281-1286	5ad., fg. Mortgages: miscellaneous	
b. 234, f. 1287	5m. Mortgages: miscellaneous	
	5n. Mortgages: New York	
b. 234, f. 1288-1292	A-Hu	
b. 235, f. 1293-1299	I-Ne	
b. 236, f. 1300-1305	О-Ті	
b. 237, f. 1306-1308	V-Z	
	5o. Mortgages: Chicago	
b. 237, f. 1309-1310	A-D	
b. 238, f. 1311-1315	E-Ma	
b. 239, f. 1316-1322	Me-W	
b. 240, f. 1323	6. Exeter-Heald Prize	1906 June-1911 March
	7. Woolsey Hall:	
b. 240, f. 1324	American Ambulance Service in France motion picture: correspondence concerning benefit showing in Woolsey Hall	1916 October-1917 March
b. 240, f. 1325	Care of	1902 July-1917 July
b. 240, f. 1326-1329	Engagements	1906-1920

Filing Code > 7. Woolsey Hall: (continued)

b. 240, f. 1330	Miscellaneous	1912 May-1920 September
b. 240, f. 1331	Organ, maintenance and addition to	1911 February-1918 September
b. 240, f. 1332	Stage lighting	
b. 240, f. 1333	Tickets and seating arrangements	
b. 240, f. 133 4	8. Downes (W. E.) Fund	1906 November-1910 July
	10. Real Estate:	
b. 241, f. 1335-1339	General correspondence	1905-1928
b. 241, f. 1340	Miscellaneous correspondence	1909-1921
b. 241, f. 1341	New Haven, A-Cedar St.	
b. 242, f. 1342-1348	New Haven, Chapel StElm St.	
b. 243, f. 1349-1356	New Haven, Forest StWaterfront St.	
b. 244, f. 1357-1362	New Haven, Whitney AveYork St.	
b. 245, f. 1363-1367	10ae. Real Estate: New Haven, miscellaneous	
b. 245 , f. 1368	11. Lewis (George H.) Property: Des Moines, Iowa	1906 November-1915 June
b. 245, f. 1369	12. Milner (Edwin) Gift	1906 November
	13. Dining Hall:	
b. 245, f. 1370-1371	General correspondence	1905-1916
b. 246, f. 1372-1376	General correspondence	1917-1925
b. 246, f. 1377	Applications for positions	1918-1920
b. 247, f. 1378	Applications for positions	1921-1923
b. 247, f. 1379	Army Mess	1918
b. 247, f. 1380	Committee meetings	1911 April-1915 March

Filing Code > 13. Dining Hall: (continued)

b. 247, f. 1381	Complaints against the Commonwealth Catering Corporation	1921 July-1923 April
b. 247, f. 1382-1384	Complaints regarding University Dining Hall	1911–1916, 1922– 1923 July
b. 247, f. 1385	Dining Club constitution	1916 March-June
b. 247, f. 1386	Information exchanged with other dining halls	1908 November-1916 April
b. 248, f. 1387	Kellogg Service, Inc.: correspondence regarding contract for food service in University Commons	1922 April-1923 July
b. 248, f. 1388	Students eating in, also excuses	1923 November-1925 December
b. 248, f. 1389	Suggestions	1911-1923
b. 248, f. 1390	Unpaid accounts	1908 June-1915 July
b. 248, f. 1391	Ventilation	1909 February-1916 August
b. 248, f. 1392	Work and repairs	1922 September-1924 December
b. 248, f. 1393	13b. Dining Hall Plant	1905-1908, 1912-1917
b. 248, f. 1394	13e. Dining Hall: Mary E. Dana claim	1907 September-1908 August
b. 248, f. 1395	13f. Dining Hall: alterations	1908 July-1909 August
b. 248, f. 1396-1397	15. Supplies	1917-1924
b. 248, f. 1398-1400	16. Psychological laboratory	1908-1923
b. 249, f. 1401	16a. Psychological laboratory	1901-1907
b. 249, f. 1402-1406	17. Taxes (general property)	1894-1928
b. 250, f. 1407	17. Taxes (general property)	1929-1932
b. 250, f. 1408	17. Taxes (general property): conference regarding Yale contributing to the city in addition to its taxes	1930
b. 250, f. 1409	17. Taxes (general property): Lapham Field House	1923-1924

Filing Code (continued)

b. 250, f. 1410	17. Taxes (general property): miscellaneous correspondence	1905, 1910
b. 250 , f. 1411	18. Ordnance Stores	1906-1907
b. 250, f. 1412	20. Peabody, Houghteling & Co.	1906 November-1911 April
b. 250, f. 1413	21. Title Guarantee & Trust Co.	1906 November-1916 April
b. 250, f. 1414	22. Civic Federation of New Haven	1910 November-1917 July
b. 250 , f. 1415	23. Mason Brothers Northern Trust Co.	1912 October-1913 May
b. 250, f. 1416-1417	24. Bursar'sOffice: general correspondence	1906-1916
b. 251, f. 1418-1425	24. Bursar'sOffice: general correspondence	1917-1932 October
b. 252, f. 1426	24. Bursar'sOffice: correspondence re Baker account;	1914-1915
b. 252, f. 1426	24. Bursar'sOffice: correspondence re Tompkins account	1913-1915
b. 252, f. 1427	25. Secretary'sOffice Receipts	1908-1922
	27. Art School (School of Fine Arts):	
b. 252, f. 1428-1434	General correspondence	1906-1928
b. 253, f. 1435	General correspondence	1929
b. 253, f. 1436	Masque to commemorate the fiftieth anniversary of the founding of the School of Fine Arts	1916
b. 253, f. 1437	Portraits of Yale professors painted by John F. Weir	1924
b. 253, f. 1438-1439	Building, cost, etc. (Miller property, now Weir Hall)	1923–1925 Jun, 1926 January– May
b. 253, f. 1440-1443	Building file, Gallery of Fine Arts	1926 June-1927 January
b. 254, f. 1444-1448	Building file, Gallery of Fine Arts	1927 January-1928 December

27a. Art School (School of Fine Arts):

Filing Code > 27a. Art School (School of Fine Arts): (continued)

b. 255, f. 1449-1452	New theatre building	1924 December-1928 December
b. 255, f. 1453	Trowbridge Fund	1907 January-1916 December
	27b. Art School (School of Fine Arts):	
b. 255, f. 1454	Downes Fund	1909 May-1917 May
b. 255, f. 1455	28. Land: Sioux City, Iowa	1906 March-1918 April
	29. Forest School:	
b. 255, f. 1456-1459	Miscellaneous correspondence	1906-1928
b. 256, f. 1460	Biographical Record Fund	1913 August-1914 March
b. 256, f. 1461-1463	Botanical Garden	1906-1915, 1918-1927
b. 256, f. 1464	Den Forest: gift of Winthrop Perry	1918 December-1920 December
b. 256, f. 1465-1466	Forest School Fund	1909-1922
b. 256, f. 1467	Marsh Hall, U.S. Dept. of Agriculture	1926 May-1928 November
b. 256 , f. 1468	New Mexico Scholarship	1915 April-1917 June
b. 256, f. 1469	Philippine Exhibit of Woods	1915 June- October
b. 256, f. 1470-1472	Sage Hall	1921-1924 February
b. 257, f. 1473	Sage Hall	1924 March-1925 April
b. 257, f. 1474	Tree spraying and removal	1908 May-1923 October
b. 257, f. 1475	Wheeler Prize and Williams (Hubert C.) Memorial Fund	1917, 1924 April- 1927 December
b. 257, f. 1476	29a. Forest School: Milford Summer School of Forestry	1907-1923

Filing Code (continued)

b. 257 , f. 1477	29b. Forest School: Lumbering, Chair of	1908 September- December
	29c. Forest School:	
b. 257 , f. 1478	Hillhouse property	1902 March-1917 September
b. 257, f. 1479	Pierson-Sage Square	1905 August-1922 December
	29d. Forest School:	
b. 257 , f.	Farrand, Beatrix: landscape gardening	1922
1480-1481	A copy of this material is available in digital form from Manuscripts and Archives. Contact Manuscripts and Archives at <u>beinecke.library@yale.edu</u> to request access to the digital copy.	October-1925 December
b. 258, f. 1482	Alumni Fund	1912-1915
	31. New York Trust Co.:	
b. 258, f. 1483-1486	General correspondence	1914-1916, 1922-1932
b. 258, f. 1487	Barnard, Otto T.	1924-1929
b. 258, f. 1487	32. Loan Fund:	
b. 258, f. 1488-1491	General correspondence	1908-1922
b. 259, f. 1492	Applications for	1908-1909
b. 259 , f. 1493	Repayments, School of Religion	1906 October-1916 January
b. 259, f. 1494	32a. Loan Fund: Angell (John C.) Memorial Fund	1911 January
b. 259, f. 1495-1496	33. Dwight Hall: correspondence	1906-1920
b. 259 , f. 1497	33a. & b. Dwight Hall: Building Improvement Fund	1906-1908
b. 259, f. 1498-1499	33c. Dwight Hall: grill	1906-1922
b. 259, f. 1500	34. Sloane Laboratory: general correspondence	1907 January-1917 January
b. 259 , f. 1501	34b. Sloane Laboratory: building repairs	1906 July-1909 January

Filing Code (continued)

b. 259, f. 1502	35a. Insurance Course: Dept. of Political Economy	1906 November-1911 November
b. 259 , f. 1503	35b. Royalties: Phillips-Strong <i>Trigonometry</i> and Fisher-Phillips <i>Geometry</i>	1911 April-1916 January
b. 260, f. 1504-1507	36. College St. Hall	1905-1917
b. 260, f. 1508	37b. Geological Department	1904 October-1918 December
b. 260, f. 1509	37c. Yale Aero Club	1911, 1917 February–March
b. 260, f. 1510	38. Connecticut Academy of Arts & Sciences: disbursements	1913 July-1939 January
	39. Real Estate: Minneapolis	
b. 260, f. 1511-1513	Hennepin, Humbolt & Clinton Ave. property	1898 June-1917 January
b. 260, f. 1514-1515	Long property	1901 February-1912 December
b. 261 , f. 1516	Long property	1912–1917 Jul, 1920 June
b. 261, f. 1517	40. Colorado Yale Association Prize	1906 November
b. 261, f. 1518	44. Bliss (Charles M.) Estate	1906 June-1907 November
b. 261, f. 1519-1520	45. Viets (Levi C.) Estate	1904-1907, 1912-1953
b. 261, f. 1521	45a. Viets (Levi C.) Estate: grave marker	1906 October-1907 January
b. 261, f. 1522	47. Mortgages: Nebraska	1892 June-1912 October
b. 261, f. 1523	48. Lampson Estate: mortgages-Kenefick, Cooke, Mitchell & Bass, Attorneys, and Ellicott Square Company	1906 November-1910 December
b. 261, f. 1524	49. Lampson Estate: Kenefick, Cooke, Mitchell & Bass	1901, 1906 October–1916 May
b. 261, f. 1525-1527	49a. Lampson Estate: mortgages	1906 August-1916 March
b. 262, f. 1528	49a. Lampson Estate: mortgages	1913-1916
----------------------------	---	-----------------------------------
b. 262, f. 1529-1530	49b. Lampson Estate: Martha A. L. Wells Trusteeship	1905-1923
b. 262A, f. 1530A-1530C	Lampson, William estate	1897-1901
	49c. Lampson Estate: LeRoy property	
b. 262, f. 1531	General	1906-1911
b. 262, f. 1532-1533	Ingham University	1905-1910
b. 262, f. 1534	Lampson block	1906-1911
b. 263, f. 1535	Post Office	1906 December-1911 November
b. 263, f. 1536	Wolcott St. property	1907 August-1911 February
b. 263, f. 1537	49d. Lampson Estate: Michigan landsE.C. Chapin	1906 May-1907 July
b. 263, f. 1538	49e. Lampson Estate: Michigan landsBlanck Farm	1903 July-1914 April
b. 263, f. 1539	49f. Lampson Estate: Professorship Fund	1911 February-1913 November
b. 263, f. 1540	51. Loomis (Elias) Fund: annuities to Francis E. Loomis	1906 November-1916 December
b. 263, f. 1541	52. Loomis (Elias) Fund: annuities to Henry B. Loomis	1906 November-1916 October
b. 263, f. 1542	53. Langzettel (Margaretha A.)	1906 November- December
b. 263, f. 1543-1545	54. Auditors	1907-1925
b. 264, f. 1546	55. Banks	1915-1923
b. 264, f. 1547	56. Stille (Charles J.) Trust	1906 October-1912 December
	57. Sheffield Scientific School:	
b. 264, f. 1548-1550	Correspondence	1910-1924

Filing Code > 57. Sheffield Scientific School: (continued)

b. 264, f. 1551	Statements	1910-1916
	57a. Sheffield Scientific School, Funds:	
b. 264, f. 1552	Belknap (William R.) Scholarship Fund	1912 January-1913 June
b. 264, f. 1552	Bennett Maintenance Fund	1911 November-1913 June
b. 264 , f. 1552	Byers Hall Maintenance Fund	1913 October-1914 February
b. 264, f. 1552	Gallup Fund	1912 April-1916 June
b. 264 , f. 1552	Statement of Funds	1911 November-1915 September
b. 264, f. 1553	58. College Farm: Norfolk, Connecticut	1905 May-1919 January
b. 264, f. 1554	59. Western Realty & Paving Company: uranium ores	1906 August- Oct, 1911 March- April
b. 264, f. 1555-1557	60. Farnam (Charles H.) Trust	1907-1911
b. 265, f. 1558	60. Farnam Fund	1911-1916
b. 265, f. 1559-1561	61. Heating	1906-1907, 1915-1927
	61a. Heating Plants:	
b. 265, f. 1562-1566	Central	1917 January-1928 November
b. 266, f. 1567-1568	Central	1929-1931
b. 266, f. 1569-1570	Pierson-Sage	1912-1923
b. 266, f. 1571-1573	Sterling	1921-1923
b. 267, f. 1574-1578	Sterling	1923-1930
b. 267, f. 1579	61b. Heating: boiler test	1911 March-June

62. Endowment & Extension Fund:

b. 267, f. 1581	General correspondence	1907-1911
b. 267, f. 1582	А	
b. 267, f. 1583	Ва	
b. 268, f. 1584	Be-Bra	
b. 268 , f. 1585	Bre-Bu	
b. 268 , f. 1586	Ca-Ch	
b. 268 , f. 1587	Со	
b. 268 , f. 1588	Cr	
b. 268 , f. 1589	Cu	
b. 268 , f. 1590	D	
b. 268, f. 1591	E-Fa	
b. 269 , f. 1592	Fi-Fr	
b. 269 , f. 159 3	G	
b. 269 , f. 159 4	На	
b. 269 , f. 1595	He-I	
b. 269, f. 1596	J-К	
b. 269, f. 1597	La	
b. 269, f. 1598	Le-Lu	
b. 269, f. 1599	Ма	
b. 270, f. 1600	Me-Mu	
b. 270, f. 1601	N-P	
b. 270, f. 1602	R	
b. 270, f. 1603	Sa-Sh	
b. 270, f. 1604	Si-Sw	
b. 270, f. 1605	Т	
b. 270, f. 1606	V-Wa	
b. 270, f. 1607	Wh-Wi	
b. 271, f. 1608 6	2a. General Education Board	1907 April-1914 January

62b. Teachers Emergency Loan Fund:

Filing Code > 62b. Teachers Emergency Loan Fund: (continued)

b. 271, f. 1609-1612	General correspondence	1910-1929
b. 271, f. 1613	Individual cases, C-Y	
b. 271, f. 1614-1617	65. Finance Committee	1906-1914, 1920-1924
b. 272, f. 1618-1622	65. Finance Committee	1925-1929
b. 272, f. 1623	66. Holmes (Edmund Wales) Estate	1906 October-1909 November
b. 272, f. 1624	66a. Salary: increase	1911 June– 1913 Nov, 1921 January
b. 272, f. 1625	67z. Salary: attachments	1929 February- September
b. 272, f. 1626-1627	68. Carnegie Foundation: pensions	1906-1916, 1920-1923
b. 273, f. 1628-1631	68. Carnegie Foundation: pensions	1924-1929
	68a. Teachers Insurance and Annuity Association of America:	
b. 273, f. 1632	General correspondence	1920-1922
b. 273, f. 1632 b. 273, f. 1633		1920-1922 1920
	General correspondence	
b. 273, f. 1633	General correspondence Questionnaire	1920
b. 273, f. 1633	General correspondence Questionnaire Miscellaneous	1920
b. 273, f. 1633 b. 273, f. 1634	General correspondence Questionnaire Miscellaneous 70. Scholarships:	1920
b. 273, f. 1633 b. 273, f. 1634 b. 273, f. 1635 b. 274, f.	General correspondence Questionnaire Miscellaneous 70. Scholarships: A	1920
b. 273, f. 1633 b. 273, f. 1634 b. 273, f. 1635 b. 274, f. 1636-1644 b. 275, f.	General correspondence Questionnaire Miscellaneous 70. Scholarships: A B-H	1920
b. 273, f. 1633 b. 273, f. 1634 b. 273, f. 1635 b. 274, f. 1636-1644 b. 275, f. 1645-1653 b. 276, f.	General correspondence Questionnaire Miscellaneous 70. Scholarships: A B-H H-Y	1920 1925-1926
b. 273, f. 1633 b. 273, f. 1634 b. 273, f. 1635 b. 274, f. 1636-1644 b. 275, f. 1645-1653 b. 276, f.	General correspondence Questionnaire Miscellaneous 70. Scholarships: A B-H H-Y Miscellaneous correspondence	1920 1925-1926
b. 273, f. 1633 b. 273, f. 1634 b. 273, f. 1635 b. 274, f. 1636-1644 b. 275, f. 1645-1653 b. 276, f. 1654-1655 b. 276, f.	General correspondence Questionnaire Miscellaneous 70. Scholarships: A B-H H-Y Miscellaneous correspondence 70a. Scholarships:	1920 1925-1926 1906-1923

b. 277, f. 1663-1667	72. Peabody Museum	1912-1924
b. 277, f. 1668-1669	73. Printing, University	1906-1922
b. 277, f. 1670	73a. Yale Publishing Association	1908 July-1916 June
b. 277, f. 1671-1672	73b. Yale University Press	1910-1916
b. 278, f. 1673-1674	73b. Yale University Press	1916-1921
b. 278, f. 1673-1674	73b. Yale University Press:	
b. 278, f. 1675	Endowment	1917-1923
b. 278, f. 1676	Literary Culture in New England, Yale Shakespeare	1916-1919
b. 278, f. 1677-1679	Chronicles of American Photoplays	1918-1926
b. 279, f. 1680	74. Gas	1906-1916
b. 279, f. 1681-1682	75. treasurer's Reports	1912-1932
b. 279, f. 1683-1687	76. Real Estate: New York	1905-1924
b. 280, f. 1688-1693	76. Real Estate: New York	1905-1924
b. 280, f. 1694	76. Real Estate: New York-insurance	1917-1922
b. 280, f. 1695	78. Swimming Pool, Carnegie	1906-1910
b. 281, f. 1696	78. Swimming Pool, Carnegie	1907-1916
b. 281, f. 1697	79. Sun Dial, Berkeley Court	1906-1913
	80. Observatory:	
b. 281, f. 1698-1699	General correspondence	1892, 1900, 1907-1924
b. 281, f. 1700	Heliostat Building	1913 December-1916 June
	82. Library:	
b. 281, f. 1701-1704	General correspondence	1906-1924

Filing Code > 82. Library: (continued)

b. 282, f. 1705-1709	General correspondence	1925-1933
b. 282, f. 1710	Class of 1872 Fund	1907-1911
	82a. Library:	
b. 282, f. 1711-1713	Contributions to	1906-1924
b. 282, f. 1711-1713	Speck Agreement	1913-1916
b. 282, f. 1711-1713	Tiffany Window	1919-1920
	83. Insurance:	
b. 283, f. 1714-1720	General	1890-1918
b. 284, f. 1721-1727	General	1919-1925
b. 285, f. 1728-1730	General	1925-1928
b. 285, f. 1731-1733	Group	1929-1931 June
b. 286, f. 1734-1741	Group	1931 July-1940
b. 287, f. 1742	Claims	1929-1931
b. 287, f. 1743-1744	Connecticut General Life Insurance Co.	1928-1931
b. 287, f. 1745	Credit memorandum statements	1929-1930
b. 287, f. 1746	Buildings	1923-1924
b. 287, f. 1747	83a. Fire Prevention	1910-1913
b. 288, f. 1748-1752	83b. Insurance: inventories of buildings contents	1937-1938
b. 289, f. 1753	84. Belden (Ebenezer) Estate	1906 December-1908 January
b. 289, f. 1754	86. Alumni University Fund	1914 December-1921 June
b. 289, f. 1755	87. Academical Department: expenses	1907-1931
	88 Dormitorios:	

88. Dormitories:

Filing Code > 88. Dormitories: (continued)

b. 289, f. 1756	New dormitories, Pierson Hall, rentals, suggested gifts, locating officer, miscellaneous	1903-1909
b. 289, f. 1757	Care and improvement: 126 College St.; Connecticut Hall; miscellaneous	1905-1916
b. 289, f. 1758	Exclusion of public from; dormitory furniture; miscellaneous	1907-1909, 1917-1922
b. 289, f. 1759	Welch Hall, White Hall, miscellaneous	1907-1909
b. 290 , f. 1760	88a. Dormitories: Durfee Hall	1905-1909, 1911-1915
b. 290, f. 1761	88b. Dormitories: Aurelian Honor Society Rooms, Fayerweather Hall	1907-1917
b. 290, f. 1762	88c. Dormitories: Divinity Hall	1906-1916
b. 290, f. 1763	88d. Dormitories: Farnam Hall	1905-1915
b. 290, f. 1764-1768	88e. Dormitories: Wright Hall	1907 December-1912 June
b. 291, f. 1769-1770	88e. Dormitories: Wright Hall	1912-1916
b. 291, f. 1771	88f. Dormitories: rooms for college organizations, college officers	1906-1919
b. 291, f. 1772	88g. Dormitories: Chess Club, Cosmopolitan Club, Courant, Kelley Rees, Yale	1907-1910
0.271,1.1772	"Lit", miscellaneous	
b. 291, f. 1773		1911, 1917
	"Lit", miscellaneous	
b. 291 , f. 1773	"Lit", miscellaneous 88h. Dormitories: Alumni Hall	1911, 1917
b. 291, f. 1773 b. 291, f. 1774	"Lit", miscellaneous 88h. Dormitories: Alumni Hall 89. Prudential Committee	1911, 1917 1904-1912 1906 December-1908
b. 291, f. 1773 b. 291, f. 1774 b. 291, f. 1775	"Lit", miscellaneous 88h. Dormitories: Alumni Hall 89. Prudential Committee 90. Hoppin Legacy	1911, 1917 1904-1912 1906 December-1908 January 1905-1909,
b. 291, f. 1773 b. 291, f. 1774 b. 291, f. 1775 b. 291, f. 1776	 "Lit", miscellaneous 88h. Dormitories: Alumni Hall 89. Prudential Committee 90. Hoppin Legacy 92. Chapels: Marquand and Battell 	1911, 1917 1904-1912 1906 December-1908 January 1905-1909, 1914-1916 1911 November-1916
 b. 291, f. 1773 b. 291, f. 1774 b. 291, f. 1775 b. 291, f. 1776 b. 292, f. 1777 b. 292, f. 	 "Lit", miscellaneous 88h. Dormitories: Alumni Hall 89. Prudential Committee 90. Hoppin Legacy 92. Chapels: Marquand and Battell 93. Planting 	1911, 1917 1904-1912 1906 December-1908 January 1905-1909, 1914-1916 1911 November-1916
 b. 291, f. 1773 b. 291, f. 1774 b. 291, f. 1775 b. 291, f. 1776 b. 292, f. 1777 b. 292, f. 1778-1782 	 "Lit", miscellaneous 88h. Dormitories: Alumni Hall 89. Prudential Committee 90. Hoppin Legacy 92. Chapels: Marquand and Battell 93. Planting 93a. Planting: income for the university 	1911, 1917 1904-1912 1906 December-1908 January 1905-1909, 1914-1916 1911 November-1916 0ctober 1908-1916
b. 291, f. 1773 b. 291, f. 1774 b. 291, f. 1775 b. 291, f. 1776 b. 292, f. 1777 b. 292, f. 1777 b. 292, f. 1782 b. 292, f. 1783 b. 293, f.	 "Lit", miscellaneous 88h. Dormitories: Alumni Hall 89. Prudential Committee 90. Hoppin Legacy 92. Chapels: Marquand and Battell 93. Planting 93a. Planting: income for the university 93b. Planting: Art School 	1911, 1917 1904-1912 1906 December-1908 January 1905-1909, 1914-1916 1911 November-1916 1908-1916 1908-1916

b. 294, f. 1791-1793	99. Post Office: Yale Station	1907-1916
b. 294, f. 1794	100. Buildings and Maintenance: painting dormitory rooms	1906 December-1908 July
	100a. Buildings and Maintenance:	
b. 294, f. 1795	Sidewalks	1908 August-1916 November
b. 294 , f. 1796	Streets	1912, 1917 April- 1924 October
b. 294, f. 1797	102. Government warrants	1907-1910
b. 295, f. 1798-1800	103. Gymnasium	1907-1923
b. 295, f. 1801	104. Motion Pictures	1907 January-1916 September
b. 295, f. 1802	105. Dramatic Association, Yale University: Building Fund	1907 January-1916 June
b. 295, f. 1803	106. Calendars ("The Yale Undergraduate Calendar")	1907-1916
	108. Class Reunions;	
b. 295, f. 1804	126 College Strental for reunions	1912 January-1914 June
b. 295, f. 1805	General correspondence	1910-1911
b. 295, f. 1806	Classes of 1866, 1892, 1894, 1896, 1897, 1901, 1902, 1909, and 1910	1915-1917
b. 295 , f. 1807	Classes of 1887, 1897; College Street Hall, Hopkins Grammar School, reunion headquarters at Music School	1912-1917
b. 296, f. 1808	108a. Class Reunions: Alumni banquets in New Haven	1911, 1915
b. 296, f. 1809	108b. Class Reunions: President's Reception Room, Albany Dinner, Andover Dinner and Lecture, Atlanta Dinner, Boston Club Dinner, Cleveland Dinner, Hotchkiss Alumni Association, Springfield Dinner, etc.	1911-1917
b. 296, f. 1810-1812	108b. Class Reunions	1913-1923
	111. Information Files: general correspondence	
b. 296, f. 1813-1815	A-C	

Filing Code > 111. Information Files: general correspondence (continued)

b. 297, f. 1816-1828	D-P	
b. 298, f. 1829-1835	R-Z	
b. 298, f. 1836	Miscellaneous	
b. 298 , f. 1837	111c. Information Files: University Business Conference	1911 March-1912 May
b. 298, f. 1838	111d. Information Files: heating and lighting	1911, 1917
b. 299, f. 1839	112. Peabody Museum: Marsh Publication Fund	1907 February-1916 July
b. 299, f. 1840-1841	113. Claims: fire	1906-1922
b. 299, f. 1842	113a. Fire Escapes	1917-1922
b. 299, f. 1843	114. Timber Lands	1906 December-1907 January
b. 299, f. 1844-1845	116. Coal, and Coal Conservation Committee	1907-1912, 1917-1922
b. 300, f. 1846	118. Buildings and Maintenance Department	1910-1919
b. 300, f. 1847	118. University Service Bureaus	1917-1922, 1931
b. 300, f. 1848	119. Diplomas: payments for and printing of	1907-1911
b. 300, f. 1849	121. Fayerweather Estate	1907 February-1908 March
b. 300, f. 1850-1851	122. Board of Admissions	1916-1925
b. 301, f. 1852-1856	122. Board of Admissions	1926-1929
	123. Fellowships:	
b. 302, f. 1857-1858	Miscellaneous	1906-1911, 1917-1923
b. 302, f. 1859	Sterling Fellowship Funds	1925-1930
b. 302, f. 1860	123b. Yale Fellowship of Central California	1907
b. 302, f. 1861	123c. Soldiers Memorial Fellowship	1912 June-1915 January
b. 302, f. 1862	123d. Theological Fellowships	1906 June-1917 May

b. 302, f. 1863	123e. Loomis (H. B.) Fellowship	1908 June
b. 302, f. 1864	123f. Hartt (Scott) Fellowship	1913 September- October
b. 302, f. 1865	124. University Council	1902 March-1916 March
b. 302, f. 1866	125. Steam Department	1906-1917
b. 302, f. 1867	126a. Lawrence Hall	1907 January- December
b. 302, f. 1868	127. Civic Federation	1907 January-1910 July
b. 302, f. 1869-1870	130. Infirmary	1907-1915
b. 303, f. 1871	130. Infirmary: general correspondence, and Emergency Hospital during the war	1909-1916
b. 303, f. 1872-1873	130. Infirmary: general correspondence	1917-1924
b. 303, f. 1874	131. Alumni Association	1907 March-1909 September
b. 303, f. 1875-1876	131a. Alumni Advisory Board	1910-1923
b. 303, f. 1877	131b. Senior Council Student Advisors	1911 March-1912 March
b. 303, f. 1878	132. Telephones	1907 March-1909 December
b. 303, f. 1879	133. Abernethy (John J.) Fellowship	1907 March
b. 303, f. 1880	134. Maps	1911
b. 303, f. 1881	135. Development, University	Circa 1907-1919
b. 303, f. 1882	136. Verrill (A. E.) Collection: Peabody Museum	1885, 1907-1920
b. 304, f. 1883	137. Barge Professorship Fund	1907, 1912
b. 304, f. 1884-1885	138. Salisbury Estate	1902 October-1912 May
b. 304 , f. 1886	139. Debating Association, Yale	1906 October– 1916 Mar, 1929

b. 304, f. 1887	140. Clocks, Public	1907 March- April
b. 304, f. 1888	141. Loomis Tablet	1907 March
b. 304, f. 1889	142. Addressograph Company	1907, 1911-1915
	143. Annuities:	
b. 304, f. 1890	Information and general correspondence	1907-1913
b. 304, f. 1891	Anderson, E. M.; Bacon, Alice M.; Bacon, Leonard Woolsey; Bacon, Mary; Bacon, Susan Almira; Brainerd, Helen S.; Brown, Robert; Corwin, Margaret Wardell; Fyffe, Mrs. Katherine B.; Davenport, William B.; Greene, Elizabeth B.	Circa 1909-1924
b. 304, f. 1892	Kittredge, George A.; Knapp, Rev. Shepherd; Leavenworth, Harriet T.; Needham, Charles K.; Porter, Mary L.; Ripley, Mabel B.; Terry, Dwight H.; Welch, Archibald; Welch, Lewis S.; Woolsey, Alice; Wright, Henry P.	Circa 1911-1917
b. 304, f. 1893	144. Huntington Donation	1907 March-1908 November
b. 304, f. 1894-1895	145. Haughton Hall	1905, 1907 February–1911 August
b. 305, f. 1896	146. Academic Campus	1907 March-1914 November
b. 305, f. 1897	146a. Academic Campus: Ledyard Memorial Flagstaff	1908 July-1918 April
b. 305, f. 1898-1903	148. Sloane Laboratory	1908-1925
b. 306, f. 1904	148. Sloane Laboratory	1926-1935
b. 306, f. 1905	148a. Sloane Laboratory: research assistant	1910 November-1911 May
b. 306, f. 1906-1911	148c. Osborn Laboratory	1910-1913
b. 307, f. 1912-1914	148c. Osborn Laboratory	1914-1933
b. 307, f. 1915	148d. Sloane Laboratory: heat	1911 August
b. 307, f. 1916	149. Law School Library: Cole Collection of Statutes	1907 January– Oct, 1913 April
b. 307, f. 1917	150. Egleston (William C.) Fund	1907 April–1909 Sep, 1912 April

b. 307, f. 1918	151. Terry (Dwight H.) Lectureship Fund	1905-1913, 1917-1926
b. 307, f. 1919	152. Welch (Lewis C.) Account	1906 October-1908 July
b. 307, f. 1920	153. Graduate Students" Club	1907-1916
b. 307 , f. 1921	155. Tennis Association	1909 May-1916 July
b. 307 , f. 1922	156. Waterproofing	1909 April-1911 July
b. 308, f. 1923	157. Currier (Nathaniel) Fund	1907 April–1908 Jun, 1915, 1944
b. 308, f. 1924	158. Red Oak Farm	1907-1916
b. 308, f. 1925	159. Betts Prize	1907-1916, 1931
b. 308, f. 1926	160. Teachers" Lectures	1907 May
b. 308, f. 1927	161. Ladies" Waiting Room	1906 November-1907 January
b. 308, f. 1928	162. Lecture Expenditures	1907, 1914, 1918, 1930
b. 308, f. 1929	163. Kingsley Trust Association	1906-1922
b. 308, f. 1930	163a. New Kingsley Trust Association Publication Fund	1917 August
b. 308, f. 1931	164. Munson Prize	1907 April-1916 May
b. 308, f. 1932	165. Harris (Charles E.): will	1907 May-1909 February
b. 308, f. 1933	166. Cost of Education	Circa 1907-1913
b. 308, f. 1934	167. Foster (Lafayette) Fund	1907 April
b. 308, f. 1935	168. Bacon (William T.) Estate	1906-1914
b. 308, f. 1936	169. Janitors	1907 May-1916 October
b. 308, f. 1937	169a. Janitors: superintendent	1911 April-1912 May
b. 308, f. 1938	170. Elevator Inspection	1906-1933
b. 308, f. 1939	173. Police, Campus	1907 March-1932 November

b. 308, f. 1940	175. Lampson Lyceum	1907-1919
b. 309, f. 1941	176. Royalties on Hymns	1911 March
b. 309, f. 1942-1944	177. Telephones	1907-1929
b. 309, f. 1945-1947	178. Budget	1890s-1923
b. 310, f. 1948-1952	178. Budget	1924-1929
b. 310, f. 1953	179. Police: extra	1907 May
b. 310, f. 1954	180. City Bank of New Haven	1914 September- October
b. 310, f. 1955	181. Cartage	1905-1910
b. 310, f. 1956	182. Class Records	1907 April
b. 310, f. 1957	183. Hendrie Fund	1907 April
b. 310, f. 1958	184. Tuition Abatements	1907 April-1914 October
b. 310, f. 1959	185. Suspense Account: Yale Dining Club	1906 September-1907 January
b. 310, f. 1960	186. Wurts" Lawbooks: sale of	1907 March-1908 April
b. 310, f. 1961	187. American Mathematical Society Accounts	1907 February-1909 April
b. 310 , f. 1962	188. Architecture Department	1907, 1914, 1932, 1940
b. 310, f. 1963	188a. Architects: Rogers, James Gamble See also: <u>box 340, folder 2270</u>	1914 June
b. 310, f. 1964	188b. Architect, Consulting	1908-1913
b. 311, f. 1965	188b. Architect, Consulting	1914-1917
b. 311 , f. 1966	189. Aid for Students	1907, 1909, 1917
b. 311, f. 1967	190. Parks (W. H.): will	1907 February
b. 311, f. 1968	191. Coal: Peabody Coal Co.	1907 February
b. 311, f. 1969-1970	192. Commencement	1907-1928

b. 311, f. 1971	192a. Class Secretaries Bureau and Clerical Bureau	1917 January-1925 November
b. 311, f. 1972	193. Day (George E.) Estate	1907 June-1911 March
b. 311, f. 1973	193a. 125 College St.	1909 June- October
b. 311, f. 1974	194. Bromley Lectures	1907-1913
b. 311, f. 1975	197. Long (Mahlon) Fund	1948 April
b. 311, f. 1976	198. Dana (James D.) Estate	1907 April
b. 311, f. 1977	200. Dodge Lectures	1917-1922
b. 311, f. 1978-1980	201. Rooms, Students: applications for	1923-1928
b. 312, f. 1981	201. Rooms, Student: applications for	1929
b. 312, f. 1982-1983	202. University Theatre: Yale Dramatic Association	1907-1922
b. 312, f. 1984	203. Chapel Music	1908 October-1916 November
b. 312, f. 1985	204. Elihu Yale Portrait	1930 May-1912 May
b. 312 , f. 1986	205. Montgomery Prize	1907 July-1912 July
b. 312, f. 1987	207. White (Andrew D.) Prize	1907 July-1916 May
b. 312, f. 1988	208. Whitney (John A.) Annuity	1906-1916
b. 312, f. 1989	209. Law School Library	1908-1922
	A copy of this material is available in digital form from Manuscripts and Archives. Contact Manuscripts and Archives at <u>beinecke.library@yale.edu</u> to request access to the digital copy.	
b. 312, f. 1990	210. Middlebury College	1907 May-June
b. 312 , f. 1991	211. Bicentennial Publications, Yale	1900 July-1917 May
b. 312 , f. 1992	212. Swimming Association, Yale	1907 April-1908 April
b. 312, f. 1993	213. Football Games: publicity	1925 November
b. 312 , f. 1994	214. Advertising	1907 June-1911 August

b. 312, f. 1995	215. New Haven Railroad: claims against	1906 November-1907 June
b. 312 , f. 1996	216. Flag Day	1907 June
b. 312, f. 1997	217. Tuition Rebates	1905 February-1923 December
b. 312, f. 1998	219. Law School: lighting	1907 January-1909 January
b. 312, f. 1999	220. Ridgefield School	1907 June
b. 313 , f. 2000	221. Training Table	1906 April-1914 October
b. 313, f. 2001	222. Boathouse Property	1909 April-1912 January
b. 313, f. 2002	224. Peruvian Expedition: contributions to and Philip A. Means, Edwin A. Meserve, Meserve and Means	1907-1909
	A copy of this material is available in digital form from Manuscripts and Archives. Contact Manuscripts and Archives at <u>beinecke.library@yale.edu</u> to request access to the digital copy.	
b. 313, f. 2003-2004	224. Peruvian Expedition: contributions to A copy of this material is available in digital form from Manuscripts and Archives. Contact Manuscripts and Archives at <u>beinecke.library@yale.edu</u> to request access to the digital copy.	1911-1915
b. 313, f. 2005	224. Peruvian Expedition: contributions to and Dr. Eaton'sreport, O. F. Cook account, Edwin L. Anderson A copy of this material is available in digital form from Manuscripts and Archives. Contact Manuscripts and Archives at <u>beinecke.library@yale.edu</u> to request access to the digital copy.	1916
b. 313, f. 2006	224a. Peruvian Expedition: staff A copy of this material is available in digital form from Manuscripts and Archives. Contact Manuscripts and Archives at <u>beinecke.library@yale.edu</u> to request access to the digital copy.	1914-1916
b. 313, f. 2007	226. Statements of Funds: received and invested	1906-1912
b. 313, f. 2008	228. Land at Gales Ferry, Connecticut	1907 March- April
b. 313, f. 2009	229. Cook Prize	1907 September-1911 June
b. 313, f. 2010	230. Charles Washburn Clark	1907 February- June

b. 313, f. 2011	231. Law School: courses for academic students	1906 July-1914 October
b. 313 , f. 2012	232. Boardman (Lucy H.) Estate	1907 September-1910 March
b. 313, f. 2013	233a. Geology, Summer School of	1911 August-1916 October
b. 313, f. 2014	233b. Geological Club deposits	1911 December-1912 January
b. 313, f. 2015	235. Water	1907 April-1915 March
b. 314, f. 2016	236. Real estate: New Haven	1909 December-1912 October
b. 314, f. 2017	237. Legal matters	1907-1932
b. 314, f. 2018-2022	238. Estates: Allen, Frank D. Anderson, Eunice M. Andrews, William Loring Angell, Joel H. Archibald, Julia A. Arnot, Matthias Bacon, Francis L. Baldwin, Simeon E. Barge, Benjamin F. Barnes, Jonathan Bayley, Norman B. Bedell, Emmeline Reed Beebe, Maria Louise Belden, E. B. Betts, C. Wyllis Bishop, Louis B. Bissell, Josiah H. Bliss, George T. Bliss, Philip N. and Nichols, Starr Hoyt Borden, M. C. D. Bowers, Edward A.	

b. 315, f. 2023-2029 238. Estates: Bowers, Edward A. Bradley, Susan L. Brady, A. N. Brown, Henry Billings Brown, Robert Butler, John Haskell Byers, Martha F. Camp, Cornelia E. Campbell, James E. Carpenter, Mary W. Carpenter, Zachary T. Chapin, C. H. B. Churchill, Lawrence W. Close, Francis H. Coit, Albert Merrill Cook, Professor Corning, Granville Cornwall, James H. Cory, Robert H. Cross, Harry P. Currier, Lura Curtis, John T. Curtis, T.W.T. Cutler, Francis E. Daily, Catherine Darr, Alice D. Day, Sherman DeForest, Robert W. Depew, Ganson Dexter, Morton Dexter, Stanley W.

b. 316, f. 2030-2036 238. Estates: Dickinson, James T. Dimock, Otis K. Dodd, Frank C. Doneghy, Mrs. John T. Downes, John I. H. Dudley, Lucy B. Dudley, Plimmon H. Dutton, Samuel T. Duyckinck, W.C. Dwight, John W. Eagny, James T. Edwards, Amy R. Egleston, William C. Ehrich, Walter L. Elder, Samuel J. Ely, William D. Failing, John C. Farrel, Alton Farwell, Granger Fiske, Sarah J. Fitch, Lucius W. Fitch, Mary C. L. Fooks, Herbert C. Ford, David K. Frazier, Clara Duff Fuller, Egbert C. Gartland, George E. Gaylord, Thomas F. Gillet, Lorenzo Good, Mrs. Rosalia M. Goodell, J. Harriet Graham, Louise B. Griffin, William V. Grinnell, Morton Grinnell, William M. Hallgarten, Julius Harkness, Charles W. Harkness, Mary Warden Harkness, Mrs. Stephen V.

b. 317, f. 2037-2042 238. Estates: Harriot, Mary A. Harris, Charles E. Hawes, James Anderson Hefflon, George Henry Hendrick, Mrs. Ellwood Hewitt, Frederick C. Heyworth, James O. Hicks, Ratcliffe Higbie, Hamilton A. Holmes, Edmund W. Hollister, Caroline Smith Hopkins, Albert A. Hotchkiss, Justus S. Hotchkiss, Marie Oakes Howe, Elmer P. Hoyt, Henry S. Ives, Brayton Ives, Mary E. Jackson, Isaac M.

b. 318, f. 238. Estates: 2043-2047 Judson, Robert M. Bridgeport and New Canaan Property The T. J. Pardy Construction Company Kellogg, Charles P. Kellogg, Louise W. B.

James, D. M. Jennings, Annie Judson, Robert M.

b. 319, f. 2048-2052 238. Estates: Kellogg, Louise W. B. Kennedy, John Stewart Kent, Albert E. Kittredge, George A. Kountze, Charles B. Lamb, Benjamin B. Lamson, William J., M.D. Lancraft, George E. Lane, Eva M. B. Lang, Benjamin J. Lathrop, John E. Lee, Emma B. Lewisohn, Walter Lines, Augustus E. Loudenslager, H. C. Lovejoy, Allen P. Lyman, Samuel H. Lynne, George S. McBride, Malcolm L. McClung, Robert G. McCrea, Mrs. McCully, Laura E. Macfarlane, Charles W. McLanahan, George X. McLane, Adelaide L. McLaughlin, Mary B. McLellen, Jessy McPherson, Edla J.

b. 320, f. 2053-2057 238. Estates:

McPherson, Edla J. Mallory, George W. Manners, John Hartley Mariani, Dr. Nicola Marquand, Frederick Marshall, James Martin, Mrs. Walter H. Masefield, John Maynard, Archibald B. Meara, Frank S. Menner, Robert J. Mercer, Alexander G. Merrill, Payson Merwin, Samuel E. Miscellaneous correspondence re bequests Monroe, Edwin D. Monroe, Virginia Marquand Morgan, Edwin D. Morgan, Terry V. Morse, Edward Lind Munson, C.S. Nichols, Effingham H. Niemeyer, Anna T. Osborn, Frederick W. Parker, Frank J. Parker, Frederick S. Parker, Joseph Payne, Oliver H.

Peck, Eliza N. Peck, Tracy Penfield, Samuel L. Pennington, William Pratt. Francis C. Randall, Sands F. Raymond, Freeborn F. Reed, Edward M. Ripley, Alfred L. Robbins, Sarah Stuart Rogers, Samuel T. Roosa, DeWitt Ryerson, Edward L. Schlesinger, Frank Schramm, Arnold O. Schwab, John C. Scott, Mary Augusta Sedgwick, William T. Seesel, Albert

b. 321, f. 2058-2062 238. Estates: Sheppard, Eustace Morrow Sherman, C. A. Shipley, Joseph L. Sill, Elizabeth Silliman, Augustus E. Silliman, Benjamin D. Slade, Charlotte Hill Smith, Charles Henry Smith, David P. Smith, Herbert Knox Smith, Loyal L. Southworth, Edward E. Southworth, Edward Wells Sprague, Albert Arnold Sprague, Nancy A. Staak, Dr. Herman Stanley, Katherine A. Stedman, Arthur Stedman, Edmund Clarence Sterling, Edward Sterling, John W. Stern, Henry Root Steward, Herbert Stimson, Lewis A. Stokes, Dr. Horace S. Styles, Flora N. Tarbell, Frank Bigelow Thorne, William V.S. Tompkins, Ray Townsend, Jane A. Townsend, Jane S.

b. 322, f. 2063	238. Estates: Troesher, Robert Twiss, Julius Walker, Dr. D. A. Walker, E. A. Wellman, Guy Wells, Bradford Wendell, B. Rush Wheeler, Henry Lord White, Henry C. Wickham, Elizabeth M. Woodruff, Francis E. Wordin, Eliza Barnes
b. 322, f. 2064	238b. James (D. Willis): Estate
b. 322, f. 2065-2067	Gifts: Bixby, W. K. Buckhout, Edward W. Cheney, Howell Dahl, George Dimock, Rev. E. duPont de Nemours Eliot, Dr. Elisworth, Jr. Farnam, Henry W. Ford, George Hare Fuller, Luther Grenfell Fund Harriman, William Averell and Payne Whitney Hawley, George and Samuel Japanese Alumni of Yale Japanese

	Filing Code (continued)	
	Whitney, Margaret D. Wilson, R. C. Wood, Mrs. Charles H. Yale Memorial Society Prize Miscellaneous correspondence	
b. 322, f. 2068	240. Scientific School: expenditures	1880s-1910
b. 322, f. 2069	242. Buildings, University	1908-1930
b. 322, f. 2070	242a. Buildings, University: administration building	1901 January- November
b. 322, f. 2071	242b. Buildings, University: Woodbridge Hall	1909 January-1916 November
b. 322, f. 2072-2073	243. Woolsey Hall: concerts	1899, 1903, 1909-1922
b. 323, f. 2074	243. Woolsey Hall: concerts	1914-1932
b. 323, f. 2075-2081	243a. Woolsey Hall: concertsCleveland Symphony Orchestra, Kneisel Quartet, Kreisler Concert, Albert Arnold Chamber Concerts, Whiting Recitals (1914-1923)	1914-1931
b. 324, f. 2082	243a. Woolsey Hall: concerts Lorraine Wyman	1916-1922
b. 324, f. 2083	243c. Woolsey Hall: concerts organ recitals	1917-1924
b. 324, f. 2084-2085	244. Divinity School	1900, 1905-1930
b. 324, f. 2086	244a. Theological Prizes	1912
b. 324, f. 2087	245. Silliman Lectures	1911-1916
b. 324, f. 2088	246. Wheeler (Albert S.): estate	1905-1907
b. 324, f. 2089	247. Bicentennial Celebration	1902, 1909
b. 324, f. 2090	248. Commercial Museum, Yale	1905-1907
b. 324, f. 2091-2092	249. Heating and Lighting Plant	1906-1912
b. 325, f. 2093-2094	251. Blount or Sutton Land	1908-1945
b. 325, f. 2095	252. Honorary Degrees	1906-1923
b. 325, f. 2096	254. Meacham Memorial	1906 July-1907 November
b. 325, f. 2097	255. Alumni Weekly	1906 November-1916 April

b. 325, f. 2098	256. Nathan Hale Statue	1907 October-1913 July
b. 325, f. 2099	257. Library Fund	1907 November
b. 325, f. 2100	260. Flags	1907 November-1916 June
b. 325, f. 2101-2102	261. Miller (George Douglas)	1907-1921
b. 325A, f. 2102a- d	261. Miller (George Douglas)	1910-1918
b. 326, f. 2103-2109	263. Bureau of Appointments	1907-1927
b. 327, f. 2110-2111	263. Bureau of Appointments	1929-1931
b. 327, f. 2112	264. Buildings and Maintenance: Department of Surgery	1907 August-1908 April
b. 327, f. 2113	265. Lampson Lyceum: engagements	1913-1916
b. 327, f. 2114	266. Porter (John Addison) Prize	1907 September-1916 April
b. 327, f. 2115	267. Newberry Organ	1915 July-1916 December
b. 327, f. 2116	268. Real Estate: Litchfield County, Connecticut	1908 March-1909 March
b. 327, f. 2117	269. Funds: Ayers (Edward Francis, Jr.) Memorial Fund Barnes (Henry Weldon) Memorial Fund	1912-1922
b. 328, f. 2118-2222	269. Funds: Belgian Relief Fund Brady (Anthony N.) Memorial Foundation Brooke, Mrs. G. Clymer Brown, Thatcher M. Brown (William McKean) Memorial Publication Fund Chittenden Students" Fund Class Fund, 1911S Class Fund, 1912 Classical Department Publication Fund Clement (S. Merrell) Publication Fund Cunningham (Oliver Baty) Memorial Mack (John) Memorial Fund	1914-1924

b. 329, f. 2123-2124	269. Funds: Manice Fund University Chamber Music Endowment Fund Warren (Lewis Baker) Memorial Foundation Whiting Recital Fund Miscellaneous funds	1907-1913
b. 329, f. 2125	271. Connecticut Hall Fund	1908 April
b. 329, f. 2126	271a. Dormitories: McClellan Hall	1924 August-1925 November
b. 329, f. 2127	271b. Dormitories: Jonathan Edwards	1924 December-1926 January
b. 329, f. 2128	272. Grove Street Cemetery	1908 April-1909 October
b. 329, f. 2129	273. Yale Veterinary College	1908 March
b. 329, f. 2130-2131	274. Real Estate: Litchfield County, Connecticut	1905-1916
b. 330, f. 2132-2133	274. Real Estate: Litchfield County, Connecticut	1907-1916
b. 330, f. 2134	275. Photographs of Yale University: World'sFair	1908
b. 330, f. 2135	276. Barnett, James F.	1908 April
b. 330, f. 2136	278. Steinert Prize	1908 June-1916 May
b. 330, f. 2137	279. Yale Field	1908-1924
b. 330, f. 2138	279a. Tompkins (Ray) Memorial: subscriptions	1925 September- December
b. 330, f. 2139	280. Yale Courant	1906-1918
b. 330, f. 2140-2141	281. Graduate School	1908-1922
b. 330, f. 2142	282a. Real Estate: Cincinnati, Ohio	1909 June-1916 April
b. 331, f. 2143	284. Visitors: American Bar Association Convention	1908 August– September, 1916 September–1917 November
b. 331 , f. 214 4	285. Real Estate: legal advice	1908 June- September
b. 331, f. 2145	285a. Real Estate: Washington State	1911 April- November

b. 331, f. 2146	286. Steinert Music Collection	1908, 1913
b. 331, f. 2147	289. University Guides	1908 May-1916 June
b. 331, f. 2148	290. Writerpress	1908 Oct, 1914 September–1915 March
b. 331, f. 2149-2152	291. Law School	1908-1924
b. 331, f. 2153	291a. Law School: insurance on library	1911 January
b. 331, f. 2154	291b. Law School: dormitory and Yale Law School Journal	1917-1924
b. 331, f. 2155	291c. Law School: Alumni Association	1921-1924
b. 331, f. 2156	291c. Law School: gifts	1917-1920
b. 331, f. 2157	291c. Law School: Guarantee Fund	1921-1928
b. 331, f. 2158	292. Plumbing Inspections	1908-1909
b. 331, f. 2159	293. Accounting Methods	1908 November-1913 February
b. 331, f. 2160	293a. Vouchers	1911 March
b. 332, f. 2161	294. Vacuum Cleaners	1908 October-1913 October
b. 332, f. 2162	295. Surety Bonds	1907 January-1922 June
b. 332, f. 2163	296. Woolsey Bust	1908 November-1909 February
b. 332, f. 2164	298. Connecticut Cincinnati Funds	1908 November
	300. Memorials:	
b. 332, f. 2165	General correspondence	1908-1923
b. 332, f. 2166	Rhodes (Billy) and Welch (George A.)	1915 February-1916 December
b. 332, f. 2167	302. Kit Kat Club	undated
b. 332, f. 2168	303. Connecticut Educational Society	1890-1910
b. 332, f. 2169	304. New England Lime Company	1908-1909
	306. Medical School:	

Filing Code > 306. Medical School: (continued)

b. 332, f. 2170	General correspondence	1909-1914
b. 333, f. 2171-2173	General correspondence	1915-1921
b. 334, f. 2174-2179	General correspondence	1922-1930
b. 334, f. 2180	Chinese paintings of tumors	1914 March-1915 April
b. 334, f. 2181	Department of Obstetrics and Department of Public Health	1915-1923
b. 334, f. 2182	Department of University Health	1916-1923
b. 335, f. 2183	Financial statements of Winchester Repeating Arms Co.	1923 August-1926 December
b. 335, f. 2184	General Hospital Society of Connecticut and estate of Sarah T. Winchester	1922-1926
b. 335, f. 2185	Department of Physiology and Nathan Smith Hall	1918 November-1923 November
b. 335, f. 2186-2189	New Haven Hospital Building	1923 July-1927 December
b. 336, f. 2190	307. Library Acquisitions: Louisville Municipal Reports	1908 December-1909 March
b. 336, f. 2191	309. Wright (Henry P.)	1909 February- March
b. 336, f. 2192	310. Daniels Memorial Gateway	1909 January-1914 August
b. 336, f. 2193	311. University Avenue	1909 May-1917 November
b. 336, f. 2194-2195	313. Music School	1909 July-1928 December
b. 336, f. 2196	314. New Haven Educational Extension: public lecture course	1910 April-1911 October
b. 336, f. 2197	315. Wright (Henry P.) Fund	1908 September-1911 January
b. 336, f. 2198	316. Hudson-Fulton Celebration Exhibition	1909 July
b. 336, f. 2199	317. Mercer (Alexander G.) Estate	1909 July-1910 January

b. 336, f. 2200	318, Proctor, William: athletic tickets	1909 June-1910 October
b. 336, f. 2201	319. Night Watchman	1909 May-June
b. 336, f. 2202	320. Sanford, Foster: football	1909 May-June
b. 336, f. 2203	321. Adams Express Co.	1909-1919
b. 336, f. 2204	322. Chamber of Commerce Banquet	1910-1913
b. 336, f. 2205	323. Betts Prize: Law School	1906-1913
b. 336, f. 2206	324. Kellogg (Dr. C. W.) Claim	1909 May-1912 May
b. 336, f. 2207	325. Wright (Henry P.): retirement	1909 June
b. 336, f. 2208	327. Art School Building: addition	1909 May–1911– May
b. 337, f. 2209	327a. Art School: Pardee Publication Fund, Thomas Rutherford Trowbridge Memorial Lectureship Fund, John Davenport Wheeler, Architecture Scholarship, miscellaneous	1911-1918
b. 337, f. 2210-2212	328. Day Mission Library	1909 September-1916 December
b. 337, f. 2213	328b. Day Mission Library: Clark Co. Contract	1911-1912
b. 337, f. 2214	329. Forest School Library Fund	1909 September
b. 337, f. 2215	330. Dining Hall Register	1909 September
b. 337, f. 2216	331. Dormitory Telephones	1909 October-1910 October
b. 337, f. 2217	332. Class Ivies	1909 July-1914 December
b. 337, f. 2218	333. Gifts: prospective gifts to Yale University	1909 October-1915 October
b. 337, f. 2219	334. Insurance: portraits in University Dining Hall	1909 October
b. 337, f. 2220	335. Boocock Fund and Library	1909 September- October
b. 337, f. 2221	336. Keys	1909 October-1916 October
b. 337, f. 2222	337. Lost Checks	1909 August- September

b. 337, f. 2223	338. Birdseye (Clarence F.), <i>The American College</i> : college bookkeeping practices	1909 September- October
b. 337, f. 2224	339. Hemingway (Rev. Jacob): gravestone maintenance	1909 June-1912 June
b. 337, f. 2225	340. Mulliken (Harral): Business Administration, Graduate School	1908 July
b. 337, f. 2226	341. Mann (Arthur S.) Memorial Fund	1909 June
b. 337, f. 2227	342. Willcox (David) Loan Fund	1909 June-1917 October
b. 337, f. 2228	343. Engine House Site	1909 June-1910 March
	344. Athletic Association:	
b. 337, f. 2229	General correspondence	1908 July-1915 March
b. 338, f. 2230-2235	General correspondence	1915 April-1928 December
b. 339, f. 2236-2237	Board of Control	1915 November-1926 December
b. 339, f. 2238	Boat house property	1916 September
b. 339, f. 2239	Conduct memorandum	1915 November
b. 339, f. 2240	Contributions for ground development	1919 June-1922 June
b. 339, f. 2241-2244	Distribution of Yale Bowl tickets	1922 November-1930 December
b. 339, f. 2245	Fund Statements	1917 May-1920 March
b. 339, f. 2246	Ground development	1916 November-1920 May
b. 340, f. 2247	Real estate, insurance, investments, finances	1920 January-1922 September
b. 340, f. 2248	Salaries	1919 February-1920 June
b. 340, f. 2249	Smith (Miss Linda J.)Central Avenue property	1919 September-1922 January

b. 340, f. 2250	345. Filters	1908 August-1909 November
b. 340, f. 2251	346. Dining Hall: colonnade	1907 November
b. 340, f. 2252	347. Carley (Ira M.): Thacher Loan Fund	1909 November
b. 340, f. 2253	348. Tuttle property	1906 June-1910 April
b. 340, f. 2254	349. Wells Fargo and Company	1909 July- September
b. 340, f. 2255	350. Office of Treasurer: duties and responsibilities	1908 April-1915 January
b. 340, f. 2256	351. Corporation Tax	1909 September
b. 340, f. 2257	353. Yale in China	1914 March-1922 June
b. 340, f. 2258	354. Financial Union of Yale Athletics	1909 January-1910 January
b. 340, f. 2259	355. Laffan (William M.) Fund	1910 January-1914 April
b. 340, f. 2260	356. Travelling Loan Fund	1907 December-1916 January
b. 340, f. 2261	357. Class of 1884 Fund	1909 October-1915 April
b. 340, f. 2262	358. South American History Classroom	1909 October-1913 April
b. 340, f. 2263	359. Elihu Club	1910 February-1913 October
	360. Allen (Frank D.):	
b. 340, f. 2264	Annuity	1917 August-1919 May
b. 340, f. 2265	Estate	1912 January-1914 November
b. 340, f. 2266	Will	1910 February-1911 November

b. 340, f. 2267	365. "High Wall" property	1910 March
b. 340, f. 2268	366. French Spoilation Claim	1910 April
b. 340, f. 2269	367. Pole on Prospect Street: United Illuminating Co.	1910 August
b. 340, f. 2270	368. Elihu Yale Portrait	1910 November-1912 March
b. 341, f. 2271	369. Day (Olivia H.): estate	1909 December-1914 November
b. 341, f. 2272	371. Safe Deposit Boxes	1910 May-1921 July
b. 341, f. 2273	373. Meetings, Miscellaneous	1910 May-1913 January
b. 341, f. 2274	374. Seymour Library Fund	1910 May- November
b. 341, f. 2275	375. Munger Memorial Fund	1910 May-1911 February
b. 341, f. 2276	376. Scholarships and Prizes, Music School: Entrance Prizes, Osborne (Frances E.) Scholarship, Sanford Scholarship, miscellaneous	1911 May-1932 June
b. 341, f. 2277	377. Medical School: alterations	1910 June-July
b. 341, f. 2278	377a. Clinical Building: repairs	1910 October
b. 341, f. 2279	378. Building Lines	1910 July-1921 July
b. 341, f. 2280	379. Johnson (Frederic B.): auditor, consulting	1910 July- August
b. 341, f. 2281	380. College Seals	1910 October
b. 341, f. 2282	381. Student Bills, Loans, Scholarships	1905-1910, 1916, 1920
b. 341, f. 2283	382. President's Reception Room	1910 October-1916 October
b. 341, f. 2284	383. Travelling Expenses	1910 December-1929 November
b. 341, f. 2285	384. Recommendations	1911 February
b. 341, f. 2286	385. Dormitories: vacant rooms	1905 April-1911 February
b. 341, f. 2287	386. De Fremery (Herman): loan, investments	1911 February- November

387. Students" Army Training Corps:

b. 341, f. 2288	General Correspondence	1918 July-1920 January
b. 341, f. 2289	Communication engineering	1923 September
b. 341, f. 2290	Maire (Raymond) and French soldiers	1918 Oct, 1923 July
b. 341, f. 2291	Signal Corps Officer Candidates Course	1918 August-1919 July
b. 342, f. 2292	Yale Army Laboratory School	1918 July-1920 January
	391. Yale Bowl:	
b. 342, f. 2293	General correspondence	1911 June-1916 October
b. 342, f. 2294	Report on completion	1929 August
b. 342, f. 2295	392. Vouchers	1911 April–Aug, 1915
b. 342, f. 2296	393. Wiley (Charles A.): note	1910 May-1911 June
b. 342, f. 2297	394. Taylor (Andrew S.): prep school, houses, miscellaneous	1911-1912
b. 342, f. 2298	395. Nathan Hale Statue	1911 June-1914 July
b. 342, f. 2299	398. Yale "Lit"	1911 July-August
b. 342, f. 2300	399. Right of Eminent Domain	1911 July-August
b. 342, f. 2301	400. Richards Memorial Pulpit	1911 September-1913 February
b. 342, f. 2302-2303	402. Bureau of Purchases and Stores	1911 March-1925 December
b. 342, f. 2304	403. Blake (James Kingsley) Memorial	1911 September-1913 March
b. 342, f. 2305	405. Porter Memorial Gateway	1911 October-1913 August
b. 342, f. 2306-2307	405a. Porter Memorial Gateway: contributions	1911-1913
b. 342, f. 2308	406. Japanese Bowl	1911 July- September

b. 342, f. 2309	407. Green (D. Myron) Mortgage	1911 September- October
b. 343, f. 2310	408. Baseball Cage	1911 September-1914 May
b. 343, f. 2311	409. Engineers	1907-1917
b. 343, f. 2312	410. Class Funds: comparison of Harvard and Yale	1911 October- November
	411. Construction:	
b. 343, f. 2313-2316	Committee on Architectural Planning	1916 December-1926 December
b. 343, f. 2317	Committee on Building	1922 January-1926 November
b. 344, f. 2318	Wolfs" Head property	1923 November-1924 December
b. 344, f. 2319-2320	411a. Construction work: applications	1922 January-1925 December
b. 344, f. 2321	412. Aid: New Haven students	1911 October-1915 October
b. 344, f. 2322	414. Civil War Memorial	1896, 1907-1923
b. 344, f. 2323	416. Taxes: controversy	1899, 1911
b. 344, f. 2324	417. Dormitories: room assignments	1912 November-1917 May
	418. Merchants, University Relations with:	
b. 344, f. 2325	Commercial activities	1911 December-1912 January
b. 344, f. 2326	Student riot	1918 October-1923 November
b. 344, f. 2327	419. Adams Express Company	1911 November-1912 August
b. 344, f. 2328	420. Memorial Hall	1911 November-1917 July

b. 344, f. 2329	421. Atwater (Dr. David F.): Yale'soldest living graduate	1833, 1911 November-1916 May
b. 344, f. 2330	425. Boulevard Lights	1912 November
b. 344, f. 2331-2332	426. Medical School: endowments	1914 January-1917 October
b. 345, f. 2333	426. Medical School: general correspondence	1910 June-1919 March
b. 345, f. 2334	427. Building Bids	1911 November-1915 July
b. 345 , f. 2335	428. Dispensary	1911 March-1912 November
b. 345, f. 2336	429. Public Health Laws, Compliance with	1911 December-1913 January
b. 345, f. 2337	430. Publications, Committee on	1912 February-1922 November
b. 345, f. 2338	431. Mason (Julian S.): tuition	1905-1911
	433. Professorships:	
b. 345, f. 2339	Kent and Sterling	1913, 1920-1929
b. 345, f. 2340	Townsend and Wright	1011 1012
		1911-1913, 1924-1925
b. 345, f. 2341	434. Yale Cooperative Store	
b. 345, f. 2341 b. 345, f. 2342	434. Yale Cooperative Store 435. Crocker Land Expedition	1924-1925 1909 September-1916
		1924-1925 1909 September-1916 July 1912 January-1913
b. 345, f. 2342	435. Crocker Land Expedition	1924-1925 1909 September-1916 July 1912 January-1913 April 1911 November-1915
b. 345, f. 2342 b. 345, f. 2343	435. Crocker Land Expedition 436. Yale Daily News	1924-1925 1909 September-1916 July 1912 January-1913 April 1911 November-1915 June 1912 January-1923

b. 346, f. 2347	444. Pamphlet: <i>Life at Yale</i>	1911 December-1914 September
b. 346, f. 2348	446. New Haven Oratorio Society	1912 April-1916 July
b. 346, f. 2349	447. Anthropological Club	1912 October-1916 February
b. 346, f. 2350	448. Lectures	1912-1922
	449. Paintings:	
b. 346, f. 2351	Donors	1912 January-1917 March
b. 346, f. 2352	Locations	1911 January-1914 March
b. 346, f. 2353	Subjects	1912 March-1916 February
b. 346, f. 2354	450. Rockefeller Foundation	1912 January-1934 March
b. 346, f. 2355	452. Organs, Practice	1912 March-1915 October
b. 346, f. 2356	454. Engineers" Club	1912 July-1922 July
b. 346, f. 2357	455. American Geographical Society	1912 May- November
b. 346, f. 2358	456. Jones (Luther Maynard): support for	1912 June-1914 January
b. 346, f. 2359	457. New Haven Week Celebration	1912 August- September
b. 346, f. 2360	458. Poor'sManual of Railroads	1912 October-1915 February
b. 346, f. 2361	460. James (D. Willis) Professorship: Divinity School	1912 October-1914 January
b. 346, f. 2362	461. Yale Club of New York	1912 October-1922 July

b. 346 , f. 2363	462. Dana (James Dwight) Fund	1912 November-1916 May
b. 346, f. 2364	463. Osborn and Bingham Halls	1912 June-1926 October
b. 347, f. 2365	463. Osborn and Bingham Halls	1926 November-1927 December
b. 347, f. 2366	464. Ticket Speculation	1912 November
b. 347, f. 2367	465. Lighting: Miller Gateway	1912 December-1913 December
b. 347, f. 2368	466. Harvard Union	1912 December
b. 347, f. 2369	467. Mental Hygiene Exhibit	1912 December
b. 347, f. 2370	468. Overhead Charges	1912 January-1930 October
b. 347, f. 2371	470. Divinity School: endowment	1912 January-1923 December
b. 347, f. 2372	471. Law School: Foster Prize, Robbins Prize, Hurtt Scholarship, loans	1906 January-1916 November
b. 347, f. 2373	472. Student Dances and Promenades	1913 January-1931 March
b. 347, f. 2374	473. Taft Hotel	1913 February-1928 December
b. 347, f. 2375	474. Durfee Hall: Athletic Association	1912 February-1915 May
b. 347, f. 2376	475. Choral Union	1910 March-1914 May
b. 348, f. 2377	476. Tobacco	1913 January-1914 July
b. 348, f. 2378-2379	477. Central Andean Expedition	1913 March-1914 January
b. 348, f. 2380	478. Stoddard (Rebecca Darlington) Collection of Vases	1913 January-1915 January
b. 348, f. 2381	479. Dominican Expedition	1913 April- November
-------------------------	---	-----------------------------------
b. 348, f. 2382	480. Woodruff (Mrs. G. M.) Property	1913 March-1915 May
b. 348, f. 2383-2384	481. Babylonian Collection See also: <u>box 346, folder 2345</u>	1907 November-1922 June
b. 348, f. 2385	482. Scott (Charles F.): electrical engineering	1913 April
b. 348, f. 2386	483. Tap Day	1913 May
b. 348, f. 2387	484. Committee on University Expenditures	1912, 1914, 1927
b. 348, f. 2388	485. Ushers	1913 June-1916 March
b. 348, f. 2389	486. Messenger Service	1913 June-1916 January
	487. Trophy Room:	
b. 348, f. 2390	General correspondence	1912 March-1916 July
b. 348, f. 2391	Contributions	1913 June-1914 April
b. 348, f. 2392	488. Letters of Credit	1913 June-1922 July
b. 349, f. 2393	489. Real Estate: Washington, D. C.	1913 July-1921 January
b. 349, f. 2394-2395	490. Workman'sCompensation: insurance	1913 December-1929 December
b. 349, f. 2396	491. Day (Benjamin): Art School	1915 April
b. 349, f. 2397	492. College of Hawaii	1913 June- September
b. 349, f. 2398	493. Forestry School	1913-1917
b. 349, f. 2399	494. Yale University Picture Store	1913 September- October
b. 349, f. 2400	495. Leaves of Absence	1913-1914, 1932
b. 349, f. 2401	496. Bishop (William Henry): deed of trust	1912 November-1916 May

497. Income Tax:

Filing Code > 497. Income Tax: (continued)

b. 349, f. 2402	General Correspondence	1913 October-1916 December
b. 350, f. 2403	War Revenue Act	1917 January-1919 November
b. 350, f. 2404	498. Starbuck (Edwin D.): professor	1913 November
b. 350, f. 2405	500. Livery Stable Nuisance	1913 October- November
b. 350, f. 2406	501. Deforest (Lee) Defense Fund	1913 October-1915 May
b. 350, f. 2407	502. Hockey Association, Yale	1913 November
b. 350, f. 2408	503. Ventilation	1906-1918
b. 350, f. 2409	504. Yale Union	1913 November-1915 November
b. 350, f. 2410	505. Alumni University Day	1914 January-1916 February
b. 350, f. 2411	506. Elm Street Traffic	1912 November-1915 May
b. 350, f. 2412	507. Deed of Trust, Standards for	1914 January- February
b. 350, f. 2413	509. Inheritance Tax	1914 February-1916 November
b. 350, f. 2414	511. Safe, treasurer's Office	1914 March- April
b. 350, f. 2415	512. Boilers	1913 April-1924 December
b. 350 , f. 2416	514. Hopkins Grammar School	1914 May-1917 May
b. 350, f. 2417	516. Graduation Fee	1914 March-May
b. 350, f. 2418	518. Squash Courts	1914 June-1916 November
b. 350 , f. 2419	519. Yale Review: Endowment Fund	1914 June-1922 December
b. 350 , f. 2420	520. Notes, Student	1914 June-1917 January

b. 351, f. 2421-2425	522. Peabody Museum: building	1914 February-1924 October
b. 352, f. 2426	522. Peabody Museum: building	1924 November-1925 December
b. 352, f. 2427	523. Arena Centerfreze Company	1914 June-July
b. 352, f. 2428	524. Track Cage	1914 July-1915 August
b. 352, f. 2429	525. Telegraph Office	1914 July-1916 November
	527. Medical School:	
b. 352, f. 2430	Physiological laboratory	1914 January-1924 October
b. 352, f. 2431	Post-Graduate Hospital, New York	1918 November-1920 April
b. 352, f. 2432	School of Nursing	1918 April-1923 November
b. 352, f. 2433	527a. Nathan Smith Hall	1918 July-1921 April
b. 352, f. 2434	527a. Sterling Hall of Medicine: building	1920 July-1922 March
b. 353, f. 2435-2438	527a. Sterling Hall of Medicine: building	1922 April-1923 April
b. 354, f. 2439-2442	527a. Sterling Hall of Medicine: building	1923 May-1924 May
b. 355, f. 2443	527a. Sterling Hall of Medicine: building	1924 June-1925 December
b. 355 , f. 2444	527a. Department of Physiology	1922 July-1926 Dec, 1945
b. 355, f. 2445	528. Sanderson (Robert L.): loans	1911 August-1916 November
b. 355, f. 2446	530. Foreign Payments	1914 October-1920 October
b. 355, f. 2447	532. Avery (Edmund S.): proposal for a course in government	1914 November-1916 November

b. 355, f. 2448	533. New Haven Water Company Loan	1914 November-1915 May
b. 355, f. 2449	534. Crocker (Robert G.): Loan	1914 May-1916 December
b. 355, f. 2450	536. Scheftel (Herbert A.) Memorial Publication Fund	1914 December-1916 December
b. 355, f. 2451	537. San Francisco Exposition	1914 December-1915 January
b. 355, f. 2452	538. Newspaper Publicity	1915 January
b. 355, f. 2453	539. Johnson (Frederick B.): consulting work	1914 December-1915 May
b. 355, f. 2454	540. Committee on the Protection of the Yale Name	1916 March-1922 June
b. 356 , f. 2455	541. Thomas (Ralph Hill) Memorial Fund	1911 January-1923 June
b. 356, f. 2456	541a. Undergraduate Organizations Buildings: Old Hopkins School	1913 January- February
b. 356, f. 2457-2458	542. Real Estate: New Jersey	1912-1921
b. 356, f. 2459	543. Donnelly (James E.): publication of diary	1915 February-1916 September
b. 356, f. 2460	544. Work Order Forgeries	1915 February
b. 356 , f. 2461	545. American Journal of Science	1915 February-1924 December
b. 356, f. 2462	546. Buildings, University: rentals	1915 March- April
b. 356 , f. 2463	548. Boy Scouts	1915 April- December
b. 356 , f. 2464	549. Reading Term	1915 February- March
b. 356, f. 2465	550. Scenery	1915-1918
b. 356 , f. 2466	551. Peabody (George): trust deed	1915 July- October

b. 356, f. 2467	552. National Defense	1915 July-1917 February
b. 357, f. 2468-2470	553. Sprague Memorial Hall	1915 September-1922 December
b. 357 , f. 2471	554. Memorial Quadrangle	1915 January-1917 May
b. 358, f. 2472-2473	554. Memorial Quadrangle	1917 June-1924 December
b. 358, f. 2474	554a. Memorial Quadrangle: bids	1917 March-May
b. 358, f. 2475	555. Class Day: assessments	1915 June-1916 August
b. 358, f. 2476-2477	556. Yale Armory	1915 October-1923 October
	556. Yale Armory:	
b. 359 , f. 2478	Building bids	1915 October-1917 January
b. 359 , f. 2479	Construction	1915 October-1917 July
b. 359, f. 2480-2481	Fund	1915 November-1918 July
b. 359, f. 2482	556a. Artillery Hall	1916 December-1930 September
b. 359 , f. 2483	557. Brick Row Print and Book Shop	1915 November-1924 October
b. 359, f. 2484	558. Moulton and Ricketts: receivership	1915 March- December
b. 359 , f. 2485	560. History Department: Publication Fund and royalties	1915 October-1924 November
b. 359, f. 2486	561. Williams (Arthur C.): Proposals regarding Yale'sfuture	1916-1917
b. 360, f. 2487	562. Yale Pageant	1916 February– 1917 Jul, 1930 September

b. 360, f. 2488	563. Yale Daily News	1916 March-1917 January
b. 360, f. 2489	564. Oriental Museum, Proposal for	1916 March
b. 360, f. 2490	565. Orchestra, Yale University	1915 May-1916 April
b. 360, f. 2491	566. Tunnel under Wall Street	1916 July-1918 June
b. 360, f. 2492	566a. Tunnel: Sperry Engineering Co. claim	1917-1924
b. 360, f. 2493	567. New Haven Bank	1916 June- November
b. 360, f. 2494	568. Master Carpenters Association	1916 August- September
b. 360, f. 2495-2496	570. Lapham Field House: building	1916 December-1923 August
b. 361, f. 2497-2498	570. Lapham Field House: building	1923 September-1925 December
b. 361, f. 2499	570a. Lapham Field House: bids	1917 March- April
	572. Yale in World War I:	
b. 361, f. 2500	Alien employees	1917 June- December
b. 361, f. 2501	Overton (Capt. W. S.)	1917 December
b. 361, f. 2502	Recommendations	1917 April-May
b. 361 , f. 2503	Refund of War Tax	1918 July-1919 March
b. 361, f. 2504-2505	R.O.T.C.	1917 January-1924 June
b. 362, f. 2506	R.O.T.C.	1924 July-1936 December
b. 362, f. 2507	Senior Service Corps	1917 April-June
b. 362, f. 2508	Service Flag	1917
		November-1920 March

Filing Code > 572. Yale in World War I: (continued)

b. 362, f. 2510	University Emergency Council	1917 March-1918 September
b. 362, f. 2511	Visit of Professors Abbott and Reed to Andover	1918 March-May
b. 362, f. 2512	Yale Bureau in Paris	1917 June-1920 March
b. 362, f. 2513	Yale Military Intelligence Bureau	1917 April-1918 April
b. 362, f. 2514	Yale Mobile Hospital Unit	1917 May-1920 April
b. 362 , f. 2515	576. Association of Yale Men in Advertising	1917 May-1922 November
b. 363, f. 2516	577. Real Estate: Atheneum Advertising	1917 April-1925 November
	578. World War I Bonds:	
b. 363, f. 2517-2519	Liberty Loans	1917 June-1921 February
b. 364, f. 2520-2522	Liberty Loans	1917-1920
b. 364, f. 2523	Thrift Stamps and War Savings Stamps	1918 April-July
b. 364, f. 2524	579. Yale University Club	1914 March-1923 June
	581. Economics Department:	
b. 364, f. 2525	Industrial Relations Section	1918 March-1923 March
b. 364, f. 2526	Industrial research	1924 April
b. 364, f. 2527	Instruction in accounting	1925 December
b. 364, f. 2528	Sumner Fund	1922 October-1926 November
b. 365, f. 2529-2530	582. Yale Glee, Banjo, and Mandolin Clubs Association	1919 March-1925 June
b. 365, f. 2531	583. "Y" Club	1919 March-1934 March
b. 365, f. 2532-2534	586. Harkness Educational Building	1920 February-1927 December
b. 366, f. 2535	589. War Memorial	1918-1927

595. Sterling Chemistry Laboratory:

Filing Code > 595. Sterling Chemistry Laboratory: (continued)

b. 366, f. 2536	Apparatus from Sheffield Trustees	1922 May- September
b. 366, f. 2537-2538	Building	1919 September-1922 April
b. 367, f. 2539-2540	Building	1922 May-1924 May
b. 367, f. 2541	Costs and payments	1919 December-1926 December
b. 367, f. 2542	Motion picture booth	1923 May-1924 March
b. 368, f. 2543	Portrait of Mr. Sterling	1923 March
	596. Sterling Memorial Library:	
b. 368, f. 2544-2545	Correspondence, miscellaneous	1917 February-1928 December
b. 368, f. 2546	Eiditz (Marc) and Sons, Inc.	1925 January-1928 December
b. 368, f. 2547	Rogers (James Gamble) Inc.	1923
	See also: box 310, folder 1963	December-1928 December
b. 368A, f. 2547a- B	596a. Nathan Hale Inn	1927-1928
b. 369, f. 2548-2554	597. Doura-Europos	1928 January-1931 May

Series IV: Benefactors, 1700-1963

The BENEFACTORS series contains all treasurer's records (excluding correspondence) relating to gifts, donations, and bequests, both those designated for special purpose and those contributed to the general endowment. The series is arranged in four sub-series:

General Histories

Subscriptions

Special Gifts

Estates Completed

General Histories is composed of compilations of information on the history of gifts to Yale. Most of the histories give a chronological list of donors along with the amounts and stipulations on the donation. Of particular interest is a volume in the hand of Ezra Stiles and others which contains, in addition to a list of gifts, lists of the library'sholdings and of philosophical apparatus, copies of honorary degrees, and the wording of the diplomas. The volume called "Histories and stipulations of donations and funds, ca. 1746-1908" is also noteworthy, containing information, duplicated elsewhere, on funds created from 1888-1908. An index in the volume provides an alphabetical list of the included funds. The sub-series is arranged in rough chronological order according to the records" creation dates.

Subscriptions encompasses the records of many campaigns for financial support, both for general endowments and for special purposes, addressed to the multitude of Yale supporters. The records of any particular campaign usually include a list of subscribers with their pledges and may include the purposes and terms of donations, accounts of payments received and pledges unpaid, and notes by campaign agents on their travels and responses to their requests. (The accounting records of income and expenses of some campaigns are found in Series V, INVESTMENTS.)

library. These records are arranged alphabetically by name of the project or fund.

Special Gifts contains records of a few large or unusual gifts made by individuals during their lifetimes. The donations of Richard Salter and Timothy Dwight Porter came in the form of land and are particularly well documented. Salter proposed that the income derived from his gift of a farm in Windham, Connecticut, be used to promote the study of Hebrew and other oriental languages in Yale College. Porter'sgift put the use of a square block of Manhattan real estate under Yale's control. (In CORRESPONDENCE, *1841-1888: Select* there are many letters from Thomas Thacher concerning this gift.) Sheldon Clark'sgifts in the form of assigned mortgages were the largest to that point in the college'shistory and created an endowed professorship and the first fellowships for non-professional postgraduate study. The histories of the DeForest, Hillhouse, and Leffingwell scholarship funds are also detailed in this sub-series. Papers respecting the John Trumbull and William Augustus Hillhouse annuities document how Yale came to own its fine collection of John Trumbull paintings and a large quantity of undeveloped real estate in New Haven. The records of the sub-series are arranged alphabetically by name of the donation or fund. (Correspondence concerning individual gifts will be found in CORRESPONDENCE, *Filing Code*: #239.)

Estates Completed is by far the largest sub-series in this series. Most of the files date from the 1880s to 1950 with a few files earlier and later than these dates. The sub-series contains records of only those estates that had been settled at the time of the last transfer of records from the treasurer's office to Manuscripts and Archives. As of 1979 the sub-series *Estates Completed* was closed. Any completed estate papers that were retained by the office after this date, even those dating much earlier, will not be added to this sub-series. Instead they will be considered as part of the records of the Treasury Services (YRG5-E), the office where they are now filed.

The files in this sub-series are arranged alphabetically by the name of the testator. Most files contain only a copy of the will or a note of what the treasurer reported to the corporation concerning the estate. In some instances there may be court proceedings and accounts compiled by the executors. In a few instances, usually where the treasurer or someone from the university acted as an executor, an estate's records may become voluminous. In such cases the files could contain personal papers, executor's correspondence, account books, and may other papers that an executor's might have kept. Examples of such files include

those for the estates of Edward Augustus Bowers, Sheldon Clark, Henry L. Ellsworth, William Lampson, Elias Loomis, Edla McPherson, O. C. Marsh, Mary Ann Goodman, and Augustus Russell Street. The files for the Edward S. Harkness estate are also very detailed.

Though a few items of correspondence will be found in these files most correspondence concerning estates has been filed in the CORRESPONDENCE series. During the years ca. 1907 - 1937 the treasurer kept most correspondence on completed estates in subject files which are now Series III, *Filing Code*: #238. A few other estates" correspondence files were filed individually under the name of the estate in this code. The folder list which follows includes cross-references to the appropriate files in the CORRESPONDENCE series.

The materials are open for research.

Gen	eral Histories	
b. 370, f. 1	Donations list and donations from the state of Connecticut	1700- 1765
b. 370, f. 2	Book kept by Ezra Stiles and others of early gifts to college, 1700-1804, with lists of library holdings and philosophical apparatus, forms for honorary degrees, diplomas, also copies of documents relating to the funds of 1792	Circa 1784-1804
b. 370, f. 3	Documents respecting the funds of 1792 See also: <u>folio box 444a, folder 5</u>	1792-1796
b. 370, f. 4	Notes, made by E. C. Herrick on the history of donations	Circa 1849-1858
b. 370, f. 5	Rough sketch of register of donations, , prepared by E. C. Herrick A copy of this material is available in digital form from Manuscripts and Archives. Contact Manuscripts and Archives at <u>beinecke.library@yale.edu</u> to request access to the digital copy.	1713–18511851
b. 371, f. 6	Costs of buildings and donors of funds (also includes receipts from sales, gifts and payments of loans and loan purchases or other investments, 1868 Jan-1869 Apr; annual receipts and expenditures of various funds, ca. 1859-1884; rental of college rooms, 1877-1878)	1842-1905
b. 371, f. 7	Histories and stipulations of donations and funds, ca. 1746-1908	Circa 1888-1908
b. 371, f. 8	Miscellaneous notes concerning gifts	1791-1887
Sub	scriptions	
	General Endowments	
b. 371, f. 9	Pleas, lists, receipts	1818-1827
b. 371, f. 10	Notes by Darius Mead, Lyman Warner and other agents on pledges received for various funds and on personal expenses and expenditures	1831-1833
b. 371, f. 11-13	Centum Millia Fund: agents notebooks of pledges	1831-1833
b. 371 , f. 14	Centum Millia Fund: subscribers ledger	1831-1832
b. 372 , f. 15	Centum Millia Fund: payments received	1832-1833
b. 372, f. 16	Centum Millia Fund: unpaid balances (also includes unpaid subscriptions to the Theological Building Fund)	1835-1838

Subscriptions > General Endowments (continued)

b. 372, f. 17	Centum Millia Fund: receipts (actual)	1832-1845
b. 372, f. 18	Centum Millia Fund: memoranda, notes	Circa 1831-1836
b. 372, f. 19-20	1854 Fund: agents notebooks of pledges	Circa 1853-1854
b. 372, f. 21	1854 Fund: subscribers list and journal of payments	1853-1860
b. 372 , f. 22	Woolsey Fund: correspondence, minutes of general committee meetings, printed circulars, subscription lists	Circa 1871-1878
b. 373, f. 23	Bicentennial Fund: appeal, pledge lists	Circa 1899-1901
b. 373, f. 24	Bicentennial Fund: subscription ledger	Circa 1899-1905
b. 373, f. 25	Bicentennial Fund: record of payments received	Circa 1899-1904
b. 373 , f. 26	Yale Endowment and Extension Movement: pledge cards and stipulations concerning donations	1905-1907
b. 373 , f. 27	Ledger of contributors to several funds including Law Library Endowment, Library Associates, Alumni Fund, Briton Hadden Memorial, Walter Camp Memorial, and the 1920 Fund	Circa 1924-1941
Build	ling Funds	
b. 374, f. 28	House for Professor of Divinity: lists of subscribers	1755-1756
b. 374, f. 29	First Chapel: lists of subscribers	1757-1765
b. 374, f. 30	Dining Hall and Kitchen: list of subscribers	1774
b. 374, f. 31	Second Chapel: lists of subscribers (also includes list of subscribers for Gibbs" Cabinet)	1824-1825
b. 374, f. 32	Second Chapel: letter of appointment, list of subscribers, and receipt for funds of agent Jacob Brace	Circa 1827-1828
b. 374, f. 33	Theological Building (Divinity College): lists of subscribers	1835-1836
b. 374, f. 34	Theological Building (Divinity College): notes on unpaid subscriptions See also: <u>box 372, folder 16</u>	1835-1836
b. 374, f. 35-36	College Library (Dwight Hall): lists of subscribers	1842-1843
b. 374 , f. 37	Battell Chapel: correspondence and pledge forms sent to agent Luther Manard Jones	1867-1871
b. 374, f. 38	Theological Building (West Divinity Hall): lists of subscribers	1868, 1873
Othe	er Funds and Projects	
b. 374, f. 39	Apparatus, philosophical: list of subscribers and payments record	1786-1791
b. 374, f. 40	Auger'sstatuary for Trumbull Gallery: conditions, lists of subscribers	1837-1838
b. 374, f. 41	Dwight (Jonathan B.) monument: list of subscribers	1844

Subscriptions > Other Funds and Projects (continued)

b. 374, f. 42	Dwight Professorship of Didactic Theology: pledges, lists of subscribers, account of monies received (also includes a list of subscribers to Indigent, Pious Fund)	1822-1832
b. 374, f. 43	Dwight Professorship of Didactic Theology: memorandum of an investigation of the account prepared by E. C. Herrick See also: <u>box 35, folder 59</u>	1852
b. 374 , f. 43 A	Friends of Yale College: minutes of meetings (BRBL Transfer)	1817
b. 374, f. 44-45	Gibbs" Cabinet of Minerals: pledges, accounts of monies received A copy of this material is available in digital form from Manuscripts and Archives. Contact Manuscripts and Archives at beinecke.library@yale.edu to request access to the digital copy. See also: box 375, folder 50 box 375, folders 54-55 box 375, folder 59	1825-1831
b. 375, f. 46	Gibbs (Josiah Willard) portrait: lists of subscribers	1855-1857
b. 375, f. 47-48	Gratuity Fund (includes records of subscriptions to the Indigent, Pious Students Fund and Relief Fund): pledges, lists of subscribers See also: <u>box 375, folders 54-55 box 424, folders 6-7</u>	Circa 1830-1841
	Indigent, Pious Student Fund	
	See: box 374, folders 42 box 375, folders 47-48 box 375, folders 54-55	
b. 375, f. 49	Law library of Judge Hitchcock: letter to Joseph G. E. Larned and lists of subscribers	Circa 1845-1846
b. 375, f. 50	Law Professorship: lists of subscribers (also includes list of subscribers for Gibbs Mineral Cabinet)	Circa 1822-1826
b. 375 , f. 51	Lederer Mineral Cabinet: lists of subscribers	Circa 1843-1845
b. 375, f. 52	Library enlargement: list of subscribers	1822
b. 375 , f. 5 3	Organ for the Chapel: lists of subscribers	1851-1854
	Relief Fund	
	See: box 375, folders 47-48	
b. 375, f. 54-55	Sacred Literature Professorship: lists and ledgers of subscribers (also includes lists of subscribers to Gibbs Mineral Cabinet and Indigent, Pious Student Fund)	1824-1834
b. 375, f. 56	Sacred Literature Professorship: statements of accounts and receipts of agent Chauncey A. Goodrich	1828-1831
	See also: box 375, folder 59	
b. 375 , f. 57	School of applied science (Sheffield Scientific School): subscription book	1856
b. 375, f. 58	Taylor's[Nathaniel William?] bust: lists of subscribers	undated
b. 375 , f. 59	Theological Department endowment: lists of subscribers (also includes list of subscribers to Dwight Professorship of Didactic Theology, Gibbs Mineral Cabinet, Sacred Literature Professorship)	1822-1834

Subscriptions > Other Funds and Projects (continued)

b. 376, f. 60	Theological Department endowment: lists of subscribers	1858-1861
b. 376 , f. 61	Trumbull (John) bust by Hugh Peters: lists of subscribers	1852
b. 376, f. 62	Unidentified: notes on potential contributors and list of subscribers	Circa 1820-1891
Spec	ial Gifts	
	Bergen (Francis) Memorial	
	See: <u>folio box 444a, folder 6a</u>	
b. 376, f. 62A	Berkeley's(Bishop George) donation: notes, by E. C. Herrick, on history of the Berkeley Scholarship Fund: Henry White'sinterpretation of deed of gift	Circa 1852, 1871
	See also: <u>box 426, folder 11</u>	
b. 376 , f. 63	Clark's(Sheldon) donation: terms of the donation, lists of mortgages included, and accounts of the funds accrued	1823-1829
b. 376, f. 64	DeForest (David) Fund: terms of donation, history of fund, legal decisions, genealogy charts	Circa 1823-1907
	See also: <u>folio box 444a, folder 6</u>	
b. 376, f. 65	Hillhouse (Augustus Lucas) annuity: correspondence, agreements, memoranda and other papers concerning the transfer of unimproved real estate in New Haven to Yale College in return for a lifetime annuity	1853-1860
b. 376 , f. 66	Hillhouse and Leffingwell Theological Scholarships: terms of donations by Mary L. Hillhouse of the James Hillhouse Scholarship and by Caroline M. Street of the William Leffingwell Scholarship	1858
b. 376 , f. 67	Porter (T. D. and T. W.) Fund: record of property in New York City conveyed to H.C. Kingsley and by him held in trust for Yale College, with ledger of income and expense by piece of property	1878-1879
b. 376 , f. 68	Salter (Richard) Fund: memorandum of the history, prepared by E. C. Herrick, with copies of the deed, lease, and receipts for rent of donated property in Windham, Connecticut	1781–1792; 1851– 1852
	See also: <u>box 426, folder 11</u>	
b. 376 , f. 69	Trumbull (John) annuity: agreements and deed of gift for paintings See also: <u>folio box 444a, folder 7</u>	1831-1833, 1841
	Webster (Noah) donation	
	See: <u>box 106, folder 195a</u>	
Esta	tes Completed	
b. 377, f. 70	Abbey, Mary Gertrude	1939
b. 377, f. 71	Abbott, Paul W.	1922
b. 377, f. 72	Abernethy, John J.	[1907?]
b. 377, f. 73	Achelis, John	1933
b. 377, f. 74	Adams, Lyell	[1892]

b. 377, f. 75	Allen, Frank D. See also: <u>box 314, folders 2018-2022 box 340, folder 2264</u>	1910-1911
b. 377, f. 76	Alling, Elsie M.	1954, 1956
b. 377, f. 77	Allison, John M.S.	1944-1945
b. 377, f. 78	Allison, William B.	1934, 1938-1944
b. 377, f. 79	Alvord, John F.	1955
b. 377, f. 80	Ames, Edward	1940
b. 377, f. 81	Anderson, Eunice M.	1918
	See also: <u>box 314, folder 2018-2022</u>	
b. 377, f. 82	Andrews, Eleanor	1918, 1924
b. 377, f. 83	Andrews, Jane E.	1930-1931
b. 377, f. 84	Andrews, Lancelot	1920
b. 377, f. 85	Andrews, William Loring	1920
	See also: <u>box 314, folders 2018-2022</u>	
b. 377, f. 86	Angell, Joel H See also: <u>box 314, folder 2018-2022</u>	1884, 1909
b. 377, f. 87	Anthony, Andrew W.	1932
b. 377, f. 88	Archibald, Julia A.	1920-1921
	See also: <u>box 314, folders 2018-2022</u>	
b. 377, f. 89	Armour, Allison V.	1941
b. 378, f. 90	Arnold, Harriette M.	1942-1946
b. 378, f. 91	Arnot, Matthias H.	1900, 1910-1911
	See also: <u>box 314, folder 2018-2022</u>	
b. 378 , f. 9 2	Arvidson, Robert T.	1953
b. 378, f. 93	Atterbury, Albert H.	1952, 1954
b. 378, f. 94	Atwater, Jason	1861
b. 378, f. 95	Atwater, John P.	1897
b. 378, f. 96	Avery, Harry E.	1933, 1935
b. 378, f. 97	Avery, Myra H.	1933-1936
b. 378, f. 98	Ayres, Harriet L.	1927-1928
b. 378, f. 99	Bacon, Asa	1857-1858

b. 378, f. 100	Bacon, Francis See also: <u>box 314, folder 2018-2022</u>	1911, 1913-1914
b. 378, f. 101	Bacon, Theodore D.	1930
b. 378 , f. 102	Bacon, William T. See also: <u>box 308, folder 1935</u>	1911-1925
b. 378, f. 103	Bahn, Laura S.	1952-1954
b. 378, f. 104	Bailey, Mary E.	1933
b. 378, f. 105	Baldwin, Annie L.	1956-1957
b. 378 , f. 106	Baldwin, Annie S.	1922, 1930
b. 378, f. 107	Baldwin, George W.	1930
b. 378, f. 108	Baldwin, Lulu K.	1944, 1950
b. 378 , f. 109	Baldwin, Simeon E. See also: <u>box 314, folder 2018-2022</u>	1896, 1902, 1916
b. 378, f. 110	Bangs, John Kendrick, Jr.	1942
b. 379, f. 111	Bannard, Otto T.	1926, 1929-1930, 1961, 1963
b. 379, f. 112	Barclay, Albert H.	1948, 1951
b. 379, f. 113	Barclay, Blanche	1945
b. 379 , f. 11 4	Bardwell, Harry J.	1930
b. 379 , f. 115	Barge, Benjamin F. See also: <u>box 314, folder 2018-2022</u>	1902, 1907
b. 379 , f. 116	Barnes, Courtlandt D.	1946, 1952
b. 379, f. 117	Barnes, John Sanford	1943
b. 379 , f. 118	Barnes, Jonathan See also: <u>box 314, folder 2018-2022</u>	1914
b. 379, f. 119	Barnum, William M.	1925, 1926
b. 379, f. 120	Barr, Charles J.	1925
b. 379, f. 121	Barrell, Finley	1924, 1942
b. 379, f. 122	Barrell, Grace W.	1930, 1936
b. 379, f. 123	Bartlett, Clara C.	1934
b. 379 , f. 124	Battell, Joseph	1854, 1875, 1890

b. 379, f. 125	Bayley, Norman B. See also: <u>box 314, folder 2018-2022</u>	1909, 1916
b. 379, f. 126	Bayne, Hugh	1953, 1956-1957
b. 379, f. 127	Beam, Willoughby	1925
b. 379, f. 128	Beardsley, Clifford R.	1950
b. 379, f. 129	Beckwith-Ewell, Glover C.	1924
b. 379 , f. 130	Bedell, Emmeline Reed See also: <u>box 314, folder 2018-2022</u>	1920-1921
b. 379, f. 131	Bedell, Margaret S.	1932-1933, 1938
b. 379 , f. 132	Beebe, Maria Louise See also: <u>box 314, folder 2018-2022</u>	1917
b. 379, f. 133	Beebe, William	1912, 1917
b. 379 , f. 13 4	Belden, Ebenezer B. See also: <u>box 289, folder 1753 box 314, folders 2018-2022</u>	1888-1893, 1907-1908
b. 379, f. 135	Belding, Edward L.	1923-1924
b. 380, f. 136	Bell, Nelson W.	1924
b. 380, f. 137	Bellis, Horace D.	1949
b. 380, f. 138	Beman, A. F.	1874
b. 380, f. 139	Benet, William Rose	1950
b. 380, f. 140	Bentley, Edward S., Jr.	1943-1944
b. 380, f. 141	Bergen, Frank	1934
b. 380, f. 142	Berkman, Joseph	1951, 1955
b. 380, f. 143	Bernstein, Albion O.	1940, 1941
b. 380, f. 144	Betts, Samuel Rossitter	1930-1931
b. 380, f. 145	Bibbins, William B.	1858, 1871
b. 380, f. 146	Bigelow, Emma F. G.	1938
b. 380, f. 147	Bigelow, Lucius H. Sr.	1956
b. 380, f. 148	Bigelow, Russell A.	1891
b. 380, f. 149	Billings, E. C.	1899, 1916
b. 380, f. 150	Bishop, William H.	1913, 1917, 1923, 1928-1929

b. 380, f. 151	Bissell, Josiah H. See also: <u>box 314, folder 2018-2022</u>	1907
b. 380, f. 152	Black, Helen N.	1952
b. 380, f. 153	Black, Schuyler L.	1946
b. 380, f. 154	Bliss, Charles M. See also: <u>box 261, folder 1518</u>	1890, 1907
b. 380, f. 155	Bliss, George T. See also: <u>box 314, folder 2018-2022</u>	1896-1897, 1899, 1901
b. 380, f. 156	Bloch, Solomon M.	1938, 1939, 1941
b. 380, f. 157	Blount, Archibald H.	1897-1899, 1907
b. 380, f. 158	Boardman, Lucy H. See also: <u>box 313, folder 2012</u>	1907, 1909
b. 380, f. 159	Booth, Minot	undated
b. 380, f. 160	Borden, Matthew C. D. See also: <u>box 314, folder 2018-2022</u>	1894, 1896, 1912
b. 380, f. 161	Borup, Henry D.	1916, 1924, 1933
b. 380, f. 162	Bourne, Emily Howland	1920-1922
b. 380, f. 163	Bournique, Stella C.	1958
b. 381, f. 164	Bowers, Edward A. See also: <u>box 314, folder 2018-2022</u>	1907, 1922-1927
b. 381, f. 165	Bowers, Edward A.: correspondence	1924 August- December
b. 381, f. 166	Bowers, Edward A.: counterfoils and bankbooks	1922-1924
b. 381, f. 167	Bowers, Edward A.: bankstatements	1922-1924
b. 381, f. 168-169	Bradford, Edward A.	1927-1928
b. 382, f. 170-174	Bradford, Edward A.	1929-1939, 1943-1950
b. 383, f. 175	Bradley, Elizabeth C.	1911
b. 383, f. 176	Bradley, Susan L. See also: <u>box 315, folder 2023-2029</u>	1915
b. 383, f. 177	Brewer, Maud Dorman	1947
b. 383, f. 178	Brewster, James H.	1958
b. 383, f. 179	Brewster, Kate L.	1947

b. 383, f. 180	Brinton, Gertrude W.	1942
b. 383, f. 181	Brinton, Howard F.	1923, 1942, 1954-1955
b. 383, f. 182	Bronson, Edward B.	1925
b. 383, f. 183	Brooker, Charles F.	1926
b. 383, f. 184	Brooks, Charles W.	1949
b. 383, f. 185	Brooks, Henry S.	1938
b. 383, f. 186	Brott, George O.	1915, 1919, 1941, 1947
b. 383, f. 187	Brown, Anna W.	1940-1944
b. 383, f. 188	Brown, Benjamin W. B.	1937
b. 383, f. 189	Brown, Charles R.	1948
b. 383, f. 190	Brown, Edwin H.	1939
b. 383, f. 191	Brown, Henry Billings See also: <u>box 315, folders 2023-2029</u>	1910-1914
b. 383, f. 192	Brown, Herman J.	1960
b. 383, f. 193	Brown, Marie C.	1939, 1943-1947
b. 383, f. 194	Brown, Robert, Jr. See also: <u>box 315, folders 2023-2029</u>	1876, 1880, 1886, 1911
b. 383, f. 195	Brown, Thatcher Magoun	1953
b. 383, f. 196	Brownfield, Robert L.	1946, 1961
b. 383, f. 197	Brubacher, Abram R.	1939
b. 383, f. 198	Brush, Graham	1954
b. 383, f. 199	Bryant, Annie B. M.	1932-1934
b. 383, f. 200	Buckham, Robert B.	1940
b. 383, f. 201	Bunker, Kate McElroy	1954
b. 383, f. 202	Burgess, Carrie T.	1945
b. 383, f. 203	Burns, S. Fanny	1932
b. 383, f. 204	Burroughs, William	1959, 1961
b. 383, f. 205	Burrowes, H. S.	1951
b. 383, f. 206	Bushrell, Samuel K.	1942, 1957
b. 383, f. 207	Butler, Henry H.	1914-1916

b. 383, f. 208	Byers, Martha F. See also: <u>box 315, folder 2023-2029</u>	1911-1912
b. 384, f. 209	Calkins, Charlotte W.	1937
b. 384, f. 210	Callender, John A.	1955-1958
b. 384, f. 211	Camp, Samuel C.	1756, 1823, 1841-1842
b. 384, f. 212	Campbell, Eugenia W.	1935
b. 384, f. 213	Campbell, Hugh	1931-1945
b. 384, f. 214	Campbell, James	1899, 1916
b. 384, f. 215	Campbell, James E. See also: <u>box 315, folder 2023-2029</u>	1914, 1934
b. 384, f. 216	Carmalt, William H.	1929
b. 384 , f. 217	Carpenter, Mary W. See also: <u>box 315, folder 2023-2029</u>	1931, 1935
b. 384, f. 218	Carpenter, Zachary T. See also: <u>box 315, folder 2023-2029</u>	1890, 1891
b. 384, f. 219	Case, Charles B.	1931
b. 384, f. 219 b. 384, f. 220	Case, Charles B. Castle, Frank E.	1931 1923
b. 384, f. 220	Castle, Frank E.	1923
b. 384, f. 220 b. 384, f. 221	Castle, Frank E. Catlin, George L.	1923 1896
b. 384, f. 220 b. 384, f. 221 b. 384, f. 222	Castle, Frank E. Catlin, George L. Chambers, Robert A.	1923 1896 1951
b. 384, f. 220 b. 384, f. 221 b. 384, f. 222 b. 384, f. 223	Castle, Frank E. Catlin, George L. Chambers, Robert A. Chandlers, Woods Chapin, Charles H. B.	1923 1896 1951 1928, 1932
 b. 384, f. 220 b. 384, f. 221 b. 384, f. 222 b. 384, f. 223 b. 384, f. 223 b. 384, f. 224 	Castle, Frank E. Catlin, George L. Chambers, Robert A. Chandlers, Woods Chapin, Charles H. B. See also: box 315, folder 2023-2029	1923 1896 1951 1928,1932 1943-1945
 b. 384, f. 220 b. 384, f. 221 b. 384, f. 222 b. 384, f. 223 b. 384, f. 224 b. 384, f. 225 	Castle, Frank E.Catlin, George L.Chambers, Robert A.Chandlers, WoodsChapin, Charles H. B. See also: box 315, folder 2023-2029Chapman, Daisy Rogers	1923 1896 1951 1928,1932 1943-1945 1933,1944,1949
 b. 384, f. 220 b. 384, f. 221 b. 384, f. 222 b. 384, f. 223 b. 384, f. 224 b. 384, f. 225 b. 384, f. 226 	Castle, Frank E.Catlin, George L.Chambers, Robert A.Chandlers, WoodsChapin, Charles H. B. See also: box 315, folder 2023-2029Chapman, Daisy RogersChase, Frederick L.	1923 1896 1951 1928,1932 1943-1945 1933,1944,1949 1928,1934
 b. 384, f. 220 b. 384, f. 221 b. 384, f. 222 b. 384, f. 223 b. 384, f. 224 b. 384, f. 225 b. 384, f. 225 b. 384, f. 226 b. 384, f. 227 	Castle, Frank E.Catlin, George L.Chambers, Robert A.Chandlers, WoodsChapin, Charles H. B. See also: box 315, folder 2023-2029Chapman, Daisy RogersChase, Frederick L.Chase, Irving Hall	1923 1896 1951 1928,1932 1943-1945 1933,1944,1949 1928,1934
 b. 384, f. 220 b. 384, f. 221 b. 384, f. 222 b. 384, f. 223 b. 384, f. 224 b. 384, f. 225 b. 384, f. 225 b. 384, f. 226 b. 384, f. 227 b. 384, f. 228 	Castle, Frank E.Catlin, George L.Chambers, Robert A.Chandlers, WoodsChapin, Charles H. B. See also: box 315, folder 2023-2029Chapman, Daisy RogersChase, Frederick L.Chase, Irving HallCherry, Alfred F.	1923 1896 1951 1928,1932 1943-1945 1943-1945 1928,1934 1948 1945,1947
 b. 384, f. 220 b. 384, f. 221 b. 384, f. 222 b. 384, f. 223 b. 384, f. 224 b. 384, f. 225 b. 384, f. 225 b. 384, f. 226 b. 384, f. 227 b. 384, f. 228 b. 384, f. 229 	Castle, Frank E. Catlin, George L. Chambers, Robert A. Chandlers, Woods Chapin, Charles H. B. See also: box 315, folder 2023-2029 Chapman, Daisy Rogers Chase, Frederick L. Chase, Irving Hall Cherry, Alfred F.	1923 1896 1951 1928,1932 1943-1945 1943-1945 1933,1944,1949 1928,1934 1948 1945,1947

b. 384, f. 233	Churchill, Lawrence W. See also: <u>box 315, folder 2023-2029</u>	1936
b. 384, f. 234	Clark, Alfred T.	1954
b. 384, f. 235	Clark, Charles W.	1906
b. 384, f. 236	Clark, Frank E.	1926, 1935
b. 384, f. 237	Clark, George C.	1944
b. 384, f. 238	Clark, John P.	1931-1932
b. 384, f. 239	Clark, Noyes D.	1937-1938
b. 385, f. 240	Clark, Sheldon	1840-1841
b. 385, f. 241	Clark, Sheldon: executor'saccounts	1840-1841
b. 385, f. 242	Clark, Sheldon: records of land holdings, mortgages, rent, and interest income	Circa 1806-1838
b. 385, f. 243	Clark, Sheldon: records of Thomas Clark's estate; records of Sherman Clark's estate	1767, 1806-1813, 1822
b. 385, f. 244	Clark, Sheldon: records of Thomas Clark's land holdings	1760-1811
b. 385, f. 245	Clark, Sheldon: correspondence	1808-1837
b. 385, f. 246	Clark, Sheldon: other personal papers	1810-1840
D. 365, I. 240	Clark, Sheldon. Other personal papers	1010-1040
b. 385, f. 247	Clark, Stephen C. A copy of this material is available in digital form from Manuscripts and Archives. Contact Manuscripts and Archives at <u>beinecke.library@yale.edu</u> to request access to the digital copy.	1960
	Clark, Stephen C. A copy of this material is available in digital form from Manuscripts and Archives. Contact Manuscripts and Archives at <u>beinecke.library@yale.edu</u> to	
b. 385, f. 247	Clark, Stephen C. A copy of this material is available in digital form from Manuscripts and Archives. Contact Manuscripts and Archives at <u>beinecke.library@yale.edu</u> to request access to the digital copy.	1960
b. 385, f. 247 b. 385, f. 248	Clark, Stephen C. A copy of this material is available in digital form from Manuscripts and Archives. Contact Manuscripts and Archives at <u>beinecke.library@yale.edu</u> to request access to the digital copy. Clark, Susan C.	1960 1895
b. 385, f. 247 b. 385, f. 248 b. 385, f. 249	Clark, Stephen C. A copy of this material is available in digital form from Manuscripts and Archives. Contact Manuscripts and Archives at <u>beinecke.library@yale.edu</u> to request access to the digital copy. Clark, Susan C. Clark, Thomas Benedict	1960 1895 1931
b. 385, f. 247 b. 385, f. 248 b. 385, f. 249 b. 385, f. 250	Clark, Stephen C. A copy of this material is available in digital form from Manuscripts and Archives. Contact Manuscripts and Archives at <u>beinecke.library@yale.edu</u> to request access to the digital copy. Clark, Susan C. Clark, Thomas Benedict Clay, Elizabeth M.	1960 1895 1931 1936
b. 385, f. 247 b. 385, f. 248 b. 385, f. 249 b. 385, f. 250 b. 385, f. 251	Clark, Stephen C. A copy of this material is available in digital form from Manuscripts and Archives. Contact Manuscripts and Archives at <u>beinecke.library@yale.edu</u> to request access to the digital copy. Clark, Susan C. Clark, Thomas Benedict Clay, Elizabeth M. Clement, Norman P.	1960 1895 1931 1936 1949, 1951
b. 385, f. 247 b. 385, f. 248 b. 385, f. 249 b. 385, f. 250 b. 385, f. 251 b. 385, f. 252	Clark, Stephen C. A copy of this material is available in digital form from Manuscripts and Archives. Contact Manuscripts and Archives at <u>beinecke.library@yale.edu</u> to request access to the digital copy. Clark, Susan C. Clark, Thomas Benedict Clay, Elizabeth M. Clement, Norman P. Clemons, Charles Close, Francis H.	1960 1895 1931 1936 1949, 1951 1921, 1925
b. 385, f. 247 b. 385, f. 248 b. 385, f. 249 b. 385, f. 250 b. 385, f. 251 b. 385, f. 252 b. 385, f. 253	Clark, Stephen C. A copy of this material is available in digital form from Manuscripts and Archives. Contact Manuscripts and Archives at <u>beinecke.library@yale.edu</u> to request access to the digital copy. Clark, Susan C. Clark, Thomas Benedict Clay, Elizabeth M. Clement, Norman P. Clemons, Charles Close, Francis H. See also: <u>box 315, folder 2023-2029</u>	1960 1895 1931 1936 1949, 1951 1921, 1925 1922-1923
b. 385, f. 247 b. 385, f. 248 b. 385, f. 249 b. 385, f. 250 b. 385, f. 251 b. 385, f. 252 b. 385, f. 253 b. 385, f. 254	Clark, Stephen C. A copy of this material is available in digital form from Manuscripts and Archives. Contact Manuscripts and Archives at <u>beinecke.library@yale.edu</u> to request access to the digital copy. Clark, Susan C. Clark, Thomas Benedict Clay, Elizabeth M. Clement, Norman P. Clemons, Charles Close, Francis H. See also: <u>box 315, folder 2023-2029</u> Cobb, Edward B.	1960 1895 1931 1936 1949, 1951 1921, 1925 1922-1923 1938-1939

b. 386, f. 258	Cole, George W.	1928, 1932, 1934, 1936-1938, 1940
b. 386, f. 259	Colgate, Austen	1927, 1929
b. 386, f. 260	Colgate, Richard M.	1919
b. 386, f. 261	Collingwood, Cora L. S.	1931-1932
b. 386, f. 262	Collins, Helen G.	1960-1961
b. 386, f. 263	Collins, John B.	1910-1911
b. 386, f. 264	Colton, Emily W.	1887-1900
b. 386, f. 265	Connor, Brevard Mays	1952-1954
b. 386, f. 266	Coolidge, Elizabeth Sprague	1952
b. 386, f. 267	Cooke, Mary H.	1907
b. 386, f. 268	Corlies, Howard	1960
b. 386, f. 269	Corning, Granville See also: <u>box 315, folder 2023-2029</u>	1929-1930
b. 386, f. 270	Cornwall, Arthur B.	1932, 1938-1939
b. 386, f. 271	Cornwall, James H. See also: <u>box 315, folder 2023-2029</u>	1914
b. 386, f. 272	Crampton, Foster	1925-1926, 1928
b. 386, f. 273	Crane, Charles Kittredge	1932, 1952-1953
b. 386, f. 274	Grane, Z. Marshall	1935-1936
b. 387, f. 275-276	Cromwell, William Nelson	1948, 1962
b. 387 , f. 277	Cross, Wilbur Lucius	1944
b. 387, f. 278	Culver, Samuel	1880
b. 387, f. 279	Currier, Andrew F.	1930, 1937
b. 387, f. 280	Currier, Lura See also: <u>box 315, folder 2023-2029</u>	1902, 1908
b. 387, f. 281	Currier, Richard D.	1945
b. 387, f. 282	Curtis, Thomas H.	1909-1910
b. 387, f. 283	Cushing, Harvey Williams	1935, 1939, 1941
b. 387, f. 284	Cutler, Francis E. See also: <u>box 315, folder 2023-2029</u>	1892, 1912
b. 387, f. 285	Cuyler, Eleanor de Graff	1927, 1934

b. 387, f. 286	Daggett, Susan E.	1951
b. 387, f. 287	Dana, Edward S.	1919, 1935
b. 387, f. 288	Daniels, Ellen A.	1921, 1925
b. 387, f. 289	Danner, Edgar William	1951
b. 387, f. 290	Darling, Helen S.	1908
b. 387, f. 291	Darrow, George	1929-1930
b. 387, f. 292	Davenport, Amzi B.	1894
b. 387, f. 293	Davis, Benjamin W.	1904
b. 387, f. 294	Day, George E. See also: <u>box 311, folder 1972</u>	1896, 1909
b. 387, f. 295	Day, Olivia H. See also: <u>box 341, folder 2271</u>	1909-1910
b. 387, f. 296	Day, Sherman See also: <u>box 315, folder 2023-2029</u>	1938, 1945
b. 388, f. 297	Deming, Henry C.	1925, 1931, 1935
b. 388, f. 298	Deming, Richard H.	1943
b. 388, f. 299	Denison, Martha	1823
b. 388, f. 300-301	Depew, Chauncey M.	1928, 1945-1947
b. 388, f. 302	Depew, [Chauncey M?]: ledger of accounts of estate	1928-1930
b. 388, f. 303	Depew, Chauncey M., Jr.	1927, 1931-1933
b. 388, f. 304	Depew, Ganson See also: <u>box 315, folder 2023-2029</u>	1933-1937
b. 388, f. 305	Dewey, George Allen	1958
b. 388, f. 306	Dexter, Stanley W. See also: <u>box 315, folder 2023-2029</u>	1916
b. 389, f. 307	Dickins, Theodosia T.	1860
b. 389, f. 308	Dickinson, James T. & Sarah L. See also: <u>box 316, folders 2030-2036</u>	1881-1913
b. 389, f. 309	Dickinson, William Chester	1945, 1955-1956
	Dickinson, william chester	
b. 389, f. 310	Dickson, Frederick B.	1925

b. 389, f. 313-314	Dimock, Henry F. & Susan W.	1911-1918, 1934-1935, 1939-1941
b. 389, f. 315	Dinsmore, Charles A.	1939, 1941
b. 389, f. 316	Ditson, Charles H.	1904, 1929
b. 389, f. 317	Doolittle, Laura Seymour	1953
b. 389, f. 318	Doriman, Andriana Rapalje	1941, 1943
b. 389, f. 319	Douglas, Henry Beamen	1933, 1947
b. 389, f. 320	Dreicer, Mary	1955
b. 389, f. 321	Drew, Julia N.	1951
b. 389, f. 322	Dudley, Caroline E.	1934-1935
b. 389, f. 323	Dudley, Lucy B. See also: <u>box 316, folders 2030-2036</u>	1917, 1921-1926
b. 389, f. 324	Dudley, Plimmon H. See also: <u>box 316, folders 2030-2036</u>	1924-1926
b. 389, f. 325	Durant, Harry R.	1956-1959
b. 389, f. 326	Dutton, Samuel T. See also: <u>box 316, folders 2030-2036</u>	1914
b. 390 , f. 327	Eagny, James T. See also: <u>box 316, folders 2030-2036</u>	1930
b. 390 , f. 328	Edwards, Amy R. See also: <u>box 316, folders 2030-2036</u>	1925, 1931
b. 390, f. 329	Edwards, Eugene P.	1938
b. 390, f. 330	Eells, Edward	1781
b. 390 , f. 331	Egleston, William C. See also: <u>box 310, folder 1954 box 316, folders 2030-2036</u>	1907-1908
b. 390 , f. 332	Ehrich, Walter L. See also: <u>box 316, folders 2030-2036</u>	1932, 1936
b. 390 , f. 333-335	Eichelberger, M. S.	1888, 1893-1898
b. 390, f. 336	Elder, Samuel J. See also: <u>box 316, folders 2030-2036</u>	1913
b. 390 , f. 337	Eldridge, Ellen Battell	1889
b. 390 , f. 338	Eldridge, Mary	1924, 1926

b. 390, f. 339	Eliason, Eldridge L.	1949-1961
b. 390, f. 340	Eliot, George E.	1944
b. 390 , f. 341	Eliot, Harvey	undated
b. 390 , f. 342	Ellery, John	undated
b. 390 , f. 343	Elliott, John	1825
b. 390, f. 344	Ellsworth, Henry L.	1859-1860
b. 390, f. 345	Ellsworth, Henry L.: executor's correspondence	1859-1860, 1864
b. 390 , f. 346	Ellsworth, Henry L.: papers and memoranda of E. C. Herrick relating to Ellsworth land holdings	Circa 1858-1860
b. 390, f. 347	Ellsworth, Henry L.: accounts of estate	1860″s-1880″s
b. 391, f. 348	Ellsworth, Henry L.: miscellaneous papers pertaining to the estate	Circa 1837-1876
b. 391 , f. 349	Ellsworth, Henry L.: papers pertaining to settlements	1916, 1941
b. 391, f. 350	Elsing, Emma M. Bennett	1950
b. 391, f. 351	Ely, Richard S.	1898
b. 391, f. 352	Ely, William B.	1940, 1943
b. 391, f. 353	Enders, Thomas B.	1940, 1943
b. 391, f. 354	Eno, William P.	1945
b. 391 , f. 355	Ernst, Martin F.	1953
b. 391, f. 356	Estee, Orville D.	1953
b. 391 , f. 357	Esty, Charles A.	1954
b. 391 , f. 358	Evans, Elizabeth	1927, 1931-1936
b. 391 , f. 359	Evans, Margaretta	1930-1938
b. 391 , f. 360	Failing, John C. See also: <u>box 316, folders 2030-2036</u>	1948
b. 391 , f. 361	Fairchild, Mary T.	1927
b. 391 , f. 362	Faris, Sarah Day	1952, 1955
b. 391, f. 363	Farnam, Alice	1934, 1939
b. 391 , f. 364	Farnam, Ann S.	1904
b. 391 , f. 365	Farnam, Caroline B.	1931, 1943
b. 391 , f. 366	Farnam, Charles H.	1942-1945
b. 391, f. 367	Farnam, Henry (d. 1883)	1882, 1913, 1934

b. 391, f. 369 Farnam, Henry W. 1933 b. 391, f. 370-371 Fayerweather, Daniel B. See also: box 300, folder 1849 1891-19 b. 392, f. 372 Fayerweather, Daniel B. 1891-19 b. 392, f. 373 Fellowes, Richard S. 1885 b. 392, f. 374 Ferguson, Arthur B. 1941 b. 392, f. 375 Ferry, Louis S. 1951	
See also: box 300, folder 1849 b. 392, f. 372 Fayerweather, Daniel B. 1891-19 b. 392, f. 373 Fellowes, Richard S. 1885 b. 392, f. 374 Ferguson, Arthur B. 1941	
b. 392, f. 372 Fayerweather, Daniel B. 1891-19 b. 392, f. 373 Fellowes, Richard S. 1885 b. 392, f. 374 Ferguson, Arthur B. 1941	906
b. 392, f. 373 Fellowes, Richard S. 1885 b. 392, f. 374 Ferguson, Arthur B. 1941	906
b. 392, f. 374 Ferguson, Arthur B. 1941	
b. 392, f. 375 Ferry, Louis S. 1951	
b. 392, f. 376 Field, Emilia R. 1951	
b. 392, f. 377 Fields, Seward H. 1917, 19 1937	929, 1931,
b. 392, f. 378 Finley, Joseph W. 1863	
b. 392, f. 379 Fisher, Irving 1946, 19	952
b. 392, f. 380 Fiske, Sarah J. 1909, 19 See also: box 316, folders 2030-2036	914
b. 392, f. 381 Fitch, Emily 1890, 18	894
b. 392, f. 382 Fitch, Grant 1937, 19) 41
b. 392, f. 383 Fitch, Lucius W. 1908 See also: <u>box 316, folders 2030-2036</u>	
b. 392, f. 384 Floyd-Jones, Edith C. 1952	
b. 392, f. 385 Floyd-Jones, Edward H. 1929-19	930
b. 392, f. 386 Fogg, Elizabeth 1891, 18	395
b. 392, f. 387 Foote, Harry Ward 1873	
b. 392, f. 388 Ford, David K. 1918 See also: <u>box 316, folders 2030-2036</u>	
b. 392, f. 389 Ford, John 1804, 1	879
b. 392, f. 390 Foster, Lafayette S. 1882, 19	902-1903
b. 392, f. 391 Foster, Roger 1924, 19	738
b. 392, f. 392 Fowler, George S. 1961	
b. 392, f. 393 Fox, Howard 1954	
b. 392, f. 394 Fraden, Harlow J. 1960	

b. 392, f. 395	French, Roy Leon	1947
b. 392, f. 396	Friedman, Stanleigh P.	1959
b. 392, f. 397	Frost, Charles H.	1926
b. 392, f. 398	Fuller, Luther	1928, 1930
b. 392, f. 399	Fulton, John F.	1956, 1960
b. 393, f. 400	Gabriel, George	1872
b. 393, f. 401	Gager, Leslie T.	1958
b. 393, f. 402	Galacar, Frederic	1927
b. 393, f. 403	Gallup, David	1875
b. 393, f. 404	Gardner, Robert A.	1950
b. 393, f. 405	Garver, John A.	1935-1936
b. 393, f. 406	Garvin, Albert H.	1951, 1956
b. 393, f. 407	Gay, Frederick	1950-1952
b. 393, f. 408	Gelberg, Abraham	1953
b. 393 , f. 409	Gilbert, Edward H.	1921
b. 393, f. 410	Gillet, Helen V. C. & Lorenzo See also: <u>box 316, folders 2030-2036</u>	1916-1957
b. 393 , f. 411	Gilmore, James	1898
b. 393, f. 412	Godfrey, Anne H.	1939-1940
b. 393 , f. 413	Godfrey, William B.	1928, 1932-1939
b. 393, f. 414	Goetchius, Henry K.	1927
b. 393, f. 415	Good, John E.	1931
b. 393 , f. 416	Good, Rosalia M. See also: <u>box 316, folders 2030-2036</u>	1935-1936
b. 393, f. 417-418	Goodman, Mary Ann	1854-1872, 1916
b. 393 , f. 419	Goodrich, Chauncey S.	1930, 1940
b. 393 , f. 420	Gordon, Edith Miller	1953
b. 394, f. 421	Grace, Walter J.	1953
b. 394, f. 422	Graham, E. Norma P.	1958
b. 394, f. 423	Gray, Neil	1959
b. 394 , f. 42 4	Green, Irwin R.	1953

b. 394, f. 425	Griffin, William V. See also: <u>box 316, folders 2030-2036</u>	1957-1958
b. 394 , f. 426	Griggs, George B.	1906, 1909-1936
b. 394, f. 427	Griggs, Maitland F.	1943
b. 394, f. 428	Grinnell, George Bird	1932, 1938
b. 394 , f. 429	Grinnell, Morton See also: <u>box 316, folders 2030-2036</u>	1899, 1906-1909, 1932
b. 394 , f. 430	Grinnell, William M. See also: <u>box 316, folders 2030-2036</u>	1919, 1921
b. 394, f. 431	Gross, Charles Welles	1955
b. 394, f. 432	Guernsey, Raymond G.	1959
b. 394 , f. 433	Hackney, Louise Wallace	1942, 1945
b. 394, f. 434	Hagar, Starsbury	1941, 1943
b. 394 , f. 435	Hall, Frank L.	1922
b. 394 , f. 436	Halleck, Annie A.	1945
b. 394 , f. 437	Hallgarten, Julius See also: <u>box 316, folders 2030-2036</u>	1891-1898
b. 394 , f. 438	Hammond, John Henry	1941, 1949-1950
b. 394 , f. 439	Hanna, Leonard C.	1957
b. 394 , f. 440	Hare, Charles Cyrus	1947
b. 395 , f. 441	Harkness, Anna M.	1926
b. 395 , f. 442	Harkness, Charles W. See also: <u>box 316, folders 2030-2036</u>	1916
b. 395 , f. 443-447	Harkness, Edward S.	1938, 1940-1951
b. 396, f. 448-450	Harkness, Edward S.	1938, 1940-1951
b. 396, f. 451	Harkness, Mary Warden See also: <u>box 316, folders 2030-2036</u>	1917
b. 396 , f. 452	Harmstad, Clarence C.	1931-1940
b. 396 , f. 453	Harper, Mabel Herbert	1955, 1958
b. 396 , f. 45 4	Harriot, Mary A. See also: <u>box 317, folders 2037-2042</u>	1912
b. 396 , f. 455	Harrison, Sarah	1904

b. 396 , f. 456	Hart, Horace S.	1930-1945
b. 396 , f. 457	Hart, Theodore Stuart	1950-1956
b. 396 , f. 458	Hasbrouck, Louis B.	1943
b. 396 , f. 459	Hawes, Joel	1867
b. 396 , f. 460	Hawley, Mary E.	1930-1931, 1942
b. 397, f. 461	Hay, Jane Burt	1946, 1948
b. 397 , f. 46 2	Hayes, Alice W., Caroline D., David A., Howard W.	1897, 1903, 1910
b. 397, f. 463	Hazard, Nathanial	1937
b. 397 , f. 46 4	Hedden, Edward	1932, 1938-1942
b. 397 , f. 465	Hellstrom, C. Ivar	1958
b. 397 , f. 466	Hemingway, Arthur F.	1930
b. 397, f. 467	Hendee, Nellie E.	1948-1949
b. 397 , f. 46 8	Henderson, John Phillips	1939-1940
b. 397 , f. 469	Henderson, Lucia W.	1922
b. 397 , f. 470	Henderson, William O.	1934
b. 397, f. 471	Henry, James P.	1948
b. 397, f. 471	Henry, James P. Herrick, Edward C. See: <u>box 391, folder 349</u>	1948
b. 397, f. 471 b. 397, f. 472	Herrick, Edward C.	1948 1908-1909, 1911, 1915
	Herrick, Edward C. See: box 391, folder 349 Hewitt, Frederick C.	1908-1909, 1911,
b. 397, f. 472	Herrick, Edward C. See: box 391, folder 349 Hewitt, Frederick C. See also: box 317, folders 2037-2042	1908-1909, 1911, 1915
b. 397, f. 472 b. 397, f. 473	Herrick, Edward C. See: box 391, folder 349 Hewitt, Frederick C. See also: box 317, folders 2037-2042 Hicks, Frederick C.	1908-1909, 1911, 1915 1956
b. 397, f. 472 b. 397, f. 473 b. 397, f. 474	Herrick, Edward C. See: box 391, folder 349 Hewitt, Frederick C. See also: box 317, folders 2037-2042 Hicks, Frederick C. Hidden, Edward	1908-1909, 1911, 1915 1956 1932, 1938
b. 397, f. 472 b. 397, f. 473 b. 397, f. 474 b. 397, f. 475	Herrick, Edward C. See: box 391, folder 349 Hewitt, Frederick C. See also: box 317, folders 2037-2042 Hicks, Frederick C. Hidden, Edward Higbee, Harry Higbie, Hamilton A.	1908-1909, 1911, 1915 1956 1932, 1938 1924, 1929 1915, 1934,
b. 397, f. 472 b. 397, f. 473 b. 397, f. 474 b. 397, f. 475 b. 397, f. 476	Herrick, Edward C. See: box 391, folder 349 Hewitt, Frederick C. See also: box 317, folders 2037-2042 Hicks, Frederick C. Hidden, Edward Higbee, Harry Higbie, Hamilton A. See also: box 317, folders 2037-2042	1908-1909, 1911, 1915 1956 1932, 1938 1924, 1929 1915, 1934, 1941-1942
b. 397, f. 472 b. 397, f. 473 b. 397, f. 474 b. 397, f. 475 b. 397, f. 476 b. 397, f. 477	Herrick, Edward C. See: box 391, folder 349 Hewitt, Frederick C. See also: box 317, folders 2037-2042 Hicks, Frederick C. Hidden, Edward Higbee, Harry Higbie, Hamilton A. See also: box 317, folders 2037-2042 Hill, Marguerite S.	1908-1909, 1911, 1915 1956 1932, 1938 1924, 1929 1915, 1934, 1941-1942 1939, 1942
b. 397, f. 472 b. 397, f. 473 b. 397, f. 474 b. 397, f. 475 b. 397, f. 476 b. 397, f. 477 b. 397, f. 478	Herrick, Edward C. See: box 391, folder 349 Hewitt, Frederick C. See also: box 317, folders 2037-2042 Hicks, Frederick C. Hidden, Edward Higbee, Harry Higbie, Hamilton A. See also: box 317, folders 2037-2042 Hill, Marguerite S. Hill, Raymond Thompson	1908-1909, 1911, 1915 1956 1932, 1938 1924, 1929 1915, 1934, 1941-1942 1939, 1942 1952, 1956
b. 397, f. 472 b. 397, f. 473 b. 397, f. 474 b. 397, f. 475 b. 397, f. 476 b. 397, f. 477 b. 397, f. 478 b. 397, f. 479	Herrick, Edward C. See: box 391, folder 349 Hewitt, Frederick C. See also: box 317, folders 2037-2042 Hicks, Frederick C. Hidden, Edward Higbee, Harry Higbie, Hamilton A. See also: box 317, folders 2037-2042 Hill, Marguerite S. Hill, Raymond Thompson Hillhouse, Hildegarde	1908-1909, 1911, 1915 1956 1932, 1938 1924, 1929 1915, 1934, 1941-1942 1939, 1942 1952, 1956 1942
b. 397, f. 472 b. 397, f. 473 b. 397, f. 473 b. 397, f. 474 b. 397, f. 475 b. 397, f. 476 b. 397, f. 477 b. 397, f. 478 b. 397, f. 479 b. 397, f. 480	Herrick, Edward C.See: box 391, folder 349Hewitt, Frederick C.See also: box 317, folders 2037-2042Hicks, Frederick C.Hidden, EdwardHigbee, HarryHigbie, Hamilton A.See also: box 317, folders 2037-2042Hill, Marguerite S.Hill, Raymond ThompsonHillhouse, HildegardeHillyer, Charlotte J.	1908-1909, 1911, 1915 1956 1932, 1938 1924, 1929 1915, 1934, 1941-1942 1939, 1942 1952, 1956 1942 1924

b. 397, f. 483	Hobron, Albert	1890, 1902
b. 397 , f. 48 4	Holbrook, Anna Laura	1938-1940
b. 397 , f. 485	Holbrook, Richard T.	1934
b. 397 , f. 486	Holden, Louis H.	1945
b. 397 , f. 487	Holley, Alexander H.	1887, 1889
b. 397 , f. 488	Holmes, Edmund W. See also: <u>box 317, folders 2037-2042</u>	1904-1915
b. 397 , f. 489	Homes, Henry F.	1929, 1931
b. 398, f. 490	Hoober, Sarah A. K.	1951
b. 398, f. 491	Hooker, Thomas	1924-1925
b. 398 , f. 492	Hoole, Celia Dame	1920-1921, 1935
b. 398, f. 493	Hoppin, James M.	1907
b. 398 , f. 49 4	Hopson, William F.	1934, 1938
b. 398, f. 495	Hord, John H.	1949
b. 398, f. 496	Hotchkiss, Edward S.	1942, 1944-1947
b. 398, f. 497	Hotchkiss, Justus S.	1915-1920
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	See also: box 317, folders 2037-2042	
b. 398, f. 498		undated
	See also: <u>box 317, folders 2037-2042</u>	undated 1933, 1938
b. 398, f. 498	See also: box 317, folders 2037-2042 Hotchkiss, Lucius Hotchkiss, Marie Oakes	
b. 398, f. 498 b. 398, f. 499	See also: box 317, folders 2037-2042 Hotchkiss, Lucius Hotchkiss, Marie Oakes See also: box 317, folders 2037-2042	1933, 1938
b. 398, f. 498 b. 398, f. 499 b. 398, f. 500	See also: box 317, folders 2037-2042 Hotchkiss, Lucius Hotchkiss, Marie Oakes See also: box 317, folders 2037-2042 Hotchkiss, Mary A.F.	1933, 1938 1912-1915, 1938
b. 398, f. 498 b. 398, f. 499 b. 398, f. 500 b. 398, f. 501	See also: box 317, folders 2037-2042 Hotchkiss, Lucius Hotchkiss, Marie Oakes See also: box 317, folders 2037-2042 Hotchkiss, Mary A.F. Hotchkiss, Susannah	1933, 1938 1912-1915, 1938 1814
b. 398, f. 498 b. 398, f. 499 b. 398, f. 500 b. 398, f. 501 b. 398, f. 502	See also: box 317, folders 2037-2042Hotchkiss, LuciusHotchkiss, Marie Oakes See also: box 317, folders 2037-2042Hotchkiss, Mary A.F.Hotchkiss, SusannahHoupt, Wilbur E.	1933, 1938 1912-1915, 1938 1814 1935 1889, 1894, 1900,
b. 398, f. 498 b. 398, f. 499 b. 398, f. 500 b. 398, f. 501 b. 398, f. 502 b. 398, f. 503	See also: box 317, folders 2037-2042Hotchkiss, LuciusHotchkiss, Marie Oakes See also: box 317, folders 2037-2042Hotchkiss, Mary A.F.Hotchkiss, SusannahHoupt, Wilbur E.Howard, James T.	1933, 1938 1912-1915, 1938 1814 1935 1889, 1894, 1900, 1918
b. 398, f. 498 b. 398, f. 499 b. 398, f. 500 b. 398, f. 501 b. 398, f. 502 b. 398, f. 503 b. 398, f. 504	See also: box 317, folders 2037-2042Hotchkiss, LuciusHotchkiss, Marie Oakes See also: box 317, folders 2037-2042Hotchkiss, Mary A.F.Hotchkiss, SusannahHoupt, Wilbur E.Howard, James T.Howell, Phoebe G.Howe, Elmer P.	1933, 1938 1912-1915, 1938 1814 1935 1889, 1894, 1900, 1918 1923, 1930
 b. 398, f. 498 b. 398, f. 499 b. 398, f. 500 b. 398, f. 501 b. 398, f. 502 b. 398, f. 503 b. 398, f. 504 b. 398, f. 505 	See also: box 317, folders 2037-2042Hotchkiss, LuciusHotchkiss, Marie Oakes See also: box 317, folders 2037-2042Hotchkiss, Mary A.F.Hotchkiss, SusannahHoupt, Wilbur E.Howard, James T.Howell, Phoebe G.Howe, Elmer P. See also: box 317, folders 2037-2042	1933, 1938 1912-1915, 1938 1814 1935 1889, 1894, 1900, 1918 1923, 1930 1918-1924
 b. 398, f. 498 b. 398, f. 499 b. 398, f. 500 b. 398, f. 501 b. 398, f. 502 b. 398, f. 503 b. 398, f. 504 b. 398, f. 505 b. 398, f. 506 	See also: box 317, folders 2037-2042Hotchkiss, LuciusHotchkiss, Marie Oakes See also: box 317, folders 2037-2042Hotchkiss, Mary A.F.Hotchkiss, SusannahHoupt, Wilbur E.Howard, James T.Howell, Phoebe G.Howe, Elmer P. See also: box 317, folders 2037-2042Howey, Ennes G.	1933, 1938 1912-1915, 1938 1814 1935 1889, 1894, 1900, 1918 1923, 1930 1918-1924 1924, 1940-1945
 b. 398, f. 498 b. 398, f. 499 b. 398, f. 500 b. 398, f. 501 b. 398, f. 502 b. 398, f. 503 b. 398, f. 504 b. 398, f. 505 b. 398, f. 506 b. 398, f. 507 	See also: box 317, folders 2037-2042Hotchkiss, LuciusHotchkiss, Marie Oakes See also: box 317, folders 2037-2042Hotchkiss, Mary A.F.Hotchkiss, SusannahHoupt, Wilbur E.Howard, James T.Howell, Phoebe G.Howe, Elmer P. See also: box 317, folders 2037-2042Howey, Ennes G.Hubbard, Henrietta W.	1933, 1938 1912-1915, 1938 1814 1935 1889, 1894, 1900, 1918 1923, 1930 1918-1924 1924, 1940-1945 1924

b. 398, f. 510	Hunt, Helen Jewet	1942, 1947-1948
b. 398, f. 511	Hunt, Mary C.	1893, 1896
b. 398, f. 512	Hunter, Dwight W.	1922, 1925-1926, 1938-1939
b. 399, f. 513	Hurlbut, Margaret Crane	1933
b. 399 , f. 51 4	Hurst, George Sinclair	1947, 1952
b. 399 , f. 515	Hutchins, Sadie Crane	1931, 1935
b. 399, f. 516	Hutchinson, James A.	1945
b. 399 , f. 517	Hyde, Arthur May	1956
b. 399, f. 518	Ide, Carrie Hester	1933-1934
b. 399, f. 519	Ingersoll, Katherine Barber	1952
b. 399, f. 520	Ives, Bessie W.	1923
b. 399 , f. 521	lves, Brayton See also: <u>box 317, folders 2037-2042</u>	1914-1915
b. 399 , f. 522	Ives, C. L.	[ca. 1888]
b. 399, f. 523	Ives, Mary E.	[ca. 1908]
	See also: <u>box 317, folders 2037-2042</u>	
b. 399, f. 524	-	1955
	See also: box 317, folders 2037-2042	1955 1906
b. 399, f. 524	See also: box 317, folders 2037-2042 Ives, Raymond	
b. 399, f. 524 b. 399, f. 525	See also: box 317, folders 2037-2042 Ives, Raymond Ives, Robert S. Jackson, Isaac M.	1906
b. 399, f. 524 b. 399, f. 525 b. 399, f. 526	See also: box 317, folders 2037-2042 Ives, Raymond Ives, Robert S. Jackson, Isaac M. See also: box 317, folders 2037-2042	1906 1912
b. 399, f. 524 b. 399, f. 525 b. 399, f. 526 b. 399, f. 527	See also: box 317, folders 2037-2042Ives, RaymondIves, Robert S.Jackson, Isaac M.See also: box 317, folders 2037-2042Jackson, Schuyler B.	1906 1912 1961
b. 399, f. 524 b. 399, f. 525 b. 399, f. 526 b. 399, f. 527 b. 399, f. 528	See also: box 317, folders 2037-2042Ives, RaymondIves, Robert S.Jackson, Isaac M.See also: box 317, folders 2037-2042Jackson, Schuyler B.Jaffray, Robert	1906 1912 1961 1926, 1930
b. 399, f. 524 b. 399, f. 525 b. 399, f. 526 b. 399, f. 527 b. 399, f. 528 b. 399, f. 529	See also: box 317, folders 2037-2042Ives, RaymondIves, Robert S.Jackson, Isaac M.See also: box 317, folders 2037-2042Jackson, Schuyler B.Jaffray, RobertJames, Daniel W.	1906 1912 1961 1926, 1930 1903
b. 399, f. 524 b. 399, f. 525 b. 399, f. 526 b. 399, f. 527 b. 399, f. 528 b. 399, f. 529 b. 399, f. 530	See also: box 317, folders 2037-2042 Ives, Raymond Ives, Robert S. Jackson, Isaac M. See also: box 317, folders 2037-2042 Jackson, Schuyler B. Jaffray, Robert James, Daniel W. Janes, Emma L. K.	1906 1912 1961 1926, 1930 1903 1924, 1926
b. 399, f. 524 b. 399, f. 525 b. 399, f. 526 b. 399, f. 527 b. 399, f. 528 b. 399, f. 529 b. 399, f. 530 b. 399, f. 531	See also: box 317, folders 2037-2042Ives, RaymondIves, Robert S.Jackson, Isaac M.See also: box 317, folders 2037-2042Jackson, Schuyler B.Jaffray, RobertJames, Daniel W.Janes, Emma L. K.Jarman, Catherine W.	1906 1912 1961 1926, 1930 1903 1924, 1926 1887, 1898
b. 399, f. 524 b. 399, f. 525 b. 399, f. 526 b. 399, f. 527 b. 399, f. 528 b. 399, f. 529 b. 399, f. 530 b. 399, f. 531 b. 399, f. 532	See also: box 317, folders 2037-2042 Ives, Raymond Ives, Robert S. Jackson, Isaac M. See also: box 317, folders 2037-2042 Jackson, Schuyler B. Jaffray, Robert James, Daniel W. Janes, Emma L. K. Jarman, Catherine W.	1906 1912 1961 1926, 1930 1903 1924, 1926 1887, 1898 1957-1958
b. 399, f. 524 b. 399, f. 525 b. 399, f. 526 b. 399, f. 527 b. 399, f. 528 b. 399, f. 529 b. 399, f. 530 b. 399, f. 531 b. 399, f. 531 b. 399, f. 532 b. 399, f. 533	See also: box 317, folders 2037-2042Ives, RaymondIves, Robert S.Jackson, Isaac M.See also: box 317, folders 2037-2042Jackson, Schuyler B.Jaffray, RobertJames, Daniel W.Janes, Emma L. K.Jarman, Catherine W.Jenkins, HopkinJennings, Alice L.	1906 1912 1961 1926, 1930 1903 1924, 1926 1887, 1898 1957-1958 1953
b. 399, f. 524 b. 399, f. 525 b. 399, f. 526 b. 399, f. 527 b. 399, f. 528 b. 399, f. 529 b. 399, f. 530 b. 399, f. 531 b. 399, f. 531 b. 399, f. 533 b. 399, f. 533	See also: box 317, folders 2037-2042 Ives, Raymond Ives, Robert S. Jackson, Isaac M. See also: box 317, folders 2037-2042 Jackson, Schuyler B. Jaffray, Robert James, Daniel W. James, Emma L. K. Jarman, Catherine W. Jenkins, Hopkin Jennings, Alice L. Jesup, Maria Dewitt	1906 1912 1961 1926, 1930 1903 1924, 1926 1887, 1898 1957-1958 1953 1914, 1916

b. 399 , f. 537	Jones, Edward A.	1928, 1938, 1944
b. 399 , f. 538	Jones, Elbert P.	1855, 1867-1869
b. 399 , f. 539	Jones, Frank H.	1929, 1931, 1940
b. 399 , f. 540	Jones, Isabel A.	1944
b. 399 , f. 541	Judson, Isaac Nichols	1926
b. 399, f. 542	Judson, Robert M. See also: <u>box 317, folders 2037-2042</u>	1922-1925
b. 400, f. 543	Keeler, Susanna Massey and Walter Bradley	1930, 1932-1936
b. 400, f. 544	Keese, Mary M.	1889
b. 400, f. 545	Kelley, Edith S.	1949-1952
b. 400, f. 546	Kellogg, Ellen P.	1916, 1919
b. 400, f. 547	Kellogg, Louise W. B. See also: <u>box 318, folders 2043-2047</u>	1910-1921
b. 400, f. 548	Kelsey, Clarence H.	1928, 1930-1931
b. 400, f. 549	Kennedy, John Stewart See also: <u>box 319, folders 2048-2052</u>	1909
b. 400, f. 550	Kent, Albert E. See also: <u>box 319, folders 2048-2052</u>	1887, 1901, 1919
b. 400, f. 550 b. 400, f. 551		1887, 1901, 1919 1933
	See also: <u>box 319, folders 2048-2052</u>	
b. 400, f. 551	See also: <u>box 319, folders 2048-2052</u> Kent, Thomas G.	1933
b. 400, f. 551 b. 400, f. 552	See also: box 319, folders 2048-2052 Kent, Thomas G. Kenyon, Job	1933 1845, 1890
b. 400, f. 551 b. 400, f. 552 b. 400, f. 553	See also: box 319, folders 2048-2052Kent, Thomas G.Kenyon, JobKingman, Azubah G.	1933 1845, 1890 1903
b. 400, f. 551 b. 400, f. 552 b. 400, f. 553 b. 400, f. 554	See also: box 319, folders 2048-2052Kent, Thomas G.Kenyon, JobKingman, Azubah G.Kingsley, Henry C.	1933 1845, 1890 1903 1903
b. 400, f. 551 b. 400, f. 552 b. 400, f. 553 b. 400, f. 554 b. 400, f. 555	See also: box 319, folders 2048-2052Kent, Thomas G.Kenyon, JobKingman, Azubah G.Kingsley, Henry C.Kleeberg, Felix	1933 1845,1890 1903 1903 1949
b. 400, f. 551 b. 400, f. 552 b. 400, f. 553 b. 400, f. 554 b. 400, f. 555 b. 400, f. 556	See also: box 319, folders 2048-2052Kent, Thomas G.Kenyon, JobKingman, Azubah G.Kingsley, Henry C.Kleeberg, FelixKnight, Francis M.	1933 1845,1890 1903 1903 1949 1956
b. 400, f. 551 b. 400, f. 552 b. 400, f. 553 b. 400, f. 554 b. 400, f. 555 b. 400, f. 556 b. 400, f. 557	See also: box 319, folders 2048-2052Kent, Thomas G.Kenyon, JobKingman, Azubah G.Kingsley, Henry C.Kleeberg, FelixKnight, Francis M.Knight, H. Stanley	1933 1845,1890 1903 1903 1949 1956 1946-1947
b. 400, f. 551 b. 400, f. 552 b. 400, f. 553 b. 400, f. 554 b. 400, f. 555 b. 400, f. 556 b. 400, f. 557 b. 400, f. 558	See also: box 319, folders 2048-2052 Kent, Thomas G. Kenyon, Job Kingman, Azubah G. Kingsley, Henry C. Kleeberg, Felix Knight, Francis M. Knight, H. Stanley	1933 1845,1890 1903 1903 1949 1956 1946-1947 Circa 1877,1881
b. 400, f. 551 b. 400, f. 552 b. 400, f. 553 b. 400, f. 554 b. 400, f. 555 b. 400, f. 556 b. 400, f. 557 b. 400, f. 558 b. 400, f. 559	See also: box 319, folders 2048-2052 Kent, Thomas G. Kenyon, Job Kingman, Azubah G. Kingsley, Henry C. Kleeberg, Felix Knight, Francis M. Knight, H. Stanley Knox, James	1933 1845,1890 1903 1903 1949 1956 1946-1947 Circa 1877,1881 1915
b. 400, f. 551 b. 400, f. 552 b. 400, f. 553 b. 400, f. 554 b. 400, f. 555 b. 400, f. 556 b. 400, f. 557 b. 400, f. 558 b. 400, f. 559 b. 400, f. 560	See also: box 319, folders 2048-2052Kent, Thomas G.Kenyon, JobKingman, Azubah G.Kingsley, Henry C.Kleeberg, FelixKnight, Francis M.Knight, H. StanleyKnox, JamesKnox, Seymour H.Kohut, George A.	1933 1845,1890 1903 1903 1949 1956 1946-1947 Circa 1877,1881 1915 1933-1934

b. 400, f. 564	Lamb, Annie K.	1943
b. 400, f. 565	Lamb, Benjamin B. See also: <u>box 319, folders 2048-2052</u>	1916-1921
b. 400 , f. 566	Lambert, Samuel	Circa 1717-1746
b. 400, f. 567	Lampson, Leonard B.	1934, 1939-1941
b. 401, f. 568	Lampson, William: will See also: <u>box 261, folder 1524</u>	1891
b. 401, f. 569	Lampson, William: papers concerning Surrogates Court (probate)	1896-1897
b. 401, f. 570	Lampson, William: papers concerning the Court of Appeals	1899-1900
b. 401, f. 571	Lampson, William: papers concerning Supreme Court	1901-1904
b. 401, f. 572	Lampson, William: papers concerning court degree	1936
b. 401, f. 573	Lampson, William: executors" statements and papers	Circa 1897-1906
b. 401, f. 574	Lampson, William: deeds for land in Genesee County, New York by Yale from the estate	1901
b. 401, f. 575	Lampson, William: agents" rent accounts & statements	1901-1906
b. 402, f. 576	Lampson, William: agents" rent accounts & statements	1906-1912
b. 402, f. 577	Lampson, William: papers concerning Ingham University property, LeRoy, New York	1893-1905
b. 402, f. 578	Lampson, William: correspondence concerning the Michigan Lands	1900-1906
b. 402, f. 579	Lampson, William: papers concerning the Michigan lands	1906, undated
b. 403, f. 580	Landers, Josephine Schramm	1959, 1962
b. 403, f. 581	Lane, James Warren	1927-1928
b. 403, f. 582	Lang, Henry R.	1932, 1934-1943
b. 403, f. 583	Langdon, Solomon	1829, 1835
b. 403, f. 584	Larned, Irene Battell	1861, 1877
b. 403, f. 585	Lasdon, William S.	1941, 1960
b. 403, f. 586	Lathrop, John E. See also: <u>box 319, folders 2048-2052</u>	1918, 1930
b. 403, f. 587	Lawton, Jeannie Lathrop	1927
b. 403, f. 588	Leavenworth, E. W.	1886
b. 403, f. 589	Lee, Lucy Foote	1946, 1960, 1962
b. 403, f. 590	Lee, Walter C.	1947

b. 403, f. 591	Leffingwell, William	1834-1853
b. 403, f. 592	Levy, Edward I.	1953
b. 403, f. 593	Lewis, Addin	1832, 1841-1851
b. 403, f. 594	Lewis, Sinclair	1948
b. 403 , f. 595	Lewisohn, Walter See also: <u>box 319, folders 2048-2052</u>	1921, 1938
b. 403, f. 596	Lines, Augustus E. See also: <u>box 319, folders 2048-2052</u>	Circa 1908
b. 403, f. 597	Linhart, George A.	1950
b. 403, f. 598	Linsly, Noah	Circa 1814
b. 403, f. 599	Lippke, Katharine G.	1934
b. 403, f. 600	Lockman, Frederic I.	1944, 1948, 1950
b. 403, f. 601	Lockwood, Julia	1897–1898, [1926]
b. 403, f. 602	Lockwood, William R.	1896
b. 403, f. 603	Long, Charles	1856, 1868
b. 404, f. 604	Loomis, Elias: will & memoranda	
b. 404, f. 605-607	Loomis, Elias: executor's correspondence: A-S ca	1889-1899
b. 404, f. 608	Loomis, Elias: executor's account books	Circa 1886-1890
b. 404, f. 609	Lorance, John	1949, 1954
b. 404, f. 610	Lord, Mary DeSilver	1924, 1926
b. 404, f. 611	Lovejoy, Allen P. See also: <u>box 319, folders 2048-2052</u>	1914, 1919
b. 404, f. 612	Lovejoy, Henry S.	1956
b. 404, f. 613	Lowe, John G.	1932, 1937-1939
b. 404, f. 614	Lutes, Edgar C.	1926, 1941-1947
b. 404, f. 615	Lyman, Chester W.	1921, 1926
b. 404, f. 616	Lyman, David B.	1941
b. 404, f. 617	Lyman, Samuel H.	1909-1914
b. 404, f. 618	Lynde, George S.	1904, 1914-1917
b. 405, f. 619	McBride, Donald	1938

b. 405, f. 620	McBride, Sarah Tod	1932-1933
b. 405, f. 621	McClellan, Edwin	1918
b. 405, f. 622	McClellan, Jessy T.	1918
b. 405, f. 623	McClung, Robert G. See also: <u>box 319, folders 2048-2052</u>	1928
b. 405, f. 624	McCormick, Vance C.	1946
b. 405, f. 625	McCrea, Willey S. See also: <u>box 319, folders 2048-2052</u>	1927
b. 405, f. 626	Macfarlane, Charles W. See also: <u>box 319, folders 2048-2052</u>	1927, 1931
b. 405, f. 627	McGraw, Robert S.	1960
b. 405, f. 628	Mack, Thomas	1897
b. 405, f. 629	McLanahan, George X. See also: <u>box 319, folders 2048-2052</u>	1920
b. 405 , f. 630	McLane, Adelaide L. See also: <u>box 319, folders 2048-2052</u>	1917
b. 405, f. 631	McLane, William L.	1900, 1907, 1933
b. 405, f. 632	McLaughlin, Mary B. See also: <u>box 319, folders 2048-2052</u>	1907, 1933
b. 405, f. 633	MacLeish, Martha H.	1943
b. 405, f. 634	McPherson, Edla J.: general balance sheets, inventories, and other papers from executor	1901, 1912-1916
b. 405, f. 635	McPherson, Edla J.: estate papers, general	Circa 1891-1919
b. 405 , f. 636	McPherson, Edla J.: papers concerning Florida real estate ca	1887-1914
b. 405, f. 637-638	McPherson, Edla J.: papers concerning New Jersey real estate See also: <u>box 319, folders 2048-2052</u>	Circa 1858-1913
b. 406, f. 639	McQuaid, William A.	1949
b. 406, f. 640	Macy, William A.	1854, 1859-1860
b. 406, f. 641	Maher, James S.	1941
b. 406, f. 642	Mallory, George W. See also: <u>box 320, folders 2053-2057</u>	1889
b. 406, f. 643	Malsin, Lane	1951
b. 406, f. 644	Manice, DeForest	1862, 1920, 1936

b. 406 , f. 645	Manners, J. Hartley See also: <u>box 320, folders 2053-2057</u>	undated
b. 406, f. 646	Mansfield, Burton	1933
b. 406, f. 647	Marett, Philip	1867, 1889, 1891, 1896-1897
b. 406, f. 648	Mariani, Nicola See also: <u>box 320, folders 2053-2057</u>	1928
b. 406, f. 649	Markoe, Francis Hartman	1961
b. 406 , f. 650	Markoe, Madeline Shelton	1928
b. 406 , f. 651	Marquand, Frederick See also: <u>box 320, folders 2053-2057</u>	1882, 1916
b. 406, f. 652	Marsh (O.C.) Estate: wills and papers concerning probate	1888, 1898, 1900, 1926, 1940
b. 406, f. 653	Marsh Estate: papers concerning probate	Circa 1899-1926
b. 406, f. 654	Marsh Estate: correspondence received posthumously	1899
b. 406 , f. 655	Marsh Estate: correspondence concerning funeral arrangements and letters of condolence	1899
b. 406, f. 656-660	Marsh Estate: executor's correspondence	1899-1926, undated
b. 406, f. 661	Marsh Estate: executor's letterbook	1899-1900
b. 407, f. 662	Marsh Estate: papers concerning the auction of furniture, art, and plants	1900
b. 407, f. 663	Marsh Estate: legal papers concerning the estate of George Peabody	1926, undated
b. 407, f. 664	Marsh Estate: land records	1876-1888
b. 407, f. 665	Marsh Estate: bankbook, checkbook, and journal of the executors	1899-1923
b. 407, f. 666-670	Marsh Estate: bills and receipts	1899-1917
b. 407 , f. 671	Marsh Estate: clippings and printed matter	1898, 1899
b. 408, f. 672	Marshall, James See also: <u>box 320, folders 2053-2057</u>	1896, 1900
b. 408 , f. 673	Martin, Eleanor T.	1947
b. 408 , f. 67 4	Martin, Laura P.	1958
b. 408 , f. 675	Mason, George Grant	1954
b. 408 , f. 676	Mather, Alice K.	1951
b. 408, f. 677	Mathewson, Allen	1950

b. 408, f. 678	Matthews, Annabel McE.	1955
b. 408, f. 679	Matthiesson, F. O.	1949
b. 408, f. 680	Maxwell, Robert	1920, 1940-1942
b. 408, f. 681	Maxwell, William	1939, 1941-1942
b. 408, f. 682	May, Calvin S.	1918-1919
b. 408, f. 683-685	Mead, Frederick	1918-1961
b. 408, f. 686	Mead, Solomon	1898, 1902
b. 408, f. 687	Meara, Frank S. See also: <u>box 320, folders 2053-2057</u>	1925, 1927, 1930, 1934
b. 408, f. 688	Meeker, Lucy J.	1955
b. 408, f. 689	Menge, George A.	1937
b. 408, f. 690	Mercer, Alexander G. See also: <u>box 320, folders 2053-2057</u>	1870, 1884
b. 409, f. 691-696	Mercer, Alexander G.	1911-1939
b. 410, f. 697-700	Mercer, Alexander G.	1940-1954
b. 410, f. 701	Merriam, Ellen R.	1936-1939
b. 410 , f. 702	Merrifield, Mark E.	1941-1942
b. 410, f. 703	Merrow, Joseph M.	1946
b. 410 , f. 704	Messinger, Charles Raymond	1941
b. 410 , f. 705	Meyer, Alfred C.	undated
b. 410 , f. 706	Meyer, Walter E.	1957
b. 410 , f. 707	Middleton, Carrie A.	1934, 1938-1939
b. 410, f. 708	Milbank, Dunlevy	1959-1960
b. 410, f. 709	Miller, Alanson D.	1930
b. 410 , f. 710	Miller, Charles S.	1928, 1932
b. 410, f. 711	Miller, Otto	1921, 1933
b. 410 , f. 712	Milliken, Seth Minot	1955, 1957
b. 410 , f. 713	Minor, Elisha	1837, 1846
b. 410 , f. 715	Monroe, Virginia Marquand See also: <u>box 320, folders 2053-2057</u>	1919, 1928
-------------------------------	--	------------------
b. 410, f. 716	Moore, Ada Small	1955
b. 410 , f. 717	Moore, Douglas S.	1917
b. 410, f. 718	Moore, Franklin A.	1939, 1941, 1951
b. 410, f. 719	Moorehead, Kate Upshur	1926
b. 410, f. 720	Moran, James T.	1936
b. 410 , f. 721	Morden, William J.	1957
b. 410, f. 722	Morgan, Edwin D. See also: <u>box 320, folders 2053-2057</u>	1882, 1893, 1920
b. 410, f. 723	Morgan, H. T.	Circa 1883
b. 411, f. 724	Morgan, John Hill	1945, 1947
b. 411, f. 725	Morgan, Leila A.	1956
b. 411, f. 726	Morris, Edward B.	1926, 1930, 1944
b. 411, f. 727	Morris, Edward P.	1939
b. 411, f. 728	Moseley, Edward Strong	1901
b. 411, f. 729	Mumford, Anna S.	1854, 1857-1858
b. 411, f. 730	Munson, Israel	1844
b. 411, f. 731	Murphy, Esther G.	1945
b. 411 , f. 732	Murphy, Henry C.	1946
b. 411 , f. 733	Murphy, Katherine Speed	1945
b. 411, f. 734	Murray, William D.	1940
b. 411 , f. 735	Musgrave, Wayne M.	1936, 1941
b. 411 , f. 736	Myers, George Hewitt	1930
b. 411 , f. 737	Nairn, John J.	1947
b. 411 , f. 738	Needelman, William R.	1945
b. 411, f. 739	Newell, Edward T.	1936, 1941
b. 411, f. 740	Newton, Burkett D.	1941, 1945
b. 411, f. 741	Newton, Josephine Stiles	1946-1949
b. 411, f. 742	Nicholas, Robert Hastings	1955-1956

b. 411, f. 743	Nichols, Effingham H. See also: <u>box 320, folders 2053-2057</u>	1912
b. 411, f. 74 4	Nichols, George E.	1936
b. 411 , f. 745	Niemeyer, John H.	1931, 1935-1942
b. 411 , f. 746	Nisbet, Jane A.	1914, 1926-1927
b. 411 , f. 747	Nolen, Alfred E.	1922
b. 411 , f. 748	Nutt, Henry C.	1942, 1946, 1959
b. 411 , f. 749	Ochs, Adolph S.	1935
b. 411 , f. 750	Odom, William M.	1942-1943
b. 411, f. 751	Osborn, Frederick W. See also: <u>box 320, folders 2053-2057</u>	1919, 1921
b. 411 , f. 752	Osborn, Miriam A.	1889, 1896-1897
b. 411 , f. 753	Osborne, Oliver T.	1939, 1940
b. 411 , f. 75 4	Otis, Asa	1878
b. 411 , f. 755	Otis, Joseph	1854, 1856
b. 411 , f. 756	Overlander, J. Elliot	1946-1951
b. 411 , f. 757	Packard, Lewis R.	Circa 1889
b. 411, f. 758	Page, Charles	1911
b. 411, f. 759	Parish, Roswell	1954
b. 411, f. 760	Parker, Charles F.	1950
b. 411, f. 761	Parker, Eliza T.	1898, 1912
b. 411, f. 762	Parker, Frank J. See also: <u>box 320, folders 2053-2057</u>	1912
b. 411, f. 763	Parker, Frederick S. See also: <u>box 320, folders 2053-2057</u>	1916
b. 411 , f. 764	Parker, Joseph See also: <u>box 320, folders 2053-2057</u>	1910
b. 411 , f. 765	Parker, William N.	1928
b. 411, f. 766	Parkin, Alice Temple	1956
b. 411 , f. 767	Parks, William H.	1897
b. 411, f. 768	Parsons, John C.	undated
b. 411, f. 769	Patterson, Frank M.	1939

b. 411, f. 770	Pavey, Jeanne R.	1948-1949, 1957
b. 411 , f. 771	Payne, Oliver H. See also: <u>box 320, folders 2053-2057</u>	1917
b. 412, f. 772	Pease, Jane: will and property records	1845, 1848-1849
b. 412, f. 773-774	Pease, Jane: correspondence concerning the estate, receipts, and records	1851-1870
b. 412, f. 775	Pease, Jane: executor's record book	Circa 1851-1854
b. 412 , f. 776	Peck, Eliza N. See also: <u>box 320, folders 2053-2057</u>	
b. 412 , f. 777	Peck, Tracy See also: <u>box 320, folders 2053-2057</u>	1921
b. 412, f. 778	Peet, Edward Wright	1946
b. 412 , f. 779	Peirce, Luther H.	1915
b. 412 , f. 780	Pennell, Arthur J.	1954
b. 412 , f. 781	Pennington, William See also: <u>box 320, folders 2053-2057</u>	1911-1913
b. 412, f. 782	Perkins, A. E.	[1834?]
b. 412 , f. 783	Perkins, Henry A.	1954
b. 412, f. 784	Perkins, Samuel C.	1904
b. 412, f. 785	Perkins, Simon	1846
b. 412, f. 786	Perrin, Susan Lester	1932, 1938
b. 412, f. 787	Peters, William A., Jr.	1947
b. 412 , f. 788	Phelps; William Walter	1885
b. 412, f. 789-790	Phillips, Andrew Wheeler	1915-1941
b. 412, f. 791	Phillips, John H.	1900
b. 412, f. 792	Pickersgill, Lily V.	1947-1948
b. 412, f. 793	Pidgeon, Edward R.	1932-1939
b. 412, f. 794	Pierce, Frank W.	1896-1897
b. 412, f. 795	Pierpont, James	1937, 1939
b. 412, f. 796	Pillsbury, Albert E.	1931
b. 412 , f. 797	Pine, Charles H.	1913, 1915-1927
b. 412 , f. 798	Pitkin, Walter S.	1903-1904

b. 412 , f. 799	Porter, Dwight	1940
b. 412, f. 800	Porter, George F.	1927
b. 412, f. 801	Porter, Martha Day	1919, 1922
b. 413, f. 802	Pratt, Herbert L.	1945
b. 413 , f. 803	Preston, Walter Grey	1951-1953
b. 413 , f. 80 4	Prudden, T. Mitchell	1924
b. 413, f. 805	Purselle, Edwin	1946
b. 413, f. 806-808	Putnam, Henry W.	1936-1944
b. 413, f. 809	Quintal, Edward J.	1951
b. 413, f. 810	Randall, Sands F. See also: <u>box 320, folders 2053-2057</u>	1911
b. 413, f. 811	Rankin, Hugh	1939
b. 413 , f. 812	Raymond, Freeborn F. See also: <u>box 320, folders 2053-2057</u>	1910
b. 413 , f. 813	Reckford, John King	1941-1943
b. 414, f. 814	Reed, Edward M. See also: <u>box 320, folders 2053-2057</u>	1892-1927
b. 414, f. 815	Reichert, Catharine M.	1937
b. 414 , f. 816	Reynolds, Ambrose	1825
b. 414, f. 817	Reynolds, Horatio M.	1928-1944
b. 414 , f. 818	Reynolds, James Bronson	1922-1924
b. 414, f. 819	Reynolds, Maude T.	1931, 1941
b. 414, f. 820	Reynolds, William George	1916, 1922, 1943-1945
b. 414, f. 821	Rhoda, George Irving	1957
b. 414, f. 822	Richardson, Anna M.	1932-1933
b. 414 , f. 823	Richardson, Samuel M.	1929-1932
	Rigby, James A. & Henry B. See: <u>Box 414A folder 823A</u>	
b. 414, f. 824	Riggs, T. Lawrason	1938, 1943
b. 414, f. 825	Righter, William S.	1930-1931, 1939

b. 414, f. 826	Ripley, Alfred L. See also: <u>box 320, folders 2053-2057</u>	1941, 1944
b. 414, f. 827	Risteen, Ella W.	1943
b. 414, f. 828	Robbins, Howard Chandler	1952
b. 414, f. 829	Robbins, Sarah Stuart See also: <u>box 320, folders 2053-2057</u>	1908
b. 414 , f. 830	Robinson, Marinda C.	1925, 1928, 1941, 1947
b. 414, f. 831	Rogers, Cornelia H. B.	1910
b. 414, f. 832	Rogers, Henry Treat	1921-1923
b. 414, f. 833	Rogers, Samuel T. See also: <u>box 320, folders 2053-2057</u>	1912-1913
b. 414, f. 834	Rogers, William A.	1944
b. 414 , f. 835	Roosa, Dewitt See also: <u>box 320, folders 2053-2057</u>	1923-1924
b. 414, f. 836	Rosenblatt, Albert	1944
b. 414, f. 837	Rosenzweig, Grant I.	1947
b. 414, f. 838	Ross, William B.	1897, 1904-1908, 1934
b. 414, f. 839	Rowland, Grace Talbot	1918
b. 414, f. 840	Runnals, John Felch Bertram	1943
b. 414 , f. 841	Ryerson, Edward L. See also: <u>box 320, folders 2053-2057</u>	1928
b. 414, f. 842	Ryerson, Mary Mitchell (Mrs. Edward L.)	1939
b. 414 , f. 843-84 4	Sage, Margaret Olivia	1911, 1917-1928, 1938
b. 414A, f. 823A	Rigby, James A. & Henry B.: Trusts (1 of 2)	1933-1951
b. 414A, f. 823B	Rigby, James A. & Henry B.: Trusts (2 of 2)	1933-1951
b. 414A, f. 823C	Rigby, Henry B.: Last will & testament	1940
b. 414A, f. 823	Rigby, Henry B.: Estate	1943-1966
b. 414A, f. 823E	Rigby, James A. & Henry B.: Trusts (1 of 2)	1948-1958
b. 414A, f. 823	Rigby, James A. & Henry B.: Trusts (2 of 2)	1948-1958
b. 414A, f. 823G	Rigby, James A. & Henry B.: Trusts	1957

b. 415 , f. 845-846	Salisbury, Edward E. See also: <u>box 304, folders 1884-1885</u>	1901-1920
b. 415, f. 847	Salisbury, Evelyn MacCurdy (Mrs. Edward E.)	1918
b. 415, f. 848	Saltus, Rollin Sanford	1954
b. 415 , f. 849	Sanders, Henry M.	1921
b. 415, f. 850	Sargeant, William P.	1936-1937
b. 415, f. 851	Sartorius, Irving A.	1957
b. 415, f. 852	Schaefer, Karl A.	1957
b. 415, f. 853	Schley, Reeve, III	1957, 1960
b. 415, f. 854	Schram, Herman	1958
b. 415 , f. 855	Schramm, Arnold O. See also: <u>box 320, folders 2053-2057</u>	1922
b. 415, f. 856	Schuchert, Charles	1942-1943
b. 415 , f. 857	Schwab, John C. See also: <u>box 320, folders 2053-2057</u>	1912
b. 415 , f. 858	Scott, Henry W.	1870, 1872
b. 415, f. 859	Scudder, Doremus	1940
b. 415, f. 860	Sedgwick, William T. See also: <u>box 320, folders 2053-2057</u>	1921
b. 415, f. 861	Seeley, James R.	1941, 1944
b. 415, f. 862	Seesel, Albert See also: <u>box 320, folders 2053-2057</u>	1909
b. 415 , f. 863	Selden, Abby S. L.	1929-1930
b. 415 , f. 864	Sewall, Richard B.	1916, 1918-1919, 1939
b. 415, f. 865	Seymour, George, Dudley	1945
b. 415, f. 866	Shaw, Charles H.	1916, 1945-1950
b. 415, f. 867	Sheffield, Amelia Daggett (Mrs. George St. John)	1934, 1937
b. 415, f. 868	Sheffield, George St. John	1925, 1937
b. 415, f. 869	Sheridan, James	1960-1962
b. 415, f. 870	Sherman, Elizabeth	1845, 1848-1849
b. 415, f. 871	Sherman, Gordon E.	1931

b. 415, f. 872	Shockley, Lazelle S.	1940
b. 416, f. 873-874	Shoemaker, Levi	1909-1928
b. 416, f. 875	Shortridge, Laura Virginia Watson	1943, 1946
b. 416 , f. 876	Sidenberg, William R.	1960, 1961
b. 416, f. 877	Sill, Elizabeth See also: <u>box 321, folders 2058-2062</u>	1915-1916
b. 416, f. 878	Silliman, Augustus Ely See also: <u>box 321, folders 2058-2062</u>	Circa 1884-1905
b. 416, f. 879	Silliman, Benjamin D. See also: <u>box 321, folders 2058-2062</u>	1900-1923
b. 416, f. 880	Slade, Francis Louis	1944
b. 416, f. 881	Slade, George T.	1936, 1941-1944
b. 416, f. 882	Slade, William Strong	1927
b. 416 , f. 883	Sloan, Thomas C.	1886, 1891, 1896-1897
b. 416, f. 884	Sloane, William	1922
b. 416, f. 885	Small, Emma M.	1948, 1951
b. 416, f. 886	Smith, Bessie Helmer	1950, 1953
b. 416, f. 887	Smith, Charles Henry See also: <u>box 321, folders 2058-2062</u>	1933-1934
b. 416 , f. 888	Smith, Charles Robinson	1929-1930
b. 416 , f. 889	Smith, David P. See also: <u>box 321, folders 2058-2062</u>	1874
b. 416, f. 890	Smith, Douglas T.	1952
b. 416, f. 891	Smith, Edwin W.	1937, 1939
b. 416, f. 892	Smith, Herbert Knox See also: <u>box 321, folders 2058-2062</u>	1932
b. 416, f. 893	Smith, Loyal L. See also: <u>box 321, folders 2058-2062</u>	1907
b. 416 , f. 89 4	Smith, Lucy F.	1946, 1947, 1950
b. 416, f. 895	Smith, Marcius C.	1941
b. 417 , f. 896	Smith, Mary B.	1911, 1922, 1925
b. 417, f. 897	Smith, William Barnard	1950

b. 417, f. 898	Snow, Mrs. Alpheus Henry	1928
b. 417 , f. 899	Snow, Emily V.	1929
b. 417 , f. 900	Southworth, Edward Wells See also: <u>box 321, folders 2058-2062</u>	1902-1909
b. 417, f. 901	Spencer, Margaret C.	1948, 1950
b. 417, f. 902	Sperry, Watson R.	1927
b. 417 , f. 903	Sprague, Albert Arnold & Nancy A. See also: <u>box 321, folders 2058-2062</u>	1913, 1915-1916, 1922-1923
b. 417, f. 904	Stanley, Katherine A. See also: <u>box 321, folders 2058-2062</u>	1927, 1928
b. 417 , f. 905	Starkweather, William J.	1952-1954
b. 417 , f. 906	Stedman, Arthur See also: <u>box 321, folders 2058-2062</u>	1908
b. 417 , f. 907	Stedman, Edmund Clarence See also: <u>box 321, folders 2058-2062</u>	1908
b. 417 , f. 908	Sterling, Edward See also: <u>box 321, folders 2058-2062</u>	1909-1910
b. 417 , f. 909	Sterling, John W. See also: <u>box 321, folders 2058-2062</u>	1915
b. 417, f. 910	Stevenson, Grace W.	1926, 1933, 1944
b. 417, f. 911	Stevenson, Holland N.	1955, 1959
b. 417, f. 912	Stewart, Herbert	1899
b. 417, f. 913	Stille, Charles J. See also: <u>box 264, folder 1547</u>	1899, 1907-1931
b. 417 , f. 914	Stimson, Lewis A. See also: <u>box 321, folders 2058-2062</u>	1914, 1917
b. 417, f. 915	Stokes, Anson Phelps	1958
b. 417, f. 916	Strathcona, Lord Donald Alexander	1914
b. 417, f. 917	Street, Augustus Russell	1863-1866, 1909
b. 417, f. 918	Street, Augustus Russell: letterbook with a few loose items	Circa 1831-1857
b. 418, f. 919-920	Street, Augustus Russell: daybooks	1852-1866
b. 418 , f. 921	Street, Augustus Russell: ledger	Circa 1852-1866

b. 418, f. 922-925	Street, Augustus Russell: Correspondence and bills of S. W. Allis, Lessee of Street's New Haven hotel	Circa 1829-1830, 1844-1852, 1854-1869
b. 418, f. 926	Street, Augustus Russell: Gardel correspondence and bills with S. W. Allis	Circa 1848-1851, 1868
b. 419 , f. 927	Street, Caroline M.	1877, 1908, 1912
b. 419 , f. 928	Strong, Henry H.	1923-1924, 1928-1930
b. 419 , f. 929	Styles, Flora N. See also: <u>box 321, folders 2058-2062</u>	1917
b. 419 , f. 930	Sweet, Stanley Adams	1948
b. 419, f. 931	Taft, Henry W.	1943, 1945
b. 419 , f. 932	Taft, William Howard	1930
b. 419 , f. 933	Taintnor, Charles N.	1920
b. 419, f. 93 4	Talcott, Elizabeth G.	1817
b. 419, f. 935	Tarbell, Frank Bigelow See also: <u>box 321, folders 2058-2062</u>	1919-1922
b. 419 , f. 936	Tarbell, John H.	1926, 1929-1931
b. 419 , f. 937	Tenney, Daniel G.	1951
b. 419 , f. 938	Tew, Willis	1928-1930
b. 419 , f. 939	Thacher, Thomas	1919
b. 419 , f. 940	Thacher, Thomas D.	1948, 1950
b. 419 , f. 941		
5,	Thayer, Charles Snow	1944
b. 419, f. 942	Thayer, Charles Snow Thayer, George B.	1944 1928-1941
·	-	
b. 419 , f. 942	Thayer, George B.	1928-1941
b. 419, f. 942 b. 419, f. 943	Thayer, George B. Thomas, Helen	1928-1941 1946, 1951-1954
b. 419, f. 942 b. 419, f. 943 b. 419, f. 944	Thayer, George B. Thomas, Helen Thompson, Miles G.	1928-1941 1946, 1951-1954 1942, 1944
b. 419, f. 942 b. 419, f. 943 b. 419, f. 944 b. 419, f. 945	Thayer, George B. Thomas, Helen Thompson, Miles G. Thomson, Asahel Thorne, William V. S.	1928-1941 1946, 1951-1954 1942, 1944 1866
b. 419, f. 942 b. 419, f. 943 b. 419, f. 944 b. 419, f. 945 b. 419, f. 946	Thayer, George B. Thomas, Helen Thompson, Miles G. Thomson, Asahel Thorne, William V. S. See also: box 321, folders 2058-2062	1928-1941 1946, 1951-1954 1942, 1944 1866 1916

b. 419 , f. 950	Tompkins, Ray & Sarah Wey See also: <u>box 321, folders 2058-2062</u>	1918, 1926, 1930-1931
b. 419, f. 951	Torrey, Charles C.	1953
b. 419, f. 952	Toumey, James W.	1933
b. 419, f. 953	Town, Ithiel	[1944]
b. 419, f. 954	Townsend, Emily Allison	1927-1928
b. 419 , f. 955	Townsend, Jane A. See also: <u>box 321, folders 2058-2062</u>	1908, 1910
b. 419, f. 956	Treat, Wyllys Baird	1947
b. 419 , f. 957	Troescher, Robert See also: <u>box 322, folder 2063</u>	1925, 1930
b. 419, f. 958	Trowbridge, Francis B.	1943-1944
b. 419, f. 959	Trowbridge, Henry	1883
b. 419, f. 960	Turrell, Edgar A.	1930, 1935
b. 419, f. 961	Tuttle, Charles Alling	1923, 1927-1935
b. 419, f. 962	Tuttle, Edwin E.	1939
b. 419, f. 963	Tuttle, Fannie Farwell	1953
b. 420, f. 964	Tuttle, Frank D.	1926
b. 420 , f. 965	Twiss, Julius See also: <u>box 322, folder 2063</u>	1920
b. 420, f. 966	Ullman, Isaac M.	1930-1935
b. 420 , f. 967	Vanderbilt, Cornelius	1935, 1940, 1942-1943
b. 420, f. 968-969	Vanderbilt, Frederick	1939-1944
b. 420, f. 970	Vanderpoel, Lila Burr Chapman	1948, 1950-1957
b. 420, f. 971	Van Name, Theodora	1955
b. 420, f. 972	Van Nostrand, Sarah	1897, 1900
b. 420, f. 973	Van Riper, Walker	1960
b. 420, f. 974	Van Wagenen, Margaret H.	1944, 1946
b. 420, f. 975	Vedder, Harold L.	1943, 1950
b. 420, f. 976	Veech, Louise	1948

b. 420 , f. 977	Viets, Levi C. See also: <u>box 261, folders 1519-1520</u>	1904-1907, 1921-1953, 1965-1966
b. 420, f. 978	Vincent, George E.	1941
b. 420, f. 979	Wade, John A.	1932-1934
b. 420, f. 980	Wadhams, Fred Uri	1958
b. 420, f. 981	Walden, Howard T.	1948
b. 420, f. 982	Walden, Katherine K.	1911, 1914, 1916-1917
b. 420, f. 983	Wallace, Cornelius Royal	1945
b. 420, f. 984	Ward, Frederick A.	1902
b. 420, f. 985	Ward, G. Gilbert	1953
b. 420, f. 986	Ward, Jessie L.	1928-1933
b. 420, f. 987	Wardwell, Allen	1951
b. 420, f. 988	Warren, Albert	1939
b. 420, f. 989	Washburn, Caroline	1892
b. 420, f. 990	Weatherby, Una L. F.	1956
b. 420, f. 991	Webb, Vanderbilt	1956-1957
b. 420, f. 992	Weeks, Louise M.	1933, 1937
b. 420, f. 993	Weeter, John Lloyd	1931
b. 420, f. 994	Welles, John S.	1903
b. 420 , f. 995	Wellman, Guy See also: <u>box 322, folder 2063</u>	1938, 1941
b. 421, f. 996	Wells, Bradford See also: <u>box 322, folder 2063</u>	1941
b. 421, f. 997	Wells, Gabriel	1943
b. 421, f. 998	Wendell, B. Rush See also: <u>box 322, folder 2063</u>	1933, 1937-1940
b. 421, f. 999	Wetmore, Helen H.	1923-1925
b. 421, f. 1000	Whalen, Louise B. H.	1958
b. 421, f. 1001	Whedon, Susan H.	1942, 1946
b. 421, f. 1002	Wheeler, Albert Sproull See also: <u>box 324, folder 2088</u>	1903-1904

b. 421, f. 1003	Wheeler, Henry Lord See also: <u>box 322, folder 2063</u>	1915
b. 421, f. 1004	White, Andrew D.	1918
b. 421, f. 1005	White, Annie L.	1929, 1931
b. 421, f. 1006	White, Harriet H.	1897
b. 421, f. 1007	White, Henry C. & Lucy S. See also: <u>box 322, folder 2063</u>	1905, 1914, 1922-1927
b. 421, f. 1008	Whitehead, Conkey P.	1941
b. 421, f. 1009	Whiting, Arthur B.	1936
b. 421, f. 1010	Whitney, Eli	1825, 1829
b. 421, f. 1011-1012	Whitney, Payne	1927-1932
b. 421, f. 1013	Whitney, Wheelock	1957
b. 421, f. 1014	Whittemore, Edward L.	1929-1930
b. 421, f. 1015	Whittlesey, George Patten	1922, 1930-1931
b. 421, f. 1016	Wickham, Elizabeth M. See also: <u>box 322, folder 2063</u>	1901
b. 421, f. 1017	Williams, Adele H.	1920, 1931
b. 421, f. 1018	Williams, Earl T.	1918
b. 421, f. 1019	Williams, S. Wells	1884
b. 421, f. 1020	Williams, Thomas S.	1862
b. 421, f. 1021	Williams, Wayland Wells	1945
b. 421, f. 1022	Williams, Williams	1947-1948
b. 421, f. 1023	Wilson, Edward A.	1929
b. 422, f. 1024	Wilson, Mary Jewett	1941-1945
b. 422, f. 1025	Wiman, Dwight Deere	1951
b. 422, f. 1026	Wing, Frank E.	1923
b. 422, f. 1027	Wisser, Nellie R.	undated
b. 422, f. 1028	Wolcott, Henry Roger	1915, 1921
b. 422, f. 1029	Wood, Antoinette E.	1930
b. 422, f. 1030	Woodman, Francis J.	1916-1917

b. 422, f. 1031	Woodruff, Francis Eben See also: <u>box 322, folder 2063</u>	1913
b. 422, f. 1032	Woodruff, Rollin S.	1937
b. 422, f. 1033	Woodward, Frank L.: concerning Mary Farnam Woodward trust	1922-1945
b. 422, f. 1034	Woodward, Sarah C.	1939
b. 422, f. 1035	Woolley, Clarence M.	1956
b. 422, f. 1036	Woolsey, Theodore S.	1919, 1924, 1929
b. 422, f. 1037	Woolsey, Theodore Salisbury, Jr.	1932, 1936
b. 422, f. 1038	Wordin, Eliza Barnes See also: <u>box 322, folder 2063</u>	1924
b. 422, f. 1039	Wordin, Fannie L.	1930
b. 422, f. 1040	Wright, Glen	1936, 1941-1942
b. 422, f. 1041	Wright, Henry P.	1914, 1918, 1927-1944
b. 422, f. 1042	Wright, Howell	1937
b. 422, f. 1043	Wright, Josephine L. H.	1942, 1950
b. 422, f. 1044	Yeisley, Katharine Bushnell Gaul	1924
b. 422, f. 1045	York, Samuel A.	1933
b. 422, f. 1046	Unidentified	undated

Series V: Investments, circa 1722-1926

INVESTMENTS embraces lists and muniments of Yale's income producing properties (real estate, stocks, bonds, and other securities) and the records of income produced from them (rent, dividends, and interest). The series is divided into three sub-series:

Accounting: Investing Funds

Real Estate

Loans and Securities

Accounting: Investing Funds includes records from the nineteenth century when several special funds were established as general or specific endowments. The income produced from investments of a fund's resources was to be returned to the university for the perpetuation and extension of its goals.* The accounts in this sub-series reveal the meticulous care taken by the treasurer to keep the records of the various investing funds distinct and well-ordered. Many of the funds represented are the same as those whose subscribers are recorded in the BENEFACTORS series.

Real Estate includes the records of Yale's income producing land holdings, of the accounts of income derived from rent and land sales and of the expense of maintaining property. The sub-series begins with several folders containing Deeds and Other Records of Land Holdings. At first there are registers or inventories listing properties some of which include explanations of how Yale acquired particular tracts.

The actual deeds, along with some memoranda, short term leases, notes on improvements, and, occasionally, maps, follow. Ideally such land records should be organized geographically with all records relating to the conveyance of a particular piece of land organized together chronologically. It seems that originally the treasurer did keep the records this way, but over the years the original organization was dismantled. A recent attempt to reorganize these records in this way proved, in large part, impossible, due to the many changes in street names and other boundary definers.

The deeds, etc., are now arranged only by state and then by city or town. There are, of course, a large number of deeds for Connecticut and some particularly old deeds for college farms in Canaan, Cornwall, Goshen, Kent, and Salisbury. The New Haven deeds fill nine folders and with such a large quantity additional organization was vital. The New Haven deeds are alphabetized by the name of the person (either buyer or seller) transacting business with Yale (except for the deeds which could be easily identified by a locale, e.g., College Square, Grapevine Point, or Oyster Point).

Included in the folders of Deeds and Other Records of Land Holdings are a few items that could not be distinguished as relating to Yale; neither the buyer nor the seller was Yale. Since these items were preserved by the treasurer presumably they were saved to show some previous conveyance history. They are filed at the very end of the appropriate geographic folder.

The Long Term Leases have been arranged as a separate section from the Deeds and Other Records of Land Holdings. In the eighteenth and nineteenth centuries Yale commonly let its farms (all in Connecticut) for an extended period, the usual term being 999 years. There may be deeds for some of the parcels of leased property in the preceding section. These oversized leases along with occasional notes and maps are organized by town.

The Income and Expense section contains all accounts for rent received and funds expended for the upkeep of property. The first several folders marked "rent ledgers" and "rent journals" contain the accounts of individual tenants. In the ledgers each tenant's account is kept and an alphabetical index at the beginning provides name access. Journals give a chronological record of payments received. The rent ledgers and journals are listed in chronological order and are followed by two general property ledgers which record income and expense by property.

Additional records of property income and expense follow in the form of statements submitted by rental agents and specific property ledgers. The records are organized geographically by state and then by city where the property is located. The listing shows the far reaches of Yale's property investments. Whereas the Deeds and Other Records of Land Holdings show investments through the mid-nineteenth century

mainly in New England, New York, and Ohio, the statements from rental agents at the turn of the twentieth century concern property in Missouri, Illinois, Iowa, and Minnesota, as well as the added property in Manhattan from the gift of Timothy Dwight Porter. It is difficult to know, though, what proportion of Yale's income producing property is represented by these rental records. Additional statements from agents are included in the CORRESPONDENCE series. See particularly the files for: H. H. Cammann and Peabody, Houghteling, and Co.

At the end of *Real Estate* is a small section of minutes, property ledgers, correspondence, deeds, and other records of the Atheneum Company. Four original subscribers: John N. Bristol, Henry L. Galpin, William R. Pitkin, and J. Dwight Dana, founded this private New Haven company in 1917. Using a sizeable sum loaned by Edward S. Harkness the company proceeded to purchase and then rent property in New Haven in the area of Park, York, and Elm Streets. Within ten years the company began selling off parcels of its land to the university and to several Yale fraternities and secret societies. Then in 1930 the directors agreed to the dissolution of the company. Under an agreement with the university they conveyed a piece of land to Yale without cost provided that Yale would use the property as a site for a memorial to Briton Hadden. How the treasurer of Yale came into possession of the Atheneum Company records is unclear. They are organized here at the end of the *Real Estate* sub-series since some of them do pertain to Yale-owned property.

Found with the treasurer's Records originally were similar papers for the York Square Trustees. Minutes, journals, conveyance records, and other papers, dating from 1834 to 1926 and relating to the trustees" efforts to maintain a residential neighborhood in York Square, comprised the records. Thomas Wells Farnam, Yale's associate treasurer and comptroller, had been one of the trustees. Since, however, the records themselves do not mention any transfer of property to Yale (though probably Yale does own property in York Square now), the York Square Trustees Records were separated from the treasurer's Records and now exist as Manuscript Group #1250.

Loans and Securities consists of lists of stocks, bonds, and promissory notes held by Yale, of accounts of the purchase of stocks and bonds and the income from their dividends and interest payments, and of mortgage deeds, personal bonds, and other certificates of indebtedness.

The general descriptive term for stocks, bonds, and personal notes varied over time. In the early years of these records, the term "bills receivable" was commonly accepted. In the Gilded Age when investments in stocks and bonds predominated over personal loans and mortgages the term more often used was "securities". The terminology used in the folder descriptions follows the terminology used on the original record. The lists of stocks, bonds, and personal notes are organized roughly in chronological order. The terms "register" or "catalogue," used to describe records in folders 81 through 89, refer to lists of the stocks, bonds, and notes compiled according to the fund from which the purchase of loan money was drawn and to which the dividend or interest was paid. Toward the end of the 1880s the treasurer started keeping lists not by fund but alphabetically by type of security; here he also recorded each interest or dividend payment. Folders 89 through 96 and folio box IV, folder 18, contain this type of list.

"obsolete".

*When the bookkeeping procedures were changed at the beginning of the twentieth century the accounts of specific funds were incorporated into the general books. See Series I for these books.

The materials are open for research.

	Accounting: Investing Funds	
b. 423, f. 1	Accounts of the principal of the College funds	1817-1831
b. 423, f. 2	Ledger of income and expense for the several investing funds, 1822-1833 (also includes a rent journal, 1834-1843)	1822-1843

Accounting: Investing Funds (continued)

b. 423, f. 3	Centum Mille Fund: journal	(1832 December– 1837)–1852 July
b. 423, f. 4	Centum Mille Fund: Ledger	1832-1852
b. 424, f. 5	Trumbull Annuity Fund: receipts and expenditures records from Trumbull Gallery	1832-1862
b. 424, f. 6	Gratuity Fund: journal, 1840-1852, with Accumulating Theological Fund journal, 1853-1864	1840-1864
b. 425, f. 7	Gratuity Fund: ledger, 1840-1852, with Accumulating Theological Fund ledger, 1853-1864	1840-1864
b. 425, f. 8	Peabody Fund: cashbook and journal	1867-1913
b. 425, f. 9	Peabody Fund: ledger	1867-1913
b. 425, f. 10	Miscellaneous memoranda including notes on the Berkelian Fund, Talcott Professorship Fund, Semitic Professorship Fund, Connecticut Agricultural College Fund, Loomis Fund	Circa 1802-1905
Rea	al Estate	
	Deeds and Other Records of Land Holdings	1722-1910
b. 426, f. 11	Landbook, including records of land belonging to the College, 1747, mortgages, 1747, copies of deeds, leases, record of Bishop Berkeley's and Richard Salter's donations (also includes) catalogue of library, 1743, catalogue of mathematical instruments, donations to the college museum, 1789)	1747-1792
b. 426, f. 12	Examination of real estate accounts, , compiled by E. C. Herrick	Circa 1833-18511851 October
	Registers of property, 1858, 1861	
	See: <u>box 437, folder 84</u>	
b. 426 , f. 13	Inventories of property	1864, 1867, 1879, 1887, 1889-1909
b. 426 , f. 14	Connecticut, Branford-Hartford	
	See also: box 444, folder 128	
b. 426, f. 15	Connecticut, Kent-Milford	
	See also: box 444, folder 128	
b. 426 , f. 16-17	Connecticut, New Haven: College Square area (College, Elm, High, and Chapel Streets)	
	See also: box 444, folder 129	
b. 427, f. 18	Connecticut, New Haven: Grape Vine Point and other property conveyed by members of the Hillhouse family	
	See also: <u>box 444, folder 130</u>	

Real Estate > Deeds and Other Records of Land Holdings (continued)

b. 427, f. 19	Connecticut, New Haven: Oyster Point	
b. 427, f. 20	Connecticut, New Haven: A-B	
	See also: <u>box 444, folder 131</u>	
b. 427, f. 21	Connecticut, New Haven: C-E	
	See also: box 444, folder 132	
b. 427, f. 22	Connecticut, New Haven: F-G	
b. 427, f. 23	Connecticut, New Haven: H	
b. 427, f. 24	Connecticut, New Haven: K-P	
	See also: box 444, folder 133	
b. 427 , f. 25	Connecticut, New Haven: R-W, unidentified	
	See also: <u>box 444, folder 133</u>	
b. 427, f. 26	Connecticut, New London-North Haven	
b. 427, f. 27	Connecticut, Oxford	
b. 428, f. 28	Connecticut, Salisbury-Woodbury, unidentified	
	See also: box 444, folder 134	
b. 428 , f. 29	Illinois	
b. 428, f. 30	Massachusetts-North Carolina	
	See also: box 444, folder 135	
b. 428, f. 31	Ohio-Vermont	
	See also: <u>box 444, folder 135</u>	
	g Term Leases for Connecticut	Circa 1730-1826
See:	<u>folio box 444a, folders 8-14 folio box 444b, folders 15-17</u>	
Inco	me and Expense	
b. 428 , f. 32	Memoranda concerning collections from leased and mortgaged property, in the bands of Edward Eells, Elizur Goodrich and others	1743-1795
b. 428 , f. 33	Rent ledger (also includes account of orders drawn on the college treasurer, 1782-1784, and orders drawn on the steward, 1782-1786)	1782-ca. 1821
b. 429, f. 34	Rent ledger, marked "Farm Accounts, Book I"	Circa 1795-1820
b. 429, f. 35	Rent ledger, marked "Farm Accounts, Book II"	Circa 1815-1834
b. 429 , f. 36	Statements of monies and bank bills collected for college farm rents	1816-1818, 1821
b. 430 , f. 37	Rent Journal	1834 March-1870
b. 430, f. 38	Rent ledger (includes record of existing leases with subsequent transfers)	Circa 1834 March-1891 August

Real Estate > Income and Expense (continued)

b. 430 , f. 39	Rent journal	1871-1891 September
b. 430, f. 40	Rent journal (also contains a supplies ledger, 1901-1905)	1891 August-1900 July
b. 431 , f. 41	Rent ledger	1900-1912
b. 431, f. 42-43	Property ledger	1891-1912
b. 432 , f. 44	Connecticut, New Haven: agent's statements for 547 Ferry St., 247 Munson St.	1899-1905
b. 432 , f. 45	Connecticut, New Haven: agent's statements for Cedar and Rose St.	1905
b. 432 , f. 46	DC, Washington: agent's statements	1913-1918
b. 432 , f. 47	Iowa, Des Moines: agent's statements	1899-1910
b. 432 , f. 48	Iowa, Sioux City: agent's statements	1906
b. 432, f. 49-50	Illinois, Chicago: agent's statements for John S. Thomas property	1898-1901, 1903-1910
b. 432 , f. 51	Illinois, Chicago: agent's statements for L. A. McDonald property	1899-1902
b. 432 , f. 52	Illinois, Chicago: agent's statements for J. Van Housen property	1899-1902
b. 432 , f. 53	Illinois, Chicago: agent's statements for G. F. Binder property	1902-1906
b. 432 , f. 54	Illinois, Chicago: agent's statements for G. W. Cass property	1904-1906
b. 432 , f. 55	Illinois, Chicago: agent's statements for P. H. Rice property	1905-1906
b. 433, f. 56-58	Illinois, Chicago: agent's statements for H. Rumsfeld	1905-1917
b. 433, f. 59-61	Illinois, Chicago: agent's statements for John Hamilton property	1912-1917
b. 434 , f. 62	Minnesota, Minneapolis: agent's statements for M. D. Clapp property	1900-1910
b. 434 , f. 63	Minnesota, Minneapolis: agent's statements for Long property	1902-1906
b. 434 , f. 64	Missouri, St. Louis: agent's statements	1905
b. 434, f. 65	New Jersey, Glenridge: agent's statements	1912-1914
	New York, Leroy: agent's statements See: <u>box 401, folders 574-575</u> <u>box 402, folders 576-577</u>	
b. 434 , f. 66-67	New York, New York City: property ledgers for Porter Fund property	1878-1884, 1891-1905
b. 435, f. 68-71	New York, New York City: agent's statements for Porter Fund property	1885-1888, 1897-1905, 1907-1908, 1910, 1916-1919

Real Estate > Income and Expense (continued)

	New York, New York City: rent accounts by property See: <u>box 101, folder 167</u>	1906-1910
b. 436, f. 72	Papers concerning the exemption of Yale College property from taxation	Circa 1842, 1898
	Atheneum Company	
b. 436, f. 73	Minutes	1917-1930
b. 436 , f. 7 4	Stock certificates and stock transfer records	1917-1919, 1926
b. 436 , f. 75-76	Property ledgers	1918-1930
b. 436 , f. 77	Mortgage deeds, paid notes, and releases	1917-1924
b. 437, f. 78	Agreements as to restrictions, etc.	1917-1930
b. 437, f. 79	Warranty deeds	1917, 1922, 1925
b. 437, f. 80	Correspondence and miscellaneous papers concerning property	1909-1930
Loar	ns and Securities	
b. 437, f. 81	Bills receivable and payable: register	Circa 1790-1842
b. 437, f. 82-83	Bills receivable: register	Circa 1807-1834, 1848 July-[1850 January]
b. 437, f. 84	Bills receivable and stocks: registers, compiled by E. C. Herrick, of real estate, notes, bonds and stocks	1858 January 1, 1861 June
	Bills receivable and stocks: register See: <u>box 444, folder 136</u>	1862 August 1
b. 438 , f. 85	Bills receivable: registers	1861-1869
b. 438 , f. 86	Bills receivable: registers	1870-1883
b. 438 , f. 87	Bills receivable: registers	1886-1887
b. 438, f. 88	Securities: catalogue	1887-1890
b. 438, f. 89	Securities of the premium accounts: registers	1891-1907
	Securities: index See: <u>box 444, folder 137</u>	1888-1892
b. 438, f. 90-92	Securities: indices to interest and dividend payment record	1892-1904
	Securities: index to interest and dividend payment record See: <u>box 444, folder 138</u>	1904-[1907?]
b. 439, f. 93	Securities: interest and dividend payment record	1889-1895
	Securities: interest and dividend payment record See: <u>box 444, folder 139</u>	1895-1902/1903

Loans and Securities (continued)

b. 439, f. 94-96 Bills receivable (in some places marked "investments"): ledgers of income and expense 1894-1912 Securities: accrued interest ledgers See: folio box 444c, folder 18 1919/1920-19 Mortgages and Other Certificates of Indebtedness 1795-1840 b. 439, f. 97 A-C b. 439, f. 98 D-G See also: box 444, folder 141 100 b. 439, f. 99 H See also: box 444, folder 141 100 b. 440, f. 100 I-L See also: box 444, folder 141 100 b. 440, f. 101 M-O See also: box 444, folder 141 100 b. 440, f. 102 P-S See also: box 444, folder 141 100 b. 440, f. 103 T-W See also: box 444, folder 141 b. 440, f. 103 T-W See also: box 444, folder 141 b. 440, f. 103 T-W See also: box 444, folder 141 b. 440, f. 104 A	921/1922
See: folio box 444c, folder 18 1795-1840 b. 439, f. 97 A-C b. 439, f. 97 A-C b. 439, f. 98 D-G See also: box 444, folder 141 b. 439, f. 99 H See also: box 444, folder 141 b. 439, f. 99 H See also: box 444, folder 141 b. 439, f. 99 H See also: box 444, folder 141 b. 440, f. 100 I-L See also: box 444, folder 141 b. 440, f. 101 M-O See also: box 444, folder 141 b. 440, f. 102 P-S See also: box 444, folder 141 b. 440, f. 103 T-W See also: box 444, folder 141 b. 440, f. 103 T-W See also: box 444, folder 141 b. 440, f. 103 T-W See also: box 444, folder 141 b. 440, f. 103 T-W See also: box 444, folder 141 b. 440, f. 103 T-W See also: box 444, folder 141 b. 440, f. 104 A	921/1922
b. 439, f. 97A-Cb. 439, f. 98D-G See also: box 444, folder 141b. 439, f. 99H See also: box 444, folder 141b. 440, f. 100I-L See also: box 444, folder 141b. 440, f. 101M-O See also: box 444, folder 141b. 440, f. 102P-S See also: box 444, folder 141b. 440, f. 103T-W See also: box 444, folder 141b. 440, f. 104A	
b. 439, f. 98D-G See also: box 444, folder 141b. 439, f. 99H See also: box 444, folder 141b. 430, f. 100I-L See also: box 444, folder 141b. 440, f. 100M-O 	
See also: box 444, folder 141 b. 439, f. 99 H See also: box 444, folder 141 b. 440, f. 100 I-L See also: box 444, folder 141 b. 440, f. 101 M-O See also: box 444, folder 141 b. 440, f. 101 M-O See also: box 444, folder 141 b. 440, f. 102 P-S See also: box 444, folder 141 b. 440, f. 103 T-W See also: box 444, folder 141 Mortgages and other Certificates of Indebtedness (1841-1895)-* b. 440, f. 104 A	
See also: box 444, folder 141b. 440, f. 100I-L See also: box 444, folder 141b. 440, f. 101M-O See also: box 444, folder 141b. 440, f. 102P-S See also: box 444, folder 141b. 440, f. 103T-W See also: box 444, folder 141b. 440, f. 103T-W See also: box 444, folder 141b. 440, f. 103A	
See also: box 444, folder 141 b. 440, f. 101 M-O See also: box 444, folder 141 b. 440, f. 102 P-S See also: box 444, folder 141 b. 440, f. 103 T-W See also: box 444, folder 141 b. 440, f. 103 T-W See also: box 444, folder 141 b. 440, f. 103 A	
See also: box 444, folder 141 b. 440, f. 102 P-S See also: box 444, folder 141 b. 440, f. 103 T-W See also: box 444, folder 141 Mortgages and other Certificates of Indebtedness (1841-1895)-************************************	
See also: box 444, folder 141 b. 440, f. 103 T-W See also: box 444, folder 141 Mortgages and other Certificates of Indebtedness (1841-1895)-7 b. 440, f. 104 A	
See also: box 444, folder 141 Mortgages and other Certificates of Indebtedness (1841-1895)-7 b. 440, f. 104 A	
b. 440, f. 104 A	
	1921
b. 440, f. 105 Bai-Bal	
b. 440, f. 106 Ban-Bi	
b. 440, f. 107 BI-Bu	
b. 440, f. 108 C	
b. 441, f. 109 D	
b. 441, f. 110 E-F	
b. 441, f. 111 G	
b. 441, f. 112 Ha-He	
b. 441, f. 113 Hi-Hu	
b. 441, f. 114 I-J	
b. 441, f. 115 K	

Loans and Securities > Mortgages and other Certificates of Indebtedness (continued)

b. 441, f. 116	L	
b. 442, f. 117	Μ	
b. 442, f. 118	N-O	
b. 442, f. 119	P-Q	
b. 442, f. 120	R	
b. 442, f. 121	Sa-Se	
b. 442, f. 122	Sh-Sw	
b. 442, f. 123	т	
b. 443, f. 124	V-We	
b. 443, f. 125	Wh-Y, Unidentified	
b. 443, f. 126	Mortgages: register by place	1909-1912
b. 443, f. 127	Register and memoranda concerning insurance policies held as for bonds	s security Circa 1878-1885
b. 444, f. 128-141	Oversize box for series	

Series VI: Construction Records, 1752-1941

58 linear feet (71 boxes)

CONSTRUCTION RECORDS contains all treasurer's records, except correspondence, relating to the construction of Yale buildings. These records include not only accounts of the costs of buildings but also more detailed information on the planning, design, and construction of individual buildings. (For additional information on the costs of buildings see also: Series IV, folder 6.) The series is divided chronologically into three sub-series:

1752-1860

1861-1921

Thomas W. Farnam's Building Files(ca. 1921-1941)

In each of the sub-series the records are arranged by individual building. The designation of building names and the alphabetization of the folders follow the format used in *Buildings and Grounds of Yale University* (New Haven, Yale University Printing Service, 1979 September). For any particular building the files may include estimates of costs, contracts and other agreements, specifications, bids, receipts, vouchers, building committee minutes, and accounts of expenditures. Originally these files also contained some architects" drawings and a fair quantity of blueprints. All of these have now been removed from this series and transferred to YRG #46: Architectural Drawings, Buildings and Ground Plans, University Maps.

The files become progressively more voluminous through the sub-series. The record is scant for *1752-1860*, somewhat fuller for *1861-1921* and almost overwhelming for Yale's great building boom, ca, 1921-1941. These latter files are referred to as *Thomas W. Farnam's Building Files* labour and materials. The bills are arranged by building.

Series III, CORRESPONDENCE, contains much significant correspondence with the architects of Yale buildings. Particularly important are the large files for Cady, Berg & See; Carrère & Hastings; Charles Haight; and Russell Sturgis. The sub-series *Filing code* includes extensive correspondence organized according to building. The folder listing for Series VI incorporates many cross-references to the *Filling Code* for the code appropriate to the individual buildings. More general correspondence concerning the overall constructions plans will be found in filing code #188a, #188b, and #411.

The materials are open for research.

	1752-1860	
b. 445, f. 1-2	Alumni Hall: contracts, contractors" accounts, vouchers, labour account books	1852-1853
b. 445, f. 3	Berkeley Hall (North Middle College); agreements, estimates	1800-1904
b. 445, f. 4	Second Chapel: contracts and accounts, 1823-1825, in volume with accounts for North College, 1821, and student wood orders, 1820	1820-1825
b. 445, f. 5	Commons and Kitchen; Old Laboratory: agreements, directions	1782
b. 445, f. 6	Commons; Philosophical Building (Cabinet); agreements, specifications, bill for Bake House	1819, 1836, 1841
b. 445, f. 7	<u>Connecticut Hall (South Middle College): accounts of receipts and expenditures</u>	1752-1756
b. 445, f. 8	Connecticut Lyceum: estimates	Circa 1801

1752-1860 (continued)

b. 445, f. 9	Divinity College: estimate, specifications, agreements	1835
b. 445, f. 10	House for Professor of Divinity: account of expense	1757
b. 445, f. 11	Old Gymnasium; Commons; Herrick Hall: Contracts and specifications	1859-1860
b. 445, f. 12	Iron Fence on College Street; memoranda, estimates	1860
b. 445, f. 13	Old Library: Dwight Hall and Dwight Memorial Chapel: memoranda book of contracts, ledger of accounts with stone cutters, bills from Middlesex Quarry Company See also: <u>box 455, folder 135</u>	1842-1844
b. 445 , f. 1 4	Medical Institution; (South) Sheffield Hall: bills for repairs	1832-1835
b. 445, f. 15	Medical School Building; contracts	1858
b. 445, f. 16	North College: bids, estimates and agreements	1820-1821, 1858
b. 445, f. 17	North College: account #1 with vouchers	1821
b. 445, f. 18	North College: other vouchers See also: <u>box 445, folder 4</u>	1821
b. 445, f. 19	Second President's House; Analytical Laboratory: contract with Peter Banner, specifications, account	1799
b. 445, f. 20	Trumbull Gallery; Treasury Building: estimates, agreements	1832
b. 445, f. 21	Union Hall (South College): account	1795
b. 445, f. 22	Undentified: estimates: accounts, notes	[176?-ca.1840]
186	1-1921	
b. 446, f. 23	Adee Boat House: cash voucher, receipt See also: <u>box 313, folder 2001</u>	1910
b. 446 , f. 24	Yale Armory: contracts, correspondence, accounts, receipts See also: <u>box 358, folders 2476-2477</u>	1916-1917
b. 446, f. 25-26	Art Building: Street Hall: accounts, receipts, contracts See also: <u>box 336, folder 2208</u>	1866-1869, 1895
b. 446, f. 27	Baseball Cage: contracts See also: <u>box 343, folder 2310</u>	1912
b. 446, f. 28	Battell Chapel: receipts, specifications for organ	1867-1868, 1875-1877
b. 446 , f. 29	Battel Chapel: bids, contracts, and receipts for alterations See also: <u>box 291, folder 1776</u>	1893
b. 446, f. 30	Berkeley Hall: bids, contracts, receipts	1893-1894

1861-1921 (continued)

b. 446, f. 31-36	Bicentennial Buildings: memoranda concerning architects" competition, contracts, specifications, vouchers, agreements concerning organ See also: <u>box 327, folder 2115 box 344, folder 2328</u>	1899-1902, 1915-1920
b. 446, f. 37	Boiler House and Steam Department: contracts, bills	1893-1894
b. 447, f. 38	Carnegie Swimming Pool: committee minutes, contracts See also: <u>box 280, folder 1695</u>	
b. 447, f. 39-43	Central Power Plant: contracts, specifications, work orders, bills	1917-1918
b. 447 , f. 4 4	Daniels Memorial Gateway: bids, contracts	1911-1912
b. 447, f. 45	Day Missions Library: contracts See also: <u>box 337, folders 2210-2212</u>	1911
b. 447, f. 46-47	Durfee Hall: contract and bid for original construction; contracts and specification for alterations See also: <u>box 290, folder 1760</u>	1871-1905
b. 448, f. 48	East Divinity Hall; Edwards Hall: contracts for original construction, bids and contract for repairs	1869, 1891
b. 448, f. 49	Farnam Hall: bids and contracts for original construction, contracts for remodeling See also: <u>box 290, folder 1763</u>	1868-1869, 1894
b. 448, f. 50-51	Fayerweather Hall: bids, contracts, specifications, vouchers See also: <u>box 290, folder 1761</u>	1900
b. 448, f. 52	Gibbs Hall: contract	1917
b. 448, f. 53	Gifford Ward-Ellen M. Gifford's Home for Incurables, Y-NHH: contracts	1889
b. 448, f. 54-55	Old Gymnasium; Commons 1892-1901; Herrick Hall: bids, contracts, and specifications for Commons alterations; contract for Herrick Hall alterations	1892, 1912
b. 448, f. 56	Haughton Hall: bill See also: <u>box 304, folders 1894-1895</u>	1908
b. 448, f. 57	Heliostat Building: contract 1915	
b. 448, f. 58-60	Hendrie Hall: bids, contracts, specifications, vouchers	1894-1895
b. 448, f. 61-62	Jane Ellen Hope Memorial Building: contracts, vouchers, bills	1901-1904
b. 449, f. 63-65	Jane Ellen Hope Memorial Building: specifications	1901 May 15
b. 449, f. 66	Yale Infirmary: bids, contracts, specifications, and receipts for original constructions; contract for extension See also: <u>box 302, folders 1869-1870</u>	1892-1893, 1905
b. 449, f. 67	Kent Chemical Laboratory; Kent Hall: vouchers for original construction; contracts, specifications, and vouchers for addition	1887, 1901-1902

1861-1921 (continued)

b. 449, f. 68-69	Lampson Lyceum and Hall: contracts, bids, notes, specifications and vouchers See also: <u>box 308, folder 1940</u>	1902-1904
b. 449, f. 70	Lawrance Hall: contracts, bids, specifications, vouchers, account of expenditures See also: <u>box 302, folder 1867</u>	1885-1886
b. 450 , f. 71	Linsly Hall; Linsly-Chittenden Hall: contracts, specifications, receipts	1905-1907
b. 450, f. 72	Marquand Chapel: contracts See also: <u>box 291, folder 1776</u>	1870
b. 450, f. 73	Medical School Building: contracts, bids, vouchers for laboratory addition	1892-1894
b. 450, f. 74-77	Osborn Memorial Laboratory: bids, contracts, vouchers	1912-1913
b. 450, f. 78	Pierson Hall: bids, contracts, specifications, vouchers	1896
b. 450, f. 79	Porter Gateway: contracts See also: <u>box 342, folder 2305</u>	1912
b. 451, f. 80	Sheffield Chemical Laboratory; Sheffield Scientific School Laboratory of Engineering Mechanics; 51 Prospect St.: bids, contracts, specifications, vouchers	1894-1895
b. 451 , f. 81-82	Sloane Physics Laboratory: contracts, estimates See also: <u>box 259, folder 1500 box 305, folders 1898-1903</u>	1910-1912
b. 451, f. 83	Albert Arnold Sprague Memorial Hall: contracts See also: <u>box 357, folders 2468-2470</u>	1916-1917
b. 451, f. 84	Squash Courts and Bowling Alleys: contracts See also: <u>box 350, folder 2418</u>	1916
b. 451 , f. 85	Trowbridge Library: contract	1881
b. 451, f. 86	Welch Hall: specifications, vouchers See also: <u>box 289, folder 1759</u>	1891-1893
b. 451 , f. 87	West Divinity Hall; Taylor Hall: contracts, estimates	1873-1874
b. 451, f. 88	White Hall: contracts, estimates, vouchers See also: <u>box 289, folder 1759</u>	1893-1894
b. 451, f. 89	Winchester Hall: contracts, vouchers	1892
b. 451, f. 90	Winchester Observatory: contracts See also: <u>box 281, folders 1698-1699</u>	1882, 1896
b. 451, f. 91	Woodbridge Hall: contract, specifications See also: <u>box 322, folder 2069</u>	1900
b. 451 , f. 92	Wright Memorial Hall: contract, vouchers See also: <u>box 290, folders 1764-1768</u>	1911-1912

1861-1921 (continued)

b. 451, f. 93	Unidentified	1917	
Thomas W. Farnam's Building Files			
b. 452, f. 94	Yale Alumni War Memorial	1925-1928	
	See also: <u>box 340, folder 2251</u>		
b. 452, f. 95-98	Art Gallery See also: box 252, folders 1428-1434	1926-1931	
b. 452, f. 99		1927-1928	
·	Battell Chapel, alterations		
b. 453, f. 100-102	Berkeley College	1931-1935	
b. 453, f. 103-105	Charles W. Bingham Hall See also: <u>box 346, folder 2364</u>	1926-1929	
b. 453, f. 106	Bowers Hall	1930-1932	
b. 453, f. 107-110	Anthony N. Brady Memorial Laboratory, Farnam Memorial Building, and Lauder Hall	1926-1930	
b. 454, f. 111-113	Branford College, Saybrook College	1932-1935	
	See also: box 357, folder 2471		
b. 454, f. 114	65 Broadway	1935	
b. 454, f. 115-120	Calhoun College	1930-1935	
b. 454, f. 121-122	Walter Camp Gateway	1927-1928	
b. 454, f. 123-124	Central Power Plant See also: <u>box 265, folders 1559-1561 box 324, folders 2091-2092</u>	1924-1933	
b. 455 , f. 125	250 Church St.	1935	
b. 455, f. 126	258 Church St.	1934	
b. 455, f. 127-129	Clinic Building (includes building conference minutes for the Medical and Pediatrics Laboratory and the Raleigh Fitkins Memorial Pavilion) See also: <u>box 458, folder 169</u>	1929-1931	
b. 455, f. 130	Charles E. Coxe Memorial Gymnasium See also: <u>box 352, folder 2428</u>	1927-1928	
b. 455, f. 131	DeWitt Cuyler Field Fence	1928	
b. 455, f. 132-134	Davenport College, Pierson College	1930-1935	
	Dickinson Hall		
	See: <u>box 456, folder 138</u>		
b. 455 , f. 135	Dwight Hall, alterations	1926-1932	
	See also: <u>box 259, folders 1495-1496</u>		
b. 456, f. 136-137	Timothy Dwight College	1934-1936	

Thomas W. Farnam's Building Files (continued)

b. 456 , f. 138	Jonathan Edwards College (Dickinson Hall, Wheelock Hall)	1923-1928
b. 456, f. 139-141	Jonathan Edwards College See also: <u>box 329, folder 2127</u>	1931-1934
b. 456 , f. 142	164 Fairfield Ave., Bridgeport	1934-1935
	Farnam Memorial Building See: <u>box 453, folders 107-110</u>	
b. 456 , f. 143-145	Raleigh Fitkin Memorial Pavilion See also: <u>box 455, folder 127</u>	1928-1930
b. 456, f. 146	Gales Ferry Boat House See also: <u>box 313, folder 2008</u>	1926
b. 456, f. 147-150	Hall of Graduate Studies	1930-1935
	105 Grove St. See: <u>box 463, folder 230, 231</u>	
b. 456 , f. 151	Briton Hadden Memorial Building	1931-1932
b. 457 , f. 152-153	William L. Harkness Hall See also: <u>box 365, folders 2532-2534</u>	1926-1929
b. 457, f. 154-156	Department of University Health Building	1929-1931
b. 457, f. 157	47 Hillhouse Ave., alterations	1924
b. 457 , f. 158-161	Institute of Human Relations (including financial analyses for Medical and Pediatrics Laboratory)	1929-1932
	Kingsley/Havemeyer House See: <u>box 463, folder 230, 231</u>	
b. 457 , f. 162	Lapham Field House See also: <u>box 360, folders 2495-2496</u>	1923-1924
	Lauder Hall See: <u>box 453, folders 107-110</u>	
b. 457 , f. 163	Linsly-Chittenden Hall, alterations	1930-1932
b. 457, f. 164	Edwin McClellan Hall See also: <u>box 329, folder 2126</u>	1924-1926
b. 458 , f. 165	279 Mansfield St	1928, 1930
b. 458 , f. 166	Marsh Botanical Garden Fountain	1928
b. 458, f. 167-169	Medical and Pediatrics Laboratory (including financial analyses for Clinic Building) See also: <u>box 455, folder 127 box 457, folder 161</u>	1927, 1929-1931

Thomas W. Farnam's Building Files (continued)

b. 458 , f. 170	University Operations Building See also: <u>box 300, folder 1846</u>	1927-1929
b. 458 , f. 171-172	Peabody Museum of Natural History See also: <u>box 351, folders 2421-2425</u>	1922-1926
	Pierson College See: <u>box 455, folders 132-134</u>	
b. 458, f. 173	Pierson-Sage Boiler and Refrigeration Plant See also: <u>box 265, folders 1559-1561</u>	1921-1922, 1929-1932
b. 458 , f. 174	Sage Hall See also: <u>box 256, folder 1470-1472</u>	1923-1925
	Saybrook College See: <u>box 454, folders 111-113</u>	
b. 458, f. 175-178	Sheffield-Sterling-Strathcona Hall	1928-1933
b. 459, f. 179-182	Silliman College See also: <u>box 463, folders 227-228</u>	1931-1932, 1939-1941
b. 459 , f. 183	Sterling Chemistry Laboratory See also: <u>box 366, folder 2536</u>	1921-1926
b. 459 , f. 184-187	Sterling Divinity Quadrangle	1930-1934
b. 460, f. 188	Sterling Dormitory	1929-1931
b. 460 , f. 189-192	Sterling Hall of Medicine See also: <u>box 352, folder 2430</u>	1922-1925
b. 460, f. 193-195	Sterling Hall of Medicine, extension	1930-1932
b. 461 , f. 196-197	Sterling Hall of Medicine, library extension	1939-1941
b. 461, f. 198-201	Sterling Law Building	1927-1933
b. 461, f. 202-205	Sterling Memorial Library	1922-1923, 1927-1933
b. 462, f. 206-207	Sterling Memorial Library See also: <u>box 368, folders 2544-2545</u>	1928-1935
b. 462, f. 208	Sterling Power Plant	1923
b. 462, f. 209	Sterling Power Plant, addition See also: <u>box 265, folders 1559-1561</u>	1929-1933
b. 462 , f. 210	Sterling Properties, Connecticut and New York	
b. 462, f. 211-212	University Theatre See also: <u>box 312, folders 1982-1983</u>	1925-1929

Thomas W. Farnam's Building Files (continued)

b. 462, f. 213-217	Ray Tompkins House	1931-1934
b. 463, f. 218-221	Sarah Wey Tompkins Memorial Pavilion	1931-1934
b. 463, f. 222	Trowbridge Library, extension	1925-1926
b. 463, f. 223-226	Trumbull College	1929-1935
b. 463, f. 227-228	Vanderbilt-Scientific Halls	1939
b. 463, f. 229	Weir Hall, alterations	1924-1925
	Wheelock Hall See: <u>box 456, folder 138</u>	
b. 463, f. 230	31 Whitney Ave.	1934
b. 463, f. 231-232	Payne Whitney Gymnasium	1929-1934
b. 464, f. 233-237	Payne Whitney Gymnasium	1929-1935
b. 464 , f. 238	William Wirt Winchester Hospital, West Haven, laundry extension	1930
b. 464, f. 239	Winchester Observatory, alterations	1928, 1930
b. 464 , f. 240	Woolsey Hall, refurbishing	1922, 1928-1931
b. 464, f. 241-242	Building cost estimates submitted by S. H. Francis and others	1925-1941
b. 464, f. 243	Construction personnel census	1931-1941
D. 404, 1. 243		
b. 464, f. 244	List of bidders approved for sub-contract work	undated
		undated 1926 July-1933 June
b. 464, f. 244	List of bidders approved for sub-contract work	1926 July-1933
b. 464, f. 244	List of bidders approved for sub-contract work Time schedules with monthly progress charts, arranged chronologically	1926 July-1933 June
b. 464, f. 244 b. 465, f. 245-248	List of bidders approved for sub-contract work Time schedules with monthly progress charts, arranged chronologically Time schedules with monthly progress charts, arranged by building: Berkeley College; Branford College and Saybrook College; Calhoun	1926 July-1933 June
b. 464, f. 244 b. 465, f. 245-248 b. 465, f. 249	List of bidders approved for sub-contract work Time schedules with monthly progress charts, arranged chronologically Time schedules with monthly progress charts, arranged by building: Berkeley College; Branford College and Saybrook College; Calhoun College Clinic Building; Davenport College and Pierson College; Timothy	1926 July-1933 June Circa 1929-1933
b. 464, f. 244 b. 465, f. 245-248 b. 465, f. 249 b. 465, f. 250	List of bidders approved for sub-contract work Time schedules with monthly progress charts, arranged chronologically Time schedules with monthly progress charts, arranged by building: Berkeley College; Branford College and Saybrook College; Calhoun College Clinic Building; Davenport College and Pierson College; Timothy Dwight College; Jonathan Edwards College Hall of Graduate Studies; Department of University Health; Institute of	1926 July-1933 June Circa 1929-1933
b. 464, f. 244 b. 465, f. 245-248 b. 465, f. 249 b. 465, f. 250 b. 465, f. 251	List of bidders approved for sub-contract work Time schedules with monthly progress charts, arranged chronologically Time schedules with monthly progress charts, arranged by building: Berkeley College; Branford College and Saybrook College; Calhoun College Clinic Building; Davenport College and Pierson College; Timothy Dwight College; Jonathan Edwards College Hall of Graduate Studies; Department of University Health; Institute of Human Relation; Linsly-Chittenden Hall Sheffield-Sterling-Strathcona Hall; Silliman College; Sterling Divinity	1926 July-1933 June Circa 1929-1933
b. 464, f. 244 b. 465, f. 245-248 b. 465, f. 249 b. 465, f. 250 b. 465, f. 251 b. 466, f. 252	List of bidders approved for sub-contract work Time schedules with monthly progress charts, arranged chronologically Time schedules with monthly progress charts, arranged by building: Berkeley College; Branford College and Saybrook College; Calhoun College Clinic Building; Davenport College and Pierson College; Timothy Dwight College; Jonathan Edwards College Hall of Graduate Studies; Department of University Health; Institute of Human Relation; Linsly-Chittenden Hall Sheffield-Sterling-Strathcona Hall; Silliman College; Sterling Divinity Quadrangle	1926 July-1933 June Circa 1929-1933
b. 464, f. 244 b. 465, f. 245-248 b. 465, f. 249 b. 465, f. 250 b. 465, f. 251 b. 466, f. 252 b. 466, f. 253	List of bidders approved for sub-contract work Time schedules with monthly progress charts, arranged chronologically Time schedules with monthly progress charts, arranged by building: Berkeley College; Branford College and Saybrook College; Calhoun College Clinic Building; Davenport College and Pierson College; Timothy Dwight College; Jonathan Edwards College Hall of Graduate Studies; Department of University Health; Institute of Human Relation; Linsly-Chittenden Hall Sheffield-Sterling-Strathcona Hall; Silliman College; Sterling Divinity Quadrangle Sterling Hall of Medicine, extension and library; Ray Tompkins House Sarah Way Tompkins Memorial Pavilion; Trumbull College; Payne	1926 July-1933 June Circa 1929-1933

Thomas W. Farnam's Building Files > Bills (continued)

b. 467	Art Gallery
b. 468	Art Gallery
b. 468	Battell Chapel, alterations
b. 468	Berkeley College
b. 469	Berkeley College
b. 470	Berkeley College
b. 470	Charles W. Bingham Hall
b. 471	Charles W. Bingham Hall
b. 471	Bowers Hall
b. 472	Anthony N. Brady Memorial Laboratory, Farnam Memorial Building, and Lauder Hall
b. 473	Branford College, Saybrook College
b. 474	Branford College, Saybrook College
b. 474	65 Broadway
b. 475	Calhoun College
b. 476	Calhoun College
b. 477	Walter Camp Gateway
b. 477	Central Power Plant See also: <u>box 511 box 455, folder 125 box 455, folder 126 box 478</u>
b. 478	Clinic Building
b. 479	DeWitt Cuyler Field Fence
b. 479	Davenport College, Pierson College
b. 480	Davenport College, Pierson College
b. 481	Davenport College, Pierson College
b. 482	Dwight Hall, alteration
b. 482	Timothy Dwight College
b. 483	Timothy Dwight College
b. 483	Jonathan Edwards College (Dickinson Hall, Wheelock Hall)
b. 484	Jonathan Edwards College
b. 485	Jonathan Edwards College
b. 486	Raleigh Fitkin Memorial Pavilion

Thomas W. Farnam's Building Files > Bills (continued)

b. 486	Hall of Graduate Studies
b. 487	Hall of Graduate Studies
b. 488	Hall of Graduates Studies
b. 488	105 Grove St.
b. 488	Briton Hadden Memorial Building
b. 488	William L. Harkness Hall
b. 489	William L. Harkness Hall
b. 489	Department of University Health Building
b. 489	Institute of Human Relations
b. 490	Institute of Human Relations
b. 490	Lapham Field House
b. 490	Linsly-Chittendon Hall, alterations
b. 490	279 Mansfield St.
b. 490	Marsh Botanical Garden Fountain
b. 490	Medical and Pediatrics Laboratory
b. 490	New Haven Hospital and Rose Street brick test panels
b. 490 b. 490	New Haven Hospital and Rose Street brick test panels University Operations Building
b. 490	University Operations Building
b. 490 b. 490	University Operations Building Peabody Museum of Natural History
b. 490 b. 490 b. 490	University Operations Building Peabody Museum of Natural History Pierson-Sage Boiler and Refrigeration Plant
b. 490 b. 490 b. 490 b. 490	University Operations Building Peabody Museum of Natural History Pierson-Sage Boiler and Refrigeration Plant Sage Hall
b. 490 b. 490 b. 490 b. 490 b. 491	University Operations BuildingPeabody Museum of Natural HistoryPierson-Sage Boiler and Refrigeration PlantSage HallSheffield-Sterling-Strathcona Hall
b. 490 b. 490 b. 490 b. 490 b. 491 b. 492	University Operations BuildingPeabody Museum of Natural HistoryPierson-Sage Boiler and Refrigeration PlantSage HallSheffield-Sterling-Strathcona HallSterling Chemistry Laboratory
b. 490 b. 490 b. 490 b. 490 b. 490 b. 491 b. 492 b. 493	University Operations BuildingPeabody Museum of Natural HistoryPierson-Sage Boiler and Refrigeration PlantSage HallSheffield-Sterling-Strathcona HallSterling Chemistry LaboratorySterling Divinity Quadrangle
b. 490 b. 490 b. 490 b. 490 b. 490 b. 491 b. 492 b. 493 b. 494	University Operations BuildingPeabody Museum of Natural HistoryPierson-Sage Boiler and Refrigeration PlantSage HallSheffield-Sterling-Strathcona HallSterling Chemistry LaboratorySterling Divinity QuadrangleSterling Divinity Quadrangle
b. 490 b. 490 b. 490 b. 490 b. 490 b. 491 b. 492 b. 493 b. 494 b. 494	University Operations BuildingPeabody Museum of Natural HistoryPierson-Sage Boiler and Refrigeration PlantSage HallSheffield-Sterling-Strathcona HallSterling Chemistry LaboratorySterling Divinity QuadrangleSterling Divinity QuadrangleSterling Dormitory
b. 490 b. 490 b. 490 b. 490 b. 490 b. 491 b. 492 b. 493 b. 493 b. 494 b. 494 b. 495	University Operations BuildingPeabody Museum of Natural HistoryPierson-Sage Boiler and Refrigeration PlantSage HallSheffield-Sterling-Strathcona HallSterling Chemistry LaboratorySterling Divinity QuadrangleSterling Divinity QuadrangleSterling DormitorySterling Hall of Medicine
b. 490 b. 490 b. 490 b. 490 b. 490 b. 491 b. 492 b. 492 b. 493 b. 494 b. 494 b. 494 b. 495 b. 496	University Operations BuildingPeabody Museum of Natural HistoryPierson-Sage Boiler and Refrigeration PlantSage HallSheffield-Sterling-Strathcona HallSterling Chemistry LaboratorySterling Divinity QuadrangleSterling Divinity QuadrangleSterling DormitorySterling Hall of MedicineSterling Hall of Medicine

Thomas W. Farnam's Building Files > Bills (continued)

b. 500	Sterling Law Buildings
b. 501	Sterling Memorial Library
b. 502	Sterling Memorial Library
b. 503	Sterling Memorial Library
b. 50 4	Sterling Memorial Library
b. 505	Sterling Memorial Library
b. 505	Sterling Power Plant, addition
b. 505	Sterling Pump House
b. 506	Street Hall, alterations
b. 506	University Theatre and fraternity area improvements
b. 507	Ray Tompkins House
b. 508	Sarah Wey Tompkins Memorial Pavilion
b. 509	Sarah Wey Tompkins Memorial Pavilion
b. 509	Trumbull College
b. 510	Trumbull College
b. 511	Tunnels
	See also: box 477
b. 512	No. 66 Wall Street, alterations
b. 512	Welch Hall, sidewalk
b. 512	Payne Whitney Gymnasium
b. 513	Payne Whitney Gymnasium
b. 51 4	Payne Whitney Gymnasium
b. 515	Payne Whitney Gymnasium
b. 515	Winchester Observatory, alterations
b. 515	Wright Hall, areaway

Folio Boxes

b. 108A, f. 2	Termbill charges	1727-1732 <i>,</i> 1755-1760
b. 108B , f. 1	Termbill charges	1823 January - 1833 August
b. 108B, f. 2	Termbill payments: daybook	1811 January-1820 April
b. 108A, f. 1	Ledger: dining hall	1902-1903
b. 444A, f. 5	Documents respecting the funds of 1792	1792-1796
b. 444A, f. 6	DeForest (David) Fund: terms of donation, history of fund, legal decisions, genealogy charts	Circa 1823-1907
b. 444A, f. 6A	Bergen (Francis) Memorial: deed of gift	1919
b. 444A, f. 7	Trumbull (John) annuity: agreements and deed of gift for paintings	1831-1833, 1841
	Long Term Leases:	Circa 1730-1826
b. 444A, f. 8	Canaan	
b. 444A, f. 9	Cheshire	
b. 444A, f. 10	Cornwall A copy of this material is available in digital form from Manuscripts and Archives. Contact Manuscripts and Archives at <u>beinecke.library@yale.edu</u> to request access to the digital copy.	
b. 444A, f. 11	Goshen	
b. 444A, f. 12	Kent	
b. 444A, f. 13	Mansfield	
b. 444A, f. 14	Norfolk	
	Long Term Leases:	Circa 1730-1826
b. 444B, f. 15	Oxford	
b. 444B, f. 16	Salisbury	
b. 444B, f. 17	Wallingford	
b. 444C, f. 18	Securities: accrued interest ledger	1919/1920-1921/1922

Folios

b. 58A, f. 1	Bills, receipts, and accounts for period recorded in ledger, "Yale College Treasury Book A"	1701-1828
b. 58A, f. 2	Ledger style accounts of John Prout	1756, 1759-1765
b. 58A, f. 3-4	Steward's accounts	1710, 1749-1765

Accession 19ND-A-475: Prospectus, 1973

The materials are open for research.

b.1 Prospectus

1973 July 10

Accession 19ND-A-492: Reports on Yale endowment, 1973

The materials are open for research.

b.1 Reports on Yale endowment

1973
Accession 1933-A-006: Records concerning the Mrs. Hepsa Eli Silliman Memorial, circa 1886-1889

The materials are open for research.

b.1 The Mrs. Hepsa Eli Silliman Memorial circa 1886-1889

Accession 1935-A-007: Records concerning the Yale Army Laboratory School, 1918-1920

The materials are open for research.

Yale Army Laboratory School

b. 1, f. 1	Contracts	1918
b. 1, f. 2	Room & Board statements for reimbursement	1918-1919
b. 1, f. 3	Utility & telephone bills & correspondence	1918-1920
b. 1, f. 4	Correspondence	1919-1920
b. 1, f. 5	Miscellaneous	1918-1919, undated

Accession 1944-A-002: Records of the Finance Committee, 1888-1896, 1924-1944

Finance Committee		1888-1896, 1924-1944
b. 1, f. 1	Minutes of Meetings	1888-1896
b. 1, f. 2-6	Statements and Memoranda	1924-1929
b. 2, f. 7-11	Statements and Memoranda	1929-1932
b. 3, f. 12-17	Statements and Memoranda	1932-1935
b. 4, f. 18-23	Statements and Memoranda	1935-1938
b. 5, f. 24-27	Statements and Memoranda	1938-1942
b. 5, f. 28-29	Miscellaneous Statements	1940-1944
b. 6	Miscellaneous Charts and Graphs	1922-1941

Accession 1961-A-006: Records concerning Helen Hadley Hall, 1938-1946, 1949, 1956-1959

b. 1, f. 1	Cora Putnam Hale Trust Final Accounting	1938 July - 1946 September
b. 1, f. 2	Indenture of Mortgage, Conn. Boola Inc. to Crocker First National Bank of San Francisco	1949 November
b. 1, f. 3	Indenture of Lease between Conn. Boola Inc., Landlord and R.H. Macy & Co. Inc., Tenant	1949 November

Accession 1986-A-077: Financial records, 1897-1966

Ser	ies I	
	1906-1919	1906-1919
b. 1, f. 1-14	Yale University: Estimated Income & Expenses	1906-1920
b. 1, f. 15	Budget & Expenditure Accounts	1919-1920
	Preliminary Salary Budgets:	1919-1920
b. 1, f. 16	Art School	
b. 1, f. 17	Department of Botany	
b. 1, f. 18	Department of Chemistry	
b. 1, f. 19	Department of Civil Engineering	
b. 1, f. 20	Department of Classics (Including Archeology & Sanskr	it)
b. 1, f. 21	Department of Education	
b. 1, f. 22	Department of Engineering Mechanics	
b. 1, f. 23	Department of English	
b. 1, f. 24	School of Forestry	
b. 1, f. 25	Department of Geology	
b. 1, f. 26	Department of German	
b. 1, f. 27	Department of History	
b. 1, f. 28	Law School	
b. 1, f. 29	Department of Mathematics	
b. 1, f. 30	Department of Mechanical Engineering	
b. 1, f. 31	School of Medicine	
b. 1, f. 32	Department of Mining & Metallurgy	
b. 1, f. 33	Department of Music	
b. 1, f. 34	Department of Philosophy	
b. 1, f. 35	Department of Physics	
b. 1, f. 36	Department of Physiological Chemistry & Bacteriology	
b. 1, f. 37	Department of Electrical Engineering	
b. 1, f. 38	Department of Religion	

Series I > Preliminary Salary Budgets: (continued)

b. 1, f. 39	Department of Romance	
b. 1, f. 40	Semitic & Biblical Department	
b. 1, f. 41	Department of Social & Political Science	
b. 1, f. 42	Department of Zoology	
19	20-1921	1920-1921
b. 2, f. 43	Estimated Income & Expenses	
b. 2, f. 44-46	Budget & Expenditure Accounts	
19	21-1922	1921-1922
b. 2, f. 47	Estimated Income & Expenses	
b. 2, f. 48	Salary Report-Miscellaneous	
b. 2, f. 49-51	Budget & Expenditure Accounts	
b. 3, f. 52	Details of Special Investments	
b. 3, f. 53	Freshman Scholarships	
b. 3, f. 54	Services Bureau	
b. 3, f. 55	Printed Revisions	
19	22-1923	1922-1923
19 b. 3, f. 56	22-1923 Estimated Income & Expenses	1922-1923
		1922-1923
b. 3, f. 56	Estimated Income & Expenses	1922-1923
b. 3, f. 56 b. 3, f. 57-59	Estimated Income & Expenses Budget & Expenditure Accounts	1922-1923
b. 3, f. 56 b. 3, f. 57-59 b. 3, f. 60	Estimated Income & Expenses Budget & Expenditure Accounts Details of Special Investments	1922-1923
b. 3, f. 56 b. 3, f. 57-59 b. 3, f. 60 b. 3, f. 61 b. 3, f. 62	Estimated Income & Expenses Budget & Expenditure Accounts Details of Special Investments Expenditures	1922-1923 1923-1924
b. 3, f. 56 b. 3, f. 57-59 b. 3, f. 60 b. 3, f. 61 b. 3, f. 62	Estimated Income & Expenses Budget & Expenditure Accounts Details of Special Investments Expenditures Salary Budgets	
b. 3, f. 56 b. 3, f. 57-59 b. 3, f. 60 b. 3, f. 61 b. 3, f. 62	Estimated Income & Expenses Budget & Expenditure Accounts Details of Special Investments Expenditures Salary Budgets 23-1924	
b. 3, f. 56 b. 3, f. 57-59 b. 3, f. 60 b. 3, f. 61 b. 3, f. 62 19 b. 4, f. 63	Estimated Income & Expenses Budget & Expenditure Accounts Details of Special Investments Expenditures Salary Budgets 23-1924 Details of Special Investments	
b. 3, f. 56 b. 3, f. 57-59 b. 3, f. 60 b. 3, f. 61 b. 3, f. 62 19 b. 4, f. 63 b. 4, f. 64	Estimated Income & ExpensesBudget & Expenditure AccountsDetails of Special InvestmentsExpendituresSalary Budgets23-1924Details of Special InvestmentsBudget Papers: Departments of Instruction: Botany to Geology	
b. 3, f. 56 b. 3, f. 57-59 b. 3, f. 60 b. 3, f. 61 b. 3, f. 62 19 b. 4, f. 63 b. 4, f. 64 b. 4, f. 65	Estimated Income & ExpensesBudget & Expenditure AccountsDetails of Special InvestmentsExpendituresSalary Budgets23-1924Details of Special InvestmentsBudget Papers: Departments of Instruction: Botany to GeologyBudget Papers: Departments of Instruction: German to Zoology	
b. 3, f. 56 b. 3, f. 57-59 b. 3, f. 60 b. 3, f. 61 b. 3, f. 62 19 b. 4, f. 63 b. 4, f. 64 b. 4, f. 65 b. 4, f. 66	Estimated Income & ExpensesBudget & Expenditure AccountsDetails of Special InvestmentsExpendituresSalary Budgets23-1924Details of Special InvestmentsBudget Papers: Departments of Instruction: Botany to GeologyBudget Papers: Departments of Instruction: German to ZoologyEstimate of Income & ExpensesBudget Papers: Schools & Administrative, Bureau of Appointments to	

1	924-1925	1924-1925
b. 4, f. 70	Detail of Special Investments	
b. 4, f. 71	Budget: Salaries, Summary of	
b. 4, f. 72	Budget Papers: Schools & Administrative: Bureau of Appointments to School of Medicine	
b. 4, f. 73	Budget Papers: Schools & Administrative: School of Law to Miscellaneous	
b. 4, f. 74	Budget Papers: Departments of Instruction: Bacteriology to Geology	
b. 4, f. 75	Budget Papers: Departments of Instruction: German to Zoology	
b. 5, f. 76	Estimates of Income & Expenses	
b. 5, f. 77	Budget: Funds, General	
1	925-1926	1925-1926
b. 5, f. 78	Budget: Funds, General	
b. 5 , f. 79	Budget Papers: Departments of Instruction: Applied Physiology & Zoology	
b. 5, f. 80	Income & Expenses, Estimates of	
b. 5 , f. 81	Budget Papers: Schools & Administrative, Graduate School to Law School	
b. 5, f. 82	Budget Papers: Schools & Administrative, School of Fine Arts to Service Bureau	
b. 5, f. 83	Budget: Salaries, Summary of	
b. 5, f. 84	Details of Special Investments	
1	926-1927	1926-1927
b. 5, f. 85	Budget: Funds, General	
b. 5, f. 86	Budget Papers: Schools & Administrative	
b. 6, f. 87	Budget Papers: Departments of Instruction: Applied Physiology to Zoology	
b. 6, f. 88	Estimate of Income & Expenses	
b. 6, f. 89	Details of Special Investments	
1	927-1928	1927-1928
b. 6, f. 90	Estimate of Income & Expenses	1927-1928
1	928-1929	1928-1929
b. 6, f. 91	Estimate of Income & Expenses	

	1929-1930	1929-1930
b. 6, f. 92	Estimate of Income & Expenses	
	1930-1931	1930-1931
b. 6, f. 93	Estimate of Income & Expenses	
	1931-1932	1931-1932
b. 6, f. 94	Estimate of Income & Expenses	
	1932-1933	1932-1933
b. 6, f. 95	Estimate of Income & Expenses	
	1933-1934	1933-1934
b. 6, f. 96	Budget & Expenditure Accounts: Departments	
b. 7, f. 97	Miscellaneous Funds	
b. 7, f. 98	Budget Funds	
b. 7 , f. 99	Budget & Expenditure Account of Various Departments	
b. 7, f. 100	Scholarships & Loans	
b. 7, f. 101	Estimate of Income & Expenses: Departments	
b. 7, f. 102	Description of Funds of Yale University & Board of Trustees of Sheffield Scientific School	d
b. 7, f. 103	Securities	
b. 7, f. 104	Investments & Securities	
b. 8, f. 105-108	Scholarships & Loans	
	1934-1935	1934-1935
b. 8, f. 109	Estimate of Income & Expenses: Departments	
b. 8, f. 110	Income & Expenses: treasurer's Report	
b. 8, f. 111	Budget & Expenditure Accounts	
b. 9, f. 112	Student Loans: Repayments & Loans	
	1935-1936	1935-1936
b. 9, f. 113	Income & Expenses: treasurer's Report	
b. 9, f. 114	Funds, Description of: Yale University & Board of Trustees of Sheffield Scientific School	
b. 9, f. 115	Funds Receivable	
b. 9, f. 116	Estimate of Income & Expenses: Departments	

	1936-1937	1936-1937
b. 9, f. 117	Estimate of Income & Expenses	
b. 9, f. 118	Income & Expenses	
b. 9, f. 119	Income & Expenses: treasurer's Report	
b. 9, f. 120	Details of Special Investments	
b. 9, f. 121	Student Loan Accounts	
b. 10, f. 122	Funds, Description of: Yale University & Board of Trustees of Sheffield Scientific School	
	1937-1938	1937-1938
b. 10, f. 123	treasurer's Report	
b. 10, f. 124	School & Administrative Departments	
b. 10, f. 125	Budget: Expenditure Accounts	
b. 10, f. 126	Estimate of Income & Expenses	
b. 10, f. 127	Details of Special Investments	
b. 10, f. 128	Funds, Description of: treasurer's Report	
b. 10, f. 129	Funds Receivable	
	1938-1939	1938-1939
b. 11 , f. 130	Income & Expenses, treasurer's Report	
b. 11, f. 131	Investments & Securities	
b. 11, f. 132	Funds Receivable	
b. 11, f. 133	Estimate of Income & Expenses: Departments	
b. 11, f. 134	Budget & Expenditure Accounts	
	1939-1940	1939-1940
b. 11, f. 135-136	Income & Expenses	
b. 11 , f. 137	Income & Expenses, treasurer's Report	
b. 11 , f. 138	Investments & Securities	
b. 11, f. 139	Budget & Expenditure Accounts	
b. 12, f. 140	Details of Special Investments	
b. 12, f. 141	Estimate of Income & Expenses: Departments	
b. 12, f. 142	Research: Rettger, Leo F.	

b. 12, f. 143	Scholarships & Loans	
b. 12, f. 144	Department Payroll, Income & Expenses	
b. 12, f. 145	Estimate of Income & Expenses	
b. 12, f. 146	Administrative Departments	
b. 12, f. 147-149	University Accounts	
b. 13, f. 150	Student Notes	
b. 13, f. 151	Income & Expenses, treasurer's Report	
b. 13, f. 152	Budget Appropriation Transfers	
b. 13, f. 153	Loan Fund Accounts	
b. 13, f. 154	Budget & Expenditure Accounts	
1941	-1942	1941-1942
b. 13, f. 155	Income & Expense Accounts	
b. 13, f. 156	Budgets	
b. 13, f. 157	Budget: Administrative Departments & Miscellaneous	
	Budget	
b. 14, f. 158	Admissions	
b. 14, f. 159	Admissions, Board of	
b. 14, f. 160	Air Raid Committee	
b. 14, f. 161	Allocations Committee	
b. 14, f. 162	Alumni & Public Relations	
b. 14, f. 163	Alumni Fund (1939-1940, 1940-1941, 1941-1942)	
b. 14, f. 164	Anthropology	
b. 14, f. 165	Appropriation transfers	
b. 14, f. 166	Archaeological Research	
b. 14, f. 167	Art Gallery	
b. 14, f. 168	Art, History of	
b. 14, f. 169	Astronomy	
b. 14, f. 170-171	Athletic Association	
b. 14, f. 172	Bingham Oceanographic	
b. 14, f. 173	Botanical Garden	

b. 14, f. 174	Botany
b. 14, f. 175	Bureau of Highway Traffic, Special Gifts
b. 14, f. 176	Bursar's Office
b. 14, f. 177	Bursary Appointments
b. 14, f. 178	Changes (Budget Changes)
b. 14, f. 179	Chemical Engineering
b. 14, f. 180	Chemistry
b. 14, f. 181	Chubb Fund (Timothy Dwight College)
b. 14, f. 182	Civil Engineering
b. 14, f. 183	Classics
b. 14, f. 184	College Dean (DeVane, William C.)
b. 14, f. 185	College Masters
b. 14, f. 186	Department Expenses
b. 14, f. 187	Departmental Statements
b. 15, f. 188	Dining Halls
b. 15, f. 189	Divinity School
b. 15 , f. 190	Economics
b. 15, f. 191	Education
b. 15, f. 192	Educational Supervision, Fund for
b. 15, f. 193	Electrical Engineering
b. 15 , f. 19 4	Engineering Drawing
b. 15 , f. 195	Engineering Library
b. 15 , f. 196	Engineering School
b. 15, f. 197	English
b. 15, f. 198	Entertainment
b. 15, f. 199-200	Expenditure Accounts
b. 15, f. 201	Fine Arts
b. 15, f. 202	Forestry
b. 15, f. 203	French
b. 15, f. 204	Freshman Year

b. 15 , f. 205	Geology
b. 15 , f. 206	German
b. 15 , f. 207	Government & International Relations
b. 15 , f. 208	Graduate School
b. 15 , f. 209	Ground Maintenance
b. 15 , f. 210	Gymnasium & Ray Tompkins House
b. 15 , f. 211	Heat, Light, Power, & Water
b. 15 , f. 212	History
b. 15 , f. 213	Institute of Human Relations
b. 15 , f. 21 4	Insurance
b. 15 , f. 215	Investment Income
b. 15 , f. 216	Law School
b. 16 , f. 217	Library
b. 16, f. 218	Mathematics
b. 16, f. 219	Mechanical Engineering
b. 16, f. 220	Medical Library
b. 16, f. 221	Medicine, School of
b. 16, f. 222	Metallurgy
b. 16, f. 223	Military Science
b. 16, f. 224	Miscellaneous Expenses, Budgeted by treasurer's Office
b. 16, f. 225	Miscellaneous Information
b. 16, f. 226	Music Department
b. 26, f. 227	Music, School of
b. 16, f. 228	Naval Science
b. 16, f. 229	Nursing
b. 16, f. 230	Offices, Schools, & Departments
b. 16 , f. 231	Oriental Studies
b. 16, f. 232	Other Expenses, Property
b. 16 , f. 233	Peabody Museum
b. 16 , f. 23 4	Pensions

b. 17, f. 235	Personnel Director
b. 17, f. 236	Philosophy
b. 17, f. 237	Photostats
b. 17, f. 238	Physical Education
b. 17 , f. 239	Physics
b. 17, f. 240	Physiology, Applied
b. 17, f. 241	President's Office
b. 17, f. 242	Provost
b. 17, f. 243	Psychology
b. 17, f. 244	Publications (University)
b. 17, f. 245	Repairs & Maintenance
b. 17, f. 246	Research: Rettger, Leo F.
b. 17, f. 247	Secretary's Office
b. 17, f. 248	Selective Service, Committee on
b. 17, f. 249	Selective Service Committee
b. 17, f. 250	Service Bureaus
b. 17, f. 251	Sheffield Scientific School
b. 17, f. 252	Sociology
b. 17, f. 253	Spanish, Italian
b. 17, f. 254	Sterling Professorships, Research
b. 17, f. 255	Student Aid
b. 17, f. 256	Student Loan Note Accounts
b. 17, f. 257	Telephone Costs
b. 17, f. 258	Transportation
b. 17, f. 259	treasurer's Office
b. 17, f. 260	Undergraduate Activities
b. 17, f. 261	Undergraduate Activities (Committee)
b. 17, f. 262	University Church
b. 17, f. 263	University Health
b. 18, f. 264	Wages

b. 18, f. 265	Working Papers	
b. 18 , f. 266	Zoology & Comparative Anatomy	
1942-194	3	1942-1943
Bud	dget	
b. 18, f. 267	Budgets	1942-1943
b. 18, f. 268	Income & Expenses Departments	
b. 18, f. 269	Air Raid Committee	
b. 18, f. 270	Allocations Committee	
b. 18, f. 271	Alumni Board & Relations & Alumni Magazine	
b. 18, f. 272	Alumni Fund	
b. 18, f. 273	Alumni War Service Committee	
b. 18, f. 274	Anthropology	
b. 18, f. 275	Appropriation Transfers	
b. 18, f. 276	Archaeological Research	
b. 18, f. 277	Art Gallery	
b. 18, f. 278	Astronomy	
b. 18, f. 279	Athletic Association Receipts	
b. 19 , f. 280	Bingham Oceanographic	
b. 19 , f. 281	Botany	
b. 19 , f. 282	Bureau of Highway Traffic	
b. 19 , f. 283	Bursar's Office	
b. 19, f. 284	Bursary Appointments	
b. 19 , f. 285	Chemical Engineering	
b. 19 , f. 286	Chemistry	
b. 19 , f. 287	Civil Engineering	
b. 19 , f. 288	Classics	
b. 19 , f. 289	College Dean	
b. 19 , f. 290	College Masters	
b. 19 , f. 291	Chubb Fund (Timothy Dwight College)	
b. 19 , f. 292	Departmental Statements	

b. 19, f. 293	Dining Halls
b. 19, f. 294	Divinity School
b. 19 , f. 295	Economics
b. 19 , f. 296	Education
b. 19 , f. 297	Educational Supervision
b. 19 , f. 298	Electrical Engineering
b. 19, f. 299	Engineering Drawing
b. 19 , f. 300	Engineering Library
b. 19, f. 301	Engineering, School of
b. 19 , f. 302	English
b. 19, f. 303	Entertainment
b. 19, f. 304-305	Expenditure Accounts
b. 19, f. 306	Faculty & Employee Relations
b. 20, f. 307	Fine Arts, Drama
b. 20, f. 308	Fine Arts, School of
b. 20, f. 309	Foreign Area Studies
b. 20, f. 310	Forestry, School of
b. 20, f. 311	French
b. 20, f. 312	Freshman Year
b. 20, f. 313	Geological Science
b. 20, f. 314	Germanic Languages
b. 20, f. 315	Government & International Relations
b. 20, f. 316	Graduate School
b. 20, f. 317	Grounds Maintenance
b. 20, f. 318	Gymnasium & Tompkins House
b. 20, f. 319	Heat, Light, Power, & Water
b. 20, f. 320	History
b. 20, f. 321	History of Art
b. 20, f. 322	Institute of Human Relations
b. 20, f. 323	Insurance

b. 20, f. 324	Investment Income
b. 20, f. 325	Law, School of
b. 20, f. 326	Library
b. 20, f. 327	Marsh Botanical Garden
b. 20, f. 328	Mathematics
b. 20, f. 329	Mechanical Engineering
b. 20, f. 330	Medicine, School of
b. 20, f. 331	Metallurgy
b. 20, f. 332	Military Science
b. 20, f. 333	Miscellaneous Information
b. 20, f. 334	Music
b. 20, f. 335	Music, School of
b. 20, f. 336	Naval Science
b. 20, f. 337	Nursing, School of
b. 20, f. 338	Offices, Schools, & Departments
b. 21, f. 339	Oriental Studies
b. 21, f. 340	Other Expenses
b. 21, f. 341	Peabody Museum
b. 21, f. 342	Pensions
b. 21, f. 343	Personnel Director's Office
b. 21, f. 344	Philosophy
b. 21, f. 345	Photostats
b. 21, f. 346	Physical Education
b. 21, f. 247	Physics
b. 21, f. 348	Physiology
b. 21, f. 349	Post-War Planning, Committee On
b. 21, f. 350	President's Office
b. 21, f. 351	Provost's Office
b. 21, f. 352	Psychology
b. 21, f. 353	Public Services, Lectures & Concerts

1943-194	44	1943-1944
b. 22, f. 381	Zoology	
b. 22, f. 380	Yerkes Primate Biology-Laboratories of,(Medical School)	
b. 22, f. 379	Wages	
b. 22, f. 378	University Health	
b. 22, f. 377	University Church	
b. 22, f. 376	Undergraduate Activities	
b. 22, f. 375	treasurer's Office-Miscellaneous Expenses & Income	
b. 22, f. 374	Transportation	
b. 22, f. 373	Transfers & Appropriations-Including Sterling Maintenance & Yale Endowment 1926 Fund	
b. 21, f. 372	Transfers	
b. 21, f. 371	Term Bills & Other Fees	
b. 21, f. 370	Telephone Costs	
b. 21, f. 369	Student Appointment Bureau	
b. 21, f. 368	Student Aid	
b. 21, f. 367	Sterling Professorships & Research	
b. 21, f. 366	Statements, treasurer's Office	
b. 21, f. 365	Spanish & Italian	
b. 21, f. 364	Sociology	
b. 21, f. 363	Social Research Committee	
b. 21 , f. 36 2	Sheffield Scientific School	
b. 21, f. 361	Service Bureaus	
b. 21, f. 360	Selective Service, Committee On	
b. 21, f. 359	Secretary's Office & News Bureau	
b. 21, f. 358	School	
b. 21, f. 357	Retiring Allowances	
b. 21, f. 356	Repairs & Maintenance	
b. 21 , f. 355	Real Estate Department	
b. 21 , f. 35 4	Publications (University)	

Budget

b. 22, f. 382	Budgets	1943-1944
b. 22, f. 383	Appropriations Transfers	
b. 22, f. 384	Athletic Association	
b. 22, f. 385	Statement of Income by School & Department	
b. 22, f. 386	Fund Accounts	
b. 22, f. 387	New Accounts	
b. 22, f. 388	Prepaid Insurance	
b. 22, f. 389	Rettger Research Payments	
b. 23, f. 390	Postings to General Ledger	
b. 23, f. 391	treasurer's Office-Budget Statements	
b. 23, f. 392	treasurer's Report	
1944-1945		1944-1945
Budg	get	
b. 23, f. 393	Budgets	1944-1945
b. 23, f. 394	Athletic Association-Cash receipts	
b. 23, f. 395	Comparison of 1944-1945 Actual & 1943-1944 Actual	
b. 23, f. 396-397	Budget & Expenditure Accounts by Department & School	
b. 23, f. 398-399	New Accounts	
b. 23, f. 400-401	Postings to the General Ledger	
b. 23, f. 402-403	treasurer's Report	
b. 23, f. 404	treasurer's Report-Detailed Statement of	
1945-1946		1945-1946
Budg	get	
b. 24, f. 405	Postings to the General Ledger	
b. 24, f. 406	Athletic Association-Cash receipts	
b. 24, f. 407	Comparison of 1945-1946 Actual and 1944-1945 Actual	
b. 24, f. 408	Budgets: By department & school	
b. 24, f. 409	Postings to the General Ledger	
b. 24, f. 410	Research: Rettger	
b. 24, f. 411	treasurer's Office: Budget Statements	

b. 24, f. 412	treasurer's Report, Corrections to	
b. 24, f. 413-414	Budget & Expenditure Accounts by Department & School	
b. 25, f. 415	Photostats of budgets	
1946-1947		1946-1947
Budg	get	
b. 25, f. 416	Comparison of 1946-1947 Actual & 1945-1946 Actual	
b. 25, f. 417	Athletic Association: receipts	
b. 25, f. 418-419	Budget & Expenditure Accounts	
b. 25, f. 420	Budget transfers	
b. 25, f. 421	Funds Income Accounts-Insurance Schedule	
b. 26, f. 422	New Accounts	
b. 26, f. 423	Report of the Treasurer: Galleys	
b. 26, f. 424	treasurer's Report-Budget Statements	
1947-1948		1947-1948
Budg	get	
b. 26, f. 425	Accounts, Miscellaneous	
b. 26, f. 426	Athletic Association: cash receipts	
b. 26, f. 427	Comparison of 1947-1948 Actual & 1946-1947 Actual	
b. 26, f. 428	Budget Statements	1947-1948
b. 26, f. 429	Budget & Expenditure Accounts	
b. 26, f. 430	Budget: Postings to General Ledger	
b. 27, f. 431	Rettger, Leo F.: Research	
b. 27, f. 432	treasurer's Report: Galleys	
b. 37, f. 433	treasurer's Report: Detailed Statement	
b. 27, f. 434	treasurer's Reports	
b. 27, f. 435	Photostats: treasurer's Report	
b. 27, f. 435	Yale Board of Trustees (of S.S.S.): Report on Examination, year end 6/30/48	
1948-1949		1948-1949
Budg	get	
b. 28, f. 437	Comparison of 1948/1949 Budget & 1948/1949 Actual	

b. 28, f. 438	treasurer's Office: Budget Statements	
b. 28, f. 439-440	Budget & Expenditure Accounts	
b. 28, f. 441	Photostats: Athletic Association Accounts	
b. 28, f. 442	Comments on Examination for the year ended 6/30/49	
b. 28, f. 443	Increase of Funds	
b. 28, f. 444	Institute of International Relations	
b. 28, f. 445	Photostats: Real Estate Income & Expenses Report	
b. 28, f. 446-447	Treasurer, Report of the	
b. 29, f. 448	treasurer's Report & Other Financial Papers	
1949-19	50	1949-1950
Bu	ıdget	
b. 29, f. 449	Comparison of 1949/1950 Budget & 1949/1950 Actual	
b. 29, f. 450	treasurer's Office: Budget Statements	
b. 29, f. 451	Institute of International Studies-Rockefeller Foundation (Arts & Sciences)	
1950-19	51	1950-1951
Bu	ıdget	
b. 29 , f. 45 2	Analysis of Difference in 1949/1950 & 1950/1951 Budget as of May 13, 1950	
b. 29, f. 453	Comparison of 1950/1951 Budget & 1950/1951 Actual	
b. 29 , f. 45 4	Analysis of Differences in 1950/1951 & 1951/1952 Budgets as Presented May 12, 1951	
b. 29, f. 455	treasurer's Office: Budget Statements	
b. 29, f. 456	Institute of International Studies	
1951-195	52	1951-1952
Bu	ıdget	
b. 29, f. 457	Comparison of 1951/1952 Budget & 1951/1952 Actual	
b. 29, f. 458	Breakdown in Accounts	
	treasurer's Office: Budget Statements	
b. 29, f. 460	Institute of International Studies	
1952-19	53	1952-1953
Bu	ıdget	

b. 29, f. 461	treasurer's Office: Budget Statements	
	1953-1954	1953-1954
b. 30, f. 462	Analysis of Differences in 1952/1953 & 1953/1954 Budgets as Presented May 9, 1953	
b. 30, f. 463	Government Contract Dollar Volume 7/53-6/54	
	1954-1955	1954-1955
	Analysis of Differences in 1954/1955 & 1955/1956 Budgets a Presented May 14, 1955	
b. 30, f. 465	Comparison of 1954/1955 Budget & 1954/1955 Actual	
b. 30, f. 466	treasurer's Office: Budget Statements	
	1955-1956	1955-1956
b. 30, f. 467	Analysis of Differences in 1955/1956 & 1956/1957 Budgets, Presented May 12, 1956	
b. 30, f. 468	Comparison of 1955/1956 Budget & 1955/1956 Actual	
b. 30, f. 469	treasurer's Office: Preliminary Budget Statements	
b. 30, f. 470	Summary of Contract Costs	
	1956-1957	1956-1957
b. 30, f. 471	Analysis Differences & Comparison Budget	
b. 30, f. 471 b. 30, f. 472	Analysis Differences & Comparison Budget treasurer's Office: Budget Statements, Preliminary Budget Statements	
b. 30, f. 472	· · · ·	1957-1958
b. 30, f. 472	treasurer's Office: Budget Statements, Preliminary Budget Statements	1957-1958
b. 30, f. 472	treasurer's Office: Budget Statements, Preliminary Budget Statements 1957-1958 Analysis of Differences in 1956/1957 & 1957/1958 Budgets as Presented	1957-1958
b. 30, f. 472 b. 30, f. 473	treasurer's Office: Budget Statements, Preliminary Budget Statements 1957-1958 Analysis of Differences in 1956/1957 & 1957/1958 Budgets as Presented May 11, 1957	1957-1958
b. 30, f. 472 b. 30, f. 473 b. 30, f. 474	treasurer's Office: Budget Statements, Preliminary Budget Statements 1957-1958 Analysis of Differences in 1956/1957 & 1957/1958 Budgets as Presented May 11, 1957 Budget: 1957-1958, Comparison & Analysis Analysis in Differences in 1957/1958 & 1958/1959 Budgets as of May 10,	1957-1958
b. 30, f. 472 b. 30, f. 473 b. 30, f. 474 b. 30, f. 475	treasurer's Office: Budget Statements, Preliminary Budget Statements 1957-1958 Analysis of Differences in 1956/1957 & 1957/1958 Budgets as Presented May 11, 1957 Budget: 1957-1958, Comparison & Analysis Analysis in Differences in 1957/1958 & 1958/1959 Budgets as of May 10, 1958	1957-1958
 b. 30, f. 472 b. 30, f. 473 b. 30, f. 474 b. 30, f. 475 b. 30, f. 476 	treasurer's Office: Budget Statements, Preliminary Budget Statements1957-1958Analysis of Differences in 1956/1957 & 1957/1958 Budgets as Presented May 11, 1957Budget: 1957-1958, Comparison & AnalysisAnalysis in Differences in 1957/1958 & 1958/1959 Budgets as of May 10, 1958treasurer's Office: Preliminary Budget Statements	1957-1958
 b. 30, f. 472 b. 30, f. 473 b. 30, f. 474 b. 30, f. 475 b. 30, f. 476 b. 31, f. 477 	treasurer's Office: Budget Statements, Preliminary Budget Statements1957-1958Analysis of Differences in 1956/1957 & 1957/1958 Budgets as Presented May 11, 1957Budget: 1957-1958, Comparison & AnalysisAnalysis in Differences in 1957/1958 & 1958/1959 Budgets as of May 10, 1958treasurer's Office: Preliminary Budget StatementsOverhead Projection: Government Contracts, Schedule I Navy	1957-1958
b. 30, f. 472 b. 30, f. 473 b. 30, f. 474 b. 30, f. 475 b. 30, f. 476 b. 31, f. 477 b. 31, f. 478	treasurer's Office: Budget Statements, Preliminary Budget Statements1957-1958Analysis of Differences in 1956/1957 & 1957/1958 Budgets as Presented May 11, 1957Budget: 1957-1958, Comparison & AnalysisAnalysis in Differences in 1957/1958 & 1958/1959 Budgets as of May 10, 1958treasurer's Office: Preliminary Budget StatementsOverhead Projection: Government Contracts, Schedule I NavyOverhead StudyConnecticut State Hospital School of Nursing: Agreements for	1957-1958
b. 30, f. 472 b. 30, f. 473 b. 30, f. 474 b. 30, f. 474 b. 30, f. 475 b. 30, f. 476 b. 31, f. 477 b. 31, f. 478 b. 31, f. 479	treasurer's Office: Budget Statements, Preliminary Budget Statements1957-1958Analysis of Differences in 1956/1957 & 1957/1958 Budgets as Presented May 11, 1957Budget: 1957-1958, Comparison & AnalysisAnalysis in Differences in 1957/1958 & 1958/1959 Budgets as of May 10, 1958treasurer's Office: Preliminary Budget StatementsOverhead Projection: Government Contracts, Schedule I NavyOverhead StudyConnecticut State Hospital School of Nursing: Agreements for AffiliationInstitute of Far Eastern Languages-Air Force Language Training	1957-1958

	1958-1959	1958-1959
	Analysis of Difference in 1958/1959 Approved Budget Compared with 1959/1960 Preliminary Budget - as of Feb. 1, 1959	
b. 31, f. 485	treasurer's Office-Budget Statements	
b. 31 , f. 485	Income Analysis, Institute of Far Eastern Languages	
b. 31, f. 486	Institute of Far Eastern Languages	
b. 31, f. 487	Overhead Projection-Government Contracts	
b. 31, f. 488	Overhead Study, Yale University	
b. 31, f. 489	Overhead Study-Top Schedules & Summary	
	1959-1960	1959-1960
b. 31, f. 490	Budget-Comparison & Actual	
b. 31, f. 491	Comparison & Analysis of Budgets	1959/1960-1960/1961
b. 32, f. 492	Budget-Comparisons & Analysis-1958/1959-1959/1960	
b. 32, f. 493	treasurer's Office: Preliminary Budget Statements	
b. 32, f. 494	Expenses	
b. 32, f. 495	Overhead Study for Schedules & Summaries	
b. 32, f. 496	Overhead Study-Property Expense Conversation of Budget to Actual	
b. 32, f. 497	Overhead & Department Expenses	
b. 32, f. 498	Overhead Projection	
b. 32, f. 499	Overhead Contract-Overhead Projection	
b. 32, f. 500	Overhead Study-Property Expense Summary & Individual Building Cost Distribution	
b. 32, f. 501	Overhead Study-Basic Work Papers	
	1960-1961	1960-1961
b. 32, f. 502	Budget: Analysis & Comparison	
b. 32, f. 503	Budgets: Comparisons & Analysis	
b. 33, f. 504	Endowment Fund: Increases & Decreases	
b. 33, f. 505-506	Income & Expenses	
b. 33, f. 507	Investment Section	
b. 33, f. 508	Overhead Summaries: A-M	
b. 33, f. 509	Overhead Worksheets: Recap, of "Blue Book"	

b. 33, f. 511	treasurer's Report: Printer's Schedule	
b. 33, f. 512	treasurer's Report: Board of Trustees	
b. 34, f. 513	treasurer's Report: Detailed Statement	
b. 34, f. 514-515	Working Papers	
1961	I-1962	1961-1962
b. 34, f. 516	Budget: Comparison & Actual	
b. 34, f. 517	Budget: Comparison & Actual, Schools & Department	
b. 34, f. 518	Budgets: Comparisons of 1961/1962 Approved & 1962/1963 Recommended Budgets-School & Departments	
b. 34, f. 519	Budgets: Analysis of Differences in 1961/1962 & 1962/1963 Budgets, Presented May 19, 1962	
b. 34, f. 520	Budgets: Approved & Preliminary 1961/1962 & 1962/63, Schools & Departments	
b. 34, f. 521	treasurer's Office: Budget Statements	
	Ford/NWA	
b. 34, f. 522	African & Latin American Studies Development #62-00-34-0340	
b. 34, f. 523	Administrative Expenses #62-00-34-0320	
b. 34, f. 524	East Asian Studies #62-00-34-2040	
b. 34, f. 525	Faculty Research #62-00-34-2680	
b. 35, f. 526	Southeast Asia Studies #62-00-34-7920	
b. 35, f. 527	Salaries #62-00-34-7050	
b. 35, f. 528	Russian & East European Studies #62-00-34-7630	
b. 35, f. 529	Public International Law #62-00-34-7260	
b. 35, f. 530	International Relations	
b. 35, f. 531	Income & Expenses	
b. 35, f. 532	treasurer's Report	
b. 35, f. 533-535	treasurer's Reports	
1962	2-1963	1962-1963
b. 36, f. 536	Budget: Comparisons of Approved & Preliminary-Schools & Departments	
b. 36, f. 537	Budget: Analysis of Differences 1962/1963 & 1963/1964	
b. 36, f. 538	Budget: Comparisons of Approved & Recommended Budgets by Schools & Departments	

b. 36, f. 539	Budgets: Analysis of Differences 1962/1963 & 1963/1964	
b. 36, f. 540	Budget: Comparison & Actual	
b. 36, f. 541	Budgets: Analysis of Differences Approved & Preliminary	1962/1963-1963/1964
b. 36, f. 542-543	Budget & Expenditure Accounts	
b. 36, f. 544	Budget: Statements & Preliminary Statements	
	Ford/NWA	
b. 36, f. 545	African Studies #62-00-34-0340	
b. 36, f. 546	Administrative Expenses #62-00-34-0320	
b. 36, f. 547	General	
b. 36, f. 548	Reconciliations Work Sheets	
b. 36, f. 549	Extra Ford Papers	
b. 36, f. 550	Concilium	
b. 37, f. 551	July 1 Transfers	
b. 37, f. 552	Miscellaneous Accounts: Concilium	
b. 37, f. 553	International Relations #62-0034-4010	
b. 37, f. 554	Faculty Research #62-00-34-2680	
b. 37, f. 555	Faculty Research: Reginald Green #62-00-34-2685	
b. 37, f. 556	East Asian Studies #62-0034-2040	
b. 37, f. 557	Salaries Control Account #62-00-34-7050	
b. 37, f. 558	Latin American Studies #62-00-34-7055	
b. 37, f. 559	Professorships	
b. 37, f. 560	Public International Law #62-00-34-7260	
b. 37, f. 561	Russian & East European Studies #62-00-34-7630	
b. 37, f. 562	Southeast Asia Studies #62-00-34-7920	
b. 37, f. 563	SAR/HEW 9396 (53-00-10-0275)	
b. 37, f. 564	SDCB-Professor Lipson (62-00-10-5220)	
b. 38, f. 565-566	treasurer's Office: Detailed Statement of Report	
b. 38, f. 567	treasurer's Report: Printer's Schedule	
b. 38, f. 568	treasurer's Reports	

1963-1964

b. 38, f. 569	Budget: Comparison, 1963-1964, Preliminary	1964-1965
b. 38, f. 570	Budget: Expenditure Accounts	
b. 38, f. 571	treasurer's Office: Budget Statements, Preliminary Statements & Analysis of Differences	
	Overtime	
b. 38, f. 572	Gifts, Grants, Contracts	
b. 38, f. 573	Comptroller's Office	
b. 38, f. 574	Budget Department	
b. 38, f. 575	Accounting Department	
b. 38, f. 576	Payroll Department	
b. 39 , f. 577	Investment Accounting	
b. 39 , f. 578	Inventory Control	
b. 39, f. 579	IBM Department	
b. 39 , f. 580	treasurer's Report: Printer's Schedule	
b. 39, f. 581-582	treasurer's Report	
b. 39 , f. 583	treasurer's Report: Detailed Statement	
1964	-1965	1964-1965
b. 39 , f. 58 4	treasurer's Office: Budget Statements, Analysis of Differences, Comparison, & Actual	
b. 40, f. 585	Budget: Expenditure Accounts	
b. 40, f. 586	Financial Statements: 1965 & Account's Report	
b. 40, f. 587-588	New Chart of Accounts: 1965, Explanation of	
b. 40, f. 589-591	treasurer's Report	
b. 41, f. 592	treasurer's Report: Detailed Statement	
b. 41, f. 593	Printer's Schedule: Working Papers	
b. 41, f. 594	treasurer's Report: Board of Trustees of Sheffield Scientific School	
1965	-1966	1965-1966
b. 41, f. 595	treasurer's Office: Budget Statements	
Series II		
1897	-1938	1897-1938
b. 41, f. 1	Ledger:	1897-1908

b. 41, f. 2	Ledger: 1908-1913, Loomis Acct., Commencement Rooms, McClung, L	ee
b. 41, f. 3	Old Balances, 1910-1911, 1911-1912, Various Schools, Dormitories, Dinir Halls	ng
b. 41, f. 4	Ledger:	1917-1922
b. 41, f. 5	Ledger: 1922-1926, B & M Job Tickets, Miscellaneous, Clerical Bureau, Adjustments, Supplies	
b. 41, f. 6	Ledger: Accounts Payable & Various Accounts, Trial Balance	
	1926-1931	1926-1931
	Ledger	
b. 42, f. 7	Trial Balance	-1937
b. 42, f. 7	New Haven Bank	-1934
b. 42, f. 7	Campaign Committees	-1932
b. 42, f. 7	Miscellaneous	-1933
b. 42, f. 8	Ledger:	1934-1936 - 1936-1938
b. 42, f. 9	Ledger: 1926-1927, Receipts. & Disbursements, 1930-1937, Closing Entries, 1929-1938	
b. 42, f. 10	Ledger: Sundry Items - n.d.	
	Ledgers & Miscellaneous Papers	
b. 42 , f. 11	Ledger: Canner Incorporated	1959-1964
b. 42, f. 12	Canner Incorporated, Miscellaneous Papers	
b. 42, f. 13	Ledger: Canner Incorporated	1959-1964
	Ledgers	
b. 43, f. 14	Canner, Incorporated	1959-1964
b. 43, f. 15-16	Whitehall Incorporated	1959-1964
b. 43, f. 7	Whitehall Incorporated	1959-1964
b. 43, f. 18	Whitehall Incorporated, Miscellaneous Papers	1964
b. 43, f. 19	Whitehall Incorporated, Miscellaneous Papers	1964-1965
b. 44, f. 20-21	Ledger: Whitney Incorporated	1959-1964
b. 44, f. 22	Whitney Incorporated, Worksheet	1964
b. 44, f. 23	Budget Comparisons, Financial History	1909-1973
	Yale Alumni Musical Corporation	1922-1948

Series II > Yale Alumni Musical Corporation (continued)

b. 45 , f. 24	Loans Outstanding, Minutes	1922-1948
b. 45, f. 25	Loans Paid in Full	1922-1930
b. 45, f. 26	Loans Repaid as Gifts	1922-1945
b. 45, f. 27	Inventory, 1866-1897, tuition, Steam, Grapevine Point	
b. 45, f. 28-31	Inventory	1934
b. 46, f. 32-36	Inventory	1934-1936
	1933-1962	1933-1962
b. 46, f. 37	Book Prizes: Stubs	1933-1945
b. 46, f. 38	Car Purchases: Records	1938-1960
b. 47, f. 39	Xerox Contracts	1962
b. 47, f. 40	IBM Contracts, 1954-1956 (International Business Machines)	
b. 47, f. 41	Overhead Reference: Miscellaneous	1950-1954
b. 47, f. 42	Tuition Contracts, Individual, Miscellaneous	1958-1962
b. 47, f. 43	Capital Fund Drive, Gift Memos	1958-1963
b. 47, f. 44-45	Fund Drive, Gift Memos	1960-1961
b. 47, f. 46	Fund Drive, Gift Memos	1961-1962
	Fund Drive, Gift Memos	
b. 48, f. 47	1961	1961
b. 48, f. 48-49	1962	1962
	Year Books	1911–1912 –– 1940–1941
b. 48, f. 50	1911-1912	1911-1912
b. 48, f. 51	Summary Account of Students	1911-1925
b. 48, f. 52	1912-1925	1912-1925
b. 49 , f. 53	1920-1921	1920-1921
b. 49 , f. 54	Yale Dining Hall	1921
b. 49, f. 55-58	1923-1928	1923-1928
b. 50, f. 59	1928-1929	1928-1929
b. 50, f. 60	1929-1930, Interest on Fund & Suspense Accounts	
b. 50, f. 61	1931-1932	1931-1932
b. 50, f. 62	1931-1934, Payroll Balances	

Series II > Year Books (continued)

b. 50 , f. 63-64	1932-1933	1932-1933	
b. 51 , f. 65-66	1934-1936	1934-1936	
	Class Books		
b. 51 , f. 67-70	1936-1940	1936-1940	
b. 52 , f. 71	Year Books, Payroll Balances	1933-1934	
	Class Books		
b. 52, f. 72-73	1939-1941	1939-1941	
Seri	Series III: Series III		
b. 53 , f. 1	1 Harkness Account: Working papers	1930-1936	
b. 53, f. 2-11	Balance Sheet & Statement of Increases & Expenses, Description of Funds	1933-1938	
b. 53, f. 12	Photostats	1937-1938	
b. 53, f. 13-14	Balance Sheet & Statement of Income & Expenses, Description of Funds	1938-1939	
b. 54, f. 15	Balance Sheet & Statement of Income & Expenses, Description of Funds	1938-1939	
b. 24, f. 16-17	Balance Sheet & Statement of Increase & Expenses, Description of Funds	1939-1940	
b. 54, f. 18	Income & Expenses	1939-1943	
b. 54, f. 19-21	Balance Sheet & Statement of Increases & Expenses, Description of Funds	1940-1941	
b. 54, f. 22	Photostats	1940-1941	
b. 54, f. 23-24	Balance Sheet & Statement of Income & Expenses, Description of Funds	1941-1942	
b. 54, f. 25	Photostats	1941-1942	
b. 54, f. 26-27	Balance Sheet & Statement of Income & Expenses, Description of Funds	1942-1943	
b. 54, f. 28	Income & Expenses	1942-1946	
b. 55, f. 29-34	Balance Sheet & Statement of Increases & Expenses, Description of Funds	1943-1946	
b. 55 , f. 35	Rate Control Cards & Purpose Control Cards	1945-1951	
b. 55, f. 36	Purpose Control Cards	1945-1952	
b. 55, f. 37-39	Balance Sheet & Increases & Expenses, Description of Funds	1946-1947	
b. 55, f. 40	Photostats	1946-1947	
b. 55, f. 41-43	Balance Sheet & Statement of Increases & Expenses, Description of Funds	1947-1948	
b. 55, f. 44	Balance Sheet & Statement of Increases & Expenses, Description of Funds, 1948-1949 (1 of 3)		
b. 56, f. 45-46	Balance Sheet & Statement of Increases & Expenses, Description of Funds	1948-1949	
b. 56 , f. 47	Case Disbursements Register	1959-1962	

Series III: Series III (continued)

b. 56, f. 48-51	Balance Sheet & Statement of Increases & Expenses, Description of Funds	1960-1962
b. 56, f. 52-53	Funds of Yale University, Miscellaneous Years After 1961[?]	
b. 56, f. 54-59	Balance Sheet & Statement of Increases & Expenses, Description of Funds	1962-1965

Accession 1990-A-153: Correspondence regarding insurance, circa 1942-1943

The materials are open for research.

Treasurer's Office - Johnson and Higgins Correspondence and Related Materials Regarding Yale University Insurance

b. 1, f. 1 Johnson and Higgins Correspondence and Related Materials Regarding Yale 1942-1943 University Insurance

Accession 1996-A-075: Financial records, circa 1900-1930

b. 1, f. 1	Accounts	1910-1930
b. 1, f. 2	Bursar's reports	1916-1918, 1929-1930
b. 1, f. 3 - 4	Bursar's vouchers	1915-1918, 1929
b. 1, f. 5	Correspondence	1910-1930
b. 1, f. 6	Haight, Charles C payments	
b. 1, f. 7 - 11	Invoices	1906-1930
b. 1, f. 12	Legal correspondence	1915-1917, 1929
b. 2, f. 13 - 15	Library receipts	1915 December-1918 March
b. 2, f. 16	Miscellaneous	
b. 2, f. 17	Pelton, Henry C invoices	
b. 2, f. 18	Rogers, James Gamble - invoices and payments	
		1000 14 1010
b. 2, f. 19 - 24	Receipts	1909 May-1918
b. 2, f. 19 - 24 b. 2, f. 25	Receipts Payment vouchers	1909 May-1918 1930 May-1931 December
	·	1930 May-1931
b. 2, f. 25	Payment vouchers	1930 May-1931 December
b. 2, f. 25	Payment vouchers [Departmental] vouchers	1930 May-1931 December
b. 2, f. 25 b. 2, f. 26 - 28	Payment vouchers [Departmental] vouchers Vouchers	1930 May-1931 December
b. 2, f. 25 b. 2, f. 26 - 28 b. 3	Payment vouchers [Departmental] vouchers Vouchers 1904 Jun 3-Jul 6	1930 May-1931 December
b. 2, f. 25 b. 2, f. 26 - 28 b. 3 b. 4	Payment vouchers [Departmental] vouchers Vouchers 1904 Jun 3-Jul 6 1904 Jul 7-Jul 12	1930 May-1931 December
b. 2, f. 25 b. 2, f. 26 - 28 b. 3 b. 4 b. 5	Payment vouchers [Departmental] vouchers Vouchers 1904 Jun 3-Jul 6 1904 Jul 7-Jul 12 1904 Jul 3-Jul 30	1930 May-1931 December

Selected Search Terms

The following terms have been used to index the description of this collection in the Library's online catalog. They are grouped by name of person or organization, by subject or location, and by occupation and listed alphabetically therein.

Subjects

College buildings -- Design and construction Endowments Gifts Investments Universities and colleges -- Administration Universities and colleges -- Finance

Names

Alling, John Day, George Parmly, 1876-1959 Dwight, Timothy, 1828-1916 Ecklund, John E., 1916-2000 Farnam, William Whitman, 1844-1929 Gage, Charles Stafford Hadley, Arthur Twining, 1856-1930 Herrick, Edward Claudius, 1811-1862 Hillhouse, James, 1754-1832 Kingsley, Henry Coit, 1815-1886 Lynde, Nathaniel (1659-1729) McClung, Lee, 1870-1914 Prout, John, 1689-1776 Rosewell, Richard Sherman, Roger, 1721-1793 Tighe, Laurence G., 1894-1954 Trumbull, John, 1750-1831 Tyler, Morris Franklin, 1848-1907 Warner, Wyllys, 1800-1869

Corporate Bodies

Collegiate School (New Haven, Conn.) Yale College (1718-1887) -- Administration Yale College (1718-1887) -- Finance Yale University. Treasurer Yale University -- Administration Yale University -- Benefactors Yale University -- Endowments Yale University -- Finance